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In the Circuit Court of the United States, for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., and

FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Respondents.

Order Extending Time to File Record.

Now, on this day, upon application of Bogle,

Hardin & Spooner, attorneys for respondent, and

for sufficient cause appearing, it is ordered that the

time within which the clerk shall prepare, certify

and transmit the record on appeal in this cause to

the Circuit Court of Appeals, be, and the same is

hereby, extended thirty days from this date.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

Dated at Seattle, Washington, July 5, 1907.

[Endorsed] : Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court,

Western Dist. of Washington. Jul. 5, 1907. A.

Reeves Ayres, Clerk. W. D. Covington, Dep.

No. 1490. United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals, for the Ninth Circuit. Filed Jul. 29, 1907. F,
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D. Monckton, Clerk. Re-filed Aug. 12, 1907. F. D.

Monckton, Clerk.

In the Circuit Court of the United States, in and

for the Western District of Washington, North-

ern Divisioyi, Ninth Circuit.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Incorporated (a

Corporation), FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Individually,

Defendants.

Bill of Complaint.

To the Honorable, the Judges of the Circuit Court

of the United States, for the Western District

of Washington.

Grenville M. Dodge of New York City, and a citi-

zen of the State of New York, brings this, his bill,

against Frank Waterhouse & Co., Incorporated, a

corporation organized under and by virtue of the

laws of the State of Washington, and a citizen of

the State of Washington, and Frank Waterhouse of
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Seattle, Washington, a citizen of the State of Wash-

ington.

And thereupon your orator complains and says

:

I.

That your orator is and was at the times here-

inafter mentioned, a citizen of the State of New-

York, and resided and now resides in the city of

New York, in the county and State of New York,

II.

That the defendant, the Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., is and was at the same time a corporation duly

incorporated and existing under the laws of the State

of Washington, and a citizen of the State of Wash-

ington, and that the defendant, Frank Waterhouse,

is and was at the same time, a citizen of the State

of Washington, and resided and now resides in the

city of Seattle, State of Washington.

III.

That, in the month of February, 1904, the North

Alaska Steamship Company, a corporation organ-

ized under and by virtue of the laws of the State of

New York, entered into an agreement with the de-

fendant, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., to pur-

chase of said defendant that certain steamship

*' Garonne," registered at Seattle, Washington, and

of which steamer the said defendant was then the

owner, for the sum of eighty-five thousand dollars
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($85,000), payable partly in cash, and the balance in

deferred payments.

IV.

That your orator further states that, in order to

make the payments on said steamer "Garonne," the

North Alaska Steamship Company, on or about May

13th, 1904, borrowed of said plaintiff a large sum

of money, to wit: the sum of thirteen thousand five

hundred dollars ($13,500.00), the whole or the great-

er part of which was, as your orator is informed

and believes, paid to said defendant, Frank Water-

house & Co., Inc., as part payments on the purchase

price of said steamer * * Garonne, '

' and for which sum

said steamship company agreed in writing to give

your orator a mortgage on said steamship.

V.

And your orator further states that on or about

June 2, 1904, there was an accounting had at Seat-

tle, Washington, between the said North Alaska

Steamship Company and your orator, and also be-

tween said North Alaska Steamship Company and

said defendant, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., and

that on said accounting it was found that the North

Alaska Steamship Company was indebted to your

orator in the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,-

000.00), being the balance due to the plaintiff on the

money loaned as aforesaid, and that said North

Alaska Steamship Company was also indebted to
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said defendant, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., in

the sum of thirty-seven thousand and six hundred

seventy-one and 46/100 dollars ($37,671.46), being

the balance due said defendant on the purchase price

of said steamer "Garonne."

VI.

And your orator further states that on or about

June 2, 1904, said steamer "Garonne" was at the

port of Seattle in the possession of the North Alaska

Steamship Company under the contract of sale

above mentioned, still registered in the name of the

defendant. Prank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., loaded and

equipped and ready to sail for the north and that

at said time one Frank S. Pusey, who was the agent

of and was acting for your orator, was present at

said Seattle for the purpose of securing the indebt-

edness from the North Alaska Steamship Company

to your orator, which was then due and payable,

by appropriate legal proceedings against said

steamer "Garonne," and against the North Alaska

Steamship Company, to restrain and prevent said

steamer from proceeding to the north, and to attach

or libel said steamer for said indebtedness to your

orator, as your orator had a right to do under the

laws and practice of the State of Washington, and

under the laws and practice of the United States,

relating to its admiralty jurisdiction ; but that at the

request of said defendants, Prank Waterhouse &
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Co., Inc., and Frank Waterhouse, and upon the

agreement hereinafter set forth and relying upon

such agreement, your orator took no action against

said steamship, or against the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, whereby he lost the security which

he could have then obtained, and entered into the

following written agreement with the said defend-

ant, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., which agreement

is as follows:

"Memorandum, between Frank S. Pusey, agent for

G. M. Dodge, of New York, and Frank Waterhouse

& Co., Inc., of Seattle, Washington.

The North Alaska Steamship Company is indebt-

ed to said Waterhouse & Co., Inc., in the sum of

about thirty-seven thousand six hundred seventy-one

and- 46/100 dollars ($37,671.46/100), being the bal-

ance due on the purchase price of the steamship

' Garonne, ' and are also indebted to said G. M. Dodge

in the sum of about ten thousand dollars for bor-

rowed money.

It is agreed that said Waterhouse & Co., Inc., shall

take a mortgage from said North Alaska Steamship

Company upon the Steamship 'Garonne,' to secure

both claims above mentioned. The claim of said

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., shall be prior and para-

mount under such mortgages, and the claim of said

Dodge shall be secondary. Said Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., shall take a note from said North Alaska Steam-
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ship Company, payable to them as trustee for the

amount so owing to said Dodge, said note to be pay-

able in two months from date.

It is agreed that said Waterhouse & Co., Inc., in

acting as such trustee for said Dodge in the secur-

ing of said indebtedness, assumes no liability what-

ever with reference thereto, except that it agrees to

act in good faith.

FRANK S. PUSEY, Agent,

For G. M. DODGE.
FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc.,

By FRANK WATERHOUSE, President."

And that also, on said June 2d, 1904, said North

Alaska Steamship Company delivered to said de-

fendant, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Incorporated, as

trustee for your orator, its promissory note in words

and figures following, to wit

:

"$10,000.00 Seattle, Wash., June 2d, 1904.

On or before two months after date, we promise

to pay to the order of Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., as trustee, the sum of ten thousand and 00/100

dollars, with interest at the rate of seven per cent per

annum from date. Negotiable and payable at the

Seattle National Bank, Seattle, Wash. If suit is

brought on this note or it becomes advisable to place

the same in the hands of an attorney for collection,

we agree to pay an additional sum equal to five per
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cent upon the amount of this note as an attorney's

fee.

NORTH ALASKA STEAMSHIP COMPANY,
By CHARLES B. SMITH,

President."

VII.

And your orator further states that said defend-

ant, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., failed to carry

out the trust on their jDart to be performed under

and pursuant to said trust agreement, and failed and

neglected to protect j^our orator in the premises, and

failed to take a mortgage from said North Alaska

Steamship Company; but, contrary to the said trust

assumed by us, it retained the title to said steamship

"Garonne," and, notwithstanding that the retention

of the title of said steamship under said trust

agreement was in legal effect a holding as trustee for

the benefit of themselves and your orator, said de-

fendants, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., and Frank

Waterhouse, without notice to your orator, and with-

out his knowledge, obtained the possession of said

steamship "Garonne" from said North Alaska

Steamship Company sometime in June or July, 1904,

and thereafter without notice to your orator, and

without his knowledge or consent, and without any

consideration for the rights of your orator or of

the terms of said trust agreement, or of the duties

of said defendant, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc.,
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as such trustee, and in violation thereof and in bad

faith, and for the purpose of injuring your orator,

sold or attempted to sell the said steamship '* Ga-

ronne" to the defendant, the Merchants' and Min-

ers' Steamship Company, a corporation organized

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of New
York, in which company, as your orator is informed,

the defendant, Frank Waterhouse, the president of

the defendant Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., was in-

terested as a promoter and stockholder, from which

sale both the defendants Waterhouse & Co., Inc.,

and Frank Waterhouse secured or attempted to se-

cure to themselves profits and advantages to the in-

jury of your orator and in defiance of his rights.

VIII.

And your orator further states that said North

Alaska Steamship Company has not paid the amount

of its note aforesaid for ten thousand dollars ($10,-

000.00), or any part thereof to your orator, and

that your orator has not received said sum or any

part thereof from any source whatsoever.

IX.

And your orator further states that said steamer

''Garonne," on June 2d, 1904, was in first-class con-

dition, thoroughly seaworthy, having been repaired

and put in first-class condition shortly prior to that

time at an expense of over twenty-five thousand dol-
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lars ($25,000.00), and that when said steamer ''Ga-

ronne" was turned over by the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company to said defendant, Prank Water-

house & Co., Inc., or Frank Waterhouse, she was

still in first-class condition and thoroughly sea-

worthy, and worth upward of one hundred thou-

sand dollars ($100,000.00), and was worth much more

than sufficient to pay all claims against her, includ-

ing the claim of your orator for ten thousand dol-

lars ($10,000.00) as herein set forth, and that said

steamer "Garonne" was at the time of sale or pre-

tended sale by the defendant, Frank Waterhouse &

Co., Inc., or Frank Waterhouse, to the Merchants' &

Miners' Steamship Company worth upward of one

hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00).

And your orator further states that he did not

learn that said steamer "Garonne" had been deliv-

ered to said defendant, Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., or Frank Waterhouse, and that said defend-

ant had sold or attempted to sell the same to said

Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company until

on or after the 19th day of August, 1904, and that

your orator then demanded of said defendants Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., and Frank Waterhouse, an

accounting as trustee under said trust agreement

and for the payment to him of the ten thousand dol-
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lars ($10,000.00) due him as aforesaid with inter-

est, but that said defendants Frank Waterhouse &

Co., Inc., have and each of them has failed and re-

fused and still fail and refuse to render any such

accounting, or to in any way account to your orator

under said trust agreement or otherwise, and simply

denies that your orator has any rights whatsoever in

the premises.

XI.

And your orator further says that he is ignorant

of all matters connected with the sale of the steam-

ship "Garonne" to the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company, and that he is ignorant as to whether

there has been an actual sale of said steamship or

not, or if so, whether the purchase price of said

steamship was a fair and reasonable one,,; and that

the defendant Frank Waterhouse, is made a party

defendant for the reason that it was.through him and

relying upon his representations and assurances

that your orator entered into said contract .with

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., of which he then was

and still is president, and that, as your orator is in-

formed, he owns a controlling or large interest in

said Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., and in the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Company, and that he

personally carried through the transactions for and

the sale of the said steamer "Garonne" to said Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Co., and personally
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obtained a large profit or advantage therefrom, and

in many ways, the full knowledge of your orator's

rights under said contract, and in bad faith and with

fraudulent intent, worked and acted to the injury and

damage of your orator as aforesaid.

XII.

That the matter in dispute in this action, exclusive

of interest and costs, exceeds in value the sum of

two thousand dollars ($2,000.00).

To the end therefore that your orator may have

that relief which he can only obtain in a court of

equity, and inasmuch as your orator is remediless in

the premises at and by the strict rules of the common

law, and is only remediable in a court of equity,

where matters of this kind are properly cognizable

and reviewable; and that the defendants, Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., Frank Waterhouse, and

each of them shall truly make answer according to

the best of the knowledge, information and belief

of each of them, to all and singular the matters and

charges aforesaid, your orator hereby waiving pur-

suant to the statutes, the necessity of the answer

of either of the said defendants being put in under

the oath of such defendant, and that as full and

particular in every respect as if the same were here

again repeated, and he thereunto particularly in-

terrogated.
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And that an account be taken of all the acts and

transactions of said Frank Waterhoiise & Co., Inc.,

as trustee as aforesaid, touching or in any wise ap-

pertaining to the matters hereinbefore set forth, and

particularly of all sums of money and other prop-

erty of whatsoever kind or nature that has come into

the hands of or been received by the said defend-

ant, or any of its officers, agents or employees, for

its use or benefit or in its behalf, by reason of the

sale of the steamer '' Garonne," and of the value of

anj^ and all property so received other than money;

and that the said defendant be decreed to pay and

deliver to your orator whatever shall thereupon be

found due him from the said defendant ; or that this

Court impress the terms of said trust agreement upon

the said proceeds, and proceed to administer said

trust for the protection of your orator.

And, if it should appear upon said accounting that

the defendant, Frank Waterhouse, has personally

obtained any profit or advantage from the sale of

said steamer '

' Garonne, '

' then that your orator have

similar relief against him.

And, if it should appear upon said accounting that

your orator has been injured and has suffered dam-

age by reason of the neglect, default or failure of

the defendant Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., to ob-

serve and perform in good faith its said contract with

your orator, or by reason of any wrongful act or acts
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of either of the defendants, then that such defendant

or defendants shall be decreed to pay to your orator

the amount of such damage.

And that your orator shall recover of said defend-

ant or defendants his costs in this behalf incurred,

and also such sum as this Court may deem reason-

able as an attorney's fee.

And that your orator have such other and further

relief in the premises as the nature of the case shall

require and shall be agreeable to equity and good

conscience.

May it please your Honors to grant unto your ora-

tor a writ of subpoena issued by and under the seal

of this Honorable Court and directed to said defend-

ants, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., and Frank

Waterhouse, commanding them and each of them on

a certain date and under a certain penalty in said

writ to be stated, personally to appear before your

Honors in this Honorable Court, and then and there

full, true and perfect answers make to all and sing-

ular the premises, and further to stand and perform

and abide such further orders, direction and decree

herein as to your honors shall seem meet, and shall

be agreeable to equity and good conscience.

And your orator will ever pray.

GEO. H. KING,

Solicitor for the Complainant.
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United States of America,

State of Washington,

County of King,—ss.

George H. King, being first duly sworn, on his

oath deposes and says that he is the solicitor for the

plaintiff in the above-entitled action; that the plain-

tiff does not reside and is not now within the State

of Washington or the District of Washington; that

affiant is familiar with the matters and things al-

leged in the foregoing bill, and he therefore verifies

this bill for and on behalf of the said plaintiff, and

he further states that the allegations and averments

set forth in the foregoing bill are true, except those

made upon information and belief ,and that those

made upon information and belief are true as he

verily believes,

GEO. H. KING,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 26th day

of April, 1905.

[Seal] H. P. CLISE,

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle, in said State.

Service of all subsequent papers in this action ex-

cept writs and process, may be made at the office

of the undersigned, at Room 401, Globe Block, Cor-
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ner First Avenue & Madison St., Seattle, King

County, Washington.

GEORGE H. KING,

Solicitor for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Bill In Equity for an Accounting,

Filed in the IT. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of

Washington, April 26, 1905. A. Reeves Ayres,

Clerk. By A. N. Moore, Deputy.

In the United States Circuit Court, for the Western

District of Washington, Northern Division.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE AND COMPANY, INC

(a Corporation), and FRANK WATER-
HOUSE,

Defendants.

Answer.

These respondents, Frank Waterhouse and Com-

pany, Inc., and Frank Waterhouse, answering so

much and such parts of said bill of complaint as they

are advised it is material or necessary for them to

answer unto, say:

I.

They admit upon information and belief that said
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complainant is a citizen and resident of the State of

New York.

n.

They admit that respondent Frank Waterliouse

and Company, Inc., is a corporation organized under

the general laws of the State of Washington, and a

citizen of said State; and that Frank Waterhouse is

a citizen and resident of said State.

III.

They admit that the North Alaska Steamship

Company, a corporation organized under the laws of

the State of New York, entered into an agreement

with respondent company to purchase the steamship

"Garonne" for the sum of eighty-five thousand

($85,000.) Respondents show that said agreement

was negotiated by one W. H. Ferguson for and on

behalf of the North Alaska Steamship Company on

or about February 3d, 1904, terms and conditions

thereof being as follows: $1,000 in cash, which was

paid on the day said contract was entered into;

$14,000 to be paid on or before February 15th, 1904;

and the remaining $70,000 to be evidenced by the

notes of North Alaska Steamship Co. payable as

follows: $10,000 March 10th, 1904; $10,000, June

15th, 1904; $5,000, September 15th, 1904; $5,000,

November 15th, 1904; $5,000, February 15th, 1905

$5,000, April 15th, 1905; $5,000, June 15th, 1905

$5,000, August 15th, 1905; $5,000, October 15th, 1905
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$10,000, December 15th, 1905; and $5,000, March

15th, 1906; said deferred payments to be secured by

first mortgage on said steamship together with an

assignment of marine insurance thereon to the full

amount of such deferred payment and a satisfactory

guarantee that said steamship would at all times be

kept free and clear of all claims or incumbrances

until said indebtedness was paid in full, and said de-

ferred notes to be further secured by collateral se-

curity satisfactory to said Frank Waterhouse and

Company, Inc. ; said vessel was to be conveyed to said

Noith Alaska Steamship Company upon the pay-

ment of said $14,000 on February 15th, 1904, and the

execution of said notes and the furnishing of the se-

curity therefor as hereinabove stated.

IV.

Respondents have been informed that said North

Alaska Steamship Company borrowed some money

from said complainant, but they have no certain

knowledge thereof and call for strict proof in so

far as same may be material to their interest. Re-

spondents do not know nor have they any informa-

tion sufficient to enable them to form a belief

whether any of the money that may have been so

borrowed by said North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany from said complainant was paid on the pur-

chase price of said steamer, and they call for strict

proof thereof.
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Respondents further state that various sundry

pa}Tnents were made by said North Alaslva Steam-

ship Company to respondent company on said con-

tract of purchase, and that all said payments were

made in the name of said North Alaska Steamship

Company and without any notice or knowledge

upon the part of these respondents of the source

from which said North Alaska Steamship Company

obtained the money to make such payments. Upon

information and belief respondents deny that said

North Alaska Steamship Company agreed to give

a mortgage to said complainant upon said vessel.

V.

Answering the allegations in paragraph V of said

bill of complaint, respondents state

:

That said North Alaska Steamship Company did

not comply with the terms of said contract of pur-

chase. Tha/t it paid to respondent company said

sum of one thousand dollars ($1,000) on February

3d, 1904, but defaulted in the payment due on Feb-

ruary 15th, 1904, and fell behind on all the payments

subsequently accruing thereon up to June 2d, 1904.

That said North Alaska Steamship Company soon

after entering into said contract, desired to make

certain alterations and repairs upon said steamship,

and applied to this respondent company for per-

mission to take such possession of said steamer as

was necessary in order to make such repairs; that



20 Frank Waterhoicse d- Co., Inc., vs.

this respondent did give partial possession for that

purpose, upon tlie express agreement upon the

part of said North Alaska Steamship Company that

no indebtedness would be incurred against said

steamer, and that said company would at all times

keep funds in the hands of this respondent com-

pany amply sufficient to pay off all material and

labor claims and other debts incurred by said North

Alaska Steamship Company in repairing said

steamer and fitting and provisioning her for the

season's business. Respondents show and state

that they called upon said North Alaska Steam-

ship Company at various and sundry times be-

tween February 3d and June 2d, 1904, to perform

its agreement by making the payments due under

the terms of said contract and furnishing the se-

curity for the deferred payments as therein pro-

vided, and also to furnish funds with which to pay

the claims incurred against said steamer by said

North Alaska Steamship Company in said repairs

and for supplies ordered by said company for said

steamer, but that said North Alaska Steamship

Company failed to comply with said demands and

induced respondent company to postpone a definite

cancellation of said contract for breach thereof by

repeated promises of performance within a few

days. That on June 2d, 1904, there was a balance

due respondent company on said purchase price
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from said North Alaska Steamship Company of

$37,671.46; that said steamer was loaded with cargo

and passengers ready to start on her voyage to

Nome, Alaska; that the representative of said North

Alaska S(teamship Company reported to respond-

ent company that there were claims unpaid against

said steamer for repairs and supplies amounting

to approximately thirteen thousand dollars ($13,-

000). That said North Alaska Steamship Company

had failed to furnish a guarantee bond guarantee-

ing said vessel would be kept free of liens and they

had failed to furnish the collateral security for

said deferred payments according to the terms of

their contract, and stated to respondent that they

were unable to furnish such security; and respond-

ent company had notified them that said vessel

would not be permitted to sail under their charge

until said contract was complied with in full. That

on or about June 1st, 1904, one Charles B. Smith,

president of said North Alaska Steamship Company,

arrived in Seattle from New York expecting to go

to Nome, Alaska, on said steamer, and one Frank

S. Pusey, representing himself as the agent of said

complainant, also arrived in Seattle about the same

date. That said Smith represented to respondents

that his company was prepared to pay off all the

claims against said vessel incurred by repairs and

supplies as soon as he could notify the New York
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office of the amount clue therefor; and that they

were prepared to pay the balance due respondent

company on the purchase price within the next

twenty days; and in view of said representations

and replying thereon, this respondent company con-

sented to permit said steamer to make said voyage

in charge of said North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany; that said Smith and said Pusey agreed that

said North Alaska Steamship Company was in-

debted to said complainant in the sum of ten thou-

sand dollars ($10,000), and said Smith, on behalf

of his said company, offered to take a bill of sale

to said steamer and to execute a mortgage thereon

for the balance due respondent company, payable

in twenty (20) and forty (40) days from that date,

and to give a second mortgage to said complainant

to secure the ten thousand dollars ($10,000) due

him payable in sixty (60) days from that date; said

bill of sale and mortgages to be executed by said

company as soon as the money was received by re-

spondent company with which to pay the claims

for labor and supplies against said steamer; that

said Smith also agreed with said Pusey to assign

to him, and on behalf of said North Alaska Steam-

ship Company did assign to said Pusey certain

freight due on cargo then being shipped by said

steamer to Nome, which was payable on delivery of

the cargo at Nome, and said Pusey appointed said
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Smith as agent to collect said freight and remit them

to the Seattle Naitional Bank for the credit of said

complainant. That as a matter of convenience it

was agreed between the said Piisey and the said re-

spondent company that one mortgage would be

taken on said vessel securing both claims due said

respondent company and due said complainant, said

mortgage providing for priority in favor of the debt

due respondent company; that said Pusey stated to

respondent that he did not wish to remain in Seattle

for the length of time necessary to get said mortgage

executed by said North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, and requested respondent company to act for

him in receiving such money as might be remitted

by said Smith to said Seattle National Bank for the

credit of complainant, and in the acceptance and re-

cording of said mortgage; and the respondent com-

pany as a matter of accommodation to said Pusey

consented to do so, and the memorandum set forth

in the sixth paragraph of said bill of complaint was

executed to evidence said arrangement.

Respondent further shows that it was agreed that

the note to said complainant should be executed by

said North Alaska Steamship Company payable to

this respondent company as trustee for said com-

plainant in order that the same might be deposited

in the Seattle National Bank and any remittances

received by said bank from said Smith could be

credited thereon.
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VI.

Respondents deny that said Pusey was prevented

by them from resorting to any legal proceedings

against either said steamer or said North Alaska

Steamship Company; on the contrary, they were ad-

vised that said complainant had no lien of any kind

against said steamer and could not maintain any

libel or other action to subject said vessel to his

claim. The title to said steamer was in this re-

spondent company, and said North Alaska Steam-

ship Company had defaulted in its contract of pur-

chase and was unable to perform the same at that

time; and this resjDondent company was contem-

plating declaring said contract forfeited on account

of such failure, and was induced to forego doing so

by the representations of said Smith that said liens

and debts would be paid off in full at once and the

balance of the purchase price paid within a short

time. Respondent states that in the transactions

and conversations with said Pusey leading up to said

final arrangement the said Pusey was distinctly in-

formed of the rights of this respondent and the con-

ditions as they existed at that time between it and

said North Alaska Steamship Company, and said

Pusey at all times recognized the rights of this re-

spondent to full payment before the said North Al-

aska Steamshij) Company would be entitled to any

interest or property in said steamer.
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VII.

Replying to tlie allegations contained in para-

graph VII of the bill of complaint, respondents say

they deny that they failed to perfomi any trust on

their part to be performed under the arrangement

herein set out, and they deny that they failed and

neglected to do anything they were required to do

to protect said complainant in the premises.

Respondents state that said North Alaska Steam-

ship Company was a New York corporation, and

had its main office and corporate seal in the State

of New York, and that all of its officers except said

Charles B, Smith, who was president, were then in

New York. That respondent company caused to

be prepared a bill of sale of said steamer from re-

spondent company to said North Alaska Steamship

Company, and also caused to be prepared a mort-

gage from said North Alaska Steamship Company

to respondent company upon said steamer with ap-

propriate conditions and provisions to secure the

debts due this respondent company and also that

due complainant in accordance with the terms

agreed on. That said mortgage was submitted to

said Pusey and declared by him to be satisfactory

in form; that thereupon respondent company pro-

cured said Charles B. Smith, president of said North

Alaska Steamship Company, to sign said mortgage

for and on behalf of said company, and also to ex-
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eeute the notes upon behalf of said company. That

respondent company was advised by its own coun-

sel, and by said Pusey, that said Smith as president

could not execute said mortgage and that it was

necessary that the same should be forwarded to New

York to complete the execution thereof by the sig-

nature of the secretary under the seal of the corpora-

tion and to have the same approved by the Board

of Directors of said company. That accordingly

this respondent company on June 3d, 1904, enclosed

said bill of sale and said mortgage to the Chase Na-

tional Bank of New York with directions to said

bank to deliver said bill of sale to said North Al-

aska Steamship Company upon the proper execu-

tion of said mortgage by that company; and on the

same day respondent company notified J. B. Leake,

the secretary of said company, and also the Occiden-

tal Security Company, the financial agent of said

company in New York, of the forwarding of said

j)apers and requested prompt execution thereof.

That said North Alaska Steamship Company failed

and refused to execute said mortgage and refused

to pay the claims incurred by it against said steam-

ship ompany for repairs and supplies. That

respondent company upon a thorough investigation

ascertained that there were bills outstanding against

said steamship, which were liens thereon, for re-

pairs made and supplies furnished to said steam-
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ship by said North Alaska Steamship Company

amounting in the aggregate to approximately thirty-

five thousand dollars ($35,000) instead of thirteen

thousand dollars ($13,000) as had been represented

to this respondent by the officers of said company.

That respondent company thereupon demanded of

said North Alaska Steamship Company that it at

once pay off said claims and execute said mortgage

or otherwise comply with the terms of said contract

of purchase, and said North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany confessed its inability to do so and voluntarily

abandoned said contract and relinquished and re-

leased to said respondent company all right under

said contract of purchase and surrendered said

steamship to said respondent company. That said

respondent company thereafter sold said steamship

to the Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company

of New York.

Respondents further show that at the time said

North Alaska Steamship Company declared its in-

ability to carry out said contract and offered to re-

lease said steamer to respondent company, these re-

spondents endeavored to get into communication

with said complainant in order to notify him of the

position taken by said North Alaska Steamship

Company, but that they were informed that said

complainant was abroad and they were unable to get

into communication with him. That said claims
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against said steamship for repairs and supplies were

then due and the payments thereof were being

pressed against this respondent company and re-

spondent was compelled to take immediate action in

order to protect his own interest.

Respondents deny the allegations in said bill of

complaint that it failed to carry out said alleged

trust upon its part or that it failed and neglected

to protect the interest of said complainant in so far

as it was able to do so, and it shows that said mort-

gage was not executed because of the refusal of the

said North Alaska Steamship Company to execute

the same. Respondents deny that they have in any

way violated any trust assumed by said respondent

company to said complainant and they deny that

they or either of them have in any of the matters

referred to acted in bad faith toward said complain-

ant. They show and state that when said North

Alaska Steamship Company failed and refused to

carry out its said contract of purchase and refused

to furnish money to pay off the bills and claims in-

curred against said steamship and released and re-

linquished its right to purchase said steamship

under said contract, this respondent company found

itself in possession of said steamship with an in-

debtedness of approximately thirty-five thousand

dollars ($35,000) thereon, which was immediately

due and payable. That in order to raise the money
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to pay said claims this respondent company agreed

to and did sell and convey said steamship to the

Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company of

New York, receiving from said company the sum

of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) in cash, with

which this respondent company paid the liens

against said steamship to that amount, and taking

stock in said Merchants' and Miners' Steamship

Company for the remaining interest of this respon-

dent company in said steamer.

Respondents deny that either of them received any

profits whatever from said sale and they deny that

respondent Frank Waterhouse received any pro-

moter's interest or acquired any stock whatever or

any profits or advantages from said sale. Respond-

ents show that said sale to Merchants' and Miners'

Steamship Company was made in perfect good faith

and as the only means open to the respondent com-

pany to raise the funds to pay off and discharge the

liens against said steamship incurred by said North

Alaska Steamship Company.

VIII.

Respondents have no knowledge or information

sufficient to form a belief as to whether said North

Alaska Steamship Company has paid its indebted-

ness to said complainant or not.

IX.

Respondents state in answer to allegations con-
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tained in the ninth paragraph of said bill of com-

plaint that said steamship ''Garonne" on June 2d,

1904, was in first-class condition and respondent

believes that she was thoroughly seaworthy, and they

state that the overhauling and repairs made thereon

by said North Alaska Steamship Company were

charged and done on the credit of this steamer, and

that this respondent company was compelled to pay

the bills therefor.

Respondents deny that said steamship at the time

said North Alaska Steamship Company abandoned

its contract of purchase was worth one hundred

thousand dollars ($100,000), or that she could have

been sold for that sum. Respondents in that con-

nection state that they had been endeavoring to sell

said steamship for several years and that they en-

deavored to sell her at the time said North Alaska

Steamship Company abandoned its contract, and

that the best price that could be obtained therefor was

the sum of sixty-seven thousand dollars ($67,000),

being the balance due this respondent company and

sufficient cash to pay said liens and claims.

X.

Respondents show that as soon after said trans-

actions as they obtained the address of said com-

plainant they notified him of the actions that has

been taken in the premises, and returned to him the

said note which has been signed by said Charles B.
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Smith for said North Alaska Steamship Company-

payable to said complainant. They deny that said

complainant is entitled to any accounting from the

respondent company or either of them, and they

deny that the respondents or either of them are in-

debted to said complainant in any sum whatever.

XI.

Respondents deny that said complainant entered

into any arrangement with the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, or with the respondent company up-

on or through or relying upon any representation

of the respondent, Frank Waterhouse. They ad-

mit that said respondent, Frank Waterhouse, owns

a controlling interest in Frank Waterhouse and

Company, Inc., but they deny that he owns any stock

whatever in said Merchants' and Miners' Steamship

Company; and they deny that he obtained any pro-

fits or advantages from the sale of said steamer

''Garonne" to said Merchants' and Miners' Steam-

ship Company; and they deny that either of said

respondents in any way whatever worked or acted in

bad faith or with fraudulent intent to injure or dam-

age said complainant. On the contrary, respon-

dents state that in all of said transactions they did

endeavor to protect the debt due said complainant

in so far as they were able to do so without sacri-

ficing the prior claim and interest of the respondent

company.
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Now having fully answered, respondents ask that

said bill of complaint be dismissed and that they

go hence without day.

W. H. BOGLE,
Solicitor for Respondents.

State of Washington,

County of King,—ss.

Before the undersigned authority in and for said

state and county, Frank Waterhouse this day makes

oath that he is one of the respondents named in the

foregoing answer ; that he has read said answer and

knows the contents thereof; that the matters and

things therein stated as of the knowledge of respon-

dents are true, and those things stated upon inform-

ation and belief he verily believes to be true.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 3d day of

May, 1905.

[Seal] JAMES P. TOWNSEND,
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle.

[Endorsed] : Answer. Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington, May 3,

1905. A. Reeves, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc. (a Corpora-

tion), and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Exceptions to Answer.

Exceptions taken by the said complainant to the

joint answer of the defendants, Frank Waterhouse

& Co., and Frank Waterhouse, to complainant's bill

of complaint.

1st. For that so much of paragraph III of said

answer as commences at the words: "Respondents

show that said agreement," etc., on page 1 of said

answer, line 32, down to the end of said paragraph

III, is irrelevant and immaterial, and contains no

defense to the complainant's allegations, and is in-

sufficient.

2d. For that so much of paragraph V of said an-

swer as commences at the words : "That said North

Alaska Steamship Company did not comply," etc.,



34 Frank WaterJiouse & Co., Inc., vs.

on page 3 of said answer, line 15, down to the words

:

"by repeated promises of performance within a few

days," on page 4 of said answer, line 13, is irrele-

vant and immaterial, and does not bear at all on the

issues involved in this suit, and is insufficient and

contains no defense to the complainant's allegations,

3d. For that the details and allegations con-

tained in paragraph VII of said answer are insuf-

ficient as a defense to the allegations contained in

complainant's bill of complaint in this: That the

denials contained in said paragraph VII, and each

of them, are mere conclusions of law; and that the

affirmative allegations therein contained are irrele-

vant, insufficient, sham and evasive, and contain no

defense to the complainant's allegations; that the

nmnber of shares of stock of the Merchants' and

Miners' Steamship Company, of New York, alleged

to have been received in payment for said steamer

''Garonne," and the value of said shares is not set

forth; and that it does not appear therein that de-

fendants endeavored to sell said steamer for any

other or better price or terms that that alleged to

have been offered by said Miners' and Merchants'

Steamship Company.

4th. For that so much of paragraph IX of said

answer as commences at the words: ''Respondents

in that connection state," etc., on page 11 of said
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answer, line 2, clown to the end of said paragraph IX
are sham, insufficient and evasive.

5th. For that so much of paragraph X of said

answer as is contained in the first six lines thereof,

down to and including the words: "payable to said

complainant," on page 11 of said answer, line 16, is

irrelevant, immaterial and insufficient, and does not

bear on the issues involved in this suit.

Wherefore the complainant comes, and in all partic-

ulars aforesaid excepts to the answer of said defend-

ants, on the grounds alleged, that the same is evasive,

imperfect, insufficient, irrelevant and immaterial

and humbly prays that said defendants may be com-

pelled to put in a full, true, complete and sufficient

answer thereto, and particularly that said defend-

ants be required to set out a full and true accounting

of the alleged sale of said steamer ''Garonne" to said

Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company, and the

true character and value of the consideration re-

ceived therefor, and that he have such other relief

in the premises as to the Court may seem proper.

G. W. KING,
Solicitor for Complainant.

Service of the within exceptions, by delivery of a

copy to the undersigned is hereby acknowledged this

26th day of May, 1905.

W. H. BOGLE,
Attorney for Defendant.
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[Endorsed] : Exceptions to Answer. Filed in the

U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington,

May 26, 1905. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. H. M.

Walthew, Dep.

In the Circuit Court of the United States in and for

the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, Ninth Circuit.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Incorporated (a

Corporation), FRANK WATERHOUSE,
individually.

Defendants.

Order Overruling Exceptions to Answer.

The exceptions of the complainant to the answer

filed herein, coming on this day to be heard ; the same

being fully considered, it is ordered by the Court

that said exceptions be, and they are hereby, over-

ruled.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

Dated this 29th day of May, 1905.
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[Endorsed] : Order. Filed in the U. S. Circuit

Court, Western Dist. of Washington. May 29, 1905.

A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. H. M. Walthew, Dep.

United States Circuit Court, Western District of

Washington, Northern Division.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERTIOUSE & CO., Inc, et al.,

Defendants.

Memorandum Decision on Exceptions to Answer.

(Filed July 6, 1905.)

An answer under oath having been waived, ex-

ceptions for insufficiency and for impertinence can-

not be taken to part of an answer, and for that rea-

son the exceptions in this case will be overruled.

At the final hearing the Court will disregard im-

material issues, if any are raised by the answer, and

the defendants will be taxed with costs and all ex-

penses occasioned by such immaterial matter.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Memorandum Decision on Excep-

tions to Answer. Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court,
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Western Dist. of Washington. July 6, 1905. A.

Reeves Ayres, Clerk. H. M. Walthew, Dep.

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision, Ninth Circuit.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., and

FRANK WATERHOUSE, individually,

Defendants.

Order Overruling Exceptions to Answer, etc.

On hearing complainant's exceptions to defend-

ants' answer, in the above-entitled proceeding, it is

hereby

Ordered: That said exceptions be, and the same
hereby are overruled, and that said complainant have

until the next succeeding rule day in this court to file

amendments to his bill, without costs, or to file a
general replication to said answer, as he may elect.

To that portion of the above order overruling
complainant's exceptions to the answer, complain''-

ant, by counsel, excepts, and his exception is allowed.

C. H. HANFORD,

Seattle, Washington, July 12th, 1905. ^
^^'
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[Endorsed] : Order. Filed in the U. S. Circuit

Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Jul. 12, 1905.

A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

In the Circuit Court of the United States, in and for

the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, Ninth Circuit.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE «S; CO., Incorporated (a

Corporation), FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Individually,

Defendants.

Replication.

To the Honorable, the Judges of the Circuit Court

of the United States, for the Western District

of Washington.

The replicant, Grenville M. Dodge, saving and re-

serving to himself all and all manner of advantages

of exception which may be had and taken to the

manifold errors, uncertainties and insufficiencies of

the answer of the defendants, Frank Waterhouse &

Co., Incorporated, a corjooration, and Frank Water-

house, individually, for replication thereunto saith
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that he doth and will aver, maintain, and prove his

said bill to be true, certain and sufficient in the law

to be answered unto by the said defendants, and that

the answer of the said defendants is very uncertain,

evasive, and insufficient in law to be replied unto

by this replicant; without that, that any other mat-

ter or thing in the said answer contained, material

or effectual in the law to be replied unto, and not

herein and hereby well and sufficiently replied unto,

confessed or avoided, traversed or denied, is true;

all of which matters and things this replicant is ready

to aver, maintain, and prove as this Honorable Court

shall direct and humbly prays as in and by his said

bill he hath already prayed.

G. W. KING,

Solicitor for Complainant.

United States of America,

State of Washington,

County of King,—ss.

Geo. H. King, being first duly sworn, upon his

oath deposes and says: that he is the solicitor for

the complainant in the above-entitled action; that

said complainant does not reside and is not now

within the State of Washington or the Western Dis-

trict of Washington ; that affiant is familiar with the

matters and things alleged in the foregoing replica-

tion and he therefore verifies said replication for and
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on behalf of said complainant ; and he further states

that the allegations and averments set forth in said

replication are true, except those made upon in-

formation and belief, and that those made upon in-

formation and belief are true as he verily believes.

GEO. H. KING.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 2d day of

Aug., 1905.

[Seal] H. R. CLISE,

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle, Washington,

Service of the within replication by delivery of a

copy to the undersigned is hereby acknowledged this

2d day of August, 1905.

W. H. BOGLE.

Per R. J. B.,

Attorney for Defendants.

[Endorsed] : Replication. Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Aug. 2,

1905. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. H. M. Walthew,

Dep.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States, for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & COMPANY, Incor-

porated, and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Stipulation to Take Testimony of Frank S. Pusey.

It is hereby stipulated by and between the parties

hereto that the deposition of Frank S. Pusey, a wit-

ness on behalf of the complainant, may be taken in

rebuttal before Willis Von Valkenburgh, special ex-

aminer, at 415 Williams Street, New York City,

upon the interrogatories hereto attached, and when

so taken may be used at the hearing of said cause,

subject to the same objections (except only to the

form of the interrogatories), as to competency, rele-
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vancy and materiality of the testimony as if said wit-

ness was personally present and testifying.

GEO. H. KING,

Solicitor for Complainant.

W. H. BOGLE,

Solicitor for Defendants.

In the Circuit Court of the United States, for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & COMPANY, Incorpo-

rated, and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Direct Interrogatories to Frank S. Pusey.

Deposition of Frank S. Pusey.

Int. 1. Are you the same Frank S. Pusey who

formerly testified in this action in New York on Sep-

tember 29, 1905 ?

Int. 2. I call your attention to a statement con-

tained on page 12, lines 28,. 29 and 30, and page 13,

lines 1, 2 and 3 of the testimony of Frank Water-

house for the defense in this action, in which Mr.

Waterhouse says: "Mr. Pusey then dropped or dis-
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(Deposition of Prank S. Pusey.)

continued liis attempts to persuade me to recognize

the above-mentioned agreement and asked raj co-

operation in helping him to obtain pajTnent or sat-

isfactory security for the loan of General Dodge to

Mr. Smith," and would ask you if that statement is

correct ?

Int. 3. If you answer that this statement is not

correct then state in what respect it is incorrect, and

what actually took place in reference to said agree-

ment at that interview between yourself and Mr.

Waterhouse ?

Int. 4. I call your attention to the statement on

page 13 of the testimony of Frank Waterhouse for

the defense in this proceeding to the effect that at

the interview in Seattle between Prank Waterhouse,

Mr. Charles B. Smith and yourself, therein testi-

fied to, whether or not Mr. Smith stated to Mr.

Waterhouse in your presence or to your knowledge

that the indebtedness due General Dodge, and which

you were trying to have paid or secured, was an

individual obligation of said Charles B. Smith, and

not an obligation of the North Alaska Steamship

Company ?

Int. 5. State to the best of your knowledge and

recollection what was said at that interview by Mr.

Smith in reference to that indebtedness?
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(Deposition of Frank S. Pusey.)

Int. 6. I call your attention to a statement con-

tained in the testimony of Mr. Frank Waterhouse

for the defense in this action on page 16, lines 17 to

21, as follows: ''And he (meaning yourself) asked

me (meaning Mr. Waterhouse) solely as a matter of

accommodation, if I would act in the capacity of at-

tending to General Dodge's interests in securing the

completion of this agreement if possible, and the

proper carrying of it out,
'

' and ask if the same is cor-

rect?

In. 7. If you answr that it is not correct, then

state to the best of your knowledge and recollection

what was said by you at that time on that subject?

Int. 8. State whether or not as the interview be-

tween Mr. Waterhouse, Mr, Bogle and yourself in

Seattle on or about May 31, 1904, or at any time, you

ever knew or heard of the Mr, Hastings mentioned

in Mr. Bogle 's testimony,

Int, 9, State what, if any thing, was said to you

and what data or memorandum if any was shown

to you at said interview in reference to the expenses

of the North Alaska Steamship Company, or the

bills or claims against the steamship "Garonne."

State fully what was said to you or what documents

were shown to you.

Int, 10. State what, if any thing, was said to you

or in your presence at that interview to the effect
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(Deposition of Frank S. Pusey.)

that the North Alaska Steamship Company or Mr.

Smith, or his New York associates, or anj person

was prepared to advance the amount of money nec-

essary, if any should prove to be necessary, to pay

any expense that might be owing for supplies, re-

pairs and betterments to the steamship ''Garonne"

as testified to by Mr. Bogle on page 51.

Int. 11. What knowledge had you at that time or

at the time of the execution of the trust agreement

(Complainant's Exhibit 3), or the note (Complain-

ant's Exhibit 2), or the mortgage (Complainant's

Exhibit 4), of any indebtedness against the ship "Ga-

ronne," and state the source of your knowledge, if

you have any such knowledge %

Int. 12. State what occurred in your presence at

that interview or at an interview had the same af-

ternoon, or the next morning between Mr. Water-

house, Mr, Bogle, Mr. Smith and yourself in refer-

ence to further reports of indebtedness against the

"Garonne" which had come in subsequent to the

prior interview. State what Mr. Smith said to you

or in your presence with reference to said indebted-

ness, particularly with reference to obtaining money

from New York to pay the same and to the payment

of the same ?

Int. 13. I call your attention to the testimony of

Mr. Bogle contained between page 52, line 12, and
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(Deposition of Frank S. Pusey.)

page 53, line 16, and ask if the same agrees with

your knowledge of what occurred in your presence

at that interview; if not, then state in what respect

said testimony differs with your knowledge of what

occurred in your presence at that interview?

Int. 14. State if Mr. Waterhouse, or Mr. Bogle,

or Mr. Smith, or any person informed you at any

time while you were in Seattle as to the amount that

the North Alaska Steamship Company was owing

outside the amount due* to Mr. Waterhouse on the

balance of the purchase price 1

Int. 15. State if you know who prepared the trust

agreement contained in Complainant's Exhibit 3.

Int. 16. State if the statement in Mr, Bogle's

testimony, page 54, lines 17 to 27, in reference to the

preparation of the trust agreement (Complainant's

Exhibit 3) is correct, if not state in what respect it

is incorrect?

Int. 17. You may state if the statement in Mr.

Bogle's testimony, page 54, lines 4 and 5, to the ef-

fect that you requested Mr. Waterhouse to represent

General Dodge's interest as trustee in Seattle is cor-

rect; if not, state in what respect it is incorrect?
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In the Circuit Court of the United States, for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE and COMPANY, Incor-

porated and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Answers to Interrogatories by Frank S. Pusey.

Answers to interrogatories propounded to Frank

S. Pusey, witness for the complainant in the above-

entitled action, residing at the city of New York,

State of New York, taken by Willis Van Valken-

burgh of New York aforesaid, notary public and

special examiner, at 15 William street, New York

City on May 24, 1906, the said Prank S. Pusey be-

ing first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says in

answer to;

Int. 1 Answer. I am.

Int. 2 Answer. No it is not correct.

Int. 3 Answer. It is incorrect in that there was

no such conversation or occurrence about recogniz-

SBM j8A8n Qi9\i'\ 8a;oraj:8q:^nj pu^ [^uaraoajS^ Atitb Sut
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(Deposition of Frank S. Piisey.)

any suggestion by anyone that General Dodge's

claim was against Charles B. Smith, but on the con-

trary was a claim against the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company.

Int. 4 Answer. Mr. Smith did not state to Mr.

Waterhouse in my presence that the indebtedness

was an individual obligation of his own, but on the

contrary stated it was an indebtedness of the North

Alaska Steamship Company, and must be taken care

of.

Int. 5 Answer. Mr. Smith corroborated all that

was stated in the agreement, Complainant's Exhibit

1, and expressed his willingness to do all in his power

to protect General Dodge's claim before the steam-

ship sailed.

Int. 6 Answer. This statement of Mr. Waterhouse

is not correct.

Int. 7 Answer. I did not ask Mr. Waterhouse to

act as trustee for General Dodge, that proposition

was made by him (Waterhouse) and presented to me

by him in the form of the trust agreement. Complain-

ant 's Exhibit 3 to jDrotect General Dodge's claim,

and not as a matter of acconunodation, but as a set-

tlement with me in order that the steamship might

sail without interference by legal proceedings on my
part, and in order that I would not attach the steam-
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(Deposition of Frank S. Pusey.)

ship "Garonne" or garnishee freight and passenger

moneys.

Int. 8. Answer. No, sir, I never knew Mr. Hast-

ings nor heard his name mentioned.

Int. 9. Answer. No statement data or memoranda

of any l^ind relating to expenses bills or claims

against the North Alaska Steamship Company or

the steamship '

' Garonne '

' were shown to me by any-

one. The amount due on balance of purchase price

and General Dodge 's claim against the North Alaska

Steamship Company were spoken of, and the amount

of freight and passenger moneys due were also

spoken of, but nothing was said of any excess of

bills against the "Garonne" over freight and pas-

senger moneys, and I had no knowledge of any such

excess.

Int. 10 Answer. Nothing whatever was said by

Mr. Smith in my presence and nothing was said by

me or anyone else that the North Alaska Steamship

Company or Mr. Smith, or his New York associates

or any other person or persons would advance money

for bills incurred for supplies, repairs and better-

ments for the steamship " Garonne "^—no statement

was made nor was it suggested that there were bills

for supplies, repairs or betterments to the steamship

"Garonne" in excess of freight and passenger

moneys.
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(Deposition of Frank S. Pusey.)

Int. 11 Answer. I liad no personal knowledge of

any indebtedness against the ship, except the claim

of General Dodge and some balance due on the pur-

chase price. I recollect hearing Mr. Waterhouse

state that there were some bills still unpaid against

the ship, but nothing was said in regard to the pay-

ments of those bills in any other way than by using

the moneys coming in from the freight and passenger

receipts.

Int. 12 Answer. I have no recollection of any-

thing being said about further reports of indebted-

ness against the steamship "Garonne" which had

come in subsequent to the prior interview and noth-

ing was said about obtaining money from New York

to pay any indebtedness of the steamship ''Garonne"

for supplies, betterments or repairs, etc., or of wir-

ing New York for money—nothing of that kind was

mentioned.

Int. 13 Answer. Mr. Smith said nothing to me or

in my presence in reference to obtaining money from

New York to pay any bills existing against the steam-

ship "Garonne" in Seattle, nor did I know of any

such bills in excess of freight and passenger moneys

and nothing was said about wiring New York for

money.

Int. 14 Answer. No; except the amount due Gen-

eral Dodge.
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(Deposition of Frank S. Pusey.)

Int. 15 Answer, The attorney for Mr. Water-

house.

Int. 16 Answer. The statement is incorrect in that

I did not prepare any agreement, on the contrary

the agreement was entirely prepared by the attor-

ny for Mr. Waterhouse.

Int. 17 Answer. I did not request but I did agree

to accept Waterhouse & Company as trustee to

represent General Dodge's interest and to protect

the same.
FRANK S. PUSEY.

Subscribed and sworn to before me tlie 24th day

of May, 1906.

[Seal] WILLIS VAN VALKENBURG,
Notary Public and Special Examiner.

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE AND COMPANY, In-

corporated, and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.
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Certificate of Special Examiner to Deposition of

Frank S. Pusey.

To all to Wliom These Presents Shall Come

:

I, Willis Van Valkenburg, notary public, residing

and practicing in the County of New York, city of

New York, State of New York, and the special ex-

aminer named in the annexed stipulation signed by

the solicitors for the above-named complainant and

the defendants.

Do hereby certify that pursuant to the said stip-

ulation, Frank S. Pusey, the witness named in the

said stipulation appeared before me on the 24th day

of May, 1906, at 15 William Street, New York City

when I took his answers or deposition to the inter-

rogatories propounded by the solicitor for complain-

ant in the above-named action and caused them to be

written out on a typewriter, then said answers or

deposition was read to the witness who signed them

and thereupon completed said deposition, the said

answers or deposition being hereunto annexed, and I

further certify that previous to such answers or depo-

sition being taken, I duly administered to the said

Frank S. Pusey the following oath "Do you solemnly

swear that you will true answers make to all such

questions as shall be asked you upon these interroga-

tories without favor or affection to either party and
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therein yoii shall speak the truth, the whole truth

and nothing but the truth, so help you God. '

'

In testhnony whereof, I, the said notary public

and special examiner, have hereunto subscribed my

name and affixed my notarial seal this 24th day of

May, 1906.

[Seal] WILLIS VAN VALKENBURG,
Notary Public and Special Examiner.

[Endorsed] : Deposition of Frank S. Pusey.

Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of

Washington, Jun. 21, 1906, A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk.

A. N. Moore, Dep.

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., and FRANK
WATERHOUSE,

Defendants.

Stipulation Relative to Taking Testimony.

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and between

the parties hereto that the taking of testimony be-
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fore Hon. Eben Smith, Master in Chancery, by vir-

tue of the o]*der of reference made in this cause by

said court on the 18th daj^ of September, 1905, be

continued over from the next succeeding rule day,

to wit, from October 2, 1905, until such time as said

Master in Chancery may determine, without pre-

judice to either of the parties to this action.

GEO. H. KING,

Solicitor for Complainant.

W. H. BOGLE,

Solicitor for Defendant.

Sep. 28, 1905.

hi the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

G. M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., et al.,

Defendants.

Subpoena to Frank Waterhouse.

The President of the United States of America to

Frank Waterhouse, Greeting:

You are hereby required that all and singular

business and excuses being set aside, you appear
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and attend before the United States Circuit Court

for the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, before Eben Smith, Esq., Master in Chan-

cery of said Court and the Referee to whom by or-

der of said Court was referred the above-entitled

action at the office of said Master in Chancery at

room 715 in New York Block, in the city of Seattle,

King County, Washington, on the 23d day of Octo-

ber, 1905, at 10:00 o'clock A. M., then and there to

testify in the above-entitled cause now pending in

said court on the part of the plaintiff, and you are

not to depart therefrom without the leave of the

Court

;

And you are further required to bring with you

any and all books, papers and documents in your

possession, or under your control, or in the posses-

sion or under the control of the defendant Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., relating or appertaining to

the sale of said Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., of

the steamer ''Garonne" to the Merchants' & Min-

ers ' Steamship Co. of New York, set out and alleged

in your answer filed in this cause:

And you are further required to bring with you

and produce any and all vouchers, receipts, or other

evidence of payment in your possession, or under the

control of the defendant Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., showing the payment of $30,000.00 or any part

thereof in payment of liens against said steamship
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"Garonne," as set out and alleged in paragraph

seven of your answer filed in this action, and for

failure to attend or to produce the aforesaid papers,

or any of them as above required, you will be deemed

guilty of contempt of court and liable to pay to the

parties aggrieved all loss and damage sustained

thereby.

Witness my hand and oificial seal as United States

Master in Chancery, in the District of Washington,

Western District, Northern Division, this 18th day

of October, A. D. 1905.

[Seal] EBEN SMITH,

As United States Master in Chancery, as above.

RETURN ON SERVICE OF WRIT.

United States of America,

District of Washington,—ss.

I hereby certify and return that I served the an-

nexed Witness Subpoena on the therein named

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., et al., by handing to

and leaving a true and correct copy thereof with

Frank Waterhouse personally at Seattle, Wn., in

said District on the 19th day of October, A. D. 1905.

C. B. HOPKINS,

U. S. Marshal.

By W. L. Gritman,

Deputy.
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MARSHAL'S FEES:

Service 50

Mileage 12

62^

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

G. M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc.,

Defendants.

Subpoena to John Jordison.

The President of the United States of America, to

John Jordison, Greeting:

You are hereby required tliat all and singular

business and excuses being set aside, you appear

and attend before the United Circuit Court for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Division,

before Eben Smith, Esq., Master in Chancery of said

court, and the referee to whom, by order of said

Court, was referred the above-entitled action, at the

office of said Master in Chancery, at room 715 in the
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New York Block, cor. 2d Ave., and Cherry Street, in

the city of Seattle, King County, Washington, on

the 10th day of January, 1906, at 10 o'clock, A. M.,

then and there to testify in the above-entitled cause

now pending in said court, on the part of the plain-

tiff, and you are not to depart therefrom without

the leave of the Court.

Witness my hand and official seal as United States

Master in Chancery for the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, this 8th day of

January, A. D. 1906.

[Seal] EBEN SMITH,

As United States Master in Chancery as Above.

United States Marshal's Office,

Western District of Washington.

I hereby certify and return, that I received the

within witness subpoena on the 8th of Jan. 1906,

and personally served the same on the 8th day of

Jan., 1906, on John Jordison by delivering to and

leaving with him, said defendant named therein, at

Seattle, county of King, in said District, attested

copy thereof, at the dwelling-house or usual place of

abode of said John Jordison.

C. B. HOPKINS,

U. S. Marshal.

By W. L. Gritman,

Deputy.
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MARSHAL'S FEES:

Service 50^

' Mileage 12

.62^

Seattle, Wn., Jan. 9th, 1906.

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

G. M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc.,

Defendants,

Subpoena to James Fowler.

The President of the United States of America, to

James Fowler, Greeting:

You are hereby required that all and singular

business and excuses being set aside, you appear

and attend before the United States Circuit Court

for the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, before Eben Smith, Esq., Master in Chan-

cery of said couii;, and the referee to whom, by order

of said Court, was referred the above-entitled ac-
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tion, at the office of said Master in Chancery, at

room 715 in the New York Block, cor. 2d Ave., and

Cherry Street, in the city of Seattle, King County,

Washington, on the 5th day of December, 1905, at 10

o'clock A. M., then and there to testify in the above-

entitled cause now pending in said court, on the

part of the plaintiff, and you are not to depart there-

from without the leave of the Court.

Witness my hand and official seal as United States

Master in Chancery for the District of Washington,

Western District, Northern Division, this 2d day

of December, A. D. 1905.

[Seal] EBEN SMITH,

As United States Master in Chancery as Above.

MARSHAL'S RETURN.
I hereby certify and return that I received the

within subpoena in equity on the 2d day of Dec,

1905, and personally served the same on Dec. 2 /05,

by delivering and leaving with James Fowler a true

and certified copy of the within subpoena.

C. B. HOPKINS,
U. S. Marshal.

By W. L. Gritman,

Deputy.
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MARSHAL'S FEES:

Service 50

Mileage 12

.62^

Advanced witness fees, $1.60.

Tn the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc. (a Corpora-

tion), and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Stipulation Relative to Appointment of Special Ex-

aminer, etc.

It is hereby stipulated by and between the parties

hereto and their respective counsel, that N. W.

Bolster, Esq., be appointed by the Court special ex-

aminer to take further testimony in this case and

report the same to the court; and that the testi-

mony heretofore taken in this cause before Hon,

Eben Smith, Master in Chancery, and stenographi-

eally reported by said N. W. Bolster, be certified
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by him to this court together with such other and

further testimony as may be taken before said N. W.

Bolster.

Dated Seattle, Washington, April 7, 1906.

Counsel for Complainant.

Counsel for Defendant,

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc. (a Corpora-

tion) and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Order Appointing Special Examiner.

This cause coming on for hearing on the stipula-

tion by counsel and motion for appointment of a

special examiner in this cause, counsel for both par-

ties being present in open court and consenting

thereto

:

It is hereby ordered that N. W. Bolster, Esq., be

and he hereby is appointed special examiner of this
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court in this cause, and that this cause be and the

same hereby is referred to the said E, W. Bolster,

Esq., as special examiner aforesaid, and he is here-

by directed to hear testimony and take proofs of all

and singular the matters in issue herein and report

the same to this court.

And it is further ordered that all the testimony

heretofore taken in this cause before Hon. Eben

Smith, Master in Chancery, including all exhibits

offered in evidence and all objection or objections

thereto, which said testimony was stenographically

taken down by said N. W. Bolster and by him tran-

scribed into longhand, be by said N. W. Bolster, as

special examiner in this cause, certified and re-

ported to this court, together with all future testi-

mony to be taken by him as such special examiner.

And it is further ordered that the time for taking

the testimony in this cause on behalf of the defend-

ants is hereby enlarged and extended for a period of

15 days from and after the 5th day of April, 1906,

and that the plaintiff have thirty (30) days here-

after in which to present testimony in rebuttal.

Done in open court this 9th day of AprU, 1906.

(Signed) C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.
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In the Cireuit Coiirt of the United States for the

Western Distriet of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

PRANK WATERCOURSE & CO. Inc. (a Corpo-

ration), and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Order Appointing Special Examiner.

This cause coming on for hearing on the stipula-

tion by counsel and motion for appointment of a

special examiner in this cause, counsel for both par-

ties being present in open court and consenting

thereto

:

It is hereby ordered that N. W. Nolster, Esq., be

and he hereby is appointed special examiner of this

court in this cause, and that this cause be and the

same hereby js referred to the said N. W. Bolster,

Esq., as special examiner aforesaid, and he is hereby

directed to hear testimony and take proofs of all

and singular the matters in issue herein and report

the same to this court.

And it is further ordered that all the testimony

heretofore taken in this cause before Hon. Eben
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Smith, Master in Chancery, including all exhibits of-

fered in evidence and all objection or objections

thereto, which said testimony was stenographically

taken down by said N. W. Bolster and by him tran-

scribed into longhand, be by said N. W, Bolster, as

special examiner in this case, certified and reported

to this court, together with all future testimony to

be taken by him as such special examiner.

And it is further ordered that the time for tak-

ing the testimony in this cause on behalf of the de-

fendants is hereby enlarged and extended for a

period of 15 days from and after the 5th day of

April, 1906, and that the plaintiff have thirty (30)

days hereafter in which to jDresent testimony in re-

buttal.

Done in open court this 9 day of Ax3ril, 1906.

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 1290.

G. M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., et al.,

Defendants.
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Order Extending Time for Taking Testimony.

This cause coming on for hearing on motion of the

complainant for an order directing the special mas-

ter to report the testimony taken to this court, and

the Court being fully advised in the premises:

It is hereby ordered that the time for taking tes-

timony in the above-entitled cause, on behalf of the

defendants, be, and the same hereby is enlarged and

extended until April 30th, 1906, and that the plain-

tiff have thirty days thereafter in which to present

testimony in rebuttal.

This order to be entered at the cost of the defend-

ants.

Done in open court this 30th day of April, 1906.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant.

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & COMPANY, Incor-

porated, and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants,
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Order Fixing Time for Taking Testimony.

On motion of the complainant, it is hereby ordered

that N. W. Bolster, Esq., Special Examiner, do here-

by certify forthwith to this court all the testimony

and exhibits taken liy him as such special examiner,

and also all the testimony and exhibits taken before

the late Hon. Eben Smith, Master in Chancery of

this court, in accordance with the stipulation between

counsel dated April 7th, 1906, and on file in this

cause.

Done in open court this 11th day of June, 1906.

C. H. HANFOED,
Judge.

Testimony.

WILLIAM H. EOWE, produced as a witness in

behalf of complainant, being first duly cautioned

and sworn, testifies as follows:

Q. (By Mr. KING.) State your name.

A. William H. Rowe.

Q. Were jo\i connected with the North Alaska

Steamship Company? A. I was, yes, sir.

Q. What position did you hold in it?

A. Vice-president.

Q. Were you in New York in the early part of

July, 1904? A. I was.

Q. How near can you fix that date, Mr. Rowe ?
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A. Until the 13tli day of July, from the first

part of the month.

Q. Do you know Mr. Frank Waterhouse?

A. I do.

Q. Was he in New York at that time?

A. He was, in the first of July, yes, sir,

Q. Any earlier than that?

A. I think the last of June or the first of July;

I could not be able to fix the exact dates, but at any

rate, the first of July.

Q. Was Mr. Bogle there at that same time?

A. He was.

Q. Do you know of any meetings of Mr. Water-

house and others with reference to the transfer or

sale or conveyance of the steamer "Garonne," in

New York about that tune?

A. Yes, there were such meetings.

Q. Where were those meetings held?

A. At the office of attorney Baldwin and at the

office of the Merchants' Association.

Q. Where are those offices?

A, The Merchants' Association is on Broadway;

I cannot recall the number, although I have been

there a thousand times, I guess. It is in the New

York Life Insurance building on Broadway and
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Baldwin's office I think is on Pine street; but I am

not sure what street or number.

Q. Were you present at those meetings'?

A. I was.

Q. I mean at the meetings'?

A. Part of them,

Q. Did you take part in the meetings?

A. Part of them, yes, sir,

Q, And some you did not take part in?

A. Yes.

0. How many meetings were held, do you know ?

A. I do not, I was present at three, I think.

Q, How long, to your knowledge, was Mr. Water-

house in New York about that time"?

A, I should say a week or ten days,

Q, Do you know General Dodge*? A. I do,

Q, How long have you known him, either per-

sonall}^ or by reputation"?

A, I know him personally since 1902, and I have

known him by reputation since I was a little child,

I guess.

Q, Is he in business in New York?

A, He is,

Q, Do you know where his office is?

A, I do; Number 1, Broadway.

Q. Do you know how long he has had that office ?
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A. Ever since I have known liim personally and

a good deal longer.

Q. You may state whether or not he is a man

prominent in business and financial circles in New

York? A. He is, very much so.

Q. A well-known man? A. He is.

Q. Did you know of any effort of Mr. Water-

house, or anyone representing Mr. Waterhouse, to

communicate with General Dodge during those meet-

ings, with regard to the sale of the steamer "Ga-

ronne"? A. I did not know of it.

Q. You did not know of your own knowledge.?

A. No.

Q. How far was the Merchants' Association's

office from General Dodge's office?

A. I should say it is less than a mile.

Q. And Baldwin, Griggs & Baldwin's office?

A. About half-way between. About less than

half a mile.

Q. Do 3^ou know wdiether General Dodge's office

has telephone conmiunication ? A. It had.

Q. Had the Merchants' Association's office?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And Baldwin, Griggs & Baldwin?

A. Yes.

Q. At the time of those meetings?
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A. Yes.

Q. Did Mr. Waterliouse, or anyone for Mm, or

in his presence, make any statement at that time as

to the value of the steamer "Garonne"?

A. No, I do not think so.

Q. Did he make any statement at that time as to

any improvements or betterments placed upon her?

A. Yes, quite extensive.

Q. State to the best of 3^our recollection, what

he said at that time?

A. I cannot remember the words ; but the better-

ments had exceeded twenty thousand dollars.

Q. Where was that statement made and to whom ?

A. I think it was in Baldwin's office.

Q. Do 3^ou know whether it was made in refer-

ence to the sale or transfer of the steamer to the

Merchants' & Miners' Company.

A. No. I think it was made as an effort towards

encouragement for the North Alaska Steamship

Company to make its pajTnents.

Q. After the "Garonne" left Seattle on June 2d,

do you know w^hen she returned to Seattle?

A. I could not fix the day.

Q. Had she returned when those meetings were

had in New York?

A. It was during that time.
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Q. Did you see, prior to June 2d, 1904, any ad-

vertisement in the public papers of Seattle, with ref-

erence to the sailing of the steamer '

' Garonne '

' ^

A. I did.

Q. You may state whether those advertisements

were signed by Frank Waterhouse & Co^ incorpo-

rated, or not?

A. The name of Frank Waterhouse & Co. was at-

tached as agents for the boat.

Q. As agents for what?

A. For the steamer "Garonne."

Q. As agents for the steamer "Garonne," or for

the North Alaska Steamship Company?

A. It was put in the ad.

—

Q. Give your best recollection?

A. I should say, it would be for the steamship.

Q. Do you, as vice-president of the North Alas-

ka Steamship Company, know whether Frank Wa-
terhouse was acting as agent for the steamer prior

to her sailing for Nome on June 2d, 1904?

A. He was.

Q. Do you know whether he received any com-

mission or compensation as such agent?

A. He charged a commission on the sales of

tickets,

Q. Did Mr. Waterhouse, or Waterhouse & Co.,

have any authority, as to incurring indebtedness

against the steamer ? A. Full authority.
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Q. Did Mr. Waterhouse ever make any state-

ment to you with reference to incurring indebted-

ness against the steamer, and his authority to that

effect?

A. One of the conditions was that he must

—

Q. State whether he did or not?

A. Yes.

Q. When and where was that statement made ?

A. In the office of the North Alaska Steamship

Company—No. 42 Broadway.

Q. At about when?

A, In the latter part of April, I think.

Q. 1904? A. 1904.

Q. Give that statement.

A, He was very positive and insistent upon being

given such authority, that no d^bts could be con-

tracted without his permission against the "Ga-

ronne."

Q. That was acquiesced in by the North Alaska

people ?

A. I do not think we took a vote on it, but the

majority of the board of directors was there that

day, I think, although I do not think it was a formal

meeting.

Q. During the time that Mr. Frank Waterhouse

and Mr. Bogle were in New York in the early part

of July, 1904, from what you know of the circum-
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stances at that time, you may state whether or not,

in your opinion either of them, if they had desired,

would have any difficulty in conomunicating with

General Dodge?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object to that unless it states

some facts, instead of his opinion.

A. I do not think they would have any trouble

in connecting with him, either in person or his repre-

sentative ; there would have been no trouble anyway

with the representative of General Dodge.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Has General Dodge a

regular office there? A. Yes.

Q. That is an office and clerks?

A. He has a manager there all the time, except

Sundays; during business hours, I mean.

Q. Were there any meetings with reference to

the transfer of the '

' Garonne, '

' at or about that time,

at which you were not present?

A. There were.

Q. Where were those meetings held?

A. At the same place. I was present in the office

of Baldwin and also at the Merchants' Association,

when the talk relative to the sale of the boat was

made, but not actually in my presence.

Q. Not actually in your presence?
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A. Not actually in my presence, but I was in the

same rooms at the time.

Q. You were not invited to those meetings %

A. No.

Q. The meetings then, as I understand you, were

held in one room, and you were in another room %

A. Yes.

Q, You do not know what took place?

A. No; not only by hearsay.

Q. Do you know of any effort made by Frank

Waterhouse, or by Frank Waterhouse & Company,

or anybody in their behalf to effect a sale of the

steamer '

' Garonne '

' at that time, other than with the

Merchants' & Miners' Company?

A. Not any that I know of.

Cross-examination.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. Rowe, what was the

object of Mr. Waterhouse 's visit to New York on

that occasion?

A. I think that it was to sign up the mortgage

which had been prepared here relative to the "Gar-

onne," and put it in better shape than it was pre-

vious to that time; in fact, to be secured on his de-

ferred payments.

Q. Was he not calling on your company, the

North Alaska Steamship Company, to meet the de-
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ferred payments, and also to pay off the indebted-

ness incurred by that company against the steamer

''Garonne"?

A. That was his object, I suppose.

Q. At the meeting to which you have referred,

and which was attended by you at the Merchants'

Association, a statement was submitted by him,

showing the amount of indebtedness incurred

against the "Garonne" by the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, which had been reported to him by

those holding clauns, was there not*? A. Yes.

Q. And also a statement of the balance due him

on the purchase price? A. Yes,

Q. Is it not a fact that he called upon the North

Alaska Steamship Company at that time to make ar-

rangements to meet those obligations?

A. He did.

Q. Did your company meet them?

A. They did not.

Q. Was it able to meet them? A. No.

Q. What did your company do about it?

A. Simply said they were unable to meet the pay-

ments at that time.

Q. How long did these negotiations last before

your company finally abandoned its option, Mr.

Rowe? Over how many days were they extended?

A. Several days.
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Q. Ultimately, your company formally aban-

doned its right to purchase the "Garonne," didn't

it? A. It did.

Q. And your board of trustees passed a resolu-

tion to that effect? A. They did.

Q. And surrendered to Mr. Waterhouse all rights

they had in the boat? A. They did.

Q. That was because of their inability to meet

the amounts that were due against the boat?

A. Yes.

Q. You knew that General Dodge claimed to be a

creditor of the North Alaska Steamship Company,

did you? A. I did.

Q. There were quite a number of creditors of the

North Alaska Steamship Company, who attended

one or more of those meetings, were there not?

A. I do not know personally, of anyone that was

a creditor; not at any time while I was present.

Q. Don't you recollect that Mr. Brown—that a

man by the name of Brown, who was a creditor of

the North Alaska Steamship Company to the extent

of some, either twenty or thirty thousand dollars,

was called in by your company, or the directors of

your company, into consultation over those matters

before your company ultunately abandoned their

right to purchase the "Garonne"?
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Mr. KING.—We object to the question as imma-

terial and not proper cross-examination.

A, Of my own knowledge I do not know that.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) Did you meet Mr. Brown

in the offices of the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company, or the Occidental Securities Company or

in the office of McKee & Frost, the attorneys of the

North Alaska Steamship Company, during those

negotiations ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tions.)

A. You mean the negotiations of the first of July

or about that time?

Q. Yes, on that trip; I do not attempt to desig-

nate the date because I do not know which day it

was, as it extended over a week.

A. There was only one meeting that I was pre-

sent at with Mr. Brown, and I cannot tell whether

that was at that time or not, and I cannot say

whether Mr. Waterhouse was present or not, and

that was at the Merchants' Association.

Q. Don't you remember, Mr. Rowe, that Mr.

Brown came to see Mr. Waterhouse and myself and

subsequently went to see you and the other trustees

or directors of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, asserting that he held some kind of an agree-
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ment from your company that he was to have a lien

on the '' Garonne," or on the earnings of the "Gar-

onne" for the amount of his loan?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)

A. Yes.

Q. Now, don't you remember that was during

those negotiations?

A. It was at that time, ,yes, but the amounts,

Mr. Bogle, you have gotten away beyond when you

say, "from twenty to thirty thousand dollars."

Q. What was the amount of Mr. Brown's claims'?

Mr. KING.—I object to the question as irrele-

vant, immaterial and incompetent and as tending

to divert the issues.

A. I think about five thousand dollars or some-

thing like that.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) How many other cred-

itors of the North Alaska Steamship Company were

consulted by the officers and directors of that com-

pany during those nego tiations ?

Mr, KING.—I object to the question as irrelevant

and immaterial and not proper cross-examination.

A. None that I know of.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) Don't you remember that

there was some widow lady in New York who had
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advanced some monej to the company and that she

or her representative was consulted by some of yoii^

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. I do not know of any such lady.

Q. Your comjDany, during those negotiations,

was making every effort in its power to arrange to

raise the amount of money needed to take care of

those claims against the ship, were they not?

A, They were.

Q. And, in so far as you knew, the other di-

rectors and officers exhausted every resource to that

end, within their power?

A. Within my power, personally.

Q. And, so far as you know, the other directors,

were equally diligent in endeavoring to arrange the

matter in some way, were they not ?

A. Of the ISTorth Alaska Steamship Company,

yes.

Q. Do you know why General Dodge was not

notified by some officer of your company of the

pendency of those negotiations'?

Mr. KING.—I object to the question for the rea-

son that it calls for the conclusion of the witness and

is irrelevant and immaterial, and secondly for the

reason that there is no showing that any officer of
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the North Alaska Steamship Company was under

any obligation to notify General Dodge at all.

A. I do not,

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) You understood, Mr.

Rowe, didn't you, that Mr. Waterhouse's object and

endeavor was to collect the balance of money that

was due him on the purchase price of the ship and

on that being paid to him, he was ready to transfer

and turn over the ship to whomsoever the company

directed?

A. That was as I understood it, yes.

Q. To whomsoever the North Alaska Steamship

Company directed *?

A. That was as I understood it, yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Rowe, is it not a fact that there was some

row on between the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany and some of its officials and Mr. King, with

reference to the manner in which some loans or ad-

vances had been secured from Mr. King and Mr.

Mead by those officers.

(Counsel for complainant objects as irrelevant,

immaterial and incompetent and not proper cross-

examination.)

A. They claimed a misrepresentation of facts.

Q. That is, Mr. King claimed that the money had

been procured from him and Mr. Mead by mis-

representation ?



Grenville M. Dodge and Frank WaterJiouse. 83

(Testimony of William H. Eowe.)

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)

A. Well, things did not exist out here as they ex-

pected.

Q. Well, didn't they claim, in this first meeting

you had on the morning after Mr. Waterhouse and

I arrived, when you and the attorneys of your com-

pany, Messrs. McKee & Frost and Mr. Mead and Mr.

Baldwin and several of the other directors of your

company were present; did not Mr. King there make

the statement that he claimed that the money that

had been advanced by him and Mr. Mead and Mr.

Corwine to the North Alaska Steamship Company,

had been procured from them by misrepresentation

by the officers of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

Q. (Continuing.) What are the statements that

he made; I am not asking you what are the facts;

but did not Mr. King make that claim"?

A. He made that statement, yes.

Q. And it is not true that there was a row on

between your company and its officers and Mr. King,

during practically those entire negotiations ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-.

jection.)



84 Frank .WaierJtouse cD Co., Inc., vs.

(Testimony of William H. Rowe.)

A. Mr. King and his associates were the controll-

ing interest of the company indirectly.

Q. In the North Alaska Steamship Company?

A. The Occidental Securities Company owned

nearly all the stock of the North Alaska Steamship

Company and Mr. King and his associates were the

controlling interest of the Occidental Securities

Company.

Q. His charge, or statement, however, was that

the money by which he had secured that control was

procured by misrepresentation of facts by the offi-

cers of the two companies'?

Mr. KING.—^We object to that as incompetent,

irrelevant and inm;iaterial, and there is no showing

that General Dodge, or anyone representing him,

was present there at all, and the further objection

that it is not proper cross-examination.

A. He so claimed.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) That was a row in which

Mr. Waterhouse was not concerned in any way, and

was not mixed up in?

A. I do not think so,

Q. You have stated that Mr. Waterhouse could

have communicated with General Dodge or his

representative f A. Yes.

Q. Who was his representative, to whom you re-

fer?
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A. Mr. Jennings, who was in liis office at No. 1

Broadway, and if lie was not there some one else

was alwaj^s there during business hours.

Q, Did you see either General Dodge or any

representative of his during the time that Mr.

Waterhouse was in New York on that occasion"?

A. I did not to my remembrance, I don't remem-

ber.

Q. You knew that General Dodge claimed to be

a creditor of your company?

A. I understood that General Dodge had been

protected by Waterhouse. Mr. Pusey had been

here and had fixed it up between him and Water-

house at the sailing time of the "Garonne."

Q. The papers that had been prepared on that

occasion, had been shown to you, or were shown

to you while you were in New York on that trip*?

A. You mean the mortgages'?

Q. Yes.

A. No; they were not; I did not see them.

Q. As a matter of fact, you knew the mortgages

had been sent on there ?

A. • I understood they were there at the time you

and Mr. Waterhouse were there.

Q. Who was the secretary of the North Alaska

Steamship Company"?
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A. I think Mr. Leak, but I am not sure, I could

not say now.

Q. I will ask you if J. V. Leak was not the secre-

tary of that company?

A. I cannot say. There are so many companies

and so many officers that I cannot remember which

was which of the particular company.

Q. The North Alaska Steamship Company was

a New York corporation, was it not ?

A. Yes.

Q. When was it organized?

A. In the spring of 1904.

Q. For the express purpose of purchasing the

'

' Garonne '

' ?

A. For the purpose of purchasing the "Gar-

onne."

Q. Its main office was in New York city?

A. It was.

Q. Its secretary was in New York city?

A. He was.

Q. And the seal of the company was there?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was the meeting place of its board

of directors? A. It was.

Q. Now, Mr. Rowe, is it not a fact that you were

informed before Mr. Waterhouse reached New
York, that a mortgage which had been prepared
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in Seattle and signed by Mr. Smith before lie went

north, had been forwarded to the Chase National

Bank? A. I so understood.

Q. To be executed by your company*?

A. Yes.

Q. By the secretary with his seal, under au-

thority of the board of directors?

A. I so understand it, yes.

Q. Was it ever executed?

(Counsel for complainant objects as irrelevant,

immaterial, incompetent and not proper cross-ex-

amination.)

A. I believe not.

Q. Why?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)

A. Because Mr. King and Mr. Mead, who had

undertaken to finance our various companies, re-

fused to allow it to be done.

Q. Was that before Mr. Waterhouse reached

New York?

A. That was at the time Mr. Waterhouse was in

New York.

Q. Is it not a fact that the mortgage had been

there for from two to three weeks prior to that

time?
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(Counsel for complainant intei^oses tlie same ob-

jection.)

A. Yes, for some time before, I should judge.

Q. Now, is it not a fact, Mr. Rowe, that the North

Alaska Steamship Company was not able to raise the

money to pay those liens existing against the "Gar-

onne" which were to be paid before the mortgage

was executed.

(Counsel for complainant objects as irrelevant,

mimaterial, incompetent and not proper cross-ex-

amination.)

A. Unable if the Occidental Securities Company

did not do it.

Q. Well, the Occidental Securities Company did

not do it?

A. The Occidental Securities Company did not

do it, because Mr. King and Mr. Mead refused to

do it, who were really the financial men in the Occi-

dental Company.

Q. That was before Mr. Waterhouse reached

New York at all?

A. They awaited the return of Mi*. Mead who

had been sent out here to investigate.

Q. Prior to that time you could not and did not

raise the money to pay off: those debts, isn 't that true ?

Mr. KING.—I interpose the same objection to all

this line of testimony.
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A. We had up to tlie sailing of the "Garonne,"

met payment after payment which had been demand-

ed, and we had supposed that we had paid every debt

that there was at the time of the sailing of the "Ga-

ronne." We had paid more money tlian any estimate

w^hich had been made by Mr. Waterhouse or Mr.

Ferguson, and we supposed that everything was

clear, and immediately after we received a wire from

Waterhouse demanding, I thinli, thirteen tliousand

dollars, and then in a few days he jumped to nineteen

thousand dollars, and on that the Occidental Securi-

ties Company, or, rather, Mr. King, had sent Mt.

Mead, his associate, out here to investigate where

this money was going to, and until the return of Mr.

Mead, which we awaited, we took no action whatever.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) On his return, it was dis-

closed that the bills for supplies and repairs on the

"Garonne," exclusive of the balance of the purchase

price due Mr. Waterhouse, amounted to something

over thixty thousand dollars I

A. Something like that.

Q. And that was

—

A, (Continuing.) It was something like twenty

thousand dollars up to the day that we were in ses-

sion and learned of the return of the "Garonne,"

and with that came additional debts.
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Q. When the mortgage was sent on there to be

executed, it was with the understanding that your

company would pay all of those debts against the

'

' Garonne, '

' except the balance of the purchase price

due Waterhouse, before the mortgage would be exe-

cuted, or the bill of sale executed by Waterhouse to

your company ?

Mr, KING.—I object to that as irrelevant, imma-

terial, incompetent and not proper cross-examina-

tion, and there is no showing that General Dodge had

any knowledge at all of this, or was present at any

of those conversations.

A, We expected to pay all legitimate debts, but

we had no expectation of any such debts as came in

against the boat.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) Who represented the

North Alaska Steamship Company in Seattle during

the time the "Garonne" was being prepared for her

northern trip ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)

A. W. H. Ferguson.

Q. What was his official position?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.) !

A. Traffic manager.
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Q. He had charge of the purchasing of supplies

for the ship, didn't he?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A, I cannot recall his contract with the company,

but that was explicitly understood that he should not

have.

Q. Do you know whether or not, as a matter of

fact, he did have such charge ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. I have no personal knowledge; being in New

York.

Q. You were in New York, then, up to the time

of this July meeting'? A. Yes.

Q. As a matter of fact, you do not know of your

own personal knowledge who represented your com-

pany in Seattle in the making of changes and altera-

tions and repairs and betterments on the '

' Garonne, '

'

and in the purchase of supplies *?

A. At the time Mr. Waterhouse was in New York

in April I think, he demanded that no repairs nor

supplies, nor anything should be bought that might

become a lien against the boat, without his permis-

sion, and it was so given.

Q. But he was not to make the repairs himself ?
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A. Under his direction, all of them were to be

made.

Q. Wasn't it his demand, Mr. Rowe, that your

company, which was buying this boat on, credit,

should not incur any liabilities against the boat with-

out his j)ermission?

A. That was what I understood.

Q. That was what he demanded.

A. He demanded that.

Q. He did not undertake to make the repairs him-

self, did he ?

A. He had a man in charge of that repairs, as I

understood.

Q. A man in charge of the "Garonne"?

A. A man who oversaw the repairs.

Q. Who?
A. (Continuing.) —and the purchase of the liun-

ber was done by Mr. Waterhouse himself in making

those repairs

—

Q. How do you know that ?

A. Because he wired from New York for them

to go ahead over his own signature, to go ahead in

fixing the decks.

Q. For who to go ahead ?

A. For the contractors who made the bid for the

fixing of the decks.

Q. He submitted the bids from the contractor?
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A. We told him to go ahead.

Q. And he refused, prior to that, to permit those

repairs to be made, hadn't he*?

A. I think so, until we agreed to it. He wanted

some understanding as to what should be done, and

how he was to do it, and we left it to him, and he im-

mediately wired to—I forget the name of the firm

here, to go ahead with the decking of the boat.

Q. Do you know who made the contract with that

firm for those repairs ? A.I do not.

Q. Hadn't jonv agent reported

—

A. Mr. Ferguson and Mr. Waterhouse were talk-

ing the matter over at the time it was brought up be-

fore the board of directors in our office in New York.

Q. You understood it was necessary to have a

new deck ?

(Counsel for complainant objects as irrelevant,

immaterial and incompetent.)

A. That was what we understood.

Q. Your company agreed to pay those bills,

didn't they? A. They did.

Q. And they agreed to pay all other bills which

might be incurred against the ship ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. Yes, and at the sailing of the boat, we sup-

posed those bills were paid.
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Q. But you had not been out here to know what

the bills were?

A. No. Money had been wired to "Waterhouse

to pay them. All money was wired direct to Water-

house for repairs, everything excepting a local office

that our traffic manager had.

Q. The money that was wired out here was wired

to pay specific bills to which he had called your

attention by wire? A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Rowe, why didn 't you see General Dodge

;

knowing that he was a creditor of this company and

that this mortgage had not been executed during the

time of those negotiations in New York, and partic-

ularly at the time when you, as a trustee and direc-

tor, voted to abandon your contract to purchase?

Mr. KING.—I object to the question as irrelevant,

immaterial, incompetent, and not showing that the

witness was under any obligations whatever to no-

tify General Dodge or to call his attention to it.

Mr. BOGLE.—I do not claim that he was.

A. I understood that Mr. Dodge had been pro-

tected by Mr. Pusey, representing him in an arrange-

ment with Waterhouse.

Q. You knew he had not been paid, didn't you ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)



Grenville M. Dodge and Frank WaterJiouse. 95

(Testimony of William H. Rowe.)

A. Yes, I knew he had not been paid the ten thou-

sand dollars.

Q. And you knew whatever protection he got was

through that mortgage 1

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. I had not seen the mortgage.

Q. I say, you knew whatever protection he got

was through that mortgage? A. Yes.

Q. And you knew that that mortgage had never

been executed ? A. Yes.

Q. And you knew that your company, through

its board of trustees, being unable to meet its obli-

gations, for the purchase price abandoned its con-

tract to purchase ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. Yes, but that Mr. Dodge would be protected

with Waterhouse.

Q. How?

A. Because Mr. Waterhouse had entered into an

arrangement with Mr. Pusey to do so, I supposed.

Q. There was nothing in your resolution which

refers to Dodge in any way.

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)
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A. No, sir.

Q. His name was not mentioned in any of those

negotiations, was it ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. No.

Q. When you say, then, that he was protected,

you are simply saying that you understood he was

protected ?

A. I understood. I did not know.

Q. Who were the attorneys of the North Alaska

Steamship Company at that time?

A. McKee & Frost.

Q. Who represented the interest of Mr. King

and Mr. Mead? A. Mr. Baldwin.

Q. He was of the firm of G-riggs

—

A. —Baldwin & Baldwin.

Q. Mr. King is a man who stands high in New

York commercial circles, is he ?

A. Prominently known, yes.

Q. He is at the head of one of the large firms

there, "Calhoun, Robbins & Company."

A. He is one of the firm.

Q, He is the managing partner of that firm,

A. I think so.

Q. And was for many years president of the

Merchants' Association of New York?
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A. He was.

Q. And at that time was really the managing

director of that association, was he not?

Mr. KING.—It is understood that I object to all

this as irrelevant, immaterial and incompetent.

A. I think so.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) Under the conditions

which you found existing among your stocldiolders

and in your company; it was impossible for your

company to meet the obligations existing against

the "Garonne" at the time we were in New York,

wasn't it, Mr. Eowe?

A. When Mr. Mead and Mr. King, as members

or stockholders in our various companies, turned it

down, we had no other resource at that time.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) As a matter of fact, Mr.

Rowe, had you any knowledge that anyone, outside

of Waterhouse & Company, or Mr. Waterhouse him-

self, was incurring or had any authority to incur

obligations against the "Garonne"?

A. Up to the time of the sailing?

Q. Up to the time of the sailing?

A. I supposed that Mr. Waterhouse was checking

up every supply and repairs.
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Q. Did you know anything about any obligations

incurred after the sailing on June 2d'?

A. I did not.

Q. You say that when King and Mead turned it

down, there was nothing further to be done ; I wish

you would explain Avhat you mean?

A. Mr. King and Mr. Mead had come into the

Occidental Securities Company to help finance the

various subordinate companies, one of which was

the North Alaska Steamship Company, and they had

advanced at that time something like thirty-one

thousand dollars at the time of the sailing of the

boat, and we supposed that we had all the obligations

met, or nearly met, which would be required to out-

fit and run the boat for the first trip, but, as I said,

immediately afterwards a demand came from Wa-

terhouse calling for thirteen thousand dollars, and

then six thousand dollars immediately after, addi-

tional; and they blamed Mr. Leak and myself for

having misrepresented facts; and those were in-

debtedness that we had no idea would come up be-

cause estimates had been made by Mr. Ferguson

and Mr. Waterhouse to us, what it would require to

outfit the boat and what it would cost to make those

betterments, and this was in excess of that, and I

was at the end of my rope. I submitted the matter

to Mr. King and Mr. Mead, and they refused to do
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anj^thing further imtil they investigated it, and Mr.

Mead was sent out here to look into the matter, and

on his return Mr. Waterhouse and Mr. Bogle fol-

lowed immediately after ; and that was the meetings

that we had in the first of July.

I would add here, for my own protection, that Mr.

King and Mr. Mead had positively refused to allow

us to sell a dollar's worth of stock except what they

took themselves in the Occidental Securities Com-

pany, and consequently we had no other means of

getting money. That tied my hands to those partic-

ular men,

Q. I will ask 3^ou one question, which perhaps

should have been asked on direct examination: Do

you know, or are you acquainted with the value of

the "Garonne" at the time Mr. Waterhouse was in

New York?

A. With the betterments that we had made, I

considered that she was worth one hundred thousand

dollars.

Recross-examination.

Q. (By Mr, BOGLE.) You had never seen the

ship, had you, Mr. Rowe ?

A. Not to make any inspection of her—I had

seen her.
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Q. The original contract of purchase by you and

your associates was made upon the recommendation

of Mr. Ferguson, wasn 't it ?

A. Mr. Ferguson. Of course, we knew the boat

by reputation.

Q. What was the capital stock of the North

Alaska Steamship Company?

A. Three hundred thousand dollars.

Q. How much of that was paid up stock?

(Counsel for complainant objects as irrelevant,

immaterial and incompetent.)

A. The exact details of the organization of the

company is not familiar here with me at the present

time.

Q. Is it not a fact that the Occidental Securities

Company held all of the stock of the North Alaska

Steamship Company?

A. Practically all.

Q. Is it not also true that there was no cash paid

into the treasury of the North Alaska Steamship

Company for its stock?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. Very little, if any.

Q. You do not know of any, do you?

A, No, I came under an agreement with the

Occidental Securities Company.
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Q, It was organized merely to receive the titles to

the steamship "Garonne" when she was paid for?

A. Yes.

Q. And the payments that were made on the '

' Ga-

ronne" were made with moneys that were borrowed

either by the North Alaska Steamship Company or

the Occidental Securities Company?

A. Or the sale of the Occidental Securities Com-

pany's stock.

Q. What was the capital stock of the Occidental

Securities Company?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)

A. Three million, I think.

Q. How much of that was actually paid in cash ?

A. I could not say.

Q. Was any of it paid up in cash?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. You stated that Messrs. King and Mead

—

A. —had paid in thirty-one thousand dollars into

the Occidental.

Q. How much stock of the Occidental did they

receive for that?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)

A. I cannot recall now

—

Q. I understood you to say

—
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A. Quite a bit of it.

Q. I understood you to say that they held the

controlling interest in the Occidental Company?

A. I had turned in considerable mining interests

and I gave them a certain amount of my own hold-

ings as a bonus.

Q. They held something over a million and a half

of the Occidental, didn't they?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. About a million, I think.

Q. And then they held large blocks of each of

the subsidiar}^ companies, that were owned by the

Occidental ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. No, sir, only as they held it through the Oc-

cidental.

Q. How much of the stock of the Occidental was

issued ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same o])jec-

tion.)

A. Nearly all of it.

Q. Then if King and Mead only had a million

of that stock they didn't have a majority?

A. I had a million with some of my friends, and
we had entered into a voting arrangement, so that
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they had the control under a certain fixed arrange-

ment with them.

Q. Now, for this million of stock in the Occiden-

tal, they paid in thirty-one thousand five hundred

dollars ? A. They were to pay more

—

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. (Continuing) —under the arrangement where-

by they received one million dollars of the Occidental

Company's stock, which they never lived up to.

They had done so up to the time of the sailing of

the "Garonne" and had paid in a partial amount;

they agreed the amount to be paid in was thirty-one

thousand dollars, and they stopped when those addi-

tional debts which we had no idea of came up. It

was as much a surprise to me as it was to them.

Q. The assets of the Occidental Company con-

sisted of certain mining claims in the Nome district ?

A. Yes.

Q. And the contract to purchase the
'

' Garonne
'

' ?

(Counsel for complainant objects as irrelevant,

immaterial, incompetent and not proper cross-exam-

ination.)

A. The assets was the stockholdings that they

had in companies that controlled mining claims in

Alaska, yes. The Occidental had no claims of its

own, simply it was a stockholding company.
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Q. Do you know anything about this indebted-

ness claim by General Dodge against the North Alas-

ka Steamship Company?

A. Yes, I know the m^oney was advanced.

Q. To whom did he advance the money?

Mr. KING.—Objected to as irrelevant, immate-

rial, incompetent and not proper cross-examination.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) I will ask \ou if it is not

a fact that he loaned this money to Charles B. Smith?

A. He did, for the purpose of making a payment

on the
'

' Garonne, '

' and Mr. Smith agreed to see that

he was secured in the purchasing of the boat.

Q. Were you present? A. Well, no.

0. Then, when you say what Mr. Smith agreed to

you are not speaking to any matter of personal

knowledge ?

A. Mr. Smith was my partner, and came imme-

diately to me after he got the money and brought

the mone}^ to me.

Q. What did Mr. Smith get in the North Alaska

Steamship Company or the Occidental Securities

Company, as the equivalent of this money that he

borrowed from General Dodge?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ol>

jeotion and for the reason that General Dodge was

not present and cannot be boiuid by it.)
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A, He received nothing in the way of stock for

that.

Q. How long after this money was received, be-

fore it was assumed by the Occidental Securities

Company ?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection and because it never was assumed by the

Occidental Securities Company.

)

A. I don't know whether we, as a company, as-

sumed it or not. I do not know just what papers

were made out.

Q. Did the North Alaska Steamship Company

ever assume it?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)

A, I do not recall. Mr. Smith made all the ar-

rangements for that during the time he was in New

York before coming west, and just what papers

were made out in relation to that I could not say.

Q. Do you remember a telegram, forwarded or

sent from New York to Mr. Waterhouse by your

company, in which it was stated that the company

would give General Dodge as the security for those

deferred payments'?

(Counsel for complainant objects as irrelevant,

immaterial, incompetent and not the best evidence.)

A. 1 do not recall such a telegram.
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Q. Was there ever sucli an arrangement with

General Dodge*?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Do you not recall any arrangement of that

kind at all, Mr. Rowe?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. Anything securing him for the payment?

Q. Do you remember that under the contract with

Mr. Waterhouse the deferred pajnuents were to be

secured in a manner which would be satisfactory to

him, outside of the mortgage on the steamer?

A. That was the original arrangement.

Q. Was there ever any arrangement made by you

or any officer of your company, with General Dodge,

that he would become security for those deferred

payments to Mr. Waterhouse?

A. Early in the spring we endeavored to do that.

Q. What was the arrangement which you made

to that effect?

A. Mr. Smith, I think, made an effort to have

General Dodge secured to assist us in securing those

deferred pajrments.

Q. Was that the time he borrowed the money

from him?
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A. I have no positive knowledge of that, because

Mr. Smith did all those transactions himself.

Mr. KING.—I move to strike out the answer, if

he had no positive knowledge of it.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) But the information of

that came to you at the same time the informa-

tion came that he borrowed money from General

Dodge? A. No.

Q, Which occurred first?

A. The loaning of the money. We needed to

meet a draft from Waterhouse at a certain hour and

we had not got the money at noon time, and Mr.

Smith jumped out of the office and was back in a

very few minutes with that money.

Q. How much was it? How much was the

draft?

A. I think twelve thousand dollars or something

like that at that time.

Q. How much was paid on it, do you know?

A. We paid five thousand dollars.

Q. Did you put up any other security for it?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Did you ever make any further loan?

A. Yes. The total loan was something like fif-

teen thousand dollars, I think.

Q. Wasn't it twelve?
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A. It was twelve at one time, and we got some

more after that and we had some before, I think.

Q. Was not the total twelve?

A. I think the total was between fourteen and

fifteen that Smith and I got from time to time from

General Dodge.

Q. How much had you borrowed from him?

A, Nothing at all, Mr. Smith had always at-

tended to it.

Q. Was that in connection with this purchase

of the "Garonne"? A. Yes.

Q. Now, you say there was twelve or fourteen

thousand dollars borrowed in that way?

A. Something like that, yes.

Q. And there were never any payments except

the five thousand?

A. Five thousand dollars, that was all.

Q. How was that paid?

A. It was paid out of the thirty-one thousand

dollars put in by King and Mead.

Q. Paid at the time you got the money from

King and Mead?

A. When we got the first thirty-one thousand

dollars, yes.

Q. Don't you recollect, Mr. Rowe, that in addi-

tion to that you put up a note in bank as collateral

security for that Dodge loan?



Grenville M. Dodge and Frank WaterJiouse. 109

(Testimony of William H. Rowe.)

Mr. KING.—We object to that as irrelevant, im-

material, incompetent and not proper cross-exami-

nation, and particularly immaterial for the reason

that there was an accounting between the North

Alaska Company and General Dodge before the ship

sailed, in which there was found to be due ten thou-

sand dollars to General Dodge, and Mr. Waterhouse

had full notice of this.

A. Do you mean for the ten thousand dollars or

for the full amount of the loan?

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) The amount of money

that was borrowed from General Dodge, whatever

it was.

A. Not that I know of; I don't think there was.

I think there was small note for five thousand dol-

lars put into the bank, but I have no personal knowl-

edge of that.

Q. What note was that?

A. I do recollect—I will answer that—the pay-

ment of the five thousand dollars was made to take

up a note that Mr. Smith had put in as security

for part of that loan that we had from Dodge. He

had secured a note from a woman by the name of

Dittmar. He was wanting to make a payment to

General Dodge—Mr. Smith—and he had secured this

note, but he didn't get it discounted, and he put that
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in instead of the cash, and it was the payment of

that note; that was the five thousand dollars which

had been put in that we used the money that came

from King and Mead for.

Q. What became of the Dittmar note then?

A. I think it was returned to Mrs. Dittmar and

she destroyed it, I presume.

Q. Did she pay it?

A. She only loaned that note as a favor to Mr.

Smith.

Q. She executed the note for five thousand dol-

lars, did she?

(Counsel for complainant objects as irrelevant,

immaterial and incompetent.)

A. Yes, she made the note for five thousand dol-

lars and loaned it to Mr, Smith.

Q. And there was no consideration between her

and Mr. Smith?

(Counsel for complainant interposes same objec-

tion.)

A. Nothing only the matter of personal friend-

ship.

Q. And then Mr. Smith took the five thousand

dollars out of the money advanced by King and

Mead and paid that note?

(Counsel for complainant interposes the same ob-

jection.)
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A. Paid that note to Mr. Dodge, I think.

Ee-redireet.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Did the Occidental Com-

pany have a contract to purchase the "Garonne"?

A. No, sir.

Q. If so, at what price?

A. No, sir, it had no contract.

Q. Was the ''Garonne" turned into the Occiden-

tal Company at any stated price? A. No.

Q. Mr. Rowe, do you know the reason, was there

any reason given why King and Mead refused to

advance any further money?

A. Mr. King said—I can't remember the exact

words, but it was something like that, it was simply

like water going through a sieve, the money that was

sent out here ; and that they didn 't know where they

stood; and he said at one time at our first meeting

at Baldwin's office—he considered it for a long while

as to whether he would go ahead any more, or allow

the Occidental Company to—the Occidental Com-

pany was, of course, domineered by him at that time

—and he positively refused to let me sell stock and

raise money any other way, and the only hope I

had, of course, was through King and Mead. They

had a conference at Baldwin's office, which lasted

a long time and they did not send for me until late
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in the afternoon ; and they sent for me to come over,

and Mr. King finally wanted until the next day until

11 o'clock to decide whether he would go ahead any

further and let the Occidental Company have any

more money, and the next day at 11 o'clock—

Q. You mean "let the North Alaska Steamship

Company have any more money"?

A. Let the North Alaska Steamship Company

have more money, or let any of the companies owned

by the Occidental. He wanted till 11 o'clock next

day to decide what he should do, and we met next

day at 11 o'clock at the Merchants' Association's

rooms and talked it over at length. And he finally

turned it down; he said that he was done.

Q. And then what was done?

A. Then he called Mr. Waterhouse out into an-

other room and they had a talk and finally the meet-

ing came to an end. What they were going to do

I did not know. But he told me he would see me
later, and the next day I think it was, or within a

few days, there was another meeting at Baldwin's

oifice and he told me that he would let me have thir-

t.y-one thousand dollars, and he about that time, let

me have thirty-one thousand dollars more which was

equal to the money he had already put in, to use in

my mining proposition up in Alaska, and he would

have nothing more to do with the steamship end of it
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at all, and immediately after that they went into a

meeting by themselves in which Mr. Waterhouse and

Mr. Mead and Mr. King made some arrangement

relative to the steamship company.

Q. That was the meeting in which they made the

arrangement relative to selling the steamship to the

Merchants' & Miners' Company?

A. The Merchants' & Miners' Company did not

exist at that time, but they made some arrangement

by which the Merchants' & Miners' Company was to

be formed and handle the steamship '

' Garonne, '

' and

the Merchants' & Miners* Company was to pay Mr.

Waterhouse and Mr. King and his associates. He

did that after tying me up completely in such a waj^

that I could not do anything. They would not put in

any money and they would not let me sell an 3^ of

the stock. Even if I could have done it, I was not

allowed to.

Q. Have you ever seen or do you know of any

statement as to the value at which the steamer "Ga-

ronne" was put into the Merchants' & Miners' Com-

pany ?

A. The Mead Development Company, which is

the name of the company that Mr. King and his as-

sociates have adopted, I think they, with Mr. Water-

house, each became half owners in the Merchants'

& Miners' Steamship Company. I would not be
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sure of that, but I think that was the understand-

ing.

Q. My question was, if you had ever seen or do

you know of any statement as to the value at which

the steamer '

' Garonne '

' was put into the Merchants

'

& Miners' Company; any prospectus or anything of

the kind ?

A. I think one hundred and twenty-five thousand

dollars.

Q. Have you seen any prospectus?

A, The Mead Development Company published a

statement or prospectus in which they stated the

value of the boat to be one hundred and twenty-

five thousand dollars.

Mr. BOGLE.—I object to that and move to strike

it out as irrelevant and incompetent, and not affect-

ing any issue in this suit,

Q. (By Mr. KING.) What time?

A. Some time last winter, I cannot tell the exact

month, but pi'obably February or something like

that.

Q. Of this year? A. This year.

Re-recross-examination.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) That Mead Develop-

ment Company is a company in which you and Mr.
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King and liis asso(!iates in New York, were con-

nected ?

A. I had nothing to do with the Mead Develop-

ment Company,

Q, It is owned by Mr. King and his associates,

then?

A. I mean not in the formation of it, I mean

—

that is, Mr. King and his associates. I have been

employed by them—not as one of the formers.

Q. That is engaged in some mining in Alaska ?

A. The Mead Development Company owns stock

in the Merchants' & Miners' Company a,s well.

Q. But the company itself does mining business,

is dealing in mines in Alaska ? A. Mining.

Q. Now, at this conference you speak of at Mr.

Baldwin's office, Mr. Waterhouse was not present,

was he? A. Yes.

Q. Was he there? A. Yes.

Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Rowe, that when you and

Mr. King and Mr, McKee, your attorney, met in the

Merchants' Association rooms with Mr. Water-

house and myself the next morning, we were in-

formed that all negotiations were off, and that they

would not put up any more money?

A. Yes, that is as the Occidental Securities Com-

pany dictated to the North Alaska Company.
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Q. Whatever it was, it was a matter between

your companies and not between Mr. Waterhouse

and anybody? A, No.

Q. We were simply notified that negotiations

were off, and that no money would be raised to pay

for the "Garonne"?

A. Yes, as a company, but Mr. King stated in

my presence he w^ould see what could be done to

help Mr. Waterhouse out of the troubles he was

representing he w^as in to meet those payments.

Q. Mr. Waterhouse was representing that he

was in this hole?

A. He was in a very bad hole,

Q. He was having the ship thrown back on his

hands with liens of something over thirty thousand

dollars immediately payable, existing against it;

that w^as his representation was it not?

A. That was what 'he represented, 3^es, sir.

Q. And Mr, King said that he would see if he

could belj) him in any way to meet those obligations?

A, Yes,

Q. And your company then passed its resolution

throwing up your option or contract to purchase?

A. Mr. King directed us to hold a meeting, as the

only way out of it, after he had a talk with Water-

house. And they formed—Mr. McKee, I think, as

our attorney—formed under him, or with Mr. Bal-
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dwin, or some one else connected with the Mead

people a resolution for us to vote on. Mr. McKee

had a consultation with Mr. King and his associates;

who were present I do not know—and came to us

with this resolution framed up for us to vote on.

Q. Neither Mr. Waterhouse nor myself, as his

attorney, was present at that time I

A. I do not know.

Q. We were not present when you were there,

when an}^ such matter was under consideration,

were we*?

A. As regards the forniing of that resolution?

Q. Is it not a fact that the last conference which

you held with Mr. Waterhouse and myself was at the

time it was announced that you would not raise any

more money, nor undertake to meet the payments

on the "Garonne," in the Merchants' Association,

on the morning of the last negotiation'?

A. After we voted on that resolution, I do not

think that I saw Mr. Waterhouse; but the arrange-

ment in which we were to do it, had all been talked

over for several days.

Q. The arrangements that you were

—

A. That we were to do something of this kind,

because of its being directed by Mr. King and Mr.

Mead—in the meantime they had been framing up

something for the organization of a company—they
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had been holding meetings together at which I was

not present—I was given to understand that. At

which an arrangement had been formed to go ahead

with Mr. Waterhouse and I did not like it at that

time, and of course, I could not help myself, and the

company was arranged and formed. In order to

make the new company amply protected, they

framed this resolution and requested us to vote on

it.

Q. Mr. Rowe, don't you recollect that at the next

to the last meeting that was held, at which Mr.

Waterhouse or his attorney was present, the proposi-

tion was made to your company, including both the

North Alaska Steamship Company and the Occi-

dental Company, that you would raise enough money

to pay .those liens on the "Garonne," that Mr.

Waterhouse would extend his debts for an addi-

tional six, twelve and eighteen months, and that

whoever furnished that money to pay off those

debts then existing against the "Garonne," would

have a second security on the shij) for those pay-

ments; and that that was the proposition that was

considered by you and Mr. Mead and all of you, and

that you came in the next morning with the an-

nouncement that the proposition was turned down

and no more money would be raised, do you remem-

ber that?
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A. Mr. King said lie would not put up any more

money.

Q. At that time, isn't that the last meeting that

was held as between the North Alaska Steamship

Company or the Occidental Company, and Water-

house or his attorney"? A. Possibly so, yes.

Q. And subsequent to that, your board passed

this resolution? A. Several days after.

Q. Now Mr. Waterhouse had served your com-

pany with notice in writing, one or two days after

reaching there, that you must either meet the terms

of your contract to purchase by making those pay-

ments or he would declare your contract off?

A. I think that notice in writing was made after

Mr. King had turned us down.

Q. Wasn't it given two or three days before that?

A. I would not be positive as to that.

Q. And did not you and Mr. McKee come into

the meeting that morning, when you turned down

this proposition of Waterhouse to extend his pay-

ments if you would raise enough money to pay those

debts on the boat, with written notification to Mr.

Waterhouse that you would not pay the purchase

price of that boat, but that you would undertake to

hold the boat and Waterhouse liable for all the pay-

ments you had made on the boat?

A. I made no such statement.
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Q. Did not Mr. McKee furnish a written letter

to us in your presence to that effect?

(Counsel for complainant objects as not the best

evidence.)

A. I don't remember that.

Q. You do not remember; did your board of

trustees direct any such letter to be given?

A. I do not think so.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Was General Dodge or

anyone representing General Dodge present at all

those meetings, v^liich you testified about between

the Occidental Company and the Merchants' &

Miners' Company, Mr. McKee, Mr. King and Mr.

Mead? A. No, sir.

Q. Anybody representing him?

A, No, sir.

Q. As far as you know, did he ever receive any

information as to what was done at any of those

meetings, that you have been questioned about or

testified about ?

A. At any of those meetings, the only one would

be Mr. Waterhouse himself.

Q. As trustee for General Dodge?

A. As trustee for General Dodge.

Q. But no one else? A. No one else.

Q. Did Mr. Waterhouse at any of those meetings

mention the indebtedness of General Dodge in any
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wa}', that you know of, or seek in any way to pro-

tect his interest ?

A. I do not think it was mentioned. I do not

know that there was any way suggested of protect-

ing him. Something may have been mentioned

about him.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) Is General Dodge a stock-

holder in either of your companies'?

A. Very small,

Q. How much stock*?

A. I think he has two hundred and fifty shares

in the Rowe Alaska Company.

Q. That was one of the Occidental Companies'

subsidiary companies^

A. Yes; he holds some stock in the Rowe Alaska,

but not control of it.

Q. In the Occidental?

A. That stock was bought and purchased for

Mr. Dodge long before this arrangement.

Q. Did he hold any stock in the Occidental Com-

pany?

A. He may have, but I am not sure.

Q. Did he hold any of the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company? A. I do not think so, no.

Q. Did he have any arrangement or contract or

understanding that he was to have stock in either

of those companies? A. Not that I know of.
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Q. Had he ever attended a meeting of any of your

companies'? A. He has not.

(Testunony of witness closed.)

Whereupon it is stipulated and agreed by and

between counsel for the respective parties in open

court that the witness, William H. Rowe, need not

sign the foregoing deposition, and that the same

shall be considered of the same force and effect as if

signed by said witness.

November 29th, 1905, 10 A. M.

Continuation of proceedings, pursuant to agree-

ment. All parties present as at former hearing.

FRANK WALKER, produced as a witness on the

part of the complainant, being first duly cautioned

and sworn, testifies as follows:

(Q. (By Mr. KING.) What is your business,

Mr. Walker?

A. Marine surveyor and consulting engineer and

naval architect.

Q. How long have you been in that business?

A. In this part of the world I have been in that

business about six years.

Q. Here on the Sound?

A. On Puget Sound.

Q. Are you acquainted with the steamer "Gar-

onne"? A. Very well, indeed.
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Q. Are you acquainted with her construction

and general condition about July or August, 1904*?

A. Yes, sir, I am well acquainted with the vessel.

Q. What was her condition at that time?

A. She was in a very fair condition.

Q. What was the condition as to her hull?

A. Her hull—her shell-plating was in splendid

shape.

Q. Have you had occasion in your business to de-

termine the value of steamers similar to the steamer
'

' Garonne " ?

A. Yes, that is part of my business. I valued

many vessels on all parts of this coast.

Q. Are you acquainted with the value of the

"Garonne'"?

A. In the latter part of July or the first part of

August, 1904, 1 could place a value on her, or at any

time.

Q. You may state what, in your opinion, her

value was at that time?

A. Well, considering—I consider the value of the

"Garonne" at that time from eighty-six to ninety

—

Q. Did you ever see the "Garonne" previous to

her coming to these waters ?

A. Yes, I saw the "Garonne" in London.

Q. How old a ship is she?

A. She was built in 1871.
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Q. What would it cost to build such a ship now?

A. To build such a ship at the present time it

would cost from three hundred and fifty to four hun-

dred thousand dollars,

Q. Well, say at the time she was built?

A. At the tune she was built it was in the early

part of iron-shipbuilding and it was a very ex-

pensively built vessel. It would be very difficult

for me to give an estimate of what she cost at that

time, as I am not acquainted with the iron market

at that time.

Q. She could be built cheaper now than then?

A. Very much.

Q. To duplicate her now would be about

—

A. From three hundred and fifty to four hundred

thousand dollars.

Cross-examination.

Q. (By Mr. BOGLE.) What ballast has the

"Garonne"? A. She had permanent ballast.

Q. Do you mean rock ballast?

A. I mean permanent rock ballast.

Q. Is her hull built on the model of modern ves-

sels?

A. Well, her hull was built, at the time she was

built, up-to-date, but at the present day there is dif-

ferent opinions have come up at the present day.
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Q. Do you know what her dead-weight carrying-

capacity is?

A. No. She is about thirty-eight hundred gross

tons; and then she has so much of her capacity cut

out for passengers at the present time, that it would

be hard to determine what her dead-weight carrying

capacity is.

Q. Have you never examined her while she was

loaded?

A. I have examined her under all conditions,

loaded and unloaded.

Q. Is it not a fact that her dead-weight carrying

capacity is approximately nine hundred tons?

A. I should say "no"; she would carry far more

than that.

Q. Have you ever seen her when she had more

dead-weight in her than that?

A. No, because when I have seen her she has

been loaded with a cargo of various grades—a meas-

urement cargo.

Q. Then you are guessing as to that, when you

say she would carry more than nine hundred tons,

dead-weight.

A. I am not guessing at it at all. I know she

could carry more than nine hundred tons.

Q. How much more, would you say?
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A. The ''Garonne" should carry, allowing for

the difference in her passenger accommodations,

about two thousand tons,

Q. Dead-weight? A. Dead-weight. •

Q. That is exclusive of her ballast, is if?

A. That is exclusive of her ballast.

Q. If, as a matter of fact, an actual test has

shown that she would not carry to exceed from nine

hundred to a thousand tons dead-weight, your

estimate of her value would be somewhat affected,

wouldn't \i%

A. No, sir, it would not affect, in my opinion,

the value of the vessel.

Q. You think she is worth just as much whether

she woidd carry two thousand tons or nine hundred

tons?

A, That is a very peculiar question to ask. The

vessel is a passenger vessel at the present time.

If it was purely a freighter it would be a different

matter.

Q. The only run she could be employed on on the

coast with any chance of profit was the run from

Puget Sound to Alaska and St. Michaels, wasn't it?

A. Well, it all depends on the call for the ves-

sel—if there was a passenger trade anywhere.
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Q. Is there any other trade she could engage in

with a prospect of profit?

A, Well, as I said before, if they could find a pas-

senger trade for her they could operate with a profit.

Q, I did not ask you that. Was there one 1

A. It is not my business—I am not in the pas-

senger traffic.

• Q, The Nome trade is a combination passenger

and freight trade, is it nof?

A. Yes, it has a great deal of passenger work and

baggage and stores.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Do you know of the "Gar-

onne" being valued here recently?

A. I know of the "Garonne" being valued at the

early part of this year. I could not say what date.

Q. Do you know that as a fact?

A. Yes, I know it as a fact.

Q. Do you know what she was valued at then?

A. I don't know the exact figures. It was in ex-

cess of my valuation,

Q. It was in excess of your valuation ?

A. Yes, it was in excess of my valuation.

Q. That is, it was in excess of eighty-six thou-

sand dollars.
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A. It was in excess of eighty-six thousand dol-

lars.

Q. Do you know how much in excess ?

A. No, sir, I am not acquainted with the exact fig-

ures.

(Testimony of witness closed.)

Whereupon it is stipulated and agreed by and be-

tween the counsel for the respective parties that the

witness need not sign the foregoing deposition, but

that the same, when transcribed by the stenographer,

shall be considered as of the same force and effect

as if signed by the said witness.

December 5th, 1905, 10 A. M.

Continuation of proceedings pursuant to adjourn-

ment. All parties present as at former hearing.

JAMES FOWLEE, produced as a witness in be-

half of complainant, being fii'st duly cautioned and

sworn, testifies as follows

:

Q. (By Mr. KING.) State your name.

A. James Fowler.

Q. What is your business %

A. Surveyor at the Lloyd's register, and consult-

ing engineer.

Q. Marine engineer? A. Marine engineer.

Q. Are you acquainted with the value of iron

and steel steamships'? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Here in Seattle? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been in Seattle, Mr. Fow-

ler? A. Twelve months.

Q. How long have yon been engaged in the busi-

ness as marine engineer ?

A. Twenty-five years.

Q. And represented Lloyd's for how long?

A. Nine years.

Q. Were you acquainted with the "Garonne"

when she was in these waters?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. She is an iron steamship, isn't she?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have occasion to value her last March ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. For what purpose?

A. Valuation.

Q. To ascertain what she was worth?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what was your valuation at that time

of the steamer '^Garonne"?

A. The value of the hull was $75,000. With her

equipment complete, $95,000.

Q. What do you mean by her equipment?

A, Equipment is passenger fittings, such as car-

pets, bedding, cutlery ware, crockery-ware, tools and

80 forth.
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Q, Tilings which are not attached to the ship?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does that include sails or rigging?

A. No, sails and rigging belong to the ship.

Q. Sails and rigging would be included in the

$75,000? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the $20,000 would include furniture and

fittings and steward's supplies, and articles of that

sort? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You examined the ship carefully before mak-

ing that valuation ? Yes, sir.

Q. Did anyone else assist you in making it?

A. Yes, Mr. Wiley, the superintendent of the

Boston Steamship Company.

Q. Was that examination made at the request of

Mr. Frank Waterhouse and the Frank Waterhouse

Company ? A. Yes.

Mr. BOGLE.—That is all.

(Testimony of witness closed.)

Whereupon it is stipulated and agreed by and be-

tween counsel for both sides in open court that the

signature of the witness to the foregoing deposition

is waived, and that the same shall be considered

of the same force and effect as if signed hy said

witness.
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W. B. JACKLING, produced as a witness in be-

half of complainant, being first duly cautioned and

sworn, testifies as follows

:

Q. (By Mr. KING.) What is your full name?

A. William B. Jackling.

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Jackling?

A. Seattle.

Q. How long have you lived in Seattle ?

A. Since 71 or 72.

Q. 1871? A. Yes.

Q. What is your business, Mr. Jackling?

A. Marine engineer.

Q. How long have you been engaged in that busi-

ness? A. Twenty-five years.

Q. Are you familiar with the value of iron and

steel steam vessels?

A. I think so, yes, sir, to a certain extent.

Q. Did you know the steamer "Garonne" when

she w^as in these waters? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see her at any time in the summer

of 1904?

A. Yes, I saw her, but not in the suimner of 1901,

no.

Q. When did you see her?

A. I saw^ her in the early part of 1905, and the

latter part of 1904.
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Q. Did you examine her at that time?

A. I was aboard of her in the early spring of 1905

and looked through her with the first assistant engi-

neer.

Q. What was her condition at that time?

A. Fairly good.

Q. What was the condition of her hull?

A. It seemed to me to be fairly good.

Q. And the rest of her equipment?

A. It looked first rate to me.

Q. Are you acquainted with the value of steam-

ers similar to the "Garonne"?

A. To a certain extent, yes, sir.

Q. Are you acquainted with the value of the

"Garonne"?

A. Well, to the value I would place on the "Ga-

ronne, '

' yes. '

Q. What would you say was the value of the

"Garonne" at the time you saw her?

A. As she stood here, when I saw her, she was

worth from $100,000 to $125,000.

Q. Here in this market?

A. I think so, yes, sir.

Q. That included both the hull and all the equip-

ment?

A. The "Garonne" as she stood, yes, sir.
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Q. What equipment did she have on at that time ?

A. Well, the equipment that she had that I no-

ticed was the engineers' department was fairly well

equipped, and I noticed that the balance of the ship

was equij^ped about as the the ordinary steamer is,

with bedding and culinary department; it was

equipped with dishes and things like that.

Mr. BOGLE.—That is all.

(Testimony of witness closed.)

Whereupon it is stipulated and agreed by and be-

tween counsel for the respective parties in open

court that witness need not sign the foregoing depo-

sition, ])ut that the same shall be considered as of

the same force and effect as if signed by said wit-

ness.

FRANK WATERHOUSE, produced as a witness

in behalf of complainant, being first duly cautioned

and sworn, testified as follows:

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Your name is Frank Wa-
terhouse? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are the defendant in this action, are you

nof? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the Frank Waterhouse Company, incor-

porated, of which you are the president, is the other

defendant ? A. Yes.
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Q. And yon are the president of the Franl^ Wa-
terhouse Company, incorporated?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And were, in the snmmer of 1904?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Waterhouse, were you in New York in

the latter part of July and the first of August, 1904 ?

A. No, I was not.

Q. You were not in New York at that time ?

A. No.

Q. What time, during the summer of 1904, were

you in New York?

A. I was in New York in April, and again in the

early j^art of July.

Q. Well, was that after the '* Garonne" got back

from Alaska ?

A. No, I tliink not ; I am not sure whether it was

or not. I think she was away—she certainly was

away at Alaska when I reached New York—I don't

know whether she arrived back while we were there

or not.

Q. What did you go to New York at that time

for?

A. I went to New York to try to make a final

settlement with the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pan}^ for the price of the purchase of the "Ga-

ronne."
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Q. For the balance due on the purchase price*?

A. Yes; for the balance due on the purchase price,

and to make a settlement with them, or receive mon-

ey from them, or try to secure money from them, to

pay the
'

' Garonne 's
'

' debts.

Q, Previous to that there had been a mortgage

on the ship drawn up, and you had it at that time,

hadn't you?

A. Why, I do not think I had at that time, no,

sir, but there had been a mortgage drawn up.

Q. And was delivered to ,you, and you sent it on

to New York, didn't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not bring it to New York at that time,

you had sent it before that?

A. No, I sent it before ; I sent it to the Chase Na-

tional Bank of New York.

Q. Did you get it at that time?

A. I do not remember, Mr. King, whether I did

or not. I cannot find it, and I do not think I did.

I cannot find any record of it being returned.

Q. Did you make any arrangement with the

North Alaska Steamship Company people?

A. Yes.

Q. What arrangement did you make with them

towards paying the money on the ship ?

A. Well, they were owing me; when I went to

New York they were owing me thirty-seven thou-
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sand odd dollars—-between thirty-seven and thirty-

eight thousand dollars on the purchase price of the

steamer, which they could not pay. They had also

involved the steamer in the matter of thirty thou-

sand odd dollars ' worth of debts which they could not

pay. And they agreed to surrender any rights that

they might have in the vessel if I would take her

back and relieve them from the indebtedness that

they had created.

Q. Didn't they make an effort to pay you and to

hold the steamer ?

A. Oh, they made a great many efforts, yes, but

they could not

—

Q. How long were you in New York; how long

were they dickering about this proposition?

A. You mean in July ?

Q. Yes, this time.

A. Well, I think we reached New York about the

first of July, and we left there about the 10th or 11th.

Q. When did you

—

A. (Continuing.) —or the 9th, somewheres

about that.

Q. When did you receive the ultimatum of the

North Alaska Steamship Company that they could

not pay anything more, and would have to surrender

the steamer?
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A. Well, we received that on either the 7th or

the 8th of July, in writing. They wrote me a letter

so stating. (Eeferring to documents.) I see this

letter is dated the 9th of June, but that is a mistake,

it was the 9th of July.

Q. After looking at the letter which Mr. Bogle

has shown you, and refreshing your memory, can

you state the date"? A. The 9th of July.

Q. What did you then do with the steamer*?

A. We took her back.

Q. And then what did you do with her?

A. We sold her to the—well, the merchants had

formed a new company in New York, called the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Company, and we sold

the vessel to the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company.

Q. Who formed that company—wasn't it Mr.

King? A. Mr. King, Mr. Meade—

Q. Mr. King of "Calhoun & Bobbins "?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Meade? A. Yes.

Q. And yourself?

A. Yes, and a number of others that I cannot

remember—I do not know all their names. The

Meade Development Company was the real stock-

holder besides myself.
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Q. How long after you received the letter of the

9th of July from the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany stating that they had given up all hope of rais-

ing the money and keeping the steamer—how long

after that was it that j^ou sold her to the Merchants'

& Miners' Steamship Company—is that the name*?

A. Yes, the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company,

Q. Well, how long after ?

A. Two or three days after.

Q. Wasn't it immediately after?

A. It was not the same day, nor the next day;

it was two or three days.

Q. Hadn't you been in negotiations with Mr.

William F. King and Mr. Meade, looking to the for-

mation of this company, and the transfer of the

steamer, conditional on the North Alaska Steamship

Company falling down in their purchase ?

A. I do not think a word had ever been said

about it.

Q. Nothing had been said about it?

A. I do not think so.

Q. Then you did not undertake to sell the steamer

until after you had received the letter of July 9th ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Was not Mr. Meade in Seattle shortly before

you left on that trip to New York ?
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A. Yes, lie went with me to New York.

Q. And did you talk it over with him as to this

Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company?

A. I never thought of it.

Q. Or disposing of the steamer to anyone?

A. I never thought of it.

Q. To Mr. King or anyone else?

A. I never suggested it. I never saw Mr. King

before I got to New York.

Q. How did the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company com i to be formed ?

A. Well, it came to be formed in this way. Mr.

Meade, Mr. King, Mr. W. S. Corwine and some

others of their associates had subscribed for a con-

siderable portion of the stock of the Occidental Se-

curities Company, which was the holding company

in New York of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany. I think they had invested somewhere between

$25,000 and $35,000 in the stock of the Occidental

Securities Company, and their money had been used

by the Occidental Securities Company for the pur-

pose of the North Alaska Steamship Company, in

making the first pajrments on the steamship "Ga-

ronne. '

'

Q. How do you know all this, Mr. Waterhouse ?

A. I know it from the statements of Mr. Meade,

and the uncontradicted statements of Mr. Meade and
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Mr. King. The wliole thing was threshed out in

New York witli tlie stockholders of the Occidental

Securities Company when Mr, Meade was threaten-

ing to send them all to the penitentiary for taking

his money under false pretenses.

Q. You were not a stockholder in the Occidental

Securities Company. A. No, sir.

Mr. BOGLE.—He had not finished his answer.

Mr. KING.—He has answered as far as I am con-

cerned.

Mr. BOGLE.—You asked him how he came to or-

ganize the company.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) State how the company

was organized—I want simply to know what you

know of your own knowledge.

A. I know this of my own knowledge ; Mr. King

and Mr. Meade were exceedingly exercised because

they were in danger of losing their money that they

had invested in the Occidental Securities Company;

and they did the best they could while I was in New
York, to arrange with the Occidental Securities

Companj^ to assist the Occidental Securities Com-

pany in paying the balance of this "Garonne"

money. They found themselves unable to secure

their money, to put any more into that company,

and they finally declined to assist them any further.



Grenville M. Dodge and Fmtil,- \V (tlerhouse. 141

(Testimony of Frank Waterhonse.)

Now, after the North Alaska Steamship Company

had serv^ed me notice that they could not complete

their contract for the purchase of the "Garonne,"

they could pay nothing further, and asking me to

take the steamer back. I then took the matter up

with Mr. King, and suggested to him that if he would

pay the debts that the North Alaska Steamship

Company had contracted against the "Garonne,"

I would be willing to take that steamer back and

sell to him a half interest in the boat so as to protect

him as far as possible in the investment he had made

in the Occidental Securities Company ; and that was

subsequently done with the full knowledge of the

Occidental Securities Company and the North

Alaska Steamship Company and everybody con-

nected therewith.

Q. What i3rice was the "Garonne" sold af?

A. She was sold to the North Alaska Steamship

Company for $85,000.

Q. Eighty-five thousand dollars'?

A. Well, I think that is it.

Q. How were you paid %

A. We were to be paid $1,000 on the day that they

accepted the steamer,

Q. In cash? A. In cash.
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Mr. BOGLE.—Are you inquiring for the sale to

the North Alaska Steamship Company or the Mer-

r^hants' & Miners' Company?

Mr. KING.—I am inquiring for the sale of the

"Garonne" to the Merchants' & Miners' Company.

Mr. BOGLE.—Then 1 think the witness misun-

derstood you.

The WITNESS.—That is different.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) What price was the "Ga-

ronne" sold at to the Merchants' & Miners' Com-

pany? A. She was sold for

—

Q. I will refresli your memory—you say in the

pleadings that she was sold for $67,000.

A. That is right.

Was that true? A. That is right.

Was there any of that cash?

AVhy, there was $30,000.

In cash? A. Yes.

That was to pay the debts against the boaf?

Yes, sir.

And the balance was in stock?

The balance of the

—

I mean the $37,000, that was in stock?

Yes.

And how much

—
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A. (Continuing.) That represented my inter-

est; that represented the amount the North Alaska

Steamship Company had failed to pay on the

steamer.

Q. Did you get $37,000 in stock?

A. My recollection is that for some purpose, the

capital stock of the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Compan}^ was fixed at $100,000.

Q. Yes—now, how much of that stock did you

get for the interest in the steamer, outside of the

$30,000 cash?

A. It was fixed at $100,000. The money that Mr.

King paid in, the $30,000—the money that was ow-

ing me, the $37,000, was considered to be the indebt-

edness of the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Com-

pany to Frank Waterhouse & Company. The

money that Mr. King put in, the $30,000 additional

that he put in, was also considered to be an indebt-

edness to him of the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company, and a mortgage was given by the

Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company jointly

to Frank Waterhouse & Company and W. F. King,

for $67,000, of which Mr. King had $30,000 and

Frank Waterhouse & Company had $37,000 and in-

terest.
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Q, And the title to the ship passed to the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Company?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you receive any stock in the Merchants'

& Miners' Steamship Company for the ship?

A. The stock never was issued of the Merchants'

& Miners' Steamship Company,

Q. None was issued at all?

A. I do not think that it ever was issued, I do

not think so.

Q. Practicalh% Frank Waterhouse & Company

received the steamer back with a mortgage on her

to Mr. William F. King of $30,000, and a mortgage

on her to Frank Waterhouse & Company themselves,

or to vou individually ?

A. No ; it is not so at all. Frank Waterhouse

& Company did not receive the steamer back at all.

The steamer was sold. Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany had no further interest in the steamer except

as their interest in the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company.

Q. What was the Occidental Securities Com-

pany's interest in the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company—you state in your pleadings that you

received stock in the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company; now you say you did not—and that

there was no stock issued.
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A. I said the stock was not issued. If the stock

had ever been issued I would liave received it.

Q. How much stock would you have received if

the stock had been ever issued, outside of the mort-

gage"?

A. I think our share was $62,500.

Q. Out of the $100,000 capital stock?

A. Out of the $100,000 capital stock.

O. Now, the Merchants' &, Miners' Steamship

Company was incorporated after you got to New

York on that trip in July?

A. Yes. After we left New York for Seattle.

Q. Do you know who would have got the re-

mainder of the stock of the Merchants' & Miners'

Steamship Company, if it had been issued?

A. Yes, the Meade Development Company.

Q. Who did it consist of?

A. I think it consisted of those men—Mr. King

and his associates, that invested the money in the

Occidental Securities Company, five or six of them.

Q. As a matter of fact, Frank Waterhouse &

Company got for the steamer "Garonne" $30,000

in cash to pay off the indebtedness.

A. No; the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company got the $30,000.

Q. The Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Com-

pany did not owe anybody anything, did they?
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A. The Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Com-

pany agreed to pay the debts of the North Alaska

Steamship Company on the boat, and they received

the monev and paid the debts.

Q. Then they received for the boat—there was

paid for the boat, whether you received it or not,

$30,000 which went to pay the claims on the boat.

A. Yes.

Q. That's right? A. Yes, sir.

O. And in addition to that there was a mortgage

of $37,000 on the boat.

A. There was a mortgage of $67,000.

Q. Of the $67,000, $30,000 was cash to pay the

claims on the boat; now, who held the other $37,-

000?

A. Frank Waterhouse & Company.

Q. And Frank Waterhouse & Company also held

$33,000 worth of stock in the Merchants' & Miners'

Steamship Compan}^

A. It would have held that if it ever had been

worth anything or ever had been issued.

0. If it ever had been issued?

A. As a matter of fact that stock was so much

water; it represented nothing.

Q. You became president of the Merchants' &

Miners' Steamship Company? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And you are president yet?

A. The company is disincorporated.

Q. You entered the "Garonne" in the custom

house, as owned by the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company, with yourself as president here in

Seattle?

A. No, I think that she is not entered here in

Seattle—she is entered in New York.

Q. Now, I want to be perfectly fair with you

—

A. She was registered in New York.

Q. Now, I hand you that (showing paper to wit-

ness) and I will ask you what it is—and I would

just as soon strike your answer which you have

just given out if you find you are mistaken.

Mr. BOGLE.—I think I can explain all this bet-

ter than Mr. Waterhouse can, because it all passed

through my office.

A. (By the WITNESS.) I do not know any-

thing about it ; I know she was registered in the state

of New York.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) I hand you plaintiff's

identification No. 8, and I will ask you what it is.

A. It says that it is a copy of the certificate of

registry.

Q. The register of the steamer "Garonne"?

A. Yes, sir, the steamer "Garonne" of New

York.
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Q. Turn over, and see whether it is duly certi-

fied on the back, by the customs officials.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That says that you are the president of the

Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that the "Garonne" is registered in their

name? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And from the tune that the "Garonne" was

sold to the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Com-

pany, up to the time she left these waters, she was

in Your control as president of that steamship com-

pany, wasn't she? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you recollect when the "Garonne" left

here to sail for Alaska on June 2d, 1904 ?

A. I recollect when she sailed, I do not remember

whether it was the 1st or 2d of June.

Mr. BOGLE.—It was either the 2d or 3d of June.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) From the time she sailed

until she was surrendered to you by the North Alas-

ka Steamship Company, had you received any money

from the steamer, or from the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company?

A. From the time she sailed?

Q, Yes. A. I think we had.
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Q. And was that money credited up against tlie

balance that was due on the purchase price?

A. Some of it, yes, sir.

Q. How much did you receive?

A. I could not tell you.

Q. Didn't you keep any account of it?

A. Certainly, but I cannot tell from memory,

Q. Have you got your book here?

A. Do you mean how much did we receive after

she sailed—altogether do you mean ?

Q. No ; what I mean is this : You have stated in

your answer the different sums of money which you

received in part payment of the "Garonne"; you

received something like $47,000, didn't you?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, what I want to know is, did you receive

any freight money, or anything of that kind after

she sailed—was there any mone}^ remitted down to

you from Alaska? A. No, sir.

Q. From any source, did you receive any money ?

A. Yes, we did receive money after she sailed.

We received the passenger money, north bound, from

the agents here.

Q. You were the agent—Frank Waterhouse &

Company were the agents?

A. Yes, but there were a lot of tickets sold by

the North Alaska Steamship Company itself; that
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money was turned into ns ; there was some tickets

sold by E. E. Caine and that money was turned

into usj and that money we credited on account of

the North Alaska Steamship Company, either on the

purchase or on their debt account with the boat, I

forget which; but we received nothing after the

steamer—now, I want to make myself perfectly

jDlain here.

Q. And I want you to.

A. (Continuing.) We received nothing from

collections in Alaska. We received no collections

except those that were made here—paid in here be-

fore the steamer sailed. They may have come twen-

ty-four hours after she sailed or two days after she

sailed, Init they were all the result of receipts here

in Seattle, We never received anything from Alas-

ka.

Q. Didn't you receive some freight money?

A. From Alaska?

Q. Yes. A. No.

Q. Didn't you receive $500 or something like

that amount?

A. Not that I have any knowledge of.

0. Then the only money which you did receive

was from the sale of passenger tickets here in Se-

attle. A. Yes, northbound.
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Q. And no freight money at all?

A. Not a dollar that I know of. I would be very

glad to look that up, and if we did receive anything

from any source in Alaska I will advise you of it.

Q. Now, you represented the steamer as agents,

previous to her sailing to Alaska on that trip ?

A. Yes.

Q. And advertised her as sailing for the North

Alaska Steamship Company with you as agents, in

the daily papers. A. Yes, sir,

Q. When you were in New York, in negotiation

with the North Alaska Steamship Company, did you

produce or show them any vouchers for this indeljt-

edness ?

A. Why, I think we took with us all the bills

that we had received up to that time ; I am not very

sure about that.

Q. If you had not the bills, Mr. Waterhouse, how

did you ascertain the amount that was due on the

steamer "?

A. We knew the amount that was due on the

steamer before I left for New York, and after I got

to New York we Mdred our treasurer and asked him

to telegraph what bills had subsequently come in,

and what up to that time was the amount of the

North Alaska Steamship Company's debt against

that steamer—what was the amount of the bills that
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they bad incurred against the steamer and not paid,

and lie replied to that—I have his telegram.

Q. And that is how you made up the amount

that was due on the steamer.

A. Yes.

Q. Were those debts liens on the steamer?

A. Every one of them. I could not say every

one of them, but nearly all of them. I think every

one of them was, except commissions that were due

Frank Waterhouse & Company and commissions due

E. E. Caine. I thinli everything else Avas—I don't

know whether they are maritime liens or not—every-

thing else was.

Q. As agents for the steamer, you received a com-

mission for the sale of tickets?

A. Yes, we received commissions.

Q. Frank Waterhouse & Company did?

A. Yes; we had a contract with the North Alas-

ka Steamship Company at the time they purchased

the steamer.

Q. Have you got any of those vouchers here?

A. I have a statement showing the bills that were

paid with the money that was received in New York,

with the $30,000 that Mr. King and his associates

paid in. I have not had an opportunity, as our

treasurer has been ill, and I did not have the time
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to get these until this morning (showing), There

it commences, at July 19, and it runs right down

there. There is almost $30,000 there ; and there are

two or three thousand dollars that we had advanced

money for, that appear in our books, before I made

the arrangements in New York—bills that had to be

paid, labor bills and things of that kind. Of coiu'se,

we have all the vouchers for every dollar we spent on

their account.

Q. You say you have got vouchers for all these?

A. We have got vouchers for ever}^ cent we ever

expended on behalf of any company we ever repre-

sented.

Q. This page 20 of j^our ledger represents the

account against the steamer ''Garonne"?

A. That represents the indebtedness of the North

Alaska Steamsliip Company.

Q. To Frank Waterhouse & Company?

A. No, to the steamer "Garonne," on July 19,

1904.

Q. And this credit here of $30,000, is the $30,-

000 received from the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And these are the expenditures on it?

A. Yes ; the $30,000 was the money received from

Mr. King and his associates, and that is the way the

money was spent.
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Q. You only received one $30,000?

A. That is all. There are sorae prior expenses

to that. These are the last expenses. There are

some three or four thousand dollars, as I say, that

appear in the books of the North Alaska Steamship

Company, We had advanced money for them.

That does not quite make up the $30,000. As a mat-

ter of fact, there was some $32,000 or $33,000, or pos-

sibly $34,000 of debts at that time.

Q. Why is tiie balance not in here?

A. Well, the reason for that I think is this. Our

treasurer can explain it to you, Init I think the reason

is this

—

Q. We do not care for the reason unless you

know. You can get the treasurer here if he knows.

Mr. KING.—I would like to offer this page No.

20 in evidence, of the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company 's ledger, and ask to have it be marked

as an exhibit. We will substitute a typewritten copy

to be marked as exhibit No. 9.

(Document marked Complainant's Exhibit No.

9.)

Q. You have none of these vouchers here?

A. Not here.

Q. For these expenditures ?

A. We have them in Seattle.
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Q. But not in this hearing?

A. No.

Q. Referring to this Gomplainant 's Exhibit No,

9, I will call your attention to the item of July 20th

of $ 2,036.07, and I will ask you what that is.

A. That is b% commission.

Q. Just read it.

A. (Reading.) 5% commission on "Graronne"

voyage No. 1, earnings.

Q. Frank Waterhouse & Company?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was paid to Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany, incorporated ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is the next item, on July 21st of

$597.27?

A. Balance 2^/2% of 10% commission.

Q. Paid to whom?

A. Frank Waterhouse & Company, incorporated.

Mr. KING.—^At this time, if there is no objection,

I would like to put complainant's identification No.

8 in evidence.

(Document received in evidence and marked Com-

plainant's Exhibit No. 8.)

Q. On July 9th, when you received word from

the North Alaska Steamship Company that they

practically threw up their contract on the "Gar-

onne," where was the boat then, do you know?
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A. I do not know.

Q. Hadn't she returned to Seattle?

A. I do not remember.

Q. What is your best recollection of when she

did return to Seattle?

A. I have not the faintest idea—I haven't got the

least idea.

Q. But you say you think it was two or three

days after July 9th, 1904, before you consummated

your sale with the Merchants ' & Miners ' Steamship

Company ?

A. Well, I would know if I knew what day of the

week July 9th was, I think I could tell exactly what

day of the month—it was either two or three days

after.

Q. During that time, did you make any effort to

sell the steamer to anyone else?

A. No. There was no use making any effort. T

had been trying to sell this steamer for two years

before, and had exhausted the world.

Mr. KING.—I move to strike that out as not re-

sponsive to the question.

Q. Whereabouts in New York did these negotia-

tions take place?

A. They took place in the office of the Occidental

Securities Company, at the Merchants' Association,
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at Griggs, Baldwin & Baldwin, attorneys, at McKee

& Frost, attorneys, and at tlie Holland House,

Q. Now, give the locations of some of those

places in New York which you have testified about

—where is Origgs, Baldwin & Baldwin's office*?

A. On Pine street.

Q. And where is the Merchants' Association?

A. On Broadway.

Q. Whereabouts on Boardway?

A. I think it is No. 240.

Q. The lower part of Broadway*?

A. Yes.

Q. Where is McKee & Frost's office!

A. No. 48 Broadway, or 42—42, I think it is.

Q. That is still very low down on Broadway?

A. Yes.

Q. And where is the Holland House?

A. On Fifth Avenue.

Q. Whereabouts on Fifth Avenue?

A. Fifth Avenue and 28th Street, I think.

Q. You are pretty well acquainted in New York ?

A. Fairly.

Q. You have been there frequently.

A. I have been there four or five times a year.

Q. The numbering of the buildings in Broadway

is consecutive, is it not; it is not like the numbering

in Seattle, by blocks?
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A. No, it is consecutive, I believe.

Q. So that No. 28 Broadway

—

A. 42 Broadway I said.

Q. The office at 42 Broadway, from the way that

Broadway is nmnbered, as you know, would be only

twenty-one doors from No. 1 Broadway.

A. I said 48 Broadway.

Q. Would be twenty-eight doors from No. 1

Broadway? A. I do not know, Mr. King.

Q. Is it not a fact that the numbers run alter-

nately, the even numbers on one side of the street,

and the odd numbers on the other, and that they run

up consecutively? A. I believe they do.

Q. Then No. 48 would be twenty-four doors

from No. 1, but on the opposite side of the street

—

you know that, don't you?

A. I should think so, but I don't know it.

Mr. KING.—That is all.

Mr. BOGLE.—I have no cross-examination of this

witness.

Mr. KING.—I would not like to close my ease

now; if there is no objection. I will say that I have

no more witnesses, but I would like to read over this

testimony before I close, if there is no objection.

Mr. BOGLE.—There is no objection.

(Testimony of witness closed.)
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Whereupon it is stipulated and agreed by and be-

tween attorneys for botli sides in open court tliat tlie

witness need not sign the foregoing deposition, but

that the same shall be considered of the same force

and effect as if signed by said witness.

December 13, 1905, 4 o'clock P. M.

Continuation of proceedings pursuant to agree-

ment. All parties present as at former hearing.

Mr. KING.—At this time the complainant desires

to offer in evidence, as Complainant's Exhibit No.

9, the copy of page 20 of the Merchants' & Miners'

Steamship Company's ledger that was furnished by

the defendant.

(The copy above referred to is received in evi-

dence and marked "Complainant's Exhibit No. 9.")

FRANK WATERHOUSE, recalled, testifies as

follows

:

Q. (Mr. KING.) Mr. Waterhouse, the mort-

gage you spoke of when you testified before as hav-

ing been sent, to the Chase National Bank, was the

mortgage in which General Dodge was protected for

Ms secondary interest of $10,000.

A. I believe it was.

Q. Now, you stated at your previous examina-

tion that the stock in the Merchants' & Miners'
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Steamship Company, or any stock, if it liad been is-

sued, was practically valueless? A. Yes,

Q. Didn't the company have any assets?

A. No, they liad no assets, except the steamer

"Garonne."

Q. And that asset was subject to a mortgage of

$67,000?

A. No. I made a mistake in reference to that

when I testified the other day. I find there was no

mortgage given at alL

Q. There was no mortgage given?

A. No.

Q. And how was the $30,000 secured then?

A. The Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Com-

l^any agreed to consid-er the $30,000 paid in by Mr.

King and his associates, and the $37,500, or the

thirty-seven thousand and odd dollars which was

the balance due Frank Waterhouse & Company by

the North Alaska Steamship Company—the unpaid

balance due on the purchase price of the "Garonne"

—as a debt of the Mer<3hants' & Miners' Steamship

Company to us. Now, the Merchants' & Miners'

Steamship Company was capitalized for $167,000.

The reason for that was this: Mr. King and his as-

sociates insisted that they should have an equal in-

terest with us, or with Franli Waterhouse & Com-

pany, in the management of the Merchants' &
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Miners' Steamship Company; that they should have

equal voting power; and in order to accomplish that,

it was suggested by Mr. King's attorneys and agreed

to by mine, that the capital stock of the Merchants

'

& Miners' Steamship Company should be $100,000,

which should be divided equally between Mr. King

and his associates and myself, and that the amount

of $37,000 due me, and the amount of $30,000 which

Mr. King advanced to pay off the indebtedness

against the ''Garonne," should be considered as an

indebtedness of the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company to us; so, the capital stock was not

$167,000, but $100,000, I believe, with an indebted-

ness of sixty-seven thousand and odd dollars.

Q. Are you very positive that that indebtedness

was not secured by a mortgage on the vessel?

A. Well, I am not absolutely positive, but I do

not think it was. I have no recollection of it.

Q. I have here a statement from the Meade

Development Company, in which it states, amongst

their holdings; "See mortgage on the steamer 'Gar-

onne,' $30,000, security for cash advanced to the

Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company; total

mortgage on vessel $67,000"; are you prepared to

say that that statement is incorrect?

A. I am not prepared to say it is incorrect; I

think it is, but I do not remember; I never have seen
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the mortgage that I know of, and I do not remember

one ever being made.

Q. Were those parties, who are represented as

having been paid by Complainant's Exhibit No. 9,

pressing you for payment at tliat time you were in

New York?

A. No, sir; we are not in the liabit of being

pressed for payment, because we alwaj's pay our

bills as soon as they are rendered.

Q. As a matter of fact, the "Garonne" was put

into the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company

for $100,000, wasn't it?

A. No, I do not think so.

Q. What price was it put in at?

A. I think it was put in at $67,000, which was

made up of the $37,000 due me and the $30,000 that

was advanced by Mr. King and his associates.

Q. Then the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company, if there was no mortgage, was indebted

to Mr. King for $30,000, and to you for $67,000.

A. To me for $37,000.

Q. That is, if there was no mortgage?

A. If there was, they were indebted to us just the

same.

Q. And in addition to that, outside of that, you

received $63,000, or you would have received $63,000
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worth of stock of the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company? A, No, I would not,

Q. How much stock would you have received of

the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company?

A. I would have received $50,000. Of course

that stock had no value, and it was just arranged

for the purpose of arranging an equal management

—an equal share in the management between Mr.

King and his associates and myself.

Q. Was the '^ Garonne" insured for the benefit

of yourself and Mr. King and his associates'?

A. It was insured for the benefit of the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Company.

Q. Do you know what her insurance was?

A. No.

Q. Have you any idea? A. No.

Q. Do you know whether it was more or less than

$100,000? A. I do not remember.

Q. Can you ascertain? A. Yes.

Q. Will you do so, please? A. Gladly.

Q. Was there any of this indebtedness, which

was set out in Complainant's Exhibit No. 9, which

is page 20 of the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company's ledger, incurred after Mr. Pusey was in

Seattle? A. I do not know.

Q. Did you call Mr. Pusey 's attention, when he

was in Seattle, to any indebtedness against the com-
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pany at that time, other than the $37,000 due on the

purchase price? A. Yes.

Q. What indebtedness did you call his attention

to?

A. I do not recollect, except that he was told

that there was a large indebtedness to be paid. We
did not know at the time what the indebtedness was,

because we had not received the accounts either from

the creditors themselves or a statement of them from

the North Alaska Steamship Company.

Q. You never gave him any amount?

A. No; but he thoroughly understood, and was

infonned, that there was a large indebtedness to be

taken care of.

Q. I call 3^our attention to a bill from the Com-

mercial Street Boiler Works, being the first item on

exhibit No. 9, and I will a^k you if that was work

done on the "Garonne"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. By your order? A. No.

Q. By whose order?

A. By the order of the North Alaska Steamship

Company.

Q. Did you represent the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company in giving the order?

A. No, sir, I had nothing to do with it.

Q. Did you 0. K. it?
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A. Not that I am aware of (examines docu-

ment). No, sir.

Q. Didn't you have an agreement with the North

Alaska Steamship Company that no work was to be

done, and no indebtedness was to be incurred against

the ship without your sanction^

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was this incurred without your sanction?

A. Yes, a great deal of it was.

Q. When did you first learn of this"?

A. Subsequent to the June 1st of that year, 1904.

Q. I now hand you a bill of Frye-Bruhn & Com-

pany, being the second item there, and I will ask

you whether you know whether that was furnished

the "Garonne"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How do you know it?

A. Because it is O K-ed by their steward and re-

ceipted for by him.

Q. Was that furnished with your sanction?

A. I do not know but that we had knowledge

that this order was placed. We might have placed

the order for them ourselves—I do not remember.

Frank Waterhouse & Company were acting as their

agents.

Q. That is what I understood.

A. (Continuing.) —and if we ordered anything

of this kind it was ordered on the order of their man-
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ager here. Nothing was bought except on the

order of their manager, for them,

Q. I understood you to say that the first bill

you knew nothing about,

A, I have no personal knowledge of it at all.

Q, Are you not their manager?

A, No, sir. Mr. Ferguson was their manager,

I was their agent. They had a manager here dur-

ing all that time, a man in charge of the business.

Q, Did Mr, Ferguson have any authority from

you to incur indebtedness against the "Garonne'"?

A, Such items as we knew of

—

Q, Is that your answer?

A, (Continuing,) —We were willing he should

incur. I cannot tell you, I cannot go through that

thing and tell ^'ou all the items we had knowledge

of, because I haven't the slightest recollection ex-

cept one or two cases.

Q. You say you cannot tell anything about what

items, notwithstanding the fact that you say there

was an agreement entered into between you, that

no indebtedness should be incurred on the steamer

without your knowledge and consent.

A. Yes, sir. That agreement was violated by

them.

Q. I want to find out on what particular bills

that agreement was violyted?
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A. I cannot say.

Q. Then, for all you know, all these bills may

have had your consent.

A. I know they had not, for the reason that the

indebtedness—after I left for New York—the in-

debtedness was increased from something like

$15,000 or $16,000, the amount of bills we had at

that time, to over $32,000.

Mr. BOGLE.—Do you mean the indebtedness was

increased, or that bills came in"?

A. Bills came in that we had no knowledge of.

Q. For debts incurred prior to that, was if?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. (Mr. KING.) Now, I will ask you to look at

this Kilbourne & Clark bill and tell me if you knew

of that before it was incurred*?

A. I do not remember it at all.

Q. It was work done on the "Garonne," was it

nof? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Could you tell whether it was done prior to or

subsequent to June 2d, by looking at the bill'?

A, No. There is nothing there to indicate when

it was done. It must have been done prior, because

the bill is rendered on June 2d.

Q. It was for overhauling the electrical system on

the ship.
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A. It looks like it.

Q. Do you know anything about the next item

of King & Winge?

A. I do not know anything about any of thege

things personally—I cannot tell you anything about

it. It was work on the "Garonne" evidently.

Q. That is work done on the "Garonne," but you

cannot tell whether that bill amounting to $2,725.60,

was incurred with or without your sanction.

A. I can't remember now.

Q. What about McCabe & Hamilton, stevedores'?

A. That was for loading the ship.

Q. Was that incurred with your sanction?

A. I knew they were employing stevedores to

load the ship, if that is what you mean.

Q. I would like you to answer my question,

please.

A. Well, I cannot give you any more of an an-

swer. I knew that the firm of McCabe & Hamilton

were working there, but I do not know what the bill

was or what hours they worked or anything of the

kind.

Q. You had ample opportunity to protect your-

self, and I want to find out to what extent you did

it. Do you know anything about the bill of the

South Prairie Coal Company for $503.70—do you

know whether that work was done on the shij) ?
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A. No, it is evidently coal furnished the steamer

by the South Prairie Coal Company.

Q. But you only know that by looking at the bill?

A. That is all.

Q. I have here a bill dated July 20, 1904 from

Frank Waterhouse & Company, incorporated,

against the North Alaska Steamship Company,

which is included under date of July 20th, in the

Complainant's Exhibit No. 9, and it is for commis-

sion on $40,721,43. Did Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany receive that money? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. BOGLE.—Which money do you mean?

Mr. KING.—$40,721.43.

A. (Continuing.) Did we receive that, did you

say?

Q. Yes.

A. I do not know whether they did or not.

Q. Then why did you charge commission on it?

A. Because the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany made a contract with Frank Waterhouse &

Company that the latter should act as their general

agents in securing cargo and passengers for the

steamer "Garonne," for which service they were to

be paid a commission of 5% on the gross earnings

of the steamer "Garonne," which is the usual rate

of commission.
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Q. Then, none of this money came through your

office? A. To us?

Q. The $40,000.

A. Undoubtedly some of it did; what part of it

.1 cannot say.

Q. You cannot say?

A. No, I do not remember.

Q. Have you any means of finding out?

A. Certainly. Maybe, perhaps, all of it did.

Q. If any of the money did come to your office,

what w^as done with it?

A. Turned in to the cashier.

Q. What w^as done with it in reference to the

North Alaska Steamship Company?

A. It was applied on the bills of the North Al-

aska Steamship Company.

Q. Applied on the bills ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And applied on their indebtedness to you

—

any of it.

A. I think there was, yes, sir, I do not know what

amount.

Q. You are not prepared to say that this whole

$40,721.43, did not go through your office, which you

charged commission on?

A. That it did not?

Q. Yes.

A. Do you mean that it never reached our office?
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Q. No; I mean just exactly what I said; that it

did not go through your office.

A. I don't understand your question.

(Question repeated to the witness.)

A. The North Alaska Steamship Company had

its own office in Seattle. It was selling

—

Mr. KING.—Wait a moment—I asked for a cat-

egorical answer to my question.

The WITNESS.—I cannot give you one then.

You do not ask a question which I can answer cat-

egorically.

Mr. BOGLE.—I think he has the right to answer

the question.

The MASTER.—Complete your answer.

A. (By the Witness—Continuing.) The North

Alaska Steamship Company had an office; re-

tained an office in the city of Seattle, in which it

engaged freight and received the payments, and the

charges on the same, and for the sale of passenger

tickets, in which it received the proceeds of the sale

of those tickets. Now, a portion of this $40,000 was

paid in through that office, and possibly all of it was

subsequently turned into our office, but what part

of it, or if all of it, I cannot say; I do not remember.

Q. The question I asked you was—you are not
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prepared to say that this whole $40,721.43 did not go

through your office, which you charged commission

on; or, can you by reference to the books of Frank

Waterhouse & Company, incorporated, ascertain

how much of it passed through your office, and how

much did not ?

A. I do not know whether I can or not.

Q. Then, do I understand you that you wish the

record to show that you kept no account of this

—

Frank Waterhouse & Company?

A. I cannot say whether we kept the books of

the North Alaska Steamship at that time, or whether

they were being kept in their own office.

Q. Do I understand you then, that none of this

$40,000 went through the books of Frank Water-

house & Company, incorporated"?

A. No, sir, I do not think it did.

Q. It did not?

A. I do not think it did; unless, after it was paid

over by the North Alaska Steamship Company to us

as a payment on the purchase price of the "Ga-

ronne," if any part of it was so paid, then it would

appear in the books, that part that was so paid,

Q. Where are the books of the North Alaska

Steamship Company, have you got them?

A. I think the books are in New York.

Q. They are not here?
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A. I do not think so.

Q. You have not got them?

A. I do not know; if we have you are very wel-

come to them.

Q. Do I understand you tliat on money received

by the North Alaska Steamship Company on the

"Garonne" that was not received by or through

your office, and never passed through Waterhouse

& Compan}^ incorporated, that nevertheless, you got

a commission of 5% on if?

A. We got a commission of 5% on the gross earn-

ings of the steamer from the money—wherever the

money passed through, whether it was our office or

their office.

Q. That was what I asked you.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then, if a part of this money was received

by the North Alaska Steamship Company direct,

and used by them or appropriated by them in any

way, you would, nevertheless, receive a commis-

sion of 5%, if it was on the earnings of the

"Garonne"? A. Yes, sir,

Q. But at the same time you do not known how

much of the $40,000 passed through the office of

Frank Waterhouse & Company, and how much did

not? A. No, sir.



174 Frank Waterhouse cG Cu.. Inc., vs.

(Testimony of Frank Waterhouse.)

Q. But you do know that any that did, was ap-

plied by you in payment of either the indebtedness

of tlie North Alaska Steamsliip Company to you

or in the payment of bills, is that right ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, I have here a bill, shown on exhibit

No. 9, of July 21st, 1904; the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company to Frank Waterhouse & Company;

this is 21/2% on disbursements; the disbursements

given at $32,578.13, and the 21/0% commission at

$814.45. Was that for money disbursed by Frank

Waterhouse & Compan}^ on account of the North

Alaska Steamship Company ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there an account of that kept by Frank

Waterhouse & Company?

A. An account of the commissions ?

Q. No, sir; an account of those disbursements'?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what those disbursements were

for? A. No, sir.

Q. Can you ascertain from your books'?

A. Yes, I can send our cashier down here and let

him give you all the information you want. I did

not keep those books.

Q. How did you receive this money; from what

sources—this $32,578.13? A. I do not know.

Q. Do your books show'? A. Certainly.
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Q. Do you know anything about this bill of the

Western Union Telegraph Company for $64.66'?

A. No, sir.

Q. You do not know whether it was for tele-

grams ?

A. It was for telegrams, evidently.

Q. You do not know anything more than what

the bill shows? A. No, sir.

Q. I have here a bill of Frank Waterhouse &

Company against the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany of June 14th, 1904, for proportion of insur-

ance from February 14 to May 30, on policy for

$75,000 on steamer "Garonne," three and a half

months' premium, $382.83 (showing); that was in-

surance at that time on the "Garonne," was itf

A. It was the insurance from the time they

bought her up to this time—from the time the North

Alaska Steamship Company bought the steamer

from us.

Q. That insurance was negotiated through the

office of Frank Waterhouse & Company?

A. It was negotiated months before; it was a

year's insurance; taken out long before that time.

Q. It was taken out through your office?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there any other insurance on the boat at

that time besides that? A. I could not say.
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Q. In addition to that?

A. I do not remember.

Q. You would not say there was not?

A. No, sir.

Q. I now hand you a number of bills from Sunde

& Erland and aggregating, according to exhibit No.

9, $-129.83, and I will ask you whether you know

whether or not those were incurred with your knowl-

edge and consent for the steamer "Garonne" (show-

ing).

A. No, I never saw them—I never heard of them

before.

Q. You just simply paid those bills as they came

in out of this $30,000, without any investigation as

to whether they were put on the vessel or not?

A. No, we did not. They were all K-ed by

their representative—every bill. We never paid a

bill unless it was thoroughly approved by the proper

officers.

Q. Who were the officers that approved these

Sunde & Erland biUs?

A. W. B. Hastings.

Q. Whois W.B.Hastings?

A. He was the assistant traffic manager of the

North Alaska Steamship Company in Seattle.
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Q. When you found these bills were coming in

without your sanction and consent, did you make

any objection?

A. Most of them came in after it was too late to

make any objection.

Q. After when—after July 12th?

A. After the vessel sailed, on June 1st.

Q. Did any come in after July 12th?

A. I do not remember.

Q. If they did they will so show in this statement

(showing)—the dates in that statement, so far as

you know, are correct, Mr. Waterhouse?

A. Those are the dates of payment. I do not

know when the bills came in.

Q. You do not know when they came in?

A. No.

Q. You do not know whether this Mr. Hastings

represented the North Alaska Steamship Company

after July 12th, 1904? A. I do not remember.

Q. You do not know whether that 0. K. was put

on the bill before or after that time?

A. (Examining bill.) Yes; it was paid here on

July 13th; it was marked with the stamp paid July

13th.

Q. Well, here is one July 23d, now how about

that one?
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A. Well, these O K's were put on before the bills

were paid, of course.

Q. You do not know whether they were put on

after July 12th or not '?

A. I do not know. The chances are they were

put on before we received those bills in our office at

all. Ever}i;hing

—

Q. (Interrupting.) That is only a conjecture on

your part.

A. Well, I can soon find out whether they were or

not.

Q. I have here a bill of June 14 of J. R. Mason to

Frank Waterhouse & Company, steamer '

' Glaronne,
'

'

Western Policy No. 2672, $75,000; Western Policy

2672 (the same number) $37,500. Was that insur-

ance for the "Garonne"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that in addition to the insurance which

was negotiated through your office?

A. To the best of my recollection this insurance

was taken out wh6n the other expired ; the other was

the Harbor Risk, and this was the Sea Risk.

Q. Well, here is another bill of July 23d, 1904,

dating from June 1st, to premimn on maritime policy

2,000 pounds, 9,500 pounds and 1,000 pounds, total

12,500 pounds—does that mean pounds sterling?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That also was insurance on the "Garonne"?
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A. Yes, sir. All that insurance was taken out on

the "Garonne" under the instructions and at the in-

stance of the North Alaska Steamship Company.

Q. It was partly to protect 3^ou for your interest

in the ship, wasn't itf

A. It was partly to protect them against the debt

that they owed us.

Q. You had an interest in the insurance to the

extent of what was due on the ship?

A. Certainly.

Q. I hand you a bill of M. Seller & Company,

dated June 25th on exhibit No. 9, for $387.50 for

glassware and articles of that kind, and I will ask

you whether you know whether that went on the

steamer ''Garonne"? A. I presume it did,

Q. But you do not know? A. No.

Q. Whose O K has that Seller bill got on it?

A. It does not seem to have anybody's.

Q. There is a bill of July 26th, 1904, from E. E.

Caine, for commission on sale of tickets, $17,845,

5% $892.25 ; do you know anything about that (show-

ing) ?

A. Those were the tickets—that represented com-

mission of 5% on tickets sold by E. E. Caine, under

agreement with Mr. Ferguson, the general traffic

manager of the North Alaska Steamship Company.
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Q. You do not know what disposition Caine made

of the $17,845. A. Yes.

Q. What did he do with it ?

A. He remitted it to us—accounted for it to

Frank Waterhouse & Company.

Q. And you credited it to the North Alaska

Steamship Company? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Why didn 't he take his commission out before

he remitted itf

A. I do not remember, sometimes it is done that

way.

Q. Is it not customary

—

A. No. I forget what the reason was. Some-

times it is and sometimes it is not.

Q. I have got here a bill of O. A. Johansen, mas-

ter of the ship, dated August 1st, and he claims from

July 1st to the 9th inclusive, nine days, at $250 a

month, $75; July 10th to the 15tli inclusive, seven

days, at $125 a month, $29.17; sixteen days' board at

$1.50, $24, making a total of $128.17. Do you know

anything about that ?

A. Yes, I know all about it.

Q. Was he the master of the ship?

A. Yes ; he was the master of the ship and he was

paid up according to his contract with the North

Alaska Steamship Company made by Mr. Ferguson

;
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aaaxi that payment was made by myself, on my order,

on the strength of his contract with that company.

Q. But he did not work for the North Alaska

Steamship Company after the 12th of July, did he?

A. Yes, I understood he was by the boat up to

the time he was paid off.

Q. But the boat did not belong to the North

Alaska Steamship Company after the 12th of July.

A. He was hired by the North Alaska Steamship

Company, and remained in the employ of the North

Alaska Steamship Company.

Q, Then the North Alaska Steamship Company

provided Mr. Johansen to stand by the boat at the

time the boat did not belong to them.

A. Let me see the dates (examining document).

This receipt is "Received from the Merchants' &

Miners' Steamship Company $128 in settlement of

services as master of the steamer 'Garonne.' "

Q. It is part of the $30,000 which you claim that

the North Alaska Steamship Company was owing

to you. A. It owed us $32,000.

Q. No, it didn't—it shows a balance of $1,437.51,

a credit balance. Now, do I understand you that

any of this thirty or $32,000 which, when you were

in New York, you were claiming w^as owing to you by

the North Alaska Steamship Company—that any of
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that is for bills or services or anything else rendered

to the steamer "Garonne" after she became the

property of the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company? A. No, sir.

Q. Then how do you explain Johansen's bill?

A. Because there are other items paid, which

would go to make up more than $30,000, and more

than $34,000, which are not included in that state-

ment at all.

Mr. BOGLE.—It is only four days over the

twelve days in that bill.

Q. (Mr. KING.) There is the bill of Lewis,

Foard, Anderson & Company, dated May 25th, and

it was paid on August 5th,
'

' Steamer ' Garonne ' and

owners, $161.50"; do you know anything about that,

Mr. Waterhonse?

A. I know that the bill is rendered for blocking

furnished the "Garonne" which is receipted for by

the chief officer.

Q. I hand you the Pacific Coast Coal bills ap-

pearing in exhibit No. 9, under date of August 4th,

making a total of $4,271.45; do you know anything

about that? A. No.

Q. Or did you know anything about it before it

was paid? A. I knew it before it was paid.

Q. Was it sanctioned by you?
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A. The payment of it?

Q. No, sir, the incurring of it—did you know that

that amount of coal went on the ''Garonne"?

A. I don't know.

Q. That bill is not O K-ed by anybody ?

A. Well, the bunker receipts will be; that bill

would not be O K-ed probably.

Q. There is no bunker receipt here—now, I hand

you a number of bills and statements of the Seattle

Hardware Company against the steamer '

' Garonne, '

'

aggregating $1,788.83, and I will ask you whether you

know anything of them.

A. I know that it was for goods and materials

furnished the steamer "Garonne," and the bills are

all approved by the chief engineer of the steamer and

the master of the steamer.

Q. Who was the chief engineer of the steamer?

A. P. L. Plaskett.

Q. Who is John Gorgensen?

A. John Gorgensen is our port captain at the

present time.

Q. What relation does he bear to the "Garonne,"

if any?

A, He was employed by the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company to superintend the work that was be-

ing done on her at that time, loading cargo and look-

ing after her, acting as marine superintendent.
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Q. I find here a bill of the Seattle Hardware

Company of the 7th of May, 1904, a total of $238.13,

and I will ask yon who that is O K-ed by.

A. Well, I don't know; in all probability it ap-

pears in some other statement. That page is K-ed

by nobody. That is not all unusual, because it prob-

ably appeared in some other statement where it is

O K-ed.

Q. Well, I only asked you about this, because you

claim to have so little knowledge of those bills—and

to find out whether you paid bills which you knew

nothing at all about.

A. Mr. King, I have a large establishment up

there, and I do not look after the details of all this

work. I do not pay those bills personally or look

after those things.

Q. That may be, but you have had every oppor-

tunity here to bring anybody about your establish-

ment who does.

A. I have done everything you asked me.

Mr. KING.—And we have done everything we

could to get the information.

The WITNESS.—I beg your pardon.

Mr. BOGLE.—I want the record to show that

there was no call for anybody except Mr. Water-
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house personally. I snggested to Mr. King to bring

the booldieeper and cashier down here, and we will

offer now that he can have here anybody in the es-

tablishment that he desires.

Mr. KING.—I accept the offer. At the last hear-

ing Mr. Bogle told me that he would have the cashier

down here; that he knew more about the bills than

Mr. Waterhouse.

Mn BOGLE.—And you told me that you wanted

to ask Mr. Waterhouse some questions, and that is

the reason that I brought him.

Mr. KING.—That need not have prevented you

from bringing the cashier.

Mr. BOGLE.—What is the use of his sitting here

while you are examining Mr. Waterhouse? All I

want is to have this record appear that we have of-

fered and you can have the cashier or bookkeeper or

anybody you want here with reasonable notice so that

he can arrange his business.

Q. (Mr. KING.) You do not know anything

about that any more than you did of the others

(showing) % A. No, sir.

Q. I mean by that that you do not know anything

more about the bills of this Standard Furniture

Company.
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A. No, sir, except that it is O K-ed by the steward

before it was paid.

Q. Nor the bill of Schwabacher Bros. Company

(showing) ?

A. Those are bills for supplies furnished the

steamer "Garonne" and paid by us after they were

properly O K-ed by the suj)erintendent and steward.

Q. What is the nature of those supplies?

A. Food supplies.

Q. Here is a bill of O. A. Johansen from July 17,

to August 2d, sixteen days at $125 per month, $66.67

;

sixteen daj^s' board, $1.50 per day, $24, making

$90.67, which you have included in your statement

as per Complainant's Exliibit No. 9. At the time

that that bill was incurred the "Garonne" was not

the property of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, was she? A. What dates again?

Q. July 17th to August 2d, 1904.

A. July 17th to August 2d ?

Q. Yes. During those dates the "Garonne" was

not the property of the North Alaska Steamship

Company.

A. No, sir. That bill has evidently got in there

by mistake. It does not show it was paid by the

North Alaska Steamship Company, but by the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Company.
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Mr. KING.—We move to strike that out as not re-

sponsive to the question.

Mr. BOGLE.—He has the right to make an ex-

planation if he wants to.

Q. (Mr. KING.) The last claim that I have

here is P. B. McLeod. for $300; can you explain any-

thing as to that (showing) ?

A. Yes. This amount of $300 was paid to P. B.

McLeod in settlement of his account against the

North Alaska Steamship Company of $786.34 for

services performed as agent for the North Alaska

Steamship Company at Nome, for lightering ser-

vices for them and for certain advance charges made

by Mr. McLeod on account of the North Alaska

Steamship Company, which the officers of that com-

pany failed to pay him for.

Q. Had you any dispute with McLeod about that

matter %

A. We tried to get out of paying it, and we finally

settled it, on the advice of our counsel.

Q. Did you settle it with the knowledge and con-

sent of the North Alaska Steamship Company, or

any of its officers or agents?

A. We settled it with the knowledge of the agents

and the officers of the Nortli Alaska Steamship Com-
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pany. Captain Ferguson was talked to about it,

and Mr. Hastings, also.

Q. What officer was Captain Ferguson?

A. He was the manager here, and Mr. Hastings

was the assistant manager, and his title was "Gen-

eral Traffic Manager. '

'

Q. How long was Captain Ferguson manager?

A. He was manager from the date the North

Alaska Steamship Company bought the steamer un-

til the steamer was turned back to Frank Water-

house & Company ?

Q. And then he ceased to be manager ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Yet this bill was paid on January 31st, 1905.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was long after the steamer was turned

back ? A. Certainly.

Q. Was he manager then ?

A. No, sir. We got all the information from

him regarding it.

Q. Then there was really no officer of the North

Alaska Steamship Company here in Seattle when

that bill was paid.

A. Idon'tknow whether there was or not. There

was no officers of the North Alaska Steamship Com-
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pany at that time, I think, both Mr. Hastings and

Captain Ferguson were here at the time it was paid.

Q. But they were not officers of the steamship

company at that time?

A. The North Alaska Steamship Company was

not in existence, as far as I know at that time.

Q. AVhat knowledge of this bill had you when

you were in New York, on or about July 9th to the

12th, 1904? A. I did not have any.

Q. Then why was it included in the $32,000 wliich

you claim was due you?

A, As I told you, there are a lot of other bills in

addition to this included there that were included

—

or by which this $30,000 was made up.

Q. Wasn't that just a lump sum, and a guess?

A. No, it was not. We telegraphed to our treas-

urer here when we were in New York at this time,

about the 6th or 7th, or early in July, 1904, and asked

him what the amounts of the bills were that he had

received up to that time against the steamer ''Ga-

ronne," incurred by the North Alaska Steamship

Company. I have a copy of his telegram in which

he states either $30,000 or $32,000—thirty-two thou-

sand and some odd dollars.

Q. Have you got that telegram here?

A. I have got it up home, and I can bring it down

to you.



190 Frank Waterhonse & Co., Inc., vs.

(Testimony of Frank Waterhonse.)

Q. And to make np that $30,000 you put in all

those other bills'? A. To make up what?

Q. To make up the—to make good his telegram.

A. It is a lien against the ship and what were

we going to do with it.

Q. It is not demonstrated that it is any lien.

A. We were advised by counsel that it was a lien

against the ship, and we paid it on those grounds.

Q. If it was a lien on the ship, then it was a lien

against the ship when it was the property of the

Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company.

A. No; it was a lien against the ship when she

was the property of the North Alaska Steamship

Company.

Q. But ,vou took the steamer back in settlement

of all the debts, and you so testified, and you got

$37,000 ;
you had a settlement of all that, you testified

about that.

A. We didn't have a settlement at all—I don't

know what you mean.

Q. You testified so—you took it all back for

$37,000.

Mr. BOGLE.—His testimony was that he took the

ship back and undertook to pay the bills which were

liens against it, which, of course, he had to pay, and
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he raised money from Mr. King to pay it, and not

from the North Alaska Steamship Company.

Q. (Mr. KING.) You say you do not know

whether any of the money which you received, or

that Frank Waterhouse & Company received, from

freight or passenger money, was applied on the pay-

ment of the purchase price of the vessel.

A. I said I thought some of it was.

Q. Now, can you tell me what money you got from

New York that was not freight or passenger money,

on account of the purchase price of the vessel?

A. I do not remember, no.

Q. Have you any means of ascertaining'?

A. Certainly I have.

Q. Will you ascertain ?

A. I will be very glad to. I can give you all the

information on the matter you want.

Q. You did receive something like $35,000 from

the Occidental Securities Company, didn't you"?

A. I do not remember. I think we did, how-

ever; I think we received that amount from them,

or something like that.

Q. You also received, in the neighborhood of

$15,000 in cash from New York, didn't you?

Mr. BOGLE.—Do you mean in addition to the

$35,000?
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Mr. KING.—Yes, in addition to the $35,000.

A. I do not remember.

Q. Prior to the $35,000? A. No, sir.

Q. Eh ? A. No, sir.

Q. You did not?

A. No, sir, I think the first payment we received

in New York was the $1,000, and the next, I think,

if I recollect, was $24,000.

Q. It was not $14,000?

A. I do not remember, I will be very happy to

furnish you a statement showing exactly what we

received, when we received it, and from what

sources.

Q. Now, when could you furnish that statement

—now, I am asking you that for the reason that Mr.

Bogle tells me that 3^ou are going away and we desire

to close this case.

Mr. BOGLE.—If you will mxake out a list of just

what you want from the books we will furnish them

at any time you want it.

Mr, KING.—It is hard for me to tell what I want.

I am in a position here of examining the defendant

himself who is, of course, an adverse witness as far

as I am concerned, and I cannot have any consulta-

tion with hun beforehand, as I could with an ordin-

ary witness, and it is very hard for me to tell just

what I want.
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The WITNESS.—As far as I am concerned, you

can come and consult with me and I will show you

every voucher up there in the office—everything you

want.

Mr, KING.—I have asked for that. I want to

find out how much money was received from the

North Alaska Steamship Company from any source,

and what disposition was made of it.

Mr. BOGLE.—If that is what you want I will

have Mr. Townsend make ujj a full statem.ent show-

ing every item. Now, if there is anything else you

want, if you can foresee anything else, we would

be very glad to furnish it, and we will have Mr.

Townsend here for 3^ou to examine, if you want any

details as to any of the items.

Mr. KING.—I desire to be sworn.

GEORGE H. KING, appearing as a witness in

behalf of complainant, being first duly cautioned and

sworn, testifies as follows:

Mr. KING.—I sunply want to testify that I am

the attorney for the complainant in this suit; that

I have lived in Seattle some sixteen years. During

that time I know the "Post-Intelligencer" to be a

daily newspaper published daily in the city, and that

I personally took the extract, or copy, which I offer
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in evidence, and ask tliat it be marked as
'

' Complain-

ant 's Exhibit No. 10," from the Seattle "Post-In-

telligeneer, " rnnning from May 25th to June 2d,

1904.

(Document identified by the witness received in

evidence and marked "Complainant's Exhibit No.

10.")

(Testimony of witness closed.)

10 January, 1906, 10 :00 A. M.

Continuation of proceedings, pursuant to adjourn-

ment; all parties being present as heretofore.

Mr. KING.—I offer in evidence Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit "11," wdiich is admitted by the defendants to

be a correct copy of the telegram received by Mr.

Waterhouse in New York, concerning the indebted-

ness against the steamship "Garonne," as mentioned

in his testimony.

(The document is here received in evidence and

marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit 11.")

I offer in evidence Plaintiff's Exhibit No. "12"

also numbers "13," "14," "15," and "16," which

are sundry vouchers furnished me by the defend-

ants, and are parts of the items mentioned in Plain-

tiff's Exhibit "9." It is stipulated between counsel

that counsel for the defendants can withdraw any
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of the Master ; is that all right, Mr. Bogle ?

Mr, BOGLE.—Yes, that is satisfactory.

(The documents are here received in evidence and

marked respectively as indicated in the offer.)

Mr. KING.—I offer in evidence Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit "17," being a bill furnished me by Mr. Water-

house of the sendees of O. A. Johnson as master of

the steamship "Garonne."

(The document is here received in evidence and

marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit 17.")

I offer in evidence Plaintiff's Exhibit "18," being

sundry bills mentioned and described in Plaintiff's

Exhibit "9." The same stipulation as to with-

drawal relates to these as to the other things.

(The documents are here received in evidence and

marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit 18.")

I offer in evidence Plaintiff's Exhibit No. "19,"

being a statement of the receipts and disbursements

made by Frank Waterhouse & Co. on account of the

steamer "Garonne," from 3 February, 1904, until

the sale of the ship to the Merchants' and Miners'

Steamship Company, being all receipts and disburse-

ments not included in Plaintiff's Exhibit "9."

(The document is here received in evidence and

marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit 19.")
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JOHN JOBDISON, a witness produced in behalf

of the complainant, being first duly sworn, testified

as follows

:

Q. (By Mr. KING.) State your name.

. A. John Jordison.

Q. Where do you reside ? A. At Seattle.

Q. Plow long have you resided there?

A. Oft' and on about twenty years.

Q. What is your business?

A. Superintendent for Mr. Waterhouse, and

pilot.

Q. Are you now in the employ of Frank Water-

house & Co.? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do 3^ou know the steamship "Garonne"?

A. Yes, sir.

Q, And did when she was in these waters?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you employed by the Northern Alaska

Steamship Company during the spring and summer

of 1904? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In connection with the steamer '

' Garonne '

' ?

Q. I call your attention, Captain, to an item of

disbursements in Plaintiff's Exhibit "19" and of

date 7 March, 1904, "Labor and Material, February,

$982.13"; can you tell me what that is for?
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A. March 7th ; well, no ; not from here, not imless

I see the bills.

Q. Have you no general idea, captain, as to what

it was for?

A. Well, there was labor and material furnished

on that ship; there was sheathing laid on her deck

and a lot of rooms fixed up ; a lot of labor employed

on the ship, in the way of sailors, firemen, coal-

passers, different people in the steward's depart-

ment but whether that applies to this I can not tell.

Q. Is that your answer to the April 7th item,

"Labor and Material, Marcdi, $1,096.90?"

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And also to the item of May 5tli, "Labor and

Material, April, $1,076.90?"

A. Yes ; may be it is payrolls, for all I know.

Q. Who were employed in the ship at that time,

to the best of your recollection ?

A. Oh, I could not say.

Q. I mean how^ big a crew; I don't mean all their

names.

A. I think we had something like thirty men

aboard at that time.

Q. What were they doing?

A. Cleaning; the stewards' crowd was cleaning

the cabins, and the engineers' crowd was cleaning

the boilers and the engine-room, the bilges, and all
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that; and they had men on the deck, scraping and

painting.

Q. You had that number of men during Febru-

ary, March, and April, 1904 ?

A. To tlie best of my knowledge, that is what it

applies to.

Q. Take now the item of 31 May ;
"W. H. Morris,

account painting, $622.10"; how about that?

A. Yes, sir ; that was painting in the cabins.

Q. Eight under it here; "Victoria Drj?- Docking

account, $1,979.31"; do you know what that was?

A. Docking the ship and scraping and painting

her, from the water-line down.

Q. Where ?

A. In Esquimalt drydock.

Q. Was anything else done to her at that time,

except scraping, painting, and cleaning her?

A. I think some bolts put in the rudders and

strainers for the suction pipes.

Q. In fact, a general overhauling of the under-

water body of the ship? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now right below that—here—"Funds ad-

vanced Captain Jordison for pa^anent laborers,

$4,856.00." A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, what do you know about that?

A. Well, I would not say as to what it is, unless

I saw the vouchers for it.
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Q. You can not say what it is from memory?

A. No, sir, I cannot; I eould not—the items of

it.

Q. Have you any ideas as to what time that ex-

penditure was made; over what times—how long

—

these wages extend?

A. No, I could not say.

Q. I call your attention to this item of 9 June

—

here on the next page—"S. S. 'Garonne,' repairs and

port expenses, C. M. Shaw & Co., on account,

$800.00."

A. That was the plumber.

Q. That was for plumbing and repairs on the

ship ?

A. Plumbing and repairs on the ship
;
yes, sir.

Q. On 18 June; "S. S. 'Garonne,' repairs and

port expenses, King and Winge on account,

$1,000.00"; what was that?

A. King & Winge sheathed the deck and fixed

up a lot of staterooms—and other repair work;

boats, and one thing and another.

Q. Boats; do you mean life-boats?

A. Yes, sir; and fixed up a lot of new state-

rooms, tore out the bathrooms, and one thing and

another.
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Q. On the 21st: "S. S. 'Garonne,' repairs and

port expenses, Northwestern Improvement Co.,

$425.49"; what do you know about that?

A. Could not swear about that unless I saw the

vouchers.

Q. What do you think it was for, or do you know

what it was for ?

A. Payrolls, probably, or materials.

Q. What did the Northwestern Improvement

Company do ; that is what I want to get at.

A. Was not that the name of the concern at that

time?

Mr. BOGLE.—What concern?

A. The Northwestern Improvement Company,

was not it ?

Mr. BOGLE.—I do not know.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Then you do not know what

that Northwestern Improvement Company item was

for?

A. No, I could not very well say, unless I saw

the vouchers.

Q. Now, this item of 15 July: "C. M. Shaw &

Company, $1295.78"; what was that?

A. Well, he is a plumber and pipe-fitter.

Q. That was plumbing and pipe-fitting done on

the ship? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. When did you take charge of the ship for the

Northern Alaska Steamship Company?

A. I eoukl not remember the date now.

Q. Well, what month?

A. I think it was in May; somewhere about then.

Q. Was not it in February?

A. Well, I could not call it to mind now; I have

been with her so many years, I could not tell just

what month it was, because I did not pay any par-

ticular attention to who the company was she was

operated under ; I was working for Mr. Waterhouse.

Q. You were not working, then, for the Northern

Alaska Steamship Company?

A. Working just the same as I was right along.

Q. Were you on the ship in February, 1904?

A. Yes, on her off and on.

Q. Can you tell me what was done to the ship

between February, 1904, and the time she sailed

for Alaska on her first trip?

A. Oh, general overhauling, repairs, cleaning.

Q. Tell us about the repairs.

A. There were new staterooms put in her; the

deck was sheathed; and cleaning and painting was

done on her.

Q. Were there any repairs to the engines or ma-

chinery ?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the nature of them?

A. I could not describe that all; because Mr.

Preseot had charge of that.

Q. About how long were they working on them?

A. He had men there two or three months, clean-

ing.

Q. There were pretty thorough repairs made?

A. Yes, she was put in shape to go to sea.

Q. When she left here on June 22d ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what the aggregate cost of those

repairs was ? A. I could not call it to mind now.

Q. Would you say it amounted to $15,000.00 to do

that work?

A. I think they would cost more than that; pay-

rolls, and bills, and one thing and another.

Mr. KING.—That is all.

Mr. BOGLE.—That is all.

(Testimony of witness closed.)

(Whereupon it is stipulated between counsel, in

open court, that the signature of the witness to the

foregoing deposition may be waived, and that said

deposition shall be of the same force and effect as if

signed by said witness.)
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Mr. KING.—We offer in evidence Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit "20," which was furnished by the defendants

and is admitted to be a correct statement of the

amount of insurance on the steamer "Garonne,"

from 1 July, 1904, to 8 April, 1905.

(The document is here received in evidence and

marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit 20.")

We offer in evidence Plaintiff's Exhibit No.

"21," furnished me by the defendants, and admitted

to be a correct copy of an agreement entered into on

9 July, 1904, between W. F. King of New York City

and Frank Waterhouse of Seattle.

(The document is here received in evidence and

marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit 21.")

It is admitted on both sides that the Merchants'

and Miners' Steamship Company was incorporated

in the State of New York on 12 July, 1904, with a

capital stock of $100,000.00.

Mr. BOGLE.—Yes.

Mr. KING.—1 offer in evidence Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit "22," being a certified copy of the bill of sale

of the steamer '

' Garonne, '

' from Frank Waterhouse

and Company, incorporated, to the Merchants' and

Miners' Steamship Company of New York, and the

certificate of the customs-house at New York as to

the certified copy.
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(The document is received in evidence and marked

"Plaintiff's Exhibit 22.")

I offer in evidence Plaintiff's Exhibit "23," being

a certified copy of the bill of sale of the steamship

"Garonne" from the Merchants' and Miners' Steam-

ship Company of New York to the White Star Steam-

ship Company of Seattle; together with the certi-

ficate on the back.

(The docmnent is here received in evidence and

marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit 23.")

Plaintiff rests,

Tuesday, April 17th, 1906, 2 P. M.

Continuation of proceedings pursuant to agree-

ment.

FRANK WATERHOUSE, defendant, produced

as a witness in behalf of defendants, being first duly

cautioned and sworn, testifies as follows:

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. Waterhouse, you are

the defendant in this case, are youl

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are the president of Frank Waterhouse

& Company, Incorporated, are you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the principal stockholder in that com-

pany? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In January and February, 1904, who was the

owner of the steamship "Garonne"?
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A. Frank Waterhouse & Company.

Q. How long had your company owned that

steamer? A. Six years.

Q. Was the
'

' Garonne '

' an American steamer ?

A. No; a British vessel.

Q. When was she built ? A. About 1870.

Q. She had an iron hull? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was her dead-weight carrying capacity

at that time ? A. Cargo ?

Q. Cargo, yes.

A. Well, in the trade in which she was engaged,

about from 1000 to 1200 tons.

Q. Did you negotiate a sale, or contract for a sale

of that vessel in January or February, 1904, if so

to whom?

A. Yes, sir; I negotiated a sale to the North

Alaska Steamship Company.

Q. Who was acting for the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company in these negotiations?

A. Captain Ferguson.

Q. W. H. Ferguson? A. W. H. Ferguson.

Q. At that time did you know for whom Captain

Ferguson was acting ?

A. When the negotiations commenced, no, I did

not know anything about it.

Q. Captain Ferguson lived in Seattle at that

time, did he ? A. Yes, sir, as far as I know.
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Q, I hand you a copy of a telegram dated Febru-

ary 3, 1904, purporting to have been sent by you

to W. H. Ferguson, Fifth Avenue Hotel, New York,

and a copy of a letter purporting to have been writ-

ten by you to Captain Ferguson on January 26th,

1904, and I will ask you to look at those papers and

state whether they are copies of the letter and the

telegram embodying the terms of the contract which

you made with Captain Ferguson at that time.

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer these in evidence as Ex-

hibits "A" and "B."

Mr. KING.—We object to the introduction of the

documents in evidence as irrelevant, immaterial and

incompetent, and for the reason that they have not

been conu'ected in any way with General Dodge, or

any interest of General Dodge's.

Mr. BOGLE.—I will ask you whether you object

to their being coijies instead of the originals'?

Mr. KING.—No. I have got the original tele-

gram here, and if you say that you have got that

sort of a letter, that is sufficient, I do not want any

technical objections.

I also object to them on the ground that these mat-

ters were all included in the accounting between Mr.
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Waterhouse, or Frank Waterhouse & Company and

Mr. Pusey, representing General Dodge at or about

June 2d, 1905.

(Documents received in evidence and marked re-

spectively "Defendants' Exhibits 'A' and 'B,' ")

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) How much cash was paid

to you at the time by Captain Ferguson on this pur-

chase ?

A. I think it was $1,000; my recollection is very

indistinct about it.

Q. Did Captain Ferguson, or the party for whom

he was acting, at any time furnish you with a corpo-

ration bond guaranteeing the vessel against any in-

debtedness incurred during the time the vessel was in

their hands? A. No, sir.

Q. Did he, or the parties for whom he was act-

ing, ever execute notes (and secured by a mortgage

upon the vessel, and assignment of the marine in-

surance thereon, and such other security as would be

satisfactoiy to you, to secure the deferred payments ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Who is the auditor and cashier of Frank

Waterho'ise & Company?

A. James B. Townsend.

Q. "VMien pajnuents were made to that company

by the >'orth Alaska Steamship Company, or any-
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one on its behalf, through whose hands did those

payments pass? A. James B. Townsend's.

Q. Can you, of your own personal knowledge,

state what paA^ments were made upon the purchase

of this steamer?

A. No, sir; I cannot without referring to the

books of the company.

Q. The books of the company show correctly all

the payments and all the cash received from that

company for any purpose whatever, so far as you

know, do they? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will ask you to state what efforts, if any,

were made by you to induce the North Alaska

Steamship Company or Capain Ferguson to carry

out the terms of the contract of sale as shown and

embodied in your telegram of February 3, marked

exhibit "A" in your deposition?

Mr. KING.—I make the same objection to that as

I have heretofore interposed.

A. Every possible effort was made by me to get

them to carry out their bargain, both by letter and

by wire and by personal interview with them. Time

and time again I extended the dates of payment at

their urgent request, and extended every considera-

tion I could to them in order to enable them to com-

plete their purchase.
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•Q. Did the North Alaska Steamship Com^paiiy,

through its representatives, at any time obtain pos-

session of the steamer "Garonne" during the spring

and summer of 1904, and, if so, for what purpose and

under what conditions?

Mr. KING.—I object to that as irrelevant, imma-

terial, incompetent, and calling for a conclusion from

the witness.

A. I do not quite understand that question, Mr.

Bogle.

(Question repeated to the witness.)

A. The title to the steamer was neA^er transferred

to them. They were permitted, however, to put their

own crew in the steamer and to make one round voy-

age from Seattle to Cape Nome, in June, 1904, on

their own account, and the vessel was also in their

charge for the purpose of m.aking little changes that

they desired to make on her; repairs and better-

ments; from about the middle of March until she

sailed about the 2d of June.

Q. I hand 3^ou a package of papers, eighty-six

in number, purporting to be correspondence by mail

and telegram between yourself and the officers of

the North Alaska Steamship Company, and I will

ask you if those are telegrams and letters that passed

between you and that company during the period as
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shown by the dates of this correspondence? (Show-

ing documents to witness.)

A. This correspondence consists of copies of let-

ters and copies of telegrams that passed between the

officers of the Occidental Securities Company, the

North Alaska Steamship Company, the Chase Na-

tional Bank of New York; all having reference to

the sale of the "Garonne" by me to the North Alaska

Steamship Company.

Mr. BOGLE.—I now offer these letters and tele-

grams in evidence.

Mr. KING.—We object to these as irrelevant, im-

material and incompetent, and there is no showing

made that General Dodge ever had any knowledge

or notice of them. I do not ol)ject to them as being

copies.

(The bundle of correspondence identified by the

witness is here received in evidence and marked *

' De-

fendants ' Exhibits 'C to '1-13,'" inclusive.)

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. Waterhouse, are you ac-

quainted with the plaintiff, Grenville M. Dodge ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever meet him ? A. No, sir.

Q. A¥hen was the first time that you ever heard

of Mr. Dodge?
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A. I think either the very hist of April or the first

of May, 1904.

Q. I call your attention to a telegram to you

from C. B. Smith, dated at New York May 13, 1904,

reading as follows: *'To insure your protection, exe-

cuted contract to-day, General Grenville M. Dodge.

Nature contract itself protects you. Consult Dunn

& Bradstreet for Dodge's rating. Mailing particu-

lars. Have paid 5,000 more than terms of sale.

Hoped to assist you and save discount, still expect

to do so if necessary. Satisfactory securities for

deferred payments. Some money to-morrow," and

which is marked exhibit "T-I," and I will ask you

if the receij^t of that telegram was the first time that

you ever heard of the complainant Grenville M.

Dodge? A. Yes, sir,

Q. What, if any, action did you take upon the re-

ceipt of this telegram in view to ascertaining who

General Dodge was and what was the nature of the

contract that Mr. Smith had made with him for your

protection ?

A. I telegraphed my bankers in New York, the

Chase National Bank, asking who General Dodge

was, and what his financial standing was.

Q. I call your attention to a telegram from you

to the Chase National Bank, under date of May 23,
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1904, being one of the exhibits filed in this case with

your deposition and I will ask you whether that is

the telegram to which you refer (showing) ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I call your attention to a letter from the Chase

National Bank, under date of May 24, 1904, being

one of the exhilnts filed with your deposition, and I

will ask you whether that is the response that you

received to that telegram (showing).

A. It is, yes, sir.

Q. I call your attention to a letter from the North

Alaska Steamship Company, dated New York, May

17, 1904, being one of the exhibits filed with your

deposition, and I will ask you if that letter was re-

ceived by you in due course of mail soon after that

date (showing) 1 A. It was.

Q. Did you at any time ever ascertain, further

than is shown by the coimnunications referred to,

the nature of the contract that the North Alaska

Steamship Company had made with General Dodge

for your security *?

A. I never could. I did not know what it was

and I never could find out, although I repeatedly

tried to.

Q. Did General Dodge, or the North Alaska

Steamship Company, ever turn over to you any con-
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tract or obligation of General Dodge, securing the

deferred pa}anents to you ? A. No, sir.

Q. I call your attention to a copy of a telegram

purporting to have been sent by you to Charles B.

Smith, the Occidental Securities Company, 42 Broad-

way, New York City, on May 25, 1904, being one of

the exhibits filed with your deposition. And I will

ask you if that is a correct copy of the telegram

(showing). A. That is a correct copy.

Q. Explain what was the occasion for sending

that telegram.

Mr. KING.—I make the same objection to all this,

that is, on account of the lack of knowledge of Gen-

eral Dodge, and not being brought home to him,

A. Our inability, after exerting every effort, to

get the North Alaska Steamship Company to pay

for this steamer according to their agreement, to sat-

isfactorily secure the deferred payments; the date

the telegram was sent was nearing the date at which

the steamer should sail for Alaska, and I was un-

willing to allow the steamer to j)i'oceed to sea in

charge of the officers of the North Alaska Steamship

Company until they had carried out their contract

of purchase, at least enough to partly secui'e us for

the amount then due.
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Q. T call your attentiou to a telegram from J.

B. Leake from New York, under date May 25, 1904,

addressed to you, and I will ask you whether that is

the telegram received by you in reply to the one just

referred to (showing). A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who was J. B. Leake?
,

A. He was the secretary of the Occidental Securi-

ties Company and of the North Alaska Steamship

Company, residing in New York.

Q. I call your attention to a telegram from you to

the Occidental Securities Company, No. 42 Broad-

way, New York, under date May 26, 1904, and I

will ask you whether that is a correct copy of a tele-

gram sent by you on that date (showing).

A. Yes, sir, it is.

Q. Who were the Occidental Securities Com-

pany*?

A. They were the owners of the North Alaska

Steamship Company.

. Q. I call your attention to a telegram from New
York under date of May 26th to you from J. B.

Leake, and I will ask you whether that is the answer

which you received to that wire (showing).

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I call your attentiou to a telegram from

Charles B. Smith dated New York, May 25th, ad-
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dressed to W. H. Bogle, Seattle, which reads as fol-

lows: "Wired Waterhouse in full regarding tele-

grams of day" and which is marked exhibit "J-I";

will you please explain to what that refers?

Mr. KING.—I desire to interpose the same objec-

tion.

A. That telegram was sent for the reason that I

had instructed Mr. Bogle, our attorney, to wire those

people—to wire Mr. Charles B. Smith, the president

of the Occidental Securities Company and North

Alaska Steamship Company, that unless the terms

of sale were satisfactorily completed immediately

to take steps—or that steps would be taken to can-

cel the contract of purchase, and this telegram in

question was sent to Mr. Bogle in answer to the one

he sent notifying them to that effect.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) When was the first time that

you ever met Charles B. Smith?

A. Either the 30th or the 31st day of May, 1904.

Q. Where did you meet him?

A. In my office in the Burke Building, Seattle.

Q. Was that just prior to the sailing of the

"Garonne" for Nome?

A. Two days before she sailed.

Q. I call your attention to a copy of a telegram

purporting to have been sent by Charles B. Smith
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from Seattle on May 31st, 1904 to the Occidental

Securities Company, New York, being one of the

exhibits filed with your deposition, and I will ask

you whether that was sent by Mr. Smith from your

office (showing) ? A. Yes, sir,

Q. What was the situation on that date; how

much did the North Alaska Steamship Company owe

to you on the purchase price of the vessel, and ap-

proximately how much did they owe on supplies and

material and labor that were liens on the "Ga-

ronne'"? A. On that date?

Q. Yes—May 31st, 1904.

A. I think they owed about $50,000 on the pur-

chase price, and between $30,000 and $35,000 on the

payment for supplies, repairs and bettennents.

Q. You are giving those figures from memory,

are you"? A. Entirely.

Mr. KING.—Then I move to strike it out as not

the best evidence.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Did you ever meet Mr.

Pusey, a representative of the complainant G. M.

Dodge in connection with these matters?

A. Yes, sir, I met him in my office in Seattle on

the 30th and 31st day of May, 1904, for the first time.

Q. How long was that before the "Garonne"

sailed on her voyage to Nome"?
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A. Two or three days.

Q. Was Charles B. Smith, the president of the

North Alaska Steamship Company, present"?

A. Part of the time, yes, sir.

Q. State what transpired between Mr. Pusey

and yourself.

A. Mr. Pusey called on me and stated that he was

the son-in-law of General Dodge of New York, and

that he had come to Seattle for the purpose of se-

curing, if possible, the repayment of a loan of $10,-

000 that General Dodge had made to Charles B.

Smith. He said that Charles B. Smith had promised

General Dodge that this loan should be repaid out

of the first freight earned by the steamer "Garonne,"

and wanted to know if we would see that the pay-

ment was made in accordance with this alleged agree-

ment.

I told Mr. Pusey that, inasmuch as there was a

large amount of money still owing to us on the pur-

chase price of the vessel and an almost equally large

amount of money owing by the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company for repairs and betterments that they

had placed on the "Garonne," and for supplies

they had purchased for her which would constitute

a lien against that steamer if not paid, that I should

insist on all the money the steamer earned being
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paid to us to apply first on the bills which had been

contracted by the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany on account of the steamer, and afterwards on

account of the purchase price, and that I would not

recognize any agreement made between General

Dodge and Charles B. Smith. Mr. Pusey then

dropped, or discontinued his attempt to pursuade

me to recognize the above mentioned agreement, and

asked my cooperation in helping him to obtain the

payment of or satisfactory security for the loan of

General Dodge to Mr. Smith. Mr, Smith, who was

in Seattle at the time, was called in and consulted

regarding it, and he informed me that the loan in

question was a private matter between himself and

General Dodge; that it was not an obligation of

either the Occidental Securities Company or the

North Alaska Steamship Company. He expressed

a desire, however, to repay the money to General

Dodge as quickly as he could, and in the meantime

to furnish security for it, if possible. Mr. Smith

then agreed with Mr. Pusey that the "collect"

freight money which would be due the North Al-

aska Steamship Company upon the correct delivery

at Cape Nome of the "Garonne's" cargo destined

for that port, should be paid over, or should be held

for the account of General Dodge, and not used for

any other purpose. He agreed to instruct his agent
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at Cape Nome to collect this money, which, if my

memory serves me, amounted to some six or seven

thousand dollars, and to remit it to the Seattle Na-

tional Bank for account of General Dodge, and to

be applied on the payment of the above-mentioned

loan; and I agreed as soon as the money was re-

ceived by the Seattle National Bank to cause it to be

forwarded to New York to General Dodge, or to

notify him of its receipt in Seattle—I forget just

wliich. Furthermore Mr. Smith agreed, on behalf

of the North Alaska Steamship Company, to execute

a mortgage to Frank Waterhouse & Company on

the "Garonne" to secure it against the balance of

the purchase price, and to promptly cause to be re-

mitted from New York sufficient sums to pay the

bills that had been contracted by and were then

owing by the North Alaska Steamship Company on

"Garonne's" account. He also agreed to execute

a second mortgage on the steamer in favor of general

Dodge, to further secure the repayment of the

$10,000 debt owing by Charles B. Smith to General

Dodge.

I cannot remember now whether there were two

mortgages and whether there were two mortgages

executed by Mr. Smith, or whether there was only

one mortgage with an agreement between Mr. Pusey

and myself that the Frank Waterhouse Company
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claims in the mortgage were prior claims to those

of General Dodge and were to be first paid, but it

was one or the other. Now, the mortgage was

drawn; it was signed—the mortgage or mortgages

—

it, or they, were signed by Charles B. Smith as pres-

ident of the North Alaska Steamship Company, and

handed to me to be forwarded to New York for the

signature of the secretary of that company, with the

assurance on Mr. Smith's part that the execution

would be completed without any delay as soon as

the document reached New York City. I sent the

mortgage or mortgages, to the Chase National Bank

in New York together with a bill of sale of the steam-

ship "Garonne," and instructed the bank to notify

Mr. J. B. Leake, the secretary of the North Al-

aska Steamship Company, who was a resident of

New York, that the bill of sale and the mortgages

were there; the latter for execution, and the former

to be delivered to him as soon as the mortgages were

properly executed. In due course of mail, or by

wire, I do not now recollect which, the Chase Na-

tional Bank advised me that Mr. Leake declined to

execute the mortgage, on the ground that his direc-

tors refused to complete the arrangements made be-

tween Charles B. Smith, Frank Pusey and myself.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) I call your attention to the

copy of a letter to the Chase National Bank New
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York City, under date June 3d, 1904, being one of

the exhibits heretofore filed with your deposition,

and I will ask you whether that is a copy of the let-

ter referred to, in which you inclosed this mortgage

(showing). A. Yes, sir.

Q. I note by this letter that you state you en-

close bill of sale of the steamship "Garonne" from

Frank Waterhouse & Company, Incorporated, to the

North Alaska Steamship Company, also a mortgage

on the steamer from the North Alaska Steamship

Company to Frank Waterhouse & Company. Did

you enclose a bill of sale properly signed by Frank

Waterhouse & Company, Incorporated, to be de-

livered upon the execution of the mortgage?

A. Yes.

Q. I call your attention to a copy of a letter writ-

ten to J. B. Leake, 42 Broadway, New York City,

under date June 3d, 1904 and I will ask you whether

that is a correct copy of the letter sent by you to him

on that date (showing). A. Yes, sir.

Q. I call your attention to a copy of a letter sent

to the Occidental Securities Company, 42 Broadway,

New York, under date June 3d, 1904, and I will ask

you whether that is a copy of a letter written by you

and mailed to them on that date (showing).

A. It is.
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Q. What moneys, if any, were received by you

subsequent to that date from New York for the pay-

ment of the bills that were liens against the "Ga-

ronne"? A. None.

Q. What remittances, if any, were ever received

by you from Nome, Alaska, from the freight col-

lected there under the arrangement between Smith

and Pusey? A. None.

Q. There is, attached to the bill of complaint in

this case, a contract between yourself and Mr.

Pusey, by which it was agreed that you are to act as

trustee for General Dodge in reference to these mat-

ters. Explain how that contract came to be ex-

ecuted.

A. Mr. Pusey wanted to have somebody here on

the ground to help protect the interests of General

Dodge in carrying out the agreement which I men-

tioned above, which was made between Charles B.

Smith and himself, and he asked me, solely as a mat-

ter of accommodation, if I would act in the capacity

of attending to General Dodge's interests in secur

ing the completion of this agreement, if possible,

and the proper carrying out of it. As a matter of

accommodation purely, I agreed to act in that capac-

ity, and had it stated in the memorandum of agree-

ment that was drawn up between himself and my-
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self that I did so act purely as a matter of accom-

modation to General Dodge and himself.

Q. Did Mr. Piisey have any acquaintances in

Seattle at that time?

A. Not one that I know of.

Q. Did the North Alaska Steamship Company

ever complete the execution of the mortgage that

was forwarded to the Chase National Bank?

A. No, sir; they declined to.

Q. I call your attention to a telegram sent by

you to J. B. Leake, 42 Broadway, New York, under

date of June 10, 1904, reading as follows, and which

is marked exhibit "U": ''Have you executed mort-

gage and remitted money pay expense bills here?

These matters pressing; require immediate atten-

tion. Answer." Did you send that telegram on

that date? A. I did.

Q. I call your attention to a telegram from your-

self to W. H. Rowe, 42 Broadway, New York, under

date June 14, 1904, marked exhibit "N," and which

reads as follows: "Will not let conditions remain as

at present. Insist debts against 'Garonne' now due

be paid immediately and mortgage be executed im-

mediately. Will expect prompt reply stating defin-

itely what you intend to do." Did you send that

telegram? A. I did.

Q. Who was W. H. Rowe?
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A, He was the vice-president of the Occidental

Securities Company, and the vice-president of the

North Alaska Steamship Company, and was at that

time in New York.

Q. I call your attention to a telegram addressed

to you and sent by J. B. Leake from New York un-

der date June 11, 1904, being one of the exhibits

filed with your deposition, and I will ask you

whether you received that telegram on that date

(showing). A. I did.

Q. I call your attention to a telegram addressed

to you signed W. H. Rowe from New York, under

date June 11th, being one of the exhibits attached

to your deposition and I will ask jou whether you

received that on that date (showing).

A. I did.

Q. I call your attention to a telegram addressed

to Frank Waterhouse & Company, signed W. H.

Rowe from New York under date June 14, being

one of the exhibits attached to your deposition, and

I will ask you whether you received that telegram on

that date"? A. I did.

Q. Did the Mr, Mead referred to in that tele-

gram, arrive in Seattle soon afterwards?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Referring now to the time of the arrangement

with Mr. Pusey state whether or not he was ad-
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vised by Mr. Smith and yourself of the amount of

the indebtedness due your company for the purchase

price of the ship, and of the amount of the outstand-

ing bills against the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany so far as you knew of their existence at that

time?

A. He was fully ad^dsed, yes, sir.

Q. What was done when Mr. Mead arrived in

Seattle?

A. Mr. Mead inquired into and fully ascertained

the condition of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany's indebtedness to Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany, and to many and various creditors here on ac-

count of work done to, and supplies bought for the

"Garonne," and conferred with Captain Hastings,

who had been left here in charge of the North Alaska

Steamship Company's office, and subsequently re-

turned to New York, after spending about a week

here in company with Mr. Bogle and myself.

Q. By whose request did you and Mr. Bogle go

to New York? A. Mr. Mead's.

Q. For what purpose?

A. In an endeavor to reach some satisfactory

adjustment of the amount due us on the purchase

price of the "Garonne."

Q. About what time did you reach New York?
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A. The very end of June, 1904, or the first of

July.

Q. At that time where was the bill of sale and the

mortgage which had been forwarded by you to the

Chase National Bank ?

A. At the Chase National Bank,

Q. After reaching New York, did you attend any

meeting of the North Alaska Steamship Company

and the parties who were interested in that com-

pany? A. Yes, sir, several of them.

Q. Did Mr, Mead submit any report to that com-

pany, or the directors of that company, of the con-

ditions existing out here?

A. Yes, sir; he told them exactly what the con-

ditions were; he made them a written report.

Q, What was done in the way of making a settle-

ment or adjusting the matters at that time when you

were in New York?

A, After repeated efforts on the part of Mr.

Mead and his friends, Mr. Leake and Mr. Rowe and

their friends—the latter of whom constitutes the Oc-

cidental Securities Company and the North Alaska

Steamship Company—the latter threw up their

hands and served a written notice on me that they

would be unable to complete their contract of pur-

chase on account of their inability to raise money,

and that they would be unable to pay the large
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amount of debt that they had incurred on "Gar-

onne's" account in Seattle, for tlie same reason.

Q. Did you, or your attorney, after you had ex-

hausted your efforts in negotiating for a settlement,

serve any notice on the North Alaska Steamship

Company, that unless they carried out the contract

you would take steps to cancel and forfeit it ?

A. Yes, sir,

Mr. KING.—We object to the form of the ques-

tion. There is no evidence here that they made or

exhausted any efforts.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) How many days were you

in negotiation with those ]3arties, in the effort to se-

cure a settlement?

A. I think about ten days, or two weeks.

Q. Did they raise any money to pay off their in-

debtedness which had been incurred here for mate-

rial and labor, that were liens on the ship?

A. No, sir, they could not do it.

Q. Did they raise any money to pay off any part

of the indebtedness to you? A. No, sir.

Q. I now hand you a paper and will ask if that

was furnished to you by the officers of the North

Alaska Steamship Company during this time in

New York, as a correct copy of the minutes of the
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meeting of the Board of Directors on that date

(showing) ? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. BOGLE.—I now offer this in evidence as ex-

hibit "J-3."

Mr. KING.—I object to that as irrelevant, imma-

terial, incompetent and not the best evidence.

(Document received in evidence and marked De-

fendants' Exhibit "J-3.")

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) I now hand you another pa-

per, and I will ask j^ou if that paper was also served

on you by the officers of the North Alaska Steamship

Company on the day of its date, July 8, 1904 (show-

ing). A. It was.

Mr. BOGLE.—I now offer that in evidence as

Exhibit "K-3."

(Document received in evidence and marked as

above.)

Q. I hand you another paper dated New York,

July 8, 1901, addressed to the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, and I will ask you w^hether that is a

copy of a document served by you or your attorney

for you, on the North Alaska Steamship Company

on that date. A. It is.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer that in evidence as exhibit

"L-3."
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Mr. KING.—Was this supposed to be signed ])y

Frank Waterhonse & Company?

The WITNESS.—Yes.

Mr. KING.—I object to it as irrelevant, immate-

rial and incompetent.

(Document received in evidence and marked De-

fendants' Exhibit "L-3.")

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) I now hand you another pa-

per dated July 9, 1904, addressed to you and signed

by the North Alaska Steamship Company, J. B.

Leake, Secretary, and I will ask you if that was

served on you on the day of its date (showing).

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer that in evidence as exhibit

''M-3."

Mr. KING.—I make the same objection.

(Document received in evidence and marked De-

fendants' Exhibit ''M-3.")

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) After the service of the pa-

pers which you have just identified, did you or your

attorney make any adjustment with the North Alas-

ka Steamship Company, or its attorneys, of the mat-

ters pending between them.

A. Well, we agreed to release the North Alaska

Steamship Company, as I recollect it; they agreed

to waive any claims for equity in the steamer.
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Q. That was closed up between the attorneys for

yourself and the North Alaska Steamship Company ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. KING.—If he is speaking from hearsay as to

ihe attorneys, I propose to object to it.

Mr. BOGLE.—He knows that the details were

cl:>sed up.

Mr. KING.—We object to any testimony that is

not based on the witness' own knowledge, as hearsay

and incompetent.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Do .you know of your own

kno\\ ledge what release or receipts were passed be-

tween them?

A. I did know, but I do not recollect now.

Q. Who was present at those various meetings

in Ne^\ York between yourself and those interested

in the IS orth Alaska Steamship Company and the Oc-

cidental Securities Company?

A. Mr. Rowe, Mr. Leake, Messrs. McKee &

Frost, Mr. Arthur Baldwin of the firm of Griggs,

Baldwin <% Baldwin, attorneys, Mr. W. F. King, Mr.

S. C. Mead, Mr. Corwine, and two or three other

gentlemen, whose names I do not recollect, who were

stockholders in the Occidental Securities Company.
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Q. Was General Dodge present at any of those

meetings? A. No, sir.

Q. What efforts, if any, were made to communi-

cate with General Dodge, or secure his presence?

A. Mr. Corwine

—

Mr. KING.—We want the witness' testimony lim-

ited to his o^'^n knowledge.

A. (Continuing.) Mr. Corwine endeavored to

get in communication with him, and reported at one

of the meetinf^s that General Dodge was out of town,

and he had b( en unable to learn of his address.

Mr. KING —We object to the testimony and move

to strike it out on the ground that it is irrelevant,

immaterial, ii'icompetent and hearsay.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Did you know General

Dodge 's addr ^ss or where he was ? A. No, sir.

Q. Did y(u know where ]\Ir. Pusey, his son in

law, was? A. No, sir. .

Q. When Mr. Pusey was in Seattle about the first

of June, how long did he remain here, after entering

into the arraTigements which you have heretofore

stated? A. A few hours.

Q. Wher*? did he state that he was going from

here ?

A. He was going to California, and I think he

said thencf- to New Orleans or Mexico.
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Q. Do you know, from any communications re-

ceived from him, when he returned to New York?

A. It was the latter end of July, or August, I for-

get which. There is a telegram in the files from him

;

that was the first evidence I had of his return to New
York.

Q. I hand you a paper purporting to be a letter

written by you to Mr. Pusey, under date of August

second, 1904, and I will ask you if that is a copy of

the letter which you wrote to him on that date (show-

ing). A. Yes, sir, it is.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer this in evidence.

(Document received in evidence and marked De-

fendants' Exhibit ''N-3.")

Q. How long did you remain in New York after

July 9, 1904?

A. I think I was in New York three or four days

after.

Q. I hand you what purports to be copies of tel-

egrams passing between yourselves and representa-

tives of the North Alaska Steamship Compan}^ at

various times during the spring of 1904, and I will

ask you whether those are correct copies of tele-

graphic communications that passed between 5^ou at

that time (showing). A. Yes, sir.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer these in evidence.
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Mr. KING.—I make the same objection to them

as I made to tlie exhibits ''C" to ''1-3," inchisive.

(Document received in evidence and marked De-

fendants' Exhibit "0-3.")

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. AVaterhouse, you

have heretofore testified in regard to the sale of the

"Garonne" to the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company. Does that company own the "Garonne"

at this time ? A. No, sir.

Q. Have you within the last six or eight months

sold the "Garonne" for any company that you are

connected with"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. At what time did you sell it ?

A. The 15th of October, 1905.

Q. Was the sale for cash ?

Mr. KING.—What is the purpose of this ?

Mr. BOGLE.—To show the values.

Mr. KING.—Then I object to it as irrelevant, im-

material and incompetent.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How much did she sell for 1

Mr. KING.—I make the same objection.

A . Thirt3^-seven thousand five hundred dollars.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Where was she at the time

of the sale? A. Genoa, Italy.
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Q. She had gone over under a charter, had she?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that the best price which you could ob-

tain for her ?

Mr. KING.—I make the same objection.

A, Yes, after a very diligent effort in all the

ports of Europe.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. Waterhouse, under this

arrangement that was made with Mr. Pusey, have

you, either personally or j^our firm or company, ever

received any money from any source whatever that

was applicable to this debt of General Dodge cov-

ered by that agreement ?

A. No, sir. My trusteeship covered the carrying

out of the agreement he made with Mr. C. B. Smith,

and C. B. Smith failed to carry out any part of that

agreement, so that I had no trusteeship to carry out.

Mr. KING.—I move to strike out the latter part

of the answer to the question, as not responsive to

the question, and as simply a legal conclusion of the

witness.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Did C. B. Smith on behalf

of the North Alaska Steamship Company, execute

any assignment to Mr. Pusey of the freights col-

lectible at Nome on the cargo carried by the" Ga-

ronne '

' on that trip ?
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Mr. KING.—Is that in writing ?

The WITNESS.—Yes, sir.

Mr. BOGLE.—Yes, it is in writing, delivered to

Mr. Smith.

(Question repeated to the witness.)

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know who was appointed by Mr.

Pusey to receive those freights under that assign-

ment at Nome?

A. Mr. Smith himself.

Mr. KING.—If you are trying to get the contents

of that assignment I shall object to it as not the Ijest

evidence. You have asked him a question and he

has no right, instead of answering it yes or no, he

is stating the name of the man, which is not exactly

proper—if you have got the assignment and want

to put it in evidence that is another thing.

Mr. BOGLE.—We have not got it and we never

had it. It was executed in our presence right then

and there, and Mr. Smith was appointed the agent.

Mr. KING.—Unless you account for the loss of it,

I object to his testifying in regard to it.

Mr. BOGLE.—We never had it.

Mr. KING.—Still, I do not believe it is competent

for him to testify about it.
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Mr. BOGLE.—It was your people executed the

agreement.

Q. Were those papers executed in your presence,

in your office? A. They were.

Q. Was that at the time or just preceding the

time of the execution of this trust agreement be-

tween Mr. Pusey and yourself? A. Yes, sir.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. KING.) You state, in the telegram of

February 3, 1904, to Mr. Ferguson, that you were to

have a corporation bond guaranteeing the vessel

against indebtedness and as securit_y for your notes.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is right, is it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was the first time that you demanded

this bond or security?

A. At the very commencement of our negotia-

tions, at our first offer.

Q. Had you, when you made that demand, that

first demand, received any money on account of the

purchase price of the steamer? A. No, sir.

Q. Then, any money which you had received on

account of the purchase price of the steamer was re-

ceived after that demand.

A. It was not a demand, it was a condition—it

was a conditional sale.
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Q. You will answer my questions; I asked you

"When you made that demand."

A. I do not understand it when 3^ou put it that

way.

(Former question repeated to the witness.)

A. I don't know what it means, I cannot answer

it.

Mr. KING.—Read back the testimony he has just

given on his cross-examination as to what he said

about the demand.

(Testimony read by the stenographer.)

Mr. KING.—Now, read him the question—you

have testified here that you demanded at the very

first a corporation bond in security for your notes

—

A. It was a condition of the purchase.

Q. I didn't ask you that.

A. Well, I cannot answer it ; I do not know.

Q. You can answer it yes or no.

A. Let it go at that ; I cannot answer such a ques-

tion as that ; it is put in such a shape as nobody can

answer it. If you ask me sane questions I will give

you sane answers.

Q. Did you ever receive this corporation bond*?

A. No.

Q. Did you ever receive any security for your

notes 1 A. No.
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Q. Did you make more than one request or de-

mand for this corporation bond, or those securities ?

A. I made a great many requests.

Q. About how many?

A. I cannot remember, perhaps a hundred.

Q. Was any of those requests made before or

after you received any of those payments ?

A. Yes, both before and after.

Q. You did receive pa}Tnents, then, after mak-

ing this request?

A. We received payments on account of the pur-

chase price.

Q. Well, on account of the purchase price—you

state that the North Alaska Steamship Company

had possession of the steamer ''Garonne" for one

voyage to Cape Nome, and from about the middle of

March until she left here for Nome, previous to that

voyage, during that time you acted as agent for the

steamer, didn't you—the Frank Waterhouse Com-

pany? A. We acted as traffic agents.

Q. And were paid for your services as such

agents ? A. Yes.

Q. Or charged them up to the North Alaska

Steamship Company. A. Yes, sir.

Q. You also acted as general agent for the ves-

sel in the matter of disbursements during that time ?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q, And also were paid for that service*?

A. Yes.

Q. And advertised the ship under your name as

agent and under the name of the North Alaska

Steamship Company as owners during that time,

didn't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When Mr. Pusey called on you in the latter

part, or nearly the last day of May, was that the

first time you had heard of General Dodge?

A. No; I heard of General Dodge, as I testified

to already, sometime earlier in May.

Q. Sometime earlier in May ?

A. Or in April, I forget which.

Q. You heard of him through Smith the first

time, then? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And was that the first time you had heard of

him? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not know who he was, by repute, be-

fore that time?

A. I never heard of such a man.

Q. These exhibits that have been put in here by

your counsel, particularly the various exhibits from

"C" to "1-3"; do you know whether or not any of

these were ever known bv or communicated to Gen-
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eral Dodge—the contents of those various letters or

telegrams ?

A. I do not know anything about that.

Q. You did not communicate any of them to him ?

A. No, I did not know him at the time.

Q. As far as you know they were not?

A. As far as I know they were not.

Q. How much money had you received, do you

know, on account of the purchase price of the ''Ga-

ronne" on or about May 25th or 26th, 1904, when, in

accordance with these telegrams, you threatened to

cancel the contract of purchase?

A. About $35,000.

Q. Then since that time then you received some

more money on account of the purchase price of the

ship, did you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You stated that you first met Charles B. Smith

in the Burke building on May 30th, 1904.

A. I would like to correct that statement ; it was

made entirely by mistake; I think I did meet Mr.

Smith in New York in April, in the office of the Oc-

cidental Securities Company.

Q. Had you any correspondence with Mr. Smith

prior to that time, about meeting him?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had correspondence with Smith practi-

cally on the inception of this contract to purchase

the
'

' Garonne, '

' didn 't you ?
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A. No, I think not; nearly all the correspondence

was with Mr. J. B. Leake, I cannot remember—I do

not remember when the correspondence started with

Mr. Smith, bnt it will show in these files.

Q. Now, you have stated in your direct examina-

tion that on May 31st, 1904, at about the time that

Pusey arrived in Seattle representing General

Dodge, that there was $50,000 due on the purchase

price of the boat, and from $30,000 to $35,000 for bet-

terments, repairs and supplies; are you not mistak-

en in that?

A. My recollection goes that it was in that neigh-

borhood; I think that after June 1st we received

about $18,000 on account, but am not at all sure

about it. I cannot state positively from recollection.

Q. Referring now to the memorandum which you

entered into with Frank S. Pusey as agent for G. M.

Dodge, on or about the first of June, or the 2d, when

the steamer sailed, and in which you speak alwut the

two mortgages and the agreement to act as trustee,

you state, or at least it says in this memorandum

sti '-ement, "The North Alaska Steamship Company

is indebted to said Waterhonse & Company, Incorpo-

rated, in the sum of $37,671.46, being the balance due

on the purchase price of the steamship 'Garonne,' and

also indebted to the said G. M. Dodge in the sum of

$10,000 for borrowed money"; that statement as to
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the purchase price of the steamer 'Garonne' is cor-

rect, is it? A, Yes, it is exactly correct.

Q. You say Pusey at the interview you liad ^Yith

him when he came here, told you that Smith had

promised Dodge that the loan of $10,000 should be

paid out of the first freight earned by the "Garonne."

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was Smith present when Pusey told you that ?

A. It was told on two occasions ; Smith was pres-

ent once.

Q. Where was it told the second time?

A.' In the morning and the afternoon of the same

day.

Q. In your office ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In Seattle? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You do not know whether Smith was present

in the morning or the afternoon, do you ?

A. He was present in the afternoon; not in the

morning.

Q. What reply did Pusey make when you told him

that you should insist on all the money that she

earned being paid to you, to appl}^ first on the bills

and second on the account of the purchase price, and

would not recognize any agreement between Dodge

and Smith? A. I do not remember.
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Q. This conversation, however, occnrred Ijeforc

tliis memorandum in whicli you agree to act as ti'us-

tee, was drawn up and executed? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did you first learn that Leake, as repre-

senting the North Alaslva Steamship Company, de-

clined to execute the mortgage ?

A. Sometime a'bout the middle of June.

Q. Did you communicate that information to

either General Dodge or Pusey ?

A. I do" not remember ; no, I do not think I did

;

I do not think I had their address.

Q. You said that when Mr. Mead arrived in Se-

attle, he conferred with Captain Hastings ; now, who

was Captain Hastings'?

A. One of the officers of the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company.

Q. Do you know what officer he was 1

A. No, I do not know what title he held.

Q. Do you know what he did?

A. Yes ; he was directing the business in Seattle.

Q. Do you know what the object of Hastings ' con-

ference with him was ? A. No, sir.

Q. Was this Mr. W. F. King, a member of the

Occidental Securities Company?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And of the North Alaska Steamship Company.
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A. Well, I suppose he was, because the North

i'Jaska Steamship Company was owned by the Se-

'jurities Company. I think he was a stockholder in

the Securities Company.

Q. He was the chief objector to anything further

being done by the North Alaska Steamship Company

towards acquiring the "Garonne'"?

A. Oh, no; on the contrary, he would have been

very glad indeed to have seen them able to place

themselves in a position to have completed their pur-

chase. He had a considerable sum of money in-

vested in it.

Q. You said that Mr. Corwine endea^'ored to get

into communication with General Dodge. What en-

deavors did he make to your own knowledge *?

A. I have no knowledge of it at all; simply

—

Q. Simply what he told you ? A. Exactly.

Q. That is all you now of any efforts to commu-

nicate wdth General Dodge about that time?

A. Just what I heard him say.

Q. Referring to Defendants' Exhibit "N-3," a

letter to F. S. Pusey addressed 101 Broadway, New
York, and dated Seattle, August 2d, 1904; how^ did

you ascertain Mr. Pusey 's address at 101 Broadway,

New York? A. What is the date of it?

Q. August 2d, 1904.
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A. That is in reply to a letter I received from

him?

Q. That is in reply to a letter you received from

him. A. Yes, well

—

Q. Is it not in reply to a telegram which you re-

ceived from him?

A. I don't know—preferring to document)
;
yes,

It is.

Q. Then you wish to correct that statement and

say it is in repl}^ to a telegram received from him.

A. It is in reply to a telegram.

Q. This letter came back to you undelivered,

didn't it?

A. (Eeferring to document.) I do not remem-

ber whether that was the one or not. One letter I

wrote to him came back—I cannot recollect whether

that was the one or not.

Q. You cannot recollect whether that was the one

or not? A. No.

Q. Why did it come back?

A. It was not delivered.

Q. Why was it not delivered ?

A. I presume the address was wrong.

Q. Are you acquainted with the handwriting of

J. P. Townsend, the treasurer of Frank Waterhouse

& Company? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. I hand you a paper marked for identification

as Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 24 (showing) and I will

ask you whether that is in the handwriting of J. P.

Townsend.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will ask you if that letter wdiieh I have re-

ferred to, under date of August 2d in that exhibit

24, is 3^our letter of August 2d to F. S. Pusey, which

you have testified about and which is marked De-

fendants' Exhibit ''N-3"—and I will state that I

have the original letter if you have any doubt about

it—it is the letter which came back and here is the

envelope if you want any more evidence.

A. That was the letter that is referred to in this

one of Mr. Townsend 's.

Q. Then the letter which is marked Defendants'

Exhibit "N-3," addressed to F. S. Pusey at 101

Broadway, is the letter that was returned because it

^vas wrongly addressed"?

A. Evidently so, yes, sir.

Q. And, therefore, did not reach Mr. Pusey un-

til after it left Seattle on August 19, 1904.

A. That is so.

Mr. KING.—I offer in evidence the letter of

Townsend and ask that it be marked as exhibit "No.

24.

"
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(Document received in evidence and marked

"Complainant's Exhibit No. 24.")

Q. (Mr. KING.) You speak here in this letter

of August 2d, 1904, to Pusey, being Defendant's

Exhibit "N-3"; "I was obliged to take back the

steamer 'Garonne' and assume the indebtedness

which the North Alaska Steamship Company had

loaded her with, amounting to almost $35,000. I

took the steamer back and assumed the indebtedness

and subsequently sold her to another corporation";

has that reference to the sale to the Merchants' &

Miners' Steamship Compan}^? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And is that the indebtedness which you speak

of assuming; is that the indebtedness which was

paid or partially paid by the $30,000 furnished by

the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company, or

by Mr. King?

A. Yes, sir, it was paid with that money.

Q. When did you leave New York in 1904?

A. The 10th or 12tli of July, I do not remember

exactly.

Q. You stated in your direct examination that

the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company does

not own now the "Garonne"? A. No.

Q. When did they sell her?

A. April, 1905, I think.
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Q. April, 1905—to whom did they sell her?

A. The White Star Steamship Company.

Q. Are you a stockholder in the White Star

Steamship Company? A. I am.

Q. Were you at the time the
'

' Garonne '

' was sold

to her? A. I was.

Q. Are you the principal stockholder?

A. I am at this time.

Q. Were you at that time ? ' A. No.

Q. Were you president or an officer of the com-

pany at that time? A. I was.

Q. What office did you hold? A. President.

Q. Of the White Star Steamship Company?

A. Not at the time the steamer was sold.

Q. You are the president now? A. Yes.

Q. What office did you hold at the time tlie

steamer was sold? A. None.

Q. Simply stockholder? A. Yes.

Q. What was the steamer sold to the White Star

Steamship Company for?

A. Stock in the White Star Steamship Company.

Q. How much stock ?

A. Ninety thousand dollars.

Q. That was received by Frank Waterhouse &

Company ?

A. No; it was received by the Merchants' & Mi-

ners' Steamship Company.
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Q, And the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company now are out of existence,

A. Yes.

Q. And what became of that stock, then, on the

dissolution of the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company ?

A. That stock was divided; the stock in the

White Star Steamship Company was accepted by

the stockholders—by the individual stockholders in

the Merchants' & Miners', in lieu of the Merchants'

& Miners' Steamship Company stock-

Q. Share for share?

A. Oh, no, not share for share.

Q. Then, in what proportion was it accepted?

A. I do not remember.

Q. Then she was sold by the White Star Steam-

ship Company?

A. She was sold by the White Star Steamship

Company to parties in Genoa.

Q. Then she was chartered by the White Star

Steamship Company to the Russian Government.

A. No, sir.

Q. What was she doing during the time she was

with the White Star Steamship Company ?

A. A part of the time she was lying idle along-

side of the dock; part of the time she was on the

way crossing the Pacific to engage in a charter to
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carry troops from Shanghai to Odessa; part of the

time she was carrying troops from Shanghai to

Odessa; part of the time slie was lying in the har-

bor of Theodosa, idle; part of the time she was on

the route between Theodosa and Genoa.

Q. Then she never was under charter to the Rus-

sian government? A. No, sir,

Q. Didn 't she have pretty bad weather out there

;

didn 't she have bad weather going out there ?

A. No.

Q. Did she meet with- any vicissitudes to your

knowledge? A. Out in the Orient?

Q. Yes.

A. No. You mean affecting the steamer ?

Q. Yes.

A. No, sir. You mean affecting the condition of

the steamer?

Q. Yes.

A. No, sir. Crossing the Pacific from Seattle to

Kobe she got in a blow that necessitated repairs,

Amounting to some $8,000 and which were made in

Kobe before she proceeded to Shanghai, but nothing

else. She had good weather as far as I know and

she was in good condition throughout the voyage.

Q. Who is S. A. Serebrevik?

A. He is a Russian.
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Q. Isn't be the agent of the Czar of Russia?

A. Not that I know of—I never heard it.

Q. Didn't you testify that he was agent of the

Gzar then, in the suit between yourself and Barne-

son—Hibbard & Company?

A. No, sir, I never testified to anything of the

kind. I have not testified at all in that suit.

Q. That charter party provided that the vessel be

brought back to Seattle? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Why was not that done?

A. The charterer failed to perform his obliga-

tion.

Q. He abandoned the vessel in the Black Sea,

didn't he?

A. He abandoned his (charter, yes, sir.

Q. And you had to take possession of her again

in the Black Sea, didn 't you ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you were first told that Dodge was

contemplated as security for the balance due on the

steamer, did you make any inquiry as to his finan-

cial condition or responsibility? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was that?

A. I do not remember the date.

Q. As near as you can place it.

A. I have no idea what it was.

Mr. BOGLE.—That telegram is in evidence.

A. (Referring to telegram.) May 23, 1904.



252 Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., vs.

(Testimonj^ of Frank Waterhouse.)

Q. In the meetings held in New York, concerning

which you have testified in the early part of July,

1904, didn't you refuse to take back the steamer and

release the North Alaska Steamship Company un-

less this indebtedness was paid—I am speaking now

of the claims and things against the steamer?

A. I don't remember,

Q. Didn't you, as a fact, have an arrangement

with Mr, W, ¥. King, and those associated with him,

that they would furnish enough money to pay those

claims before you would consent to accept the ulti-

matum of the North Alaska Steamship Company

and take the steamer back and release them.

A. No, sir.

Q. That agreement with King and his associates,

by which he was to advance $30,000, then, was not

made until after you got the release from the North

Alaska Steamship Company?

A. To the best of my recollection it was not,

Mr, KING.—I cannot find what I am looking for,

but perhaps you can tell me, Mr. Bogle. Is there

any dispute about the fact that this statement fur-

nished by Townsend is not correct?

Mr. BOGLE.—Anything furnished by Townsend is

correct.

Mr. KING.—I refer to this (referring to Com-

plainanjt's Exhibit "No. 19."
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Mr. BOGLE.—That is correct.

Mr. KING.—Then there will be no contest on thait.

Mr. BOGLE.—No.

Q. (Mr. KING.) How much did you say the bill

of repairs at Kobe w^as for the "Garonne"?

A. I do not remember; six or seven thousand dol-

lars.

Q. It was not $16,000? A. No, sir.

Q. You do not make an insurance claim for dam-

ages for $16,000? A. No, sir.

Q. Or anyone on behalf of the boat?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know who Plaskett is?

A. Yes.

Q. He was chief engineer on that voyage, wasn't

he? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then you would sa.y that his statement that

there were $16,000 of repairs, and that the boat was

badly stove up when she reached Kobe is not cor-

rect? A. Absolutely incorrect.

Mr. BOGLE.—There is no evidence thai he ever

made any such statement, and I object to the exam-

ination as assuming that he did.

Q. (Mr. KING.) Do you know when she

reached Odessa?



254 Frank Waterliouse d' Co., Inc., vs.

(Testimony of Frank Waterhouse.)

A. No, sir, I do not remember,

Q. Do you know whether or not she reached

Odessa when there was trouble with the revolution-

ists in Russia; the naval revolutionists'?

A. She did.

Q. And she went from Odessa to Theodosa?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where is Theodosa?

A, About 100 miles from Odessa, on the Black

Sea, eastward.

Q. And from there she went to Genoa?

A. Yes.

Q. As a matter of fact, wasn't she sold to be

broken up? A, Yes.

Q. Why didn't she come back to Seattle?

A. Because the charterer did not bring her back

and she was not worth the compan}^ bringing her

back—^^ve could not afford it.

Q. Wasn't she worth more in Seattle than she

would be in Odessa, in your judgment?

A. No, I do not think she would sell for more.

Q. Why?
A. Because to start with, she was nearly 40

years old and the only employment she could be used

in Seattle for, was for three voyages a year up to

Cape Nome, and that is a very unprofitable condition

of affairs; she never made any money, or but very
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little money, if any, running to Cape Nome. She

was a white elephant on my hands ever since she got

through with the transport service. I tried repeat-

edly to sell her in every port almost in the United

States. Nearly every broker in the country had her

and we never got an offer for her. The only chance

we ever had to sell her at any time was to the North

Alaska Steamship Company. She was simply a

white elephant.

Q. You did not tell them she was a white ele-

phant, did you?

A. No, sir, I had her for sale.

Q. You did not tell them she was unprofitable?

A. No, sir. Sellers don't usually give the worst

side of it.

Q. You made reports to the contrary, didn't

you, right here in these telegrams put in evidence

today?

Mr. BOGLE.—If there is an3H:hing represented in

the telegrams, they show for themselves, and I ob-

ject to the witness being interrogated as to the con-

tents of the telegrams.

Q. (Mr. KING.) You did not consider then that

she was worth any more in Seattle than she was in

Odessa after she had been through this hard voyage

to Japan.
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A. That didn't do her a particle of harai; she

was probably better when she left Japan than when

she left Seattle. She was put in first-class repair

as far as possible to put a vessel that is 40 years old

in shape, I do not think she could have been sold

here at all, to start with. We tried repeatedly to

sell her, but we could not even sell her for breaking

up purposes here. There is no market for anything

of the kind.

Q. That was the reason you could not sell her?

A. The vessel, at the time she was sold, was a

very poor piece of property.

Q. And practically when 3^ou received forty-

seven odd thousand dollars for her from the North

Alaska Steamship Company, you received all that

she was worth?

A. Well, that year there was a large business to

Alaska.

Q. Well, didn't you?

A. No, sir, not to us at that time we didn't.

Q. She was worth fully $85,000 to you at that

time, was she?

A. She was worth whatever we could get out of

her, and we sold her for $85,000.

Q. But she was worth more than $47,000 you

think—in other words, when you got $47,000 you did
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not get more than she was worth—I understand you

to testify to that just now?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object to that as utterly irrele-

vant and immaterial and it does not affect this de-

fendant in any way or this complainant, or affect

any of the issues in this case.

A, I would not have paid $47,000 for the ship.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. Waterhouse, you stated

that you were in New York in April, 1904.

A. I think I was.

Q. I hand you a bill of sale from Frank Water-

house & Company, Incorporated, to the North Alaska

Steamship Company, dated the 8th day of April,

1904, and I call your attention to the telegram from

the assistant cashier of the Chase National Bank to

you, under date of April 28th, 1904, (showing) and

I will ask you whether on that trip to New York in

April, 1904, you made a demand on the North Alaska

Steamship Company to take title to this vessel and

carry out their contract, by furnishing you a mort-

gage on the vessel and notes, with a bond guarantee-

ing the vessel against liens and other satisfactory

security, according to their contracts

A. I did, sir.

Q. What was the result?
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A. The result was that they were unable at the

time to comply with the terms of the sale and they

requested that the bill of sale be deposited with the

Chase National Bank in New York.

Q. (Mr. KING.) Do you mean the North

Alaska Steamship Company by "they"?

A. The North Alaska Steamship Company. So

that it would be available for them to take up just

as quickl}^ as the}^ could put themselves in shape, for

completing the contract of purchase.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer this bill of sale in evidence,

(Document received in evidence and marked De-

fendants' Exhibit "P-3.")

Q. (Mr. KING.) After this understanding

which you have just testified about, did you receive

any money on account of the purchase price of the

ship? A. After this?

Q. Yes, after this? A. Oh, yes.

Q. You did? A. Oh, yes.

Q. About how much?

A. I cannot remember. I do not know what we

got up to that time.

Q. But you did receive money after that?

A. Certainly.
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Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Dogs the statement fur-

nished counsel in this ease by Mr, Townsend, your

cashier, show the dates of the various receipts of the

money by you from the North Alaska Steamship

Company? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Wlien you speak of not knowing what moneys

you received, you mean you have no means from your

personal recollection of stating them.

A. I cannot remember—I can find it.

Q. Your books show?

A. Certainly, and the statement here furnished

shows it.

Mr. KING.—You do not dispute that is a correct

statement ?

A. No, sir, I admit it.

(Testimony of witness closed. Whereupon the

further hearing is adjourned to be taken up by agree-

ment between the parties.)

April 27, 1906.

Continuation of proceedings pursuant to agree-

ment.

W. H. BOGLE, appearing as a witness in behalf of

defendant, being first duly cautioned and sworn, tes-

tified as follows:

Mr. KING.—We object to the taking of any tes-

timony at this time on the ground that it is beyond
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the time allowed by the court. I shall object to any

testimony in regard to efforts to communicate \Yith

General Dodge and I am objecting to the time being

extended for that reason. I do not want to object

to your testimony here now, because I always under-

stood you were going to testify, but certainly I think

if 3^ou wanted that testmiony you could have got

it during the time Mr. Waterhouse was away, from

the 10th of January. I shall not insist on any ob-

jection to this testimon}^ strenuously in court, but

I simply want to preserve my rights.

Mr. BOGLE.—During the years 1904-05, and for

several years prior thereto, I was secretary of Frank

Waterhouse & Company, Incorporated, and was, and

had been, attorney for the company since its organi-

zation.

In January, 1904 Mr. Waterhouse informed me
that one Captain W. H. Ferguson was negotiating

for the purchase of the steamship "Garonne" from

Frank Waterhouse & Company, Incorporated, and I

conferred with him day by day as those negotiations

progressed, and assisted him in foraiulating the

terms of the letter dated January 26, marked De-

fendants' Exhibit "B" to the deposition of Frank

Waterhouse herein; and also in foraiulating the tele-

gram from Mr. Waterhouse to Captain Ferguson
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under date of February 3, 1904, and marked Defend-

ants ' Exhibit "A" in tliis case.

Ulpon the payment of the $1,000 cash made upon

tlie acceptance of this proposition hy W. H. Fergu-

son and his associates, a receipt was executed em-

bodying the same terms as those mentioned in this

telegram, with the additional clause that any pa}^^-

ments made by the purchaser should be forfeited if

the purchaser failed to carry out and complete the

contract price.

Mr. KING.—We object to the testimony and move

to strike it out on the ground that the receipt itself

is the best evidence and it has not been produced,

nor has the failure to produce it been accounted for.

Mr. BOGLE.—(Continuing.) I was acquainted

with the general progress of the dealings between

Mr. Waterhouse and Captain Ferguson and the

North Alaska Steamship Company, which company

turned out subsequently to be the party for whom

Captain Ferguson was acting, but I had no direct

communication with them myself, except as Mr..

Waterhouse advised with me from time to time as

to the status of things. At one time, during the

month of April or May, I wired to the North Alaska

Steamship Company that unless they promptly com-

plied with the

—
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Mr. KING.—Have you got the telegram'?

Mr, BOGLE.—I do not know whether I have got

the wire here or not. Their answer is here. I will

look it np and see (examines docmnents). On or

about the 25th of May, 1904, I wired to the North

Alaska Steamship Company under instructions from

Frank Waterhouse & Company, to the effect that

—

Mr. KING.—I make the same objection, as not the

best evidence.

Mr. BOGLE.— (Continuing.) —to the effect that

steps would be taken at once to forfeit their con-

tract to purchase, or option, unless they complied

with the terms of it by taking over the title to the

vessel and executing the securities required to be

executed by the contract; and received the answer,

under date of May 25, from Charles B. Smith, which

is marked Defendants' Exhibit "J-1" to the deposi-

tion of Mr. Waterhouse.

On or about the 1st of June, 1904, Mr. Charles B.

Smith reached Seattle from New York on his way
to Alaska. The steamship "Garonne" at that time

was loading and about ready to sail on her first voy-

age to Nome. Mr. Waterhouse had notified the

North Alaska people that he would not permit the

vessel to sail until they complied with the terms
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of their contract. At the same time Mr. F. S.

Pu'sey

—

Mr. KING.—I understand that you are testifying

to this of your own knowledge that Waterhouse

notified them, or simply as to what Waterhouse told

you?

Mr. BOGLE.—(Continuing.) I am referring to

the written notification which appears in the tele-

grams and communications which are on file as ex-

hibits to Mr. Waterhouse 's deposition, and to what

Mr. Waterhouse informed me at the time, and I am
not sure that I was present when he gave the notice

to Mr. Smith. I am not able to say definitely

whether I was or not.

Mr. KING.—I move to strike out any testimony

that is not within the witness' personal knowledge,

or any statement as to any conversations or notices,

at which he was not present.

Mr. BOGLE.—(Continuing.) I was requested,

on or about the first or second of June, 1901:, to go

to Mr. Waterhouse 's office to meet Mr. Pusey and

also Mr. Charles B. Smith, the president of the North

Alaska Steamship Company. When I first went to

the office, Mr. Smith was not present, but Mr. Pusey

was, and there was a general conversation between
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Mr. Waterhouse, Mr, Piisey, and myself with regard

to the situation. It was stated by Mr. Waterhouse

to Mr. Pusey that there was a balance due on the

purchase price, of some thirty-seven or thirty-eight

thousand dollars. He gave the exact figures as they

.appeared on his books, l^ut I do not remember the

odd amount. It was explained to me that Mr. Pusey

represented General G. M. Dodge of New York, and

that General Dodge held a claim against the North

Alaska Steamship Company for some $10,000. Mr.

Waterhouse and Mr. Pusey had been in conference

prior to the time I was called in, and they had been

securing data from the representatives of the North

Alaska Steamship Company, particularly from Mr.

Hastings. It seemed, from the representations tliat

had been made to them of the amount of freight

—

Mr. KING.—We object to this line of testimony,

as appearing to l)e out of the witness' knowledge.

Mr. BOGLE.— (Continuing.) It seemed from

the reports and data furnished and in the possession

of Mr. Waterhouse and Mr. Pusey at that time, that

there would be some considerable amount—my rec-

ollection is something like $18,000—realized from the

freights on the cargo then on board the "Garonne,"

and which would be applicable to the paj^nent of

the bills that had been incurred by the North Alas-
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ka Steamship Company for some repairs and alter-

ations on the ship and for supplies for the ship.

The amount of those outstanding bills had not been

definitely ascertained, but from the reports given by

Captain Hastings and from the accounts which had

been rendered and which were then in the hands

of Mr. Townsend, the treasurer of Frank Water-

house & Company, it was estimated by Mr. Water-

house that the outstanding bills would not exceed

fourteen or fifteen thousand dollars. Mr. Pusey

was present and saw the statements and data and re-

ports that Mr. Waterhouse had upon which those

estimates were based, and the estimates seemed tc

correspond with the information he had received

from the North Alaska Steamship Company people.

Mr. Waterhouse and Mr. Pusey explained to me that

Mr. Smith, on behalf of the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, had agreed to execute a mortgage

upon the steamship "Garonne" to secure the bal-

ance of the purchase money due Mr. Waterhouse,

amounting to something over $37,000, and to exe-

cute a second mortgage upon the steamer to secure

the $10,000 claimed to be due General Dodge, and we

had conferences as to the best shape in which to put

these securities. The}^ stated that Mr. Smith had

reported to them that the New York office of the
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North Alaska Steamship Company, or his New York

associates there, were prepared to advance whatever

amount of money might be necessary, if any should

prove to be necessary, to pay any balance that might

be owing for supplies and repairs and betterments

to the ship, so that the two mortgages would repre-

sent the only indebtedness against the ship.

It was agreed at that time that, in view of these state-

ments, they would make the settlement with the North

Alaska Steamship Company on the basis I have just

outlined, of taking mortgages for the balance due,

and, on my suggestion, it was agreed that instead of

taking two mortgages, I should prepare one mort-

gage, which would provide for a first lien in favor

of Waterhouse & Company for the amount due them,

which amounted to something over $37,000, and in

the same instrument provide for a second lien in

favor of General Dodge for the $10,000.

Either on that afternoon or the next morning I

met Mr. Waterhouse and Mr. Pusey again in Mr.

Waterhouse 's office, and Mr. Charles B. Smith was

present. At that time further reports of outstand-

ing indebtedness had come in, which indicated that

the estimate of fourteen or fifteen thousand dollars

would not cover the outstanding bills. Mr. Smith

stated that his New York associates had confidently

expected the receipts from the freight and passen-
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ger money would not only pay all outstanding bills

for supplies and repairs, but would give a consid-

erable surplus, which could be applied in payment,

or part payment, of the balance due Mr. Water-

house, and that he had been very much surprised

on reaching Seattle and going over the books with

Captain Ferguson and Mr. Hastings, to find that

they had expended such large sums in supplies, bet-

terments and repairs, and that it would be necessary

for him to wire the situation to his New York asso-

ciates and explain the condition in which he found

things here, and to give them some forty-eight hours

to make their arrangements to raise the money to

pay off the balance of the lien debt. He stated, how-

ever, that they would pay them at once, that is, with-

in forty-eight hours after his wire reached there,

and that they would be prepared to pay one-half of

the balance due Mr. Waterhouse in ten days, and

the other half in twenty days, and that they would

meet Mr. Dodge's claim within a short time there-

after. It was then agreed between Mr. Smith, Mr.

Waterhouse, Mr, Pusey and myself, that Mr. Smith

should inform his associates inNew York and arrange

for them to wire such an amount of money to Seat-

tle as might be necessary to pay any balance due on

these lien debts, and Mr. Waterhouse agreed that,

instead of making his debt due in ten and twenty
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days, he would make it due in twenty and forty days,

and Mr. Pusey arranged with Mr. Smith that his

debt should become due in sixty days, and Mr. Wa-

terhouse withdrew any objection to the sailing, un-

der that understanding.

I prepared the mortgage in accordance with this

agreement, and prepared two notes dividing Water-

house & Company's debt into two parts, one of them

payable in twenty days and the other in forty days. I

also prepared a bill of sale to be executed by Frank

Waterhouse & Company, and to be delivered when

the mortgage was executed. Mr. Pusey and Mr.

Waterhouse then explained to me that Mr. Smith

had transferred to Mr. Pusey, either as security or

as part payment—I understood as security—for the

Dodge debt a considerable amount of the freight

money that would be payable at Nome upon the ar-

rival of the ship there; the amount was stated to

be approximately $10,000, although I did not see

either the assigmnent or a list of the bills which were

assigned. It was stated to me also at the time that

Mr. Pusey had appointed Mr. Smith as his agent at

Nome to collect these freight moneys for General

Dodge, and to remit them to the Seattle National

Bank, in Seattle, for General Dodge's benefit. They

also told me that Mr. Pusey had requested Mr. Wa-
terhouse to represent his interests as trustee at Seat-
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tie ill the receipt of this mone}', or having it for-

warded from the Seattle National Bank to General

Dodge, and in the event there should ever be any

occasion to foreclose this mortgage which was to l)e

taken, that he would act as trustee for General

Dodge in that matter; the idea being that it would

avoid some trouble to General Dodge and would

simplify any action which might become necessary

in foreclosing the mortgage.

Mr. KING.—I move to strike that out as l)eing

a conclusion of the witness—I move to strike out

all the answer beginning with the words "the idea

being."

Mr. BOGLE.— (Continuing.) Mr. Pusey, as I

recall the matter now, had drawn up a memorandum

by which Mr. Waterliouse was named to act as trus-

tee for General Dodge, and Mr. Waterhouse asked

me whether there was any objection to his doing so.

I looked over the agreement, as prepared by Mr.

Pusey, and stated that I saw no objection to it, pro-

vided an additional clause was added which ex-

empted him from any liability as trustee so long as

he acted in good faith. Mr. Pusey said it was sat-

isfactory, and I accordingly added that clause to the

agreement, which was then written out and signed

by Mr. Pusey and Frank Waterhouse. Pursuant
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to that a note was taken from the North Alaska

Steamship Company to Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany, as trustee for General Dodge, for the $10,000,

payable sixty days after date. Frank Waterhouse

& Company thereupon signed a bill of sale for the

"Garonne" to the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany. Mr. Charles B. Smith, as president of the

North Alaska Steamship Company, signed the three

notes, two to Frank Waterhouse & Company, pay-

able in twenty and forty days, aggregating some-

thing over $37,000, and one in favor of Frank Wa-

terhouse & Company, as trustee, for $10,000, payable

in sixty days. Mr. Smith, as president of the North

Alaska Steamship Company, also signed the mort-

gage which I had drawn securing those debts. I

stated at the time to both Mr. Smith and Mr. Pusey

that it would be necessary to have the mortgage

signed by the secretary of the company, who was

then in New York, to have the seal attached to it,

and to have the execution of the mortgage approved

or authorized by the Board of Directors of the North

Alaska Steamship Company. It was then agreed

between us that the bill of sale and the mortgage

should be forwarded by Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany to the Chase National Bank, in New York, with

instructions to that bank to deliver the bill of sale

when the execution of the mortgage was completed
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by proper resolution of the Board of Directors and

by the signature of the secretary and the affixing of

the seal. My recollection is that three notes, which

were signed by Mr. Smith for the North Alaska

Steamship Company, were left in the p©ssession of

Frank Waterhouse & Company to await the return

of the mortgage after it should be executed. Mr.

Smith stated that he would immediately wire his New

York associates the condition of things, and ask

them to put themselves in readiness to raise what-

ever money was necessary to pay any balance on the

supply bills and lien debts against the ship. That

was the situation of things when the "Garonne"

sailed for Nome. The bill of sale to the "Garonne"

was executed by Frank Waterhouse & Company on

the second day of June, 1904. I have that original

bill of sale in my possession, and will exhibit it to

counsel and make it an exhibit to my testimony if

he desires to do so.

Mr. KING.—I do not desire it as an exhibit.

Mr. BOGLE.— (Continuing.) The mortgage is

not in my possession. It was sent to New York un-

der the arrangement above stated, and I do not re-

call that I have seen it since it was returned from

the bank. I presume it was in the possession of

Frank Waterhouse & Company.
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Mr. King, the solicitor for the complainant in this

case, has just called my attention to Complainant's

Exliibit No. "4" in this case (showing) ; that exhibit

is a copy of the mortgage I have referred to, except

that the original was signed "North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, by Charles B. Smith, President";

the secretary's signature being left blank; while the

copy which Mr. King has exhibited in this case does

not contain the signature of Mr. Smith, and I pre-

sume that this is a copy of the mortgage which was

furnished to Mr. Pusey by me before Mr. Smith

signed it.

Mr. KING.—That is what he claims it to be.

Mr. BOGLE.— (Continuing.) Mr. Pusey left

Seattle, either on the day or the day following the

signing of these papers, and I have never seen him

since.

Sometime about the middle of June a Mr. S. C.

Mead from New York appeared in Seattle and rep-

resented that he was one of the parties interested in

the North Alaska Steamship Company, and he was

here to look into the condition of affairs and make

a report to the other interested parties in New York.

He spent several days here—my recollection is about

one week. By that time practically all of the out-

standing bills against the "Garonne" for supplies
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and material had been handed in, and it appeared

that the amount thereof was much larger than had

been estimated at the time Mr. Pusey was here on

June 1st and 2d. After Mr. Mead had made an in-

vestigation in Seattle and obtained such informa-

tion as he was seeking, he requested Mr. Waterhouse

and myself to return with him to New York, in order

that a full explanation of the situation might be

made to all of the parties interested there, and that

some adjustment of settlement might be reached,

and, on Mr. Waterhouse 's request, I went with him

and Mr. Mead to New York. We reached there the

latter part of June or the first of July. On the after-

noon of the da}^ that we arrived Mr. Mead arranged

for and called a meeting of the parties interested

in the North Alaska Steamship Company and in the

Occidental Securities Company, which w^as also a

New York corporation, and which they represented,

held the stock of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany. That meeting was held in the office of the

Merchants' Association of New York, Mr. Mead

being secretary of that association. There was pres-

ent Messrs. McKee & Frost, attorneys for the North

Alaska Steamship Company and Occidental Secur-

ities, Mr. J. B. Leake, who was secretary of one or

both of those companies, Mr. W. H. Eowe, Mr. Will-

iam F. King, a Mr. Corwine, Mr. Arthur J. Bald-
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win, an attorney who represented some of the par-

ties interested in these companies, and also several

other gentlemen whose names I either did not hear, or

if I did, I have forgotten. At this meeting, Mr. Mead

made a report of the result of his investigations of

the condition of affairs at Seattle. He reported the

amount of the balance due on the purchase price

and the approximate amount of the outstanding bills

for supplies, materials, etc. Mr. Waterhouse fur-

nished such additional information as was called for

by any of the parties at the meeting. In the course

of the discussion it developed that there was a lack

of harmony among the parties in interest there.

Mr. King and some of his associates charged the offi-

cers of the Occidental Securities Company and the

North Alaska Steamship Company with having pro-

cured his subscription by false representations as

to the title to the ship and the condition of the com-

pany. This wrangle continued until late in the after-

noon, and the meeting was finally adjourned over,

either the next day or the second day thereafter. We
continued in negotiating, endeavoring to get those

people to make some arrangement that would raise

the money to pay off the balance due on the ship

and made various propositions, one of which was

that if they would raise cash to pay these lien debts
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against the ship, that ]\Ir. Waterhoiise would take

the notes of the company, secured by a mortgage on

the vessel for a much longer time than that men-

tioned in the agreement made with Mr, Pusey—my
recollection is that Mr. Waterhouse proposed to ex-

tend his debt to six, twelve and eighteen months, if

all other debts against the company should be paid

off by the parties interested, so that his debt be the

first lien against the ship, and the company would

be in a sound financial condition. That proposition

was entertained for several days, and the parties

were negotiating to raise the money with which to

carry it out. Mr. King at one time indicated that

he and his associates would raise the money to pay

off those debts and take a second mortgage upon the

ship for the amount thereof. During the time these

negotiations were going on a great many people in

New York, who were strangers to me, appeared one

time or another in these various meetings, most of

them were parties who claimed to be creditors of

either the North Alaska Steamship Company or the

Occidental Securities Company, and claimed to have

some kind of assignments or securities, which gave

them some kind of a claim against the ''Garonne";

one of the parties who claimed to be a creditor was

represented by his attorney who came around to see

me and stated he had a maritime lien upon the "Ga-
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ronne" for his client by reason of the fact, as he

claimed, that the money advanced by his client had

been used in paying for supplies and material which

were liens against the ship. I inquired during the

times these negotiations were going on, whether Gen-

eral Dodge could be induced to attend any of the

meetings, or could be reached. Mr. Corwine told

me that he was under the impression General Dodge

was out of the city, Ijut that he would make inquiries

%nd let me know the next morning. The next day

either Mr. Corwine or Mr. Mead, I think it was

Mr. Corwine, reported that General Dodge was out

of the city, and my recollection is that he was rep-

resented to be abroad; at any rate the report was

that he was out of the city and could not be reached.

After that I made no further efforts to reach him.

I did, at various times in those meetings, request or

suggest to the Occidental Securities Company people

and the North Alaska Steamship Company people,

that all parties interested as creditors or otherwise,

should be consulted with the view to getting them

all united and raise the money to pay oif those debts.

On either the 7th or 8tli of July we held a meeting

at the said Merchants' Association office at which

Mr. King represented that he would not undertake

to raise the money estimated to be about $35,000,

to pay off these lien debts. He represented that the
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Occidental Securities Company, in which he was in-

terested, not only held the stock of the North Alaska

Steamship Company, whose only property was the

interest in the steamship '

' Garonne, '

' but that it had

some six or eight, or possibly more mining com-

panies in the Nome, Alaska district, which had been

located and inaugurated by Mr. W. H. Rowe, and

they considered that these mining properties af-

forded a prospect of being very valuable properties

after they were developed. He said that he and his

particular associates had already advanced some

$30,000 to the Occidental Securities Company, and

that it would take $30,000 more to buy the dredgers

and other machiner}^ that was necessary for develop-

ing and working these mining properties; that the

company was looking to him and his particular as-

sociates to raise that money; that he had to elect

whether he would raise the money to pay off and

save the "Garonne" to the company, or raise the

money to purchase the machinery and develop these

mining properties, as he ^vas not able, or not willing,

to undertake to raise the amount which would be

necessary for both enterprises, and after consulta-

tion with the parties whom he had expected to be

associated with him in these future advances, they

had concluded that the mining enterprise afforded
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the better prospect of satisfactory returns, and that

he, therefore, would decline to advance any more

money on the steamship end of the business. The

other parties interested in the Occidental Securi-

ties Company and the North Alaska Steamship

Company stated that that practically put an end to

any hope of their raising any more money. I then

served notice on the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany that they had not kept, and had forfeited the

terms of their contract, and that unless they im-

mediately complied with their contract Frank

Waterhouse & Company would declare the payments

theretofore made by them forfeited and their right

to purchase forfeited; a copy of that notice is filed

with the deposition of Frank Waterhouse and is

marked as Defendants' Exhibit "L-3." That, as I

now recall, was on the 8th of July, it may have been

on the 7th. On the morning of the 9tli of July,

Mr. McKee, the attorney for the North Alaska

Steamship Company, served on me a letter, a copy of

which was filed with the deposition of Mr. Water-

house and marked Defendants' Exhibit "M-3," the

letter being signed "North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, by J. B. Leake, Secretary." At the same time

or immediately preceding or following the service of

this letter, he also furnished me a copy of the resolu-
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tion of the Board of Directors under date of July

8tli, a copy of which is filed as an exhibit to Frank

Waterhouse 's deposition and marked as Defendants'

Exhibit "K-3." After the receipt of this notifica-

tion from Mr. McKee, I took the matter up with

him, and after some considerable discussion he

agreed that he would recommend to his company not

to assert any claim for return of the moneys that

they had paid, nor to engage in any litigation about

it, provided full receipts were exchanged between

Frank Waterhouse & Company and the North

Alaska Steamship Company, so that Waterhouse

should not assert any further claim against the com-

pany and the company would not assert any fur-

ther claim against Frank Waterhouse & Company.

He afterward, and during the same day, furnished

me with a copy of the resolution of the Board of

Directors, under date of July 9th, a copy of which

is filed with Mr. Waterhouse 's deposition and mark-

ed as Defendants' Exhibit "J-3." Thereupon re-

ceipts in full were passed between Frank Water-

house & Company and the North Alaska Steamship

Company, each releasing the other from any fur-

ther claims. I should have stated that in this ar-

rangement with Mr. McKee it was stipulated that

Frank Waterhouse & Company should not assert
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any claims to the freights that were payable at Nome

on the cargo carried up on the "Garonne," those

being the freights that had been transferred by Mr.

Smith to Mr. Pusey. I have here a copy of the re-

lease executed by Frank Waterhouse & Company

to the North Alaska Steamship Company. The re-

lease executed by the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany to Frank Waterhouse & Company was in the

same form as the copy now presented, except that it

was executed by the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany to Frank Waterhouse & Compan}^, instead of

]jy Frank Waterhouse & Company to them. I here-

with hand the master a copy of the release referred

to, and ask that it be marked as an exhibit to my

deposition.

(Document produced and presented by the witness

is marked Defendants' Exhibit "Q-3.")

(Whereupon further proceedings are adjourned

until 2 P. M.)

April 27, 1905, 2 P. M.

Continuation of proceedings pursuant to adjourn-

ment. All parties present as at former hearing.

Mr. BOGLE.—During the time of these negotia-

tions in New York Mr. Waterhouse requested his

office in Seattle to wire hun what amount of out-

standing bills against the North Alaska Steamship
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Company for material, supplies, labor, etc., had. been

up to that date turned into the office, and which re-

mained unpaid. He received a telegram from his

office under date of July 7 furnishing that informa-

tion and which is Complainant's Exhibit No. 11 in

this case.

Immediately after the North Alaska Steamship

Company abandoned their contract, and sometime

during the same day, Mr. Waterhouse and I obtained

a conference with Mr. W. F. King, of Calhoun, Rob-

bins & Company, and Mr. Waterhouse made com-

plaints to Mr. King to the effect that he felt he had

been badly treated by these New York parties, Mr.

King and his associates, in this transaction. He

stated to him that he had been assured from the time

of the original contract of sale that they would carry

out the contract and make their payments and would

take care of whatever debts were incurred against

the ship, and that even so late as the time of Mr.

Mead's visit to Seattle, he had been assured by Mr,

Mead that if he would come back to New York with

him the matter would still be carried out, and that

during all these negotiations that had been held,

covering that length of time (he had been detained

there something like eight or ten days), the same

expectation had been held out, and that all at once

Mr. King and his people had announced that they
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would hold on to their mining proposition and go

ahead with that and drop the steamship matter,

which left Mr. Waterhouse with the shi]3 on his

hands and hills that were due, and immediately pay-

able amounting to over $30,000; and that while he

did not charge that Mr. King personally had been

responsible for the default which had been made

by the North Alaska Steamship Company and the

Occidental Securities Company, that he did feel that

those people, being Mr. King's associates, and that

Mr. King himself, having protracted these negotia-

tions in New York over so many days, Mr. King was

under some obligation to assist Mr. Waterhouse in

taking care of this very large indebtedness which

existed against the ship, which was estimated by

him at that time to be approximately $35,000. Mr.

King claimed that he had been misled by these New
York people

—

Mr. KING.—You are testifying to what conversa-

tions took place in your presence'?

Mr. BOGLE.— (Continuing.) Yes; the three of

us there together. He claimed that they had se-

cured some $30,000 out of him by misrepresenting

the situation.

Mr. KING.—We move to strike out that answer

as not competent and not in any way affecting the

issues in this case; as to any controversy between
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Mr. King and his associates and as to the dealings

between them.

Mr. BOGLE.—(Continuing.) But he stated at

the same time that he felt himself that he owed some-

thing to Mr. Waterhouse, and if there was any prac-

ticable way that he could be of any assistance to him

in taking care of this heavy indebtedness that was

thrown back on him, if Waterhouse would suggest

it that he would entertain it and see what he could

do.

Mr. KING.—I object to that as irrelevant, imma-

terial and incompetent.

Mr. BOGLE.—(Continuing.) And he asked Mr.

Waterhouse what suggestion he had to make along

that line. Mr. Waterhouse said to him that the bal-

ance due on the purchase price was a little over

$37,000—1 think exactly $37,541—that if he had

$30,000 immediately available, it would enable him

to take care of these outstanding bills against the

"Garonne," and whatever additional amount the

bills amounted to he could take care of himself, and

he proposed to Mr. King that if he, King, would put

in $30,000, that he, Waterhouse, would contribute

the $37,000 that was due to him, making the total

of $67,000, and that they would own the steamer in

that proportion, and that he would use the $30,000

contributed by King in relieving the steamer of any
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liens or enciunbranees. He stated that lie made this

proposition because of the stress in which he found

himself; that these debts of thirty odd thousand ex-

isting against the ship were liens and immediately

payable, and that he was not in a financial condition

himself to raise that amount of money to pay them.

Mr. King said that he would think the matter over

and talk with some of his friends or associates about

it, and would give Mr. Waterhouse an answer later

in the afternoon. During that afternoon he came

to Mr. Waterhouse and said that he had considered

the matter, and that under the circumstances he

would accept that proposition with this qualification;

that he would want an equal voice in the manage-

ment of the corporation, and that he would suggest

that their plan could be carried out by organizing

a new corporation, fixing his capital stock at some

nominal sum, one-half of which would be held by

Mr. King and one-half by Mr. Waterhouse, and that

they would convey this vessel to that corporation,

and that corporation would assume the indebtedness

to Waterhouse of $37,000 and to King of $30,000, and

put it in the shape of notes or obligations of the

company, so that in that way Waterhouse would get

$37,000 out of the earnings of the company while

King was getting $30,000, and after that their in-

terest would be , equal. Mr. Waterhouse accepted
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that proposition, and it was then reduced to writing

and signed by the two of them. That agreement is

darted July 9, and was executed in the office of

Griggs, Baldwin & Baldwin in New York by Mr.

King and Mr. Waterhouse in my presence on that

day; a copy of which has been filed herein and

marked Complainant's Exhibit No. "21."

Mr. KING.—I move to strike out all that part of

the witness' testimony construing, or in any way

explaining that agreement, as the agreement is suffi-

ciently specific to explain itself and needs no con-

struction, and it is the best evidence of what it con-

tains.

Mr. BOGLE.—(Continuing.) Mr. Waterhouse

and I left New York, either on the night of the day

that agreement was executed or on the following

day, and returned direct to Seattle.

The Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company

was subsequently organized by Mr. King in New

York, pursuant to that agreement. That company,

after it was organized, did execute notes to Mr.

King aggregating $30,000 and to Mr. Waterhouse

aggregating $37,000, but no mortgage was ever exe-

cuted, iSO far as I know or have any reason to be-

lieve. Those notes were three notes payable to Mr.

King for $10,000 each, one due November 15, 1904,

one due June 5, 1905 and one due November 15, 1905;
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and three notes payable to Frank Waterhoiise &

Company, one for $12,000 clue November 15, 1904,

one for $13,000 due June 5, 1905 and the other for

$12,000 due November 15, 1905. No payment was

ever made on either of these notes. After the or-

ganization of the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company was completed in New York, a bill of sale

was executed by Frank Waterhouse & Company con-

veying the steamship ''Garonne" to that company,

which bill of sale is of record as an exhibit in this

case; the capital stock named in the Merchants' &

Miners' Steamship Company was never issued nor

subscribed for further than as appears by the agree-

ment between Mr. Waterhouse and Mr. King here-

tofore referred to.

In addition to the liabilities that existed against

the North Alaska Steamship Company and which

were liens against the "Garonne," mentioned in the

telegram to Mr. Waterhouse under date of July 7th,

1904, I would state that some time in September or

August—August or September, 1904, a suit was

brought in the United States District Court at Nome,

Alaska, by one C. J. Jorgenson, libelant, against the

steamship "Garonne" and the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, claiming a balance due the libelant

from the North Alaska Steamship Company of

$3,625,02, which was claimed to be a lien against



Grenville M. Dodge and Frank Waterhouse. 287

(Testimony of W. H. Bogle.)

the "Garonne." That suit is still pending in the

court at Nome, Alaska. I am not able to state, of

course, for what amount the ship is liable in the

case. That liability, however, whatever it was, was

not included in the list of debts heretofore filed in

this case and which have been referred to in the

telegram above mentioned.

In April, 1905, the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company transferred and conveyed the steam-

ship ''Garonne" to the Wliite Star Steamship Com-

pany and received in payment therefor $90,000 par

value, of the stock of this latter company. That

stock was divided between Frank Waterhouse &

Company and Mr. King's successor in interest, to

wit, the Mead Development Company. Frank

Waterhouse & Company receiving $48,500 of the

stock and the Mead DeA^elopment Company $41,500.

Soon after the White Star Steamship Company ac-

quired the boat, they chartered the steamer to one

S. A. Sorebemick for one or more voyages carrying

refugees from Shanghai to Odessa. The vessel made

the trip and arrived in the Black Sea about July 10,

1905, and, owing to the disturbance at Odessa, she

proceeded to Theodosa and discharged the refugees

there. The charterer, although obligated to redeliver

the ship at Seattle, abandoned the charter in the lat-

ter part of July, or early in August, 1905, while the
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vessel was at Theodosa in the Black Sea. The

owner, after endeavoring to find some other em-

ployment for the vessel, subsequently sold her to

some parties in Genoa, Italy, at about $40,000. This

vessel was purchased by Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany, Limited, in London, about 1896 or '97 for

$50,000.

Mr. KING.—I move to strike out that last state-

men as irrelevant, immaterial and incompetent.

Mr. BOGLE.—I think that covers everything that

I know about this case.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. KING.) You say in January, 1904, you

were secretary of Frank tVaterhouse & Company ?

A. I was.

Q. And continued as secretary since?

A. I have.

Q. And are still secretary?

A. I think so.

Q. Why do you say "I think so," Mr. Bogle;

don't you know?

A. The meetings of the stockholders and board

of trustees of that company have been very irregular,

inasmuch as the stock is held in very few hands. I

say "I think I am still secretary" because I have

never been notified of any election of a successor.
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Q. As far as }'Oii know you are still sec'retaiy"?

A. Yes.

Q. During that time you were also a stockholder'?

A. No, sir, I never have heen a stockholder, ex-

cept to hold one share for qualification.

Q, During all this time you have represented Mr.

Waterhouse as his attorney, and that company as its

attorney? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have spoken in your direct examination of

a receipt which was executed to Ferguson on the

first payment on the "Garonne"; that first payment

was $1,000, wasn't it? A. Yes.

Q. And do you know that General Dodge ever

saw that receipt or any of the conditions it con-

tained"? A, I do not.

Q. Do you know where that receipt is now?

A. I think I saw a copy of it in these exhibits

(referring to documents). I will answer that I do

not know where the original receipt is. When the

second payment of $14,000 was made on February

15, there was a similar receipt executed for that

money, except that it ran to C. B. Smith, while my
impression is that the first one ran to W. E. Fergu-

son. I find -a copy of that second receipt is filed here

as Defendants' Exhibit "B-3" to Frank Water-

house's deposition in this case. My recollection is

that I drew both receipts and they were in practi-
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cally the same terms, except as to the amount and

and except as stated above that I think the first one

ran to W. H. Ferguson, although I am not sure

of that.

Q. Who was Ferguson, Mr. Bogle?

A. I do not know, I never heard of him prior

to this transaction.

Q. Wasn't he a ship broker?

A. I do not think so, although I do not know posi-

tively.

Q. Wasn't he emj^loyed by Frank Waterhouse &

Company to obtain a purchaser for the "Garonne"?

A. I never understood that he was

Q. Wasn't he to get a commission on the sale to

the North Alaska Steamship Company people?

A. I have no personal knowledge of that, but I

do have an impression that I was so told at the time,

but my understanding was that he came to Frank

Waterhouse ivith the purchaser without disclosing

names and said it was New York parties, and the

deal was negotiated on that line, and at that tune,

or some subsequent time, Mr. Waterhouse agreed to

pay him a commission if the sale w^as effected.

Q. Do you know whether or not he has been paid

the commission?

A. I do not. I have no personal knowledge of

any of the payments or of any of the disbursements

in this case.



Grenville M. Bodge and Frank Waterhouse. 291

(Testimony of W. H. Bogle.)

Q. Was be at an,y time employed by Waterbousc

during tbose negotiations in any other capacity?

A. Notbing tbat I ever beard of,

Q. Were you present witb Pusey and Smith and

Waterhouse when the statement ^yas made as to the

$14,000 worth of indebtedness against the "Gar-

onne," on or about June first or second*?

A. Yes, I was present when that statement was

made, but I am not sure whether it was at the meet-

ing when Mr. Smith was present or at the meeting

when Mr, Pusey and Mr. Waterhouse were present,

when Smith was absent.

Q. Was Pusey present at the meeting, whether

Smith was there or not*?

A. Pusey was present at the time this fourteen

or fifteen thousand dollar estimate was made by

some computation of the various accounts which had

been either received at Mr. Waterhouse 's office or

received and reported b}'- Mr. Hastings from the

North Alaska Steamship Company office direct, or

which were known by some of the parties to be out-

standing, although not reported. It was not under-

stood to be an accurate statement, but it was the

closest estimate that they could make,

Q. It was made by Mr. Waterhouse, was it, from

data in his office then?
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A, My recollection is the statement was made by

Mr. Waterhouse as a thing which had been discussed

by hun and Mr. Pusey and accounts gone over be-

fore I arrived there. At any rate, I took it as an

accepted fact tJiat it was the best information they

both had.

Q. And at that meeting it was understood by

those present that that was practically the entire in-

debtedness against the ship outside of what was due

on the purchase price to Waterhouse & Company?

A. It was thought it would not exceed $15,000;

that was on the first day that we had our meeting.

On the next day other bills came in which would

indicate it would run higher.

Q. It was thought, however , that the receipts

from the passenger money w^ould pay those bills or

go a large way towards paying them'?

A. Yes.

Q. Who received that passenger money?

A. I cannot state of my own personal knowledge;

I can only give you what I understood at the time.

Q. Did you understand that Waterhouse & Com-

pany—that they passed through Waterhouse &

Company's hands?

A. I understood that some of the freight bills

were paid direct into Waterhouse & Company's

office, some of them were paid direct into the North
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Alaska Steamship Company's office in charge of

Captain Hastings, some of them were paid I think

at the dock where the freight was delivered, and

some of the passenger money was paid into Captain

Caine's office; who was acting as agent for securing

passengers for the ship.

Q. But this money eventually all came to Water-

house, didn't it? A. I think so.

Q, And Waterliouse & Comjjany were agents for

the ship and Caine, if an agent at all, was a sub-

agent under Waterhouse.

A. Waterhouse was agent for the ship and was

to receive, as I understood, a commission upon the

gross passenger and freight receipts. Caine, as I

understood, was appointed by either Ferguson or

Hastings, but I mav be in error about that; in fact

I do not think I ever knew who had made his appoint-

ment. Mr. Waterhouse insisted that all receipts

should come to his office, because he claimed the ship

belonged to him and he was vitally interested in see-

ing that the debts against her were paid, as far as

those receipts would pay them.

Q. There was also an agreement or understand-

ing, was there not, that no bills should be incurred

without Waterhouse 's sanction?

A. I do not think there was any agreement to

that extent. My understanding was that early in
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the negotiations or in the proceedings, say in Feb-

ruary or March and ]3ossibly in April, that Water-

house permitted the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, through its representatives, to take only a qual-

itied possession of the ship ; that is, he had Captain

Jordison as his own agent in charge of the ship, but

those other people were permitted to send their rep-

resentatives on board and make some changes and

alterations which they thought were desirable, with

the understanding that all such expenses would Ije

paid for by the North Alaska Steamship Company

immediately, and no debts would be incurred against

the ship. It was sometime after the original con-

tract before I ever heard of any debts being in-

curred against the ship, and from that time on Mr.

Waterhouse was very diligent in endeavoring to get

them paid up.

Q. You know% don't you, Mr. Bogle, that Mr.

Waterhouse insisted on an agreement that no indeb-

edness should be incurred against the ship without

his permission?

A. I cannot say that I know of such an agree-

ment, because I never heard that agreement entered

into between him and those people. I can say this

;

that I was told by him at the time that he would

not permit them to incur any indebtedness against

the ship without they provided a fund at the time to
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pay it and, of course, he would have to have knowl-

edge of it in order to carry out that kind of an ar-

rangement; but that is what he told me and it was

in accordance with the advice I gave him.

Q. Do you know of any freight money being re-

ceived after the ship arrived at Nome'?

A. No, I do not. I do not know anything about

it at all ; I was not at Nome and I do not know.

Q. I mean, received here by Waterhouse & Com-

pany *?

A. No. My understanding has always been there

was none. The report that was made in New York,

or possibly I got that information after I returned

to Seattle ; at any rate after the ship returned here,

was that these freight moneys had been collected by

Mr. Smith and used in connection with those various

enterprises up there—the Desota Mining Company is

one of them, and some other company that they called

the Rowe Mining Company, I think it was, but that is

mere hearsay, I do not know of my own knowl-

edge. I might add, in order to give you every infor-

mation that I have in regard to it; my recollection

is that there was some amount, probably about $900,

that was received by the ship on passenger money on

the southbound voyage, which went into tlie hands

of Waterhouse & Company after the ship returned

down here ; that was not freight money on the north-
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bound, but passenger money on the southbound voy-

age.

Q. When was that received, do you say?

A. Shortly after the ship returned from Nome

;

brought down by the purser, collected by him from

passengers on the southbound trip.

Q. What was done with that money, do you

know '?

A. It was turned into the office of Waterhouse

& ComiDany, as far as I know.

Q. Was it applied against the indebtedness on

the ship, do you know?

' A. I have no personal knowledge. The account

which you have from Mr. Townsend shows what the

amount was and how it was paid. I have no per-

sonal knowledge of it.

Q. The instructions which you state in your di-

rect examination were given to the Chase National

Bank when the bill of sale and mortgage were sent

to the bank, were in writing I presume?

A. Yes.

Q. You have not got a copy of them ?

A. Yes; a copy of the letter accompanying the

papers is made an exhibit to the de])osition of Mr,

Waterhouse.
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Q. You said that S. C. Mead came to Seattle

about the middle of June representing the New

York parties ; did he state whom he represented ?

A. He said that he represented the parties inter-

ested in the North Alaska Steamshij) Company and

Occidental Securities Company.

Q. Did he state that he represented General

Dodge ?

A. No, I do not think he referred to General

Dodge.

Q. At this time, or about this time, you testified

that it was ascertained that the bills against the ship

were much larger than they were supposed to be when

Mr. Pusey was here? A. Yes.

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know whether Mr. Pusey or General

Dodge ever had any information as to that excess

of bills'? A. Up to what time?

Q. Up to the time that Mr. Mead came to Seat-

tle.

A. I have no information on that subject at all.

My information was that Mr. Pusey went from Seat-

tle south, and from there to Texas, and did not re-

turn to New York until after Mr. Waterhouse and

I had left New York and came back to Seattle.

Q. As far as you know, neither Pusey or Dodge

had any knowledge of that increase of indebtedness.
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A. At that time, no.

Q. Nor until you left New York?

A. Not so far as I know. The New York people

all knew it, and whether they communicated it to

General Dodge or not, I do not know.

Q. At the meeting in the office of the Merchants'

Association of New York in the early part of July,

do you know of your own knowledge whether or not

General Dodge or anyone representing him was

present ?

A. If General Dodge was present I think I

would have known it. I do not think, and I feel quite

sure he was not present, although I did not know

General Dodge. If anybody especially represented

him I had no knowledge of it. There were quite

a number of people there whose relations to the

company were unknown to me.

Q. Whereabouts is the Merchants' Association,

whereabouts in New York?

A. It is in the New York Life building on Broad-

way, but I am not able to give you the number, I

do not know.

Q. About how far up on Broadway, do you know ?

A. No, I could not tell you that.

Q. And it was at this meeting that Mead made

his report as to what he had ascertained in Seattle
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as to the debts against the ship and matters gener-

ally out here.

A. Yes, at the first meeting he made that report.

Q. Was that a written report or verbal report ?

A. My recollection is that he had a lot of data

in the shape of accounts and statements and figures,

but he did not read the report, but he used that data

in making his verbal report. I do not know whether

he ever made a written report or not. This was not

a company meeting, but a meeting of all parties,

creditors of the company and stockholders and Mr.

Waterhouse and myself.

Q. Complainant's Exliibit No. 9 is an account

of the debts; debits and credits against the steam-

ship "Garonne," which was afterwards paid by

Frank Waterhouse & Company, or at least by the

money furnished by Mr. King (showing) ; is that

the debt which you mean when you speak of those

debts which were liens against the ship?

A. Yes. Your question, so far as it states the

method of payment, is inaccurate. Mr. King's $30,-

000 was paid into the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company.

Q. Well, there is no contention but what Mr.

King's $30,000 was applied in payment of this in-

debtedness, is there?
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A. None whatever as to tlie use that was made

of it.

Q. So that is what you mean when you speak

of liens'? A. Yes.

Q. You do not contend that all these were mari-

time liens against the ship, do you, although they

may have been money due Waterhouse & Company ?

A. It was not the intention to pay any debt that

was not a lien against the ship; I mean to pay any

debt which had been incurred by the North Alaska

Steamship Comi3any. This company was not in any

way assuming any of the debts of that compan}^

but it was paying such debts as were liens against

the steamship "Garonne," and I do not know of any

claim that was paid that was not a lien against the

ship.

Q. Do you consider that the payment of $2,-

036.07, as 5% conmiission to Frank Waterhouse &

Company on the "Garonne's" first voyage was a

lien against the ship?

A. Well, I do not know whether an agent's com-

mission on the freight money would be a lien or not.

Q. Now, about the payment of 2i/i>7o disburse-

ment commission, amounting to $897.27?

A. I think that would be regarded as a debt

against the ship ; whether it would be stricth^ a mari-

time lien or not, I am not prepared to say.
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Q. You say that you inquired, at tliis meeting,

as to wliether General Dodge could be readied. Of

whom did you inquire, Mr. Bogle?

A. Mr. Corwine. That is, my recollection now is

that it was Mr. Corwine that I spoke to about it;

it is possible it may have been Mr. King and that

he referred the matter to Mr. Corwine; at any rate

the report came from Mr. Corwine the next morning.

Q. You made no other efforts to find General

Dodge beyond those inquiries which you made?

A. No, I had no reason to. T want to state, how-

ever, that in the course of these negotiations and

conference, it was understood by all parties there

just what the condition of General Dodge's matters

was; that he had a claim—he had a debt which he

claimed was a debt of that company and that he

had taken an assignment of those freight 1)ills up

North, and that he had this agreement that tliis

company would execute a second mortgage to secure

it, which was not done.

Q. That statement was made by you to them,

wasn't it?

A. I do not know ; I do not recall whether it was

made by me or by Mr. Waterhouse or by some of the

other parties j it was one of the facts of the situation

which was understood by all the parties, and the

statement was made by somebody, probably by me,
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although I do not now recall it. The status of a

great many other creditors was mentioned at the

same time by the parties who were familiar with

it.

Q. At the meetings of the 7th and 8th of July in

the Merchants' Association's office, was General

Dodge or anyone representing him, present at any

one of those meetings'?

A. No. General Dodge, as far as I know, was

never present or represented specially at any of those

meetings ?

Q. Do you know when the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company served the notice of forfeiture on you

;

do you know whether General Dodge had any notice

or knowledge of that % A. I do not know.

Q. As far as you know he did not %

A. Well, I do not know anything about it.

Q. During those meetings in the early part of

July, at some one of them, you had an interview

with Mr. McKee of McKee & Frost? A. Yes.

Q. In which they claimed that they had a lien

against the ship for part of the purchase price that

was already paid?

A. No. Mr. McKee never made that claim.

Q. He threatened litigation, didn't he?

A. Yes—

Q. And in order to avoid litigation

—
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A, —let me explain a little further about Mr.

McKee's attitude. The letter which he served set

up such a claim and threatened litigation, Mr. Mc-

Kee himself, when I discussed it with him, took a

much more conciliatory attitude, and said they did

not want any litigation, and while he did not, in ex-

press terms, admit that they had no claim against

the ship for those moneys, he intimated or conveyed

the imjDression to me that they had not any.

Q. Then you and Mr, McKay came to an agree-

ment by which he would abandon any claim that he

had, or thought he might have, to this purchase

money, and you would release the North Alaska

Steamship Company from any personal liability re-

garding this indebtedness.

A. No,.

Q. And both gave receipts in full.

A. (Continuing.) The agreement we reached

was that they would give a full release and waiver, or

abandonment, or whatever it might be called, as to

any rights under their contract of purchase, and

and that Waterhouse would give a similar receipt or

release and waiver of any claim against them for the

balance of the purchase money, and that Waterhouse,

in taking back his ship and waiving his claim against

them, would take care of such of the material and

lien debts created by the North Alaska Steamship
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Company at Seattle, as were liens against the ship,

and would not assert any claim to the unpaid freight

bills which had been collected by the North Alaska

Steamship Company at Nome, being the claims which

had been transferred to General Dodge.

Q. It really was a settlement between Waterhouse

and the North Alaska Steamship Company, and after

you got through you each quitclaimed one to the

other.

A. We each executed a waiver or release of any

claims one against the other; it was a settlement to

that extent; we paid them nothing and they paid us

nothing, and they abandoned all their rights under

this option or contract to purchase the shij).

Q. That was done prior to any negotiations with

Mr. King as to the advance of the $30,000.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did Mr. King make that a condition precedent

to his advancing any money ? A. Make what ?

Q. That the North Alaska Steamship Company

should release the ship *?

A. No. At the time we made this arrangement

with Mr. King, Mr. McKee and I had already

reached a settlement. I am not sure whether the

papers had actually passed at that time or not, but

it was all done.

Q. But King knew of this release then ?
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A. Yes; he was present when Mr. Kee handed

me the letter which I have referred to.

Q. How long after that was the interview with

Mr. King and Mr. Waterhouse in which Mr. Water-

honse complained of being badly used?

A. It was very shortl}^ afterwards.

Q. On the same day ?

A. The same day, and my recollection is it was

the same forenoon. When we had separated on the

day before it was under consideration, the proposi-

tion of raising the money to pay off these debts and

letting Mr. Waterhouse extend his debts to six, twelve

and eighteen months, as he had offered to do as a final

resort and we were under the impression that they

were going to accept that proposition, but they came

into the meeting the next morning and announced

that they would not raise any more money for it

whatever, and then, immediately accompanying that

announcement Mr. McKee served this notice on me

that I referred to.

Q. How long after that was the Merchants' '&

Miners' Steamship Company incorporated?

A. I cannot give you the exact date, because I

have not the articles of incorporation. That was in-

corporated in New York after Mr. Waterhouse and

I returned to Seattle.

Q. But shortly after?
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A. Shortly after, and pursuant to this agree-

ment.

Q. The capital stock of that company was placed

at $100,000? A. Yes.

Q. You say it was never issued?

A. Never issued.

Q. Nor subscribed ?

A. Nor subscribed any further than you will find

in that agreement that I have referred to by Mr.

King and Waterhouse ; it was to be divided l^etween

them.

Q. Do you know of any assets that the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Company had, except

the "Garonne"?

A. None whatever. It had not either subscrip-

tion contracts or assets of any other kind except that

steamer.

Q. You stated that in addition to the debts that

were mentioned in the telegram from Seattle at the

time of these meetings in New York, there was a

suit by Jorgenson then pending against the ship in

Alaska.

A. No; I stated that the Jorgenson suit was

brought against the ship during the latter part of

August or the first of September following.

Q. Was not the Jorgenson claim known at the

time of the settlement in New York?
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A, No, it had not been heard of.

Q. Is this the same Jorgenson who has testified

in this case?

A. No; this man is C. J. Jorgenson.

Q. And the man who testified in this case was ?

A, Jordison.

Q. They are two different people then ?

A. Altogether different.

Q. And this Jorgenson who brought the suit was

not in the employ of AYaterhouse & Company at any

time *?

A. Never; he was a lighterage man at Nome.

Q. What was the claim for?

A. Captain Ferguson, on behalf of the North

Alaska Steamship Company during the spring of

1904 had entered into a contract with Jorgenson em-

ploying him to do the lighterage for the "Garonne"

at Nome for that year, and my recollection is, for

a total period of three years, and he had also agreed

to carry up certain lighters and boats and lumber for

Jorgenson. This claim of Jorgenson was for a bal-

ance of the lighterage done for the "Garonne" on

this voyage to Nome, and also a claim for damages

for the failure to carry up those lighters and for

failure to carry up some of the lumber which Fergu-

son had agreed to carry up.
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Q. Had this claim of Jorgenson anything to do

with the claim of P. B. McLeod which you after-

wards settled ?

A. No. I might state that there was a claim of

McLeod which had been filed and which was subse-

quently settled, and this claim of Jorgenson which

is still pending, and we also had a suit by a man

named Johnson seeking to enforce a claim against

the ship which has been tried and a decision in favor

of the ship, so that there was no liability in that case

except the expenses attending the suit.

Q. What was the White Star Steamship Com-

pany capitalized for?

A. Three hundred and fifty thousand dollars. I

might state that the White Star Steamship Company

had been in existence several years prior to April,

1905, and its capital stock had been $75,000. In

April, 1905, Mr. Waterhouse, representing the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship ComiDany, and Mr.

Mark Reed, who was the manager of the White Star

Steamship Company as it then existed, agreed on a

merger or combination of the companies, and in con-

nection therewith they were to buy the steamship

"Ohio." The properties that were owned by the

White Star Steamship Company at that time were

put in at a valuation, and the capital stock of the

company was increased from $75,000 to $350,000.
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The old stockholders received new stock for the val-

uation of the property they put in, and the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Company received

stock for the "Garonne" which they put in, and the

Arlington Dock Company received stock for the

dock leases which they i^ut into the company, and

the new company purchased the "Ohio."

Q. Then the capital stock of the White Star

Steamship Company was practically paid up*?

A. Yes, there was $325,000 of it was paid up.

Q. Was not the ship appraised prior to her being-

put into the White Star Steamship Company^

A. No.

Q. Wasn't she valued or appraised by this man

Fowler and another man"?

A. Not for any purpose connected with that deal,

so far as I ever heard.

Q. Wasn't she appraised?

A. I don't know whether she was or not; she may

have been at some time, but she was not in con-

nection with that deal.

Q. Then you do not know whether or not she was

appraised after she became the property of the Mer-

chants' & Miners' Steamship Company?

A. No, I do not. I do not know of any purpose

for which she would have been appraised, unless it
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may have been some matter in connection witli in-

surance.

Q. You do not know the purpose for which she

was appraised by Fowler and Wiley, in March, 1905 ?

A. I do not.

Q. Was that prior or subsequent to her sale to

the White Star Steamship Company?

A. What is the date?

Q. The date is not given any closer than that.

A. If it was in March it was prior to the con-

solidation with the White Star Steamship Com-

pany; my recollection is that that combination went

into effect about the 13th or 14th of April.

Q. The only date given is March, 1905.

A. That was prior to the consolidation.

Q. Do you know whether or not she was valued

in the charter party to Serebrenick?

A. She was not.

Q. Was she insured for the benefit of the owners

during that charter party?

A. I understood she was.

Q. Do you know to what amount?

A. I do not. I could find out from the statement,

but I cannot quote it from memor}^; my recollection

is that you have that statement in your papers.

Q. Who was this man Serebrenick ?
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(Testimony of W. H. Bogle.)

A. I do not know anything about him, except

that he, acting through some San Francisco brokers,

chartered this ship.

Q. Are you acquainted with the difference in

value, if any, of ships in London and on this coast?

A. I am not.

Q. You do not know as a fact that they fetch a

much better price here than they do there"?

A. I think it would depend on the character of

the ship, the size and tonnage.

Q. Do you know anything about the condition of

the ship jjrior to her sailing for Nome on that voyage

of June 2d, 1904?

A. Nothing of my own knowledge; she was under-

stood to be in good condition.

Q. I think that is all.

Mr. BOGLE.—(Continuing.) I might state in

that connection that the "Garonne" was a ship that

has required a great many repairs every year. She

was an expensive shiy-) to maintain and an expensive

coal-burner and with a very small cargo carrying-

capacity compared with her registered tonnage, and

not well adapted to any business on the Pacific

Coast.

(Testimony of witness closed.)

Here defendants rest.



312 Frank Waterhoiise cO Co., Inc., vs.

May 6tli, 1906, 10 o'clock A. M.

The testimony in behalf of defendants being

closed, solicitor for complainant makes the follow-

ing offers of testimony in rebuttal:

Mr. KING.—Complainant now offers in evidence

in rebuttal certified copy of the certificate of incorpo-

ration of the Merchants' and Miners' Steamship

Company of New York.

Mr. BOGLE.—Defendants object to the introduc-

tion of the same in evidence on the ground that the

same is irrelevant, immaterial and incompetent.

(Docmnent received in evidence and marked

"Complainant's Exhibit No. 25.")

Mr. KING.—Complainant now offers in evidence

in rebuttal certified copy of the certificate in pay-

ment of entire stock of the Merchants' and Miners'

Steamship Company of New York.

Mr. BOGLE.—Defendants object to the introduc-

tion of the same in evidence on the ground that the

same is irrelevant, immaterial and incompetent.

(Document received in evidence and marked

"Complainant's Exhibit No. 26.")

Whereupon all parties rest and the testimony is

closed.

I hereby certify that the foregoing depositions of

said witnesses were taken by said Master and by

said Special Examiner, and reduced to writing and
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are herewith returned, and the foregoing are such

depositions and the whole thereof; that the reading

and signing of the depositions of each and all of

said witnesses by said witnesses were, by the wit-

nesses themselves and the solicitors for the respec-

tive j^arties, waived.

That the exhibits herewith returned and duly

marked, were during the taking of said depositions,

as appears in said record, offered in evidence by the

respective solicitors for the parties, and are certified

and marked as such exhibits.

That the taking of said depositions was adjourned

from time to time to suit the convenience of the par-

ties and solicitors, and occupied six days; that the

compensation of said Master and said Examiner is

as follows: $209.50; and said depositions as said

exhibits, so as aforesaid mentioned, are all of the

proofs and testimony taken in said cause, and the

same are herewith returned.

All of which is respectfully certified.

N. W. BOLSTER,

Special Examiner.

[Endorsed]: Testimony. Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.
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Complainant's Exhibit No. 8.

Register No. 54 Official Number,

Numerals Letters.

Pei-manent. 86504 KPTW

COPY OF CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRY.

In pursuance of chapter one, title XLVIII, "Reg-

ulation of Commerce and Navigation, '

' Revised Stat-

utes of the United States.

Frank Waterhouse, of Seattle, Washington, Presi-

dent, having taken and subscribed the oath required

by law, and having sworn that the Merchants and

Miners Steamship Company, of New York, a cor-

poration organized under the laws of the State of

New York, as the only owner of the vessel called the

Garonne of New York whereof John Gordeson

is at present master, and is a citizen of the

United States; and that the said vessel was built in

the year 1871, at Glasgow, Scotland, as appears by

P. R. #108, issued at Port Townsend, Wash., May

4, 01; surrendered, 0. & Dist. Changed; and said

Register having certified that the said vessel has

four decks and three masts, and that her length is

371 and tenths feet, her breadth 41 feet and 4

tenths, her depth 20 feet and 4 tenths, her

height feet and tenths; that she meas-



GrenviUc M. Dodge and Frank Waterhouse. 315

ures Twenthy-three liimdred nineteen tons and

hundredths, viz:

Tons lOOths.

Capacity under tonnage deck 1938 19

Capacity between decks above tonnage

deck 1962 93

Capacity of inclosures on the upper

deck, viz : 44 54

Gross Tonnage 3945

Deductions under Section 4153, Revised Statutes,

as amended by Act of March 2, 1895:

Crew space, 233,79; Master's cabin 233.79

Steering gear; Anchor gear, 46.62; Boat-

swain's stores, 71.12 117.74

Chart-house; Donkey engine and boiler;

Storage of sails 12.03; Propelling power

1262.61 1274.64

Total Deductions 1626.17

Net Tonnage 2319.

The following—Described spaces, and no others,

have been omitted, viz:

and that she is a Screw Steamer (iron), has a figure

head and an elliptic stern; and the said having

agreed to the description and admeasurement above

specified, according to law, said vessel has been duly

registered at the Port of Port Townsend, Washing-

ton.



316 Frank Waterliouse d- Co., Inc., vs.

Given under my hand and seal, at the Port of Port

Townsend, this 6th day of August, in the year one

thousand nine hundred and four.

Place for seal of No. Place for seal

Naval Officer. Naval Officer, of Collector.

CHAS MILLER,

Deputy Collector of Customs.

[Seal of the United States Treasury.]

E. T. CHAMBERLAIN,
Commissioner of Navigation.

[Endorsed also] : Deft. F. Waterhouse, Exhibit 8.

Piled before Eben Smith, Master In Chancery,

United States, Western District of Washington,

Northern Division. Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court,

Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16, 1906. A.

Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore Dep.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 9.

INDEBTEDNESS NORTH ALASKA STEAM-
SHIP CO.

Statement from Seattle books of the Merchants &

Miners S. S. Co.

1904

July 19, Commercial St. Boiler

Works 1,485.27

Frye Bruhn Co., Inc. . . 2,689.78

Gorham Rubber Co 52.70

S. Hyde 48.50
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Johnson & Higgins .... 325.00

Kilbourne & Clark Co . . 819.09

King & Winge, bal-

ance 1,725.60

McCabe & Hamilton,

Inc 980.27

South Prairie Coal

Co ;... 503.70

Star Publishing Co ... . 28.09

Times Printing Co 57.20

Foster & Kleiser 16.00

20, Prank Waterhouse &

Co. Inc. 5% commis-

sion on '

' Garonne '

'

Voy. 1 earnings 2,036.07

21, Frank Waterhouse &

Co. Inc., balance

214% disbursing com-

mission 597.27

22, Western Union Tel.

Co 64.66

Pacific Tribune Pub.

Co 50.00

Daily Gazette 12.50

The Guide 6.50

City Dye Works 4.00

Post Intelligencer Co. .

.

49.12

Globe Wall Paper Co. .

.

1.00

Frank Waterhouse &
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Co. Inc., Insurance

Feb. Mth to May

30tli 382.83

March telegrams 12.17

Montana Stables 2.00

MacDougall & South-

wick Co 584.31

Sunde & Erland Co 429.83

23, J. R. Mason, Harbor

policy 164.08

23, J. R. Mason, Harbor

policy 54,69

J. R. Mason, London

policies 4,471.09

25, M. Seller & Co 387.50

27, E. E. Caine, commis-

sion 892.25

29, J. Sullivan, wages in

May 2.50

J. Still, wages in May . . 4.00

Aug. 1, 0. A. Johansen, Master,

July 1st, 16th 128.17

4, Lewis, Foard, Anderson

& Co 161.50

Pacific Coast Co 4,271.45

9, Paid Arlington Dock

Co., McDowells de-

posit to apply on Ry.
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freight on cargo for

''Garonne" 30.00

Sept. 2, Seattle Hardware Co.. 1,788.83

Standard Furniture Co. 451.15

Oct. 5, Schwabacher Bros. &

Co 2,874.13

Nov. 18, 0. A. Johansen, Mas-

ter, July 17 to Aug. 1. 90.67

Dec. 19, W. M. Johnson 127.00

Jan. 31, 1905, P. B. McLeod. . . 300.00

1904

Credit.

Aug. 3, Bowen & Co., for pota-

toes returned 31.63

Oct. 5, Part of purchase price

of ss. "Garonne". . . .30,000.00

1905

Feb. 18, Return premium Lon-

don ins. policies while

"Garonne" in harbor

July 3d to August

23d 568.35

29,162.47 30,599.98

29,162.47

Credit balance, 1,437.51

[Endorsed]: Complainant's Exhibit 9. Filed in

the U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washing-
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ton. Jim. 16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A.

N. Moore, Dep.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 10.

S. S. "Garonne"

4,000 Tons.

Sailing June 2d, 1904 at 7:30 P. M. Sharp.

For Nome, Solomon, Bluff City, Golovin Bay, con-

necting at Golovin Bay for White Mountain and

Council City. Connecting at Nome for Tellar, York

and Kotzebu Sound.

Through tickets and bills of lading to all Points.

Ticket Office, Freight Office,

608 First Ave. 102 First Ave.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.& CO., Inc., Agents.

[Endorsed]: Compl'ts. Exhibit 10. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the U.

8. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Complainant's Exhibit No. 11.

Copy.

TELEGRAM
Seattle, Wash., July 7, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Holland House, New York City.

Unpaid North Alaska bills thirty three thousand

five hundred exclusive disbursing commission. Cash

sixty two hundred. Obligations including rod, ma-

chine work, payroll this and next week, twenty two

hundred fifty.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Plffs. Exhibit 11. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the

U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington,

Jun. 16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N.

Moore, Dep,

Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 12.

(On Letterhead of Frank Waterhouse and Co. Inc.)

Seattle, Wash., July 20th, 1904.

(Duplicate.)

North Alaska Steamship Co., to Frank Waterhouse

& Co., Inc., Agents. Dr.

For 5% commission on $40,721.43 the earnings of

The S. S. Garonne, Voyage 1, sailed from

Seattle June 2d, 1904 $ 2,036.07



322 Franh WaterJiouse d- Co., Inc., vs.

Passenger earnings per manifest less re-

bates 23,496.50

Freight, per manifest 21,580.44

Less proportion of river freight . . 4,024.48

17,555.96

Less rebate to Alaska Gold Mining

Co 331.03 17,224.93

40,72L43

July 20th, 1904.

Received from the Merchants' and Miners' Steam-

ship CO., two thousand thirtj^-six and 07/100 in set-

tlement of above commission.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO. INC.

By J. P. TOWNSEND, Treas.

[Endorsed]: Plff's. Exhibit 12. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the U.

S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Jun.

16, 1906, A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 13.

(On Letterhead of Frank Waterhouse & Co. Inc.)

Seattle, Wash., July 21st, 1904.

Duplicate.

North Alaska Steamship Co., to Frank W^aterhouse

& Co., Inc. Dr.
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For 2-1/2 % disbursing com-

mission on $32,578.13 $814.45

Disbursements as follows

:

Garonne repairs and port expenses 15,616.12

Garonne voyage 1 15,557.62

General expenses 279.39

Marine insurance 1,125.00

32,578.13

Received July 21st, 1904, from. Merchants' and

Miners' Steamship Co., five hundred ninety-seven

27/100 dollars in settlement of the balance of above

account (two hundred seventeen 18/100 dollars hav-

ing been paid from funds of North Alaska Steamship

Co.)

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO. INC.

By J. P. TOWNSEND, Treas.

[Endorsed]: Plff's. Exhibit 13. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the U.

S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Jun.

16, 1906, A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.
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Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 14.

(On Billhead of Frank Waterhouse & Co. Inc.)

Duplicate.

Seattle, Wash. June 14, 1904.

North Alaska Steamship Companj^ to Frank Water-

house & Co., Inc. Dr.

For proportion of insurance from February

14th, 1904, to May 30th, 1904, on Western

policy #2672, issued November 30th,

1903, for $75,000 on S. S. ''Garonne,"

Total premium November 30th to May

30th, $656.25, 3-1/2 months $382.83

Paid July 22, 04.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., INC.

By J. P. TOWNSEND, Treas.

[Endorsed]: Plff's. Exhibit 14. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the U.

S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Jun.

16, 1906, A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 15.

Duplicate.

$128.17.

Seattle, Washington, Aug. 1, 1904.

Received from the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company one hundred twenty-eight and 17/100
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dollars, in settlement of services as Master of the S.

S. "Garonne."

July 1st to Oth inc., 9 days at $250 per mo 75.00

July lOth to 16th, inc., 7 days at $125 " .... 29.17

16 days board at $1.50 per day 24.00

O. A. JOHANSEN.
[Endorsed] Plff's. Exhibit 15. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the U.

S. Circuit Court, Western District of Washington,

Jmi. 16, 1906, A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 16.

Duplicate.

$30.00.

Seattle, Wash., Aug. 9, 1904.

Received from the Merchants' & Miners' Steam-

ship Company, thirty dollars, to apply on the Rail-

way freight on cargo shipped by John C. IMcDowell

from Chambersburg, Pa., for the S. S. "Garonne"

Voyage 2.

ARLINGTON DOCK CO.

[Endorsed]: Plff's. Exhibit 16. E])en Smith,

Master in Chancery, United States, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the U.

S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 17.

Duplicate.

$90.67.

Seattle, Wash., Nov., 18, 1904.

Received from the Merchants' and Miners' Steam-

ship Company, ninety 67/100 dollars, in settlement

for services as Master of the S./S. "Garonne"

:

July 17 to Aug. 2, 1904, 16 days at $125 per mo. 66.67

16 days' board at $1.50 per day 24.00

90.67

And I hereby acknowledge settlement in full and

release the S/S '

' Garonne '

' from all claims.

O. A. JOHANSEN.

[Endorsed]: Plff's. Exhibit 17. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancer}'', Western District

of Washington,Northern Division. Filed in the U.

S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres. Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 19.

Cash Received from Chas. B. Smith and North

Alaska Steamship Company, from February 3,

1904, to July 12, 1904, a/c "Garonne."

1904.

Feb. 3, Cash from New York 1,000.00

15, Cash from New York 14,000.00
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Mch. 15, Cash from New York 7,000.00

18, Cash from New York 3,000.00

Apr. 11, 10 (lays sight draft on C. B. Smith 5,000.00

May 10, Cash from W. H. Ferguson, T. M . . 1,000.00

13, Casli paid F. Waterhouse in New

York April 24th 5,000.00

18, Cash from W. H. Ferguson, T. M. 560.00

23, Cash from New York 2,500.00

26, Cash from New York 5,000.00

27, Cash from New York 10,000.00

31, Cash from W. H. Ferguson, T. M. 690.00

June 1, Cash from W. H. Ferguson, T. M. 1,195.00

1, Cash from New York 5,000.00

2, Cash from W. H. Ferguson, T. M. 6,137.55

2, Cash from L. H. Gray & Co 2,650.50

3, Cash from New York 1,060.00

3, Cash from Arlington Dock Co ... . 5,248.49

3, Cash from Chilberg & Fredericks . . 570.00

6, Cash from Alaska Pacific Nav. Co. 2,933.46

6, Cash from Alaska Pacific Nav. Co. 1,091.54

6, Cash from L. H. Gray «fe Co 50.00

6, Cash from Arlington Dock Co ... . 399.37

9, Cash John Jordison, balance from

payrolls 49.49

9, Cash Frank Waterhouse & Co. for

Bonnell's tickets 150.00

25, Cash Prepaid freight, J. C. Mc-

Dowell 30.00
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July 5, Cash W. H. Ferguson, T. M., re-

mittance from Nome June 24 on

sale passenger tickets south .... 900.00

11, Cash 1 day on payroll returned. . . . 2.00

19, Returned from pa3''roll by John

Jordison 1.00

82,218.40

Statement of the Disbursements of 82,218.40, funds

received from Chas. B. Smith, and North Alaska

Steamship Co., Account SS. "Garonne"

1904.

Frank Waterhouse & Co., a/c pur-

chase SS. "Garonne," 48,600.00

Mar. 7, Labor and Material, Feln-uary . . 982.13

Apr. 7, Labor and Material, March 1,098.90

May 5, Labor and Material, April 1,076.90

6, Western Union Tel. Co., April . . 11.80

9, Postal Tel. Co., April 39.14

10, Customs, entrance from Victoria 75.24

21, King & Winge, on a/c 800.00

23, S. W. R.Dally 122.43

31, W. H. Morris, a/c painting .... 622.10

Victoria Dry Docking a/c 1,979.31

Funds advanced Captain Jordison

for payment laborers 4,856.00

June 1, J. M. Shawhan, Purser, a/c Port

Payroll 756.25
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2, J. M. Shawhan, Purser, a/c Port

Payroll 181.00

2, John Hughes, Clann 75.00

6, S. S. "Garonne" Repairs & Port

Expenses, D. C. Wilson 19.00

Diamond Ice & Storage Co . . 1.40

Henry Argens 93.10

City Dye Works 8.00

P. S. Dry Dock & Machine Co .

.

47.14

Tacoma Tug & Barge Co. . . 42.00

S. S. ''Garonne" Voyage 1,

Duwamish Dairy Co 20.60

Cascase Laundry Co 82.88

E. P. Burke ' :10.00

Max Kuner 115.60

Queen City Laundry 151.80

7, S. S. "Garonne" Voyage 1,

C. H. Lilly & Co I,177.e57

H. W. Moulton 467.10

Romans Photo Co 18.40

Standard Oil Co 235.24

Schwabacher Hardware Co ... . 66.34

Washington Fish Co 149.02

Val. Schott 20.00

G. Beninghausen • 2.50

Arlington Dock Co 831.91

S. S. "Garonne" Repairs & Port

Expense, A. F. Hutton 446.69
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Magnesia Asbestos Supply Co. 192.50

Washington Mattress Co. . . . 176.85

Walter Bowen & Co 53.68

Forward 65,705.52

1904 Brought forward 65,705 . 52

June 9, SS. "Garonne" Repairs & Port

Expense C. M. Shaw & Co., on % 800 . 00

J. Jordison, overseer. May 173 . 00

Pilotage 240 . 00

SS. "Garonne" Voyage 1

Chesley Tow Boat Co 23 . 00

Stevenson, Blekum Tug Co 150 . 00

Seattle Office, W. B. Hastings, A,

T. M 300.00

11, General Expense

Western Union Tel. Co 6.15

Postal Tel. Cable Co. 80 . 82

13, Seattle Office, W. B. Hastings, A.

T.M 20.00

17, Marine Insurance

Western Assurance #2775, $20,-

000.... 600.00

Maritime Ins., #1336, $17,500. . 525.00

18, SS. "Garonne" Repairs & Port

Expense, King & Winge on % . . 1,000 . 00

21, SS. "Garonne" Repairs and

Port Expense, Northwestern Im-

provement Co 425 . 49
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22, General Expense, Western Un-

ion Tel. Co., May 123.02

24, Seattle Office, W. B. Hastings,

A. T. M 20.00

SS. '* Garonne" Voyage 1,

L. H. Gray & Co., 5% commission

on freight 93 . 22

27, Seattle Office, W. B. Hastings, A.

T. M 20.00

30, Seattle Office, W. B. Hastings, A.

T. M 75.00

July 2, Seattle Office, W. B. Hastings, A.

T. M 150.00

SS, "Garonne" Voyage 1, Payroll

crew 5,217.10

5, SS. "Garonne," Voyage 1, Payroll

crew 21.00

Payroll crew, overtime 43 . 95

6, Seattle Office, O. A. Holiansen . . 166 . 85

7, SS. "Garonne," Voyage 1, J.

Knox, Commissioner 5 . 00

J. Morrison, 2 clays' labor 4.00

General Expense, Postal Tel. Cable

Co., June 18.46

8, SS. "Garonne," Voyage 1, H. Al-

exander, 1 day 2 . 25

9,SS. "Garonne," Repairs & Port

Expense, Payroll week ending

July 9, 1904 514.05
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11, Seattle Office, J. M. Sliawhan

Purser 18 . 75

13, SS. "Garonne," Voyage 1, Bal-

ance payrolls 10 . 00

SS. "Garonne," Repairs & port

expense, payroll, July 12 10 . 40

Purser, July 10, 13 21 . 67

Forward 76,584.03

1904. Brought forward 76,584.03

June 15, SS. " Garonne, " Voyage 1

Phoenix Commercial Stamp

Works 103.20

Benson, Morris Co 6 . 90

Globe Wall Paper Co 50 . 75

Quaker Drug Co 85 . 33

White Adv. Bureau 82 . 50

Oxford Tailoring Co 6 . 00

W. Bowen & Co 840.18

Baker & Richards Co 69 . 38

Armour & Co 1,376 . 20

Greham, Merriam Co 117.63

SS. "Garonne," Repairs and

Port Expense, Eilers Piano

House 275 . 00

C. M. Shaw & Co 1,295.78

16, SS. "Garonne," Repairs & Port

Payroll week ending July 16 . . 321 . 50
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SS. "Garonne," Voyage 1

J. B.Agen 786.84

21, General Expense

To apply on 2-i/)% disbursing

commission on $32,578.45 ... 217 . 18

82,218.40

[Endorsed]: Plffs. Exhibit 19. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the U.

S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Jun.

16, 1906. A. Eeeves Ayres. Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 20.

(On Letterhead of Canton Insurance Office, Ltd.)

Seattle, Wash., Jan. 3rd, 1905.

Frank Waterhouse & Company, Inc., Burke Block,

City.

Gentlemen

:

S. S. GARONNE.

Replying to your inquiry. This vessel was cov-

ered by insurance during the period, July 1st to

April 8th, as follows:

Issued May 30, 1904 $37500 one year at

12% prem $4500.00

Issued June 1, 1904 62500 six months

7-7/20% prem 4471.11
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Issued Nov. 30, 1904 62500 one year

1-3/4% prem 1093.75

This last policy was issued covering harbor risk

upon the expiration of the policies written June 1st

for $62500, the vessel being insured during the en-

tire period for $100000, the rate on $37500 being

1% per month for six months from May 30th to

November 30th; the rate on $62500 being 7-7/20%,

ending November 30th. From November 30th to

April 8th the rate was 1-3/4% per annum.

Yours very truly,

J. R. MASON.

[Endorsed]: Plffs. Exhibit 20. Eben Smith.

United States Master in Chancery, Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in

the U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washing-

ton, Jun. 16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A.

N. Moore, Dep,

Complainant's Exhibit No. 21.

Memorandmn of Agreement made this the 9th day

of July, 1904, between Wm. P. King of New York

City, party of the first part, and Frank Waterhouse,

of Seattle, Washington, party of the second part.

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants

and agreements hereinafter expressed, the said par-

ties mutually agree as follows:
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First. The said Wm. F. King acting for both

parties, will at once organize a corporation under

the laws of the State of New York, to be known as

the Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company of

New York, with a capital stock of one hundred

thousand dollars ($100,000.00), such corporation to

have all the powers usual and conunon to transporta-

tion companies. The Board of Directors shall be

composed of five members and the board for the first

year shall consist of the following persons : William

F. King, Wm. R. Corwine and S. Cristy Mead,

of the city of New York, and Franli Waterhouse

and W. H. Bogle, of the City of Seattle. For the

first year the President shall be Frank Waterhouse,

the Vice-president W. H. Bogle and the Secretary

S. C. Mead. The said Wm. F. King is to receive

fifty thousand dollars par value of the capital stock,

and the said Frank Waterhouse is to receive the

other fifty thousand dollars par value of the capital

stock.

Second. Upon the formation of said corporation,

said Waterhouse will have Frank Waterhouse &

Co., Inc., execute a bill of sale conveying to said

new Company the steamship "Garonne," with her

equipment, supplies and material on board, and also

turn into the Treasury of said Company, the cash

in the hands of Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., re-

ceived from the last voyage of the "Garonne."
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Third, The said Wm. F. King will advance to

said new company, the sum of thirty thousand dol-

lars ($30,000.00), in cash, to be applied in the pay-

ment and discharge of the claims now existing against

the steamship for supplies, material, repairs, etc.,

said money to be deposited by said King in the Chase

National Bank, New York, to the credit of Frank

Waterhouse fifteen thousand dollars (15,000.00)

thereof, on or before Jul}^ 16th, 1904, and the re-

maining fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) on or

before July 23rd, 1904.

Fourth. Said new company shall executed a

mortgage securing to said Wm. F. King the said

sum of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00), and to

said Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., the sum of

thirty-seven thousand dollars, with interest on said

amounts from July 15th, 1904. Said mortgage to

contain the usual covenants and agreements contain-

ed in such instruments, but to provide specifically

against any personal liability or stock liability of

either of the parties hereto for any part of the in-

debtedness expressed in said mortgage. Said in-

debtedness to be represented by notes given by said

mortgagor company to said respective parties as

above, and each of the notes to be of equal rank un-

der the mortgage, and to be payable at such time or

times as said parties hereto may hereafter agree,

and to bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum.
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Fifth. Said Waterhouse shall advance to said

new Company such amount as may be needed for the

operation of the steamer during the present season.

Executed in duplicate above named.

(Signed) WM. F. KING.

(Signed) FRANK WATERHOUSE.
MEMO. OF NOTES.

KING NOTES.

$10,000 due Nov. 15th, 1904.

10,000 due June 5th, 1905.

10,000 due Nov. 15th, 1905.

$30,000

WATERHOUSE NOTES.

$12,000 due Nov. 15th, 1904.

13,000 due June 5th, 1905.

12,000 due Nov. 15th, 1905.

King $30,000

Waterhouse 37,000

$67,000

[Endorsed]: Plff. Exhibit 21. Eben Smith.

United States Master in Chancery, Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in

the U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washing-

ton, Jun. 16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N.

Moore, Dep.
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Complainant's Exhibit No. 22.

BILL OF SALE OF REGISTERED VESSEL.

To all to Whom These Presents Shall Come, Greet-

ing:

Know ye, that Frank Waterhonse & Co., Inc., of

Seattle, Washington, Sole Owner of the screw

steamer or vessel called the "Garonne" of Seattle,

Washington, of the burden of 2319/100 tons, or

thereabout, for and in consideration of the sum of one

hundred and sixty-seven thousand ($167,000) dol-

lars, lawful money of the United States of America,

to it in hand paid, before the sealing and delivery

of these presents, by Merchants' and Miners' Steam-

ship Company of New York, Incorporated under

the Laws of the State of New York, the receipt

whereof it does hereby acknowledge and is therewith

fully satisfied, contented, and paid, have bargained

and sold, and by these presents do bargain and sell,

unto the said Merchants' and Miners' Steamship

Company of New York, its successors, and assigns,

the whole of the said steamer or vessel, together with

the whole of the masts, bowsprit sails, boats, anchors,

cables, tackle, furniture, and all other necessaries

thereunto appertaining and belonging ; the certificate

of the registry of which said steamer or vessel is as

follows, viz.

:
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Register No. 108.

Official Number Numerals, 8650-t.

Letters, K. P. T. W.

In pursuance of Chapter One, Title XLVIII
"Regulation of Commerce and Navigation," Revised

Statutes of the United States, AV. P. Prichard,

Secy, of Frank Waterhouse Co., Inc., and R. Mc-

Farland, master, having taken and subscribed the

oath required by law, and having sworn that The

Frank Waterhouse and Co., Incorporated, is the only

owner of the vessel called the "Garonne" of Seat-

tle, Wasli., whereof R. M. McFarland, is at present

Master, and is a citizen of the United States, and

that the said vessel was built in the year 1871, at

Govan, Scotland, as appears by P. R. No. 48B, is-

sued at Seattle, Wash., May 12, 1900. Surrd. O.

C, and said register having certified that the said

vessel has 4 decks and 3 masts, and that her length

is 371 and — tenths feet, her breadth 41 feet and

4 tenths, her depth 20 feet and 4 tenths, her height

15 feet and 8 tenths ; that she measures 2319 tons

and — hundredths, viz

:

Tons lOOths

Capacity under tonnage deck 1938 19

Capacity between decks above tonnage

deck 1962 93
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Capacity of inclosures on the upper

deck, viz : 44 54

Gross Tonnage 3945 —
Deduction under Section 4153, Revised Statutes,

as amended by Act of March 2, 1895

:

Crew space, 233.79; Master's cabin,

steering gear, anchor gear,

boatswain 's stores, 71.12;

chart-house ; donke}^ engine

and boiler; storage of sails,

12.03
;
propelling power, 126.61

Total Deductions .... 1626 . 17 1626 . 17

Net Tonnage 2319.

The following described spaces, and no others,

have been omitted, viz., and that she is a Str. sc.

(iron) has a figurehead and a elliptic stern; and

the said having agreed to the description and

admeasurement aljove specified, according to law,

said vessel had been duly registered at the port of

Port Townsend.
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Given under my hand and seal, at the Port of Port

Townsend, this 4th day of May, in the Year One

Thousand Nine Hundred and one (1901),

No. (Seal)

[Seal] F. I). HEUSTIS, [Seal]

Collector of Customs.

[Seal of the United States Treasury.]

EUGENE TYLER CHAMBERLAIN,

Commissioner of Navigation.

Formerly Br. S/S "Garonne." Remeasured at

Seattle, Wash., 1900.

To have and to hold the said whole of the steamer

and appurtenances thereunto belonging, unto—tlie

said Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company of

New York, its successors and assigns, to the sole and

only proper use, benefit, and behoof or—the said

Merchants ' and Miners ' Steamship Company of New

York, its successors and assigns forever: And the

said Frank Waterhouse & Company, Inc., has prom-

ised, covenanted and agreed, and by these presents

does promise, covenant, and agree for its successors

and assigns, to and with the said Merchants' and

Miners' Steamship Company, of New York, its suc-

cessors, to warrant and defend the said title of the

said vessel and all the other beforementioned appur-

tenances against all and every person and persons

whomsoever.
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In testimony whereof, the said Frank Waterhouse

and Company, Incorporated, has caused these pres-

ents to be signed by Frank Waterhouse, its Present

and its incorporated seal to be hereunto affixed, Au-

gust 4, in the year of our Lord One Thousand Nine

Hundred and four (1904).

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of

FRANK WATERHOUSE & COMPANY,
Incorporated. [Corporate Seal]

By (Signed) FRANK WATERHOUSE,
President.

[Seal] Attest: (Signed) W. H. BOGLE.

Secy.

(Signed)

W. D. BENSON.
L. E. BURT.

State of Washington,

County of King,—ss.

I, James P. Townsend, a notary public, in and

for the State of Washington, residing at Seattle,

in the above-named county and State, duly commis-

sioned, sworn and qualified, do hereby certify that on

this 4th day of August, A. D. 1904, before me per-

sonally appeared, Frank Waterhouse and W. H.

Bogie, to me known to be the individuals, who as

President and Secretary, respectively, of The Frank

Waterhouse & ComjDan}^, the corporation that exe-
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outecl the witliin instrument and acknowledged the

said instrument to be the free and voluntary act

and deed of the said corporation for the uses and

purposes therein mentioned and on oath stated that

they were authorized to execute said instrument, and

that the seal affixed is the corporate seal of said cor-

poration.

Given under my hand and official seal, this 4th

day of August, 1904.

[Notarial Seal]

(Signed) JAMES P. TOWNSEND,
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle, County, said State.

Collector's Office, Port of New York.

I hereby certify the within to be a true copy of the

original received by this office for record, 1 h 25 m
P. M., and recorded in Book R. 149, page 16, Sep-

tember 22, 1904.

Given under my hand and the seal of the Col-

lector, this 23d day of December, 1905.

J. J. C. BARRETT. [Seal]

G. W. H. P. Y.

Deputy Collector.

Fee 50^ McH.

[Endorsed]: Plff. Exhibit 22. Eben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in

the U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Wash-
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ington. Jim. 16, 1906. A. Eeeves Ayres, Clerk. A.

N. Moore, Dep.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 23.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

Sections 4170, 4171, 4192, 4193, 4194, and 4196, Re-

vised Statntes.

Ct. No. 517.

BILL OF SALE OF REGISTERED VESSEL.

To all to Whom These Presents Shall Come, Greet-

ing:

Know ye, that The Merchants' and Miners'

Steamship Compan,y of New York, sole owner of

the steamshii:) or vessel, called the "Garonne" of

the burden of 3945 gross tons or thereabouts, for

and in consideration of the sum of ninety thousand

lawful money of the United States of America, to

them in hand paid, before the sealing and deliv-

ery of these presents, by White Star Steamship

Company of Seattle, Washington, U. S. A., the re-

ceipt whereof we do hereby acknowledge and are

herewith fully satisfied, contented, and paid, have

bargained and sold, and by these presents do bar-

gain and sell, unto the said White Star Steamship

Compan}^ of Seattle, Washington, its successors,

executors, administrators, and assigns, the whole of

the said steamship or vessel, together with the masts,

bowsprit, sails, boats, anchors, cables, tackle, fur-
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nitiire, and all other necessaries thereunto apper-

taining and belonging the certificate of registry of

which said ship or vessel is as follows, to wit:

Temporary

Registry No. 54 Official Number.

Numerals. Letters.

86504 KPTW.

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRY.

In pursuance of Chapter I, Title XLVIII, ''Regu-

lation of Commerce and Navigation," Revised

Statutes of the United States, Frank Waterhouse,

of Seattle, Washington, President, having taken

and subscribed the oaths required by law, and hav-

ing sworn that the Merchants' and Miners' Steam-

ship Company, of New York, a corporation organ-

ized under the laws of the State of New York is the

only owner of the vessel called the ''Garonne" of

New York whereof John Jordeson is at present mas-

ter, and is a citizen of the United States, and that

the said vessel was built in the year 1871, at Govan,

Scotland, as appears by P. R. #108, issued at Port

Townsend, Wash., May 4, 1901; surrendered, O. &

Dist. C. ; and said Register having certified that the

said vessel has Four decks and Three masts; and

that her length is 371 and tenths; her breadth

41 feet and 4 tenths ; her depth 20 feet and 4 tenths

;

her height feet and tenths ; that she meas-

ures Twenty-three hundred and nineteen tons, viz.:
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Tons. lOOths.

Capacity under tonnage deck 1938 19

Capacity between decks above ton-

nage deck 1962 93

Capacity of inclosiires on the upper

deck, viz : 44 54

Gross Tonnage 3945

Deductions under Section 4153, Revised Statutes^

as amended by Act of March 2, 1895:

Crew space, 233.79; Master's cabin. . 233 79

Steering gear: Anchor gear 46.62. ... 46 62

Boatswain's stores, 71.12, Chart

house, Storage of sails, 12.03 .... 83 15

Donkey engine and boiler. Propel-

ling power 1262.61 1262.61

Total deduction 1626.17

Net Tonnage 2319

The following described spaces, and no others,

have been omitted, viz: and that she is a Screw Str.

(Iron), has a figurehead and an elliptic stern; and

the said—having agreed to the description and ad-

measurement above specified, according to law, said

vessel has been duly registered at the Port of Port

Townsend, Wash.
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Given under my hand and seal at the Port of Port

Townsend, this 6th day of August, in the year one

thousand nine hundred and four.

No. (Seal) CHAS. MILLER,

Dep. Collector of Customs (Seal)

Naval Officer.

EUGENE TYLER CHAMBERLAIN,
Commissioner of Navigation.

[Seal of Department of Commerce and Labor.]

To have and to hold the said Steamship "Ga-

ronne," her furniture, equipments and appurten-

ances thereunto belonging unto them the said White

Star Steamship Company of Seattle, Washington,

its successors, executors, administrators, and as-

signs, to the sole and only proper use, benefit, and

behoof of them the said White Star Steamship Com-

pany, its successors, administrators, and assigns

forever: And we the said The Merchants' and Min-

ers' Steamship Company, of New York, for our-

selves, our successors have and by these presents do

promise, covenant, and agree, for ourselves, our

heirs, executors, and administrators, to and with the

said White Star Steamship Company, its successors,

heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns to war-

rant and defend the said title to the said Steam-

ship "Garonne," her furnishings, equipment, and all

the other before-mentioned appurtenances against

all and every person and persons whomsoever.
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In testimony whereof, we the said The Merchants'

and Miners' Steamship Company, of New York,

have hereunto set our hands and seals this 27th day

of April, in the year of onr Lord one thousand nine

hundred and five.

Signed, sealed, and delivered in jDresenee of

—

[Seal Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company.]

MERCHANTS' AND MINERS' STEAM-

SHIP COMPANY, OF NEW YORK.

By FRANK WATERHOUSE,
President.

By W. H. BOGLE,

Secretary.

State of Washington,

District of Puget Sound,

County of King,—ss.

On this 28th day of April, A. D. one thousand nine

hundred and five, before me, Frank P. Dow a

Notary Public in and for the said King County, duly

commissioned and sworn, personally appeared the

within named Frank Waterhouse and W. H. Bogle,

personally known to me to be respectively President

and Secretary of Merchants' and Miners' Steamship

Company, of New York, a corporation, whose names

are subscribed to the annexed instrimient as party

thereto, personally known to me to be the individual

described in, and who executed the said annexed
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instrument for and on behalf of said corporation

and who acknowledged to me that they executed the

same freely and voluntarily and for the uses and

purposes therein mentioned for and on behalf of said

company and as its act and deed.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal, the day and year in this

certificate first above written.

[Seal] FRANK P. DOW,
Notarv Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle.

I certify this to be a correct copy of the Original

Bill of Sale on record in this office.

Custom-house, Port Townsend, W., De. 29th, 1905.

[Seal] HENRY BLACKWOOD,
Deputy Collector, Dr.

[Endorsed] : Copy Cat. No. 517. Department of

Commerce and Labor, Bureau of Navigation. Bill

of Sale of Registered Vessel. Merchants' and

Miners' Steamship Company to White Star Steam-

ship Company. Steamship called the "Garonne."

Custom-House, Port Townsend, Wash.,

May 3d, 1905.

Received for Record 3 h. m. P. M. Recorded,

book 13, page 65.

J. PAYNE,
Acting Clerk.
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[Endorsed]: Plffs. Exhibit 23. Eiben Smith,

United States Master in Chancery, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Filed in the

U. S. 'Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington,

June 16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N.

Moore, Dep.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 24.

(On Letterhead of Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc.)

Seattle, Wash., Aug. 19, 1904.

Mr. F. S. Pusey, #1 Broadway, New York, N. Y.

Dear Sir: The enclosed letter of August 2nd, with

stated enclosures, was mailed to you on August 3rd

to #101 Broadway, as you will note by the enclosed

envelope, which was returned to us, by the N. Y.

P. 0. not being able to make delivery, Mr. Chapin

has now given us your address as #1 Broadway, and

we hope that this will reach you.

Yours truly,

J. P. TOWNSEND,
Treas.

R. Enc.

Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court, Western District

of Washington. Jun. 16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres,

Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.
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Complainant's Exhibit No. 25—In Rebuttal.

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
of the

MERCHANTS' & MINERS' STEAMSHIP COM-

PANY OF NEW YORK.

We, the undersigned, all being persons of full age,

and at least two-thirds of us being citizens of the

United States, and one of us a resident of the State

of New York, for the purpose of becoming a Naviga-

tion Corporation for the business hereinafter speci-

fied, pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 of the

Transportations Corporations Law of the State of

New York, do hereby certify as follows, to wit:

I. The name of the corporation is to be:

"MERCHANTS' & MINERS' STEAMSHIP COM-

PANY OF NEW YORK."

II. The objects for which the corporation is to

be formed are the following, namely:

For the purpose of building, for its own use, equip-

ping, furnishing, fitting, purchasing, chartering,

navigating or owning steam, sail or other boats,

ships, vessels or other property to be used in any

lawful business, trade, conunerce or navigation, and

to establish, maintain and operate a line of steam,

sail or other boats, ships or vessels, and for the car-

riage, transportation or storing of lading, freight,

mails, merchandise and all other property of what-
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soever description, or j^assengers; to own, buy, sell,

or lease docks, piers, yards, warehouses and other

facilities for carrying on its said business and to do

any and all things which may be necessary, desir-

able or convenient in connection with its said busi-

ness, subject, however, to the restrictions of the laws

of the State of New York and of the United States

of America.

III. The waters to be navigated are: The bay

harbor of New York, the ports, bays, inlets, sounds

and waters along the Atlantic Coast of Canada, the

United States of America, and South America, along

the Pacific Coasts of South America, Mexico, the

United States of America, including Alaska, and

Canada, and especially between the poii; of New

York and the port of Seattle, and the principal ports

intervening on the usual routes of navigation, and

also between the port of Seattle and the port of

Nome and the principal ports intervening on the

usual routes of navigation; also the coasts of Japan,

of Russia in Asia, Corea, China, India, the Hawaiian

and Philippine Islands, and between the ports of

the said coasts and the ports on the Pacific Coasts

of the United States of America.

rv. The amount of its capital stock is to be One

Hundred Thousand Dollars (100,000.00).

V. The term of its existence is to be fifty (50)

years.
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VI. The number of shares of which the capital

stock shall consist is to be one thousand (1000) of

the par value of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00)

each.

VII. The corporation is to have five (5) Di-

rectors.

VIII. The names of the Directors for the first

year are:

Name Postoffice Address

Arthur J. Baldwin, 27 Pine Street, New York City,

N. Y.

lYauk M. Van Wagonen, 27 Pine Street, New

York City, N. Y.

Emory W. Ulman, 27 Pine Street, New York City,

N. Y.

Frank A. Clary, 27 Pine Street, New York City,

N. Y.

C. Strawder Batt, 27 Pine Street, New York City,

N. Y.

IX. The principal office is to be situated in the

Town Waverly, Tioga County, New York.

X. The number of shares which each subscriber

of this certificate agrees to take in such corporation

is as follows:

Arthur J. Baldwin, 94, 27 Pine Street, New York,

N. Y.

Frank M. Van Wagonen, 1, 27 Pine Street, New
York, N. Y.
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Emory W. Ulman, 1, 27 Pine Street, New York,

N. Y.

Frank A. Clary, 1, 27 Pine Street, New York,

N. Y.

C. Strawder Batt, 1, 27 Pine Street, New York,

N. Y.

M. J. Duffy, 1, 27 Pine Street, New York, N. Y.

H. T. Mead, 1, 27 Pine Street, New York, N. Y.

XI. Tlie corporation may purchase, acquire, hold

and dispose of the stock, bonds and other evidence of

indebtedness of any public or private corporation,

domestic or foreign, and issue in exchange therefor

its own stock, bonds or other obligations.

In witness whereof, we have made, signed, ac-

knowledged and filed this certificate in duplicate.

Dated July 11th, 1904.

ARTHUR J. BALDWIN.
FRANK M. VAN WAGONEN.
EMORY W. ULMAN.
FRANK A. CLARY.

C. STRAWDER BATT.

M. J. DUFFY.

H. T. MEAD.

State of New York,

County of New York,—ss.

On this 11th day of July, 1904, before me person-

ally came M. J. Duffy, H. T. Mead, C. Strawder Batt,
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Frank A. Clary, Emory W. Ulman, Frank M. Van

Wagonen and Arthur J. Baldwin, to me severally

known to be tlie persons described in and who made

and signed the foregoing certificate, and severally

duly acknowledged to me that they had made, signed

and executed the same for the uses and purposes

therein set forth.

EDWARD T. MAGOFFIN,

Notary Public,

New York Co.

State of New York,

County of New York,—ss.

Arthur J. Baldwin, Frank M. Van Wagonen and

Emory W. Ulman, being severally duly sworn, de-

pose and say, and each for himself deposes and says:

That he is one of the directors named in the forego-

ing certificate; that at least ten per cent of the

amount of capital stock named therein has been,

in good faith, subscribed and at least ten per cent

of such subscriptions have been paid in cash.

ARTHUR J. BALDWIN.

FRANK M. VAN WAGONEN.
EMORY W. ULMAN.

Severally sworn before me this 11th day of July,

1904.

[Seal] EDWARD T. MAGOFFIN,

Notary Public.

New York Co.
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[Endorsed]: Certificate of Incorporation of the

Mercliants' & Miners' Steamship Company of New

York. Tax for Privilege of Organization of tliis

Corporation $50. Under Chapter 448, Laws of 1901.

Paid to State Treasurer Before Filing. State of

New York. Office of the Secretary of State. Filed

and Recorded Jul. 12, 1904. J. B. H. Mongin, Dep-

uty Secretary of State.

State of New York,

Office of the Secretary of State,—ss.

I have compared the pi'eceding with the original

Certificate of Incorporation of "Merchants' &

Miners' Steamship Company of New York," filed

and recorded in this office on the 12th day of July,

1904, and do hereby certify the same to be a correct

transcript therefrom and the whole of said original.

Witness my hand and the seal of office of the Sec-

retary of State, at the City of Albany, this twenty-

ninth day of December, one thousand nine hundred

and five.

[Seal] HORACE G. TENNANT,

Second Deputy Secretary of State.

[Endorsed]: Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court,

Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16, 1906. A.

Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.
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Complainant's Exhibit No. 26— In Rebuttal.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

STATE OF NEW YOEK.

By

JOHN F. O'BEIEN.

Secretary of State and Custodian of the Great Seal

Thereof.

It is hereby certified, that Frank D. Cole, was

on the day of the date of the annexed Certification

and Attestation, Deputy Secretary of State of the

State of New York, and duly authorized by the laws

of said State to make such Attestation and Certifi-

cate and to perform the duties belonging to the Sec-

retar}" of State in making such Attestation and Cer-

tificate, in like manner as said Secretary of State;

that the said Certificate and Attestation are in due

fomi and executed by the proper officer; that the

Seal affixed to said Certificate and Attestation is the

Seal of office of the Secretary of State of the State

of New York; that the Signature thereto of the

said Deputy Secretary of State, is in his own proper

handwriting, and is genuine; and that full faith and

credit, may and ought to be given to his official acts;

and, further, that the Secretary of State is the Cus-

todian of the original certificate under Section 5 of

the Business Corporations Law so certified and at-
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tested and Custodian of the Great Seal of said State,

hereto affixed.

In testimony whereof, the Great Seal of the State

[Seal] is hereunto affixed.

Witness my hand at the city of Albany, the

eleventh day of May in the year of our Lord one thou-

sand nine hundred and six.

JOHN F. O'BRIEN,

Secretary of State.

MERCHANTS' & MINERS' STEAMSHIP COM-

PANY OP NEW YORK.

CERTIFICATE OF PAYMENT OF ENTIRE

CAPITAL STOCK.

We the undersigned, l^eing a majority of the di-

rectors of the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Com-

pany of New York, a corporation formed under the

provisions of the Transportation Corporations Law

of the State of New York, do hereby certify tliat the

amount of the capital stock of said corporation is

One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000), and

that it has been entirely paid in in cash and prop-

erty.
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In witness whereof we have made, signed and

acknowledged this certificate in duplicate, this 29th

day of September, 1904.

FRANK A. CLARY,

C. STRAWDER BATT,

ARTHUR J. BALDWIN,

A Majority of the Board of Directors.

State of New York,

County of New York,—ss.

On this 29th day of Sep., 1904, before me person-

ally came Frank A. Clary, C. Strawder Batt and Ar-

thur J. Baldwin, to me personally known, and known

to me to be the persons described in and who exe-

cuted the foregoing certificate and severally ac-

knowledged to me that they executed the same.

EDWARD F. MAGOFFIN,

Notary Public.

New York Co,

State of New York,

Countj^ of New York,—ss.

Frank A. Clary and C. Strawder Batt being sev-

erally duly sworn each for himself deposes and says

that the said Frank A. Clary is the president and
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the said C. Strawder Batt is the secretary of the

Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company of New
York, and that the statements contained in the fore-

going certificate are true and that the same is sub-

scribed hj a majority of the Board of Directors.

FEANK A. CLAEY.

C. STEAWDEE BATT.

AETHUE J. BALDWIN.
Sworn to before me this 29th day of Sept., 1904.

EDAVAED F. MAGOFFIN,
Notary Public,

New York Co.

[Endorsed] : Merchants' & Miners' Steamship

Company of New York. Certificate of Payment of

Entire Capital Stock. State of New York. Office

of Secretary of State. Filed and Eecorded Oct. 4,

1904. J. B. H. Mongin, Deputy Secretary of State.

State of New York,

Office of the Secretary of State,—ss,

I have compared the preceding with the certificate

under Section 5 of the Business Corporations Law
of Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company of

New York, filed and recorded in this office on the

4th day of October, 1904, and do hereby certify the

same to be a correct transcript therefrom and the

whole thereof.
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Witness m^'^ hand and the seal of office of the Sec-

retary of State, at the City of Albany, this eleventh

day of Ma}^, one thousand nine hundred and six.

[Seal] FRANK O. COLE,

Secretary of State.

[Endorsed] : Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court,

Vfestern Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16, 1906. A.

Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "A."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, February 3, 1904.

W. H. Ferguson, Fifth Avenue Hotel, New York,

N. Y.

Your thousand received and accepted and I now

confirm sale of "Garonne," provided you pay me

fourteen thousand dollars, February fifteenth, de-

ferred payments to be made as follows: Ten thou-

sand dollars March fifteenth, ten thousand June fif-

teenth, five thousand September fifteenth, five thou-

sand November fifteenth, all this year; five thousand

February fifteenth, five thousand April fifteenth,

five thousand June fifteenth, five thousand August

fifteentli, five thousand October fifteenth, ten thou-

sand December fifteenth, all nineteen five ; five thou-

sand March fifteenth nineteen six, deferred pay-

ments to be secured by first mortgage on steamer,
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assignment marine insurance, corporation bond

guaranteeing vessel against indebtedness, and other

security which shall be satisfactory to me. Sale

conditioned on terms and representations my letter

to you January twenty-sixth. Confirm this under-

standing.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
FW.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''A." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "B."

January 26, 1904. B

Captain W. H. Ferguson, Assistant Manager De

Soto Placer Mining Co.

Dear Sir: Your Mr. W. B. Hastings has lately had

some conversation with me, regarding the purchase

of our steamer "Garonne," and in connection there-

with, he has asked me to write to you, briefly stat-

ing the terms at which I am willing to dispose of

this vessel, the condition in which she now is, and

the work that would have to be done to her, in order

to put her into commission.

I will sell "Garonne" for $85,000, to be paid $25,-

000 in cash, on the date of transfer, and the balance

divided into six ninety day payments, bearing in-
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terest at the rate of seven per cent per annum, and

tlie deferred payments to be satisfactorily ser-nred

1)}" mortgage on the steamer, an assignment of the

marine insurance policies on the steamer, in an

amount sufficient to cover the deferred payments,

with the guarantee of a surety company that no debts

shall be incurred by the steamer, which would be-

come a lien against her, and take precedence of my

mortgage, and by such other collateral as would be

acceptable and satisfactory to me.

Or I will sell the "Garonne" for $75,000 spot cash.

Yesterday I handed Mr. Hastings the particulars

of this vessel, which I believe he intends to forward

to you, and from which you will be able to judge

of her, in a general way. The steamer is now ly-

ing out of commission at Quartermaster Harbor,

near Tacoma. It will require the expenditure of

about $7500 to put her in commission again; this

amount to be spent in connecting up her machin-

ery, drydocking and painting her, and refurnish-

ing some of her passenger accommodations. Al-

though "Garonne" is an old ship, she has been pro-

nounced by the United States Inspectors here and

by Lloyds Inspectors, both here and in British Co-

lumbia, and also by Lloyds Inspectors in San Fran-

cisco, to be the staunchest vessel on the Pacific Ocean

to-day. She is built of iron, and is an exceptionally

heavy ship, and in spite of her age, no apparent
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deterioration of any kind in any spot, has taken

place in her hull, or in the thickness of her plat-

ing. She was examined thoroughly b}^ the Super-

intendent Engineer of the Pacific Coast Steamship

Company a few months ago, who reported to his

Company that her hull alone was cheap at $100,000.

Her engines are compound; they are in good con-

dition, and have been well taken care of during the

period she has been laid up out of commission.

$44,000 was spent in her boilers two years ago;

her furnaces are entirely new ; boiler tubes are new

;

combusion chambers are new; and the boilers are

in first-class condition in every respect, as far as I

know. Of course, "Garonne" is not as economical a

boat to operate, as she would be if her engines were

triple expansion, instead of compound, and if she

had a more modern plant in her, but for the price

at which I offer her, and for the Northern Alaska

trade, she cannot be beaten in any market in the

world. I bought this boat in London, five years ago,

from the Orient Steam Navigation Company, at a

cost of £18,000. Her condition now is a great deal

better than it was then, on account of the large

amount of money we have spent on her boilers, which

was the weak spot in her, since we bought her.

Moreover, we have secured American register for

her, since we have owned her. She is a vessel that
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you can run in her present condition to advantage,

in the Northern Alaska trade, for several years to

come, and at the end of that time, her hull will still

be in good enough condition, to give her new ma-

chinery and new boilers, if you so desire. A few

months ago I was offered $40,000 for the iron in the

Imll of this steamer alone, by a junk dealer in Shang-

hai. I think the steamer is fully equipped with

glassware, cutlery, crockery, all kinds of linen, blan-

kets, and all necessary passenger equipment and life

saving appliances, for her full complement of pas-

sengers. This equipment has been carefully stored

away and protected while the steamer has been out of

commission, and it all goes with the steamer. It

would probably take you two or three weeks to do the

necessary work on her, to pass her insijection and

to put her in commission,

"Garonne" has alwaj^s been a very popular boat

in the Alaska trade, and we have never failed to

secure for her a full share of all the business that

has been moving. If you are in the market for a

steamer for the Northern Alaska trade, I am very

sure that you cannot secure such a bargain as this

anywhere else. We have made a great deal of money

with this steamer since we bought her, and I can say

that she has never made an unprofitable voyage to

Alaska, since we began operating her. My reasons

for offering her for sale, are on account of a desire
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to drop out of the Alaska passenger trade, and on ae-

eonnt of our inability to engage in it to advantage,

in connection with other business interests that we

have, and also for other reasons which I have ex-

plained personally to Mr. Hastings.

Several other parties are now figuring with me,

on the purchase of this steamer, for use in the North-

ern Alaska trade, and I think there is little doubt

that she will be disposed of at an early date ; I there-

fore suggest that if she strikes you favorably, you

should consider the matter of her purchase at once.

Yours truly,

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "B." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "C."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

94 Vr. N. R. 47 Duplicate, (Corrected Copy)

New York, N. Y., June 1th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Burke Building, Seattle, Wn.

Extending time of Steamship payments requested

by Leake in todays telegram will be personally ap-

preciated by me and will aid us greatly in avoiding

censure here for embarrassing position caused by
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demands for excessive supplies this concession by

you is sure to work to your credit later.

W. H. ROWE.
3:30P

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''€." Filed in the IT. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit **D."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, June 15, 1904.

W. H. Rowe, Care Occidental Securities Co., 42

Broadway, New York City.

When your telegram arrived yesterday was out of

town. Message repeated over telephone and misun-

derstood. Certainly agree let conditions my tele-

gram thirteenth stand until arrival Mead earl}^ next

week. Strongly advise you remit money promptly

pay debts now due protect your own credit, save me

embarrassment. If you will remit six thousand ex-

penses by tomorrow will stand off balance bills until

next week.

FRANK WATERIIOUSE.

Rush.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "D." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "E."

(On Letterhead North-Alaska Steamship Company.)

New York, June 8th, 190—.

Mr. Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wash,

Dear Sir : Without any more information than that

given in the dispatches by Mr. Smith in regard to

the settlement, in the absence of Mr. Rowe, the

writer deems it advisal^le to ask you in regard to the

discount ($3500) which was understood was to be

allowed in the cash settlement. Inferring from the

telegram that there was no discount allowed, it is

reasonably supposed if the payment is made accord-

ing to the settlement, it is practically cash, and would

justify the Company to expect the discount accord-

ing to the understanding. If the discount be not

allowed, it seems fair that we should have the right

to have the payment extended according to the orig-

inal proposition rather than paying the whole sum

as arranged in the settlement. Please write us fully

in regard to this.

We would like to hear from you in regard to the

business prospects as often as you can conveniently
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write us. Of course we lack the desired information

regarding the first sailing, until we have the reports

which you probably have sent us by this time.

Very trul}^ yours,

J. B. LEAKE,

P. S.^—Does the Steamship carry mail. Have you

any suggestion regarding that subject.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit '

' E. " Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western District of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ''¥."

(On Letterhead of McKee & Frost, Counsellors at

Law.)

June 10, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Esq., Seattle, Washington.

Dear Sir: The Secretary of the North-Alaska

Steamship Company, Mr. John B. Leake, has just

called upon us to examine the bill of sale and mort-

gage at the Chase National Bank in the matter of

the transfer of the Steamship "Garonne."

Before the Board of Directors authorize their sec-

retary and treasurer to sign the proposed mortgage,

they wish to have before them all the particulars

of the recent transactions in Seattle, which led up to

the execution of that instrument, and a full state-
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ment of the Steamship aecoinits to and inckiding the

first sailing.

They expect this report and statement at any mo-

ment, and upon receipt of same will be in a position

to hold a meeting on short notice and proceed in-

telligently to act in yonr matter.

As you are doubtless aware, new interests have

been added to the Compan}^, and require a little time

to become familiar with its affairs.

Trusting that remaining details may be satisfac-

torily adjusted in a little while, we remain.

Yours truly,

McKEE & FROST.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit "F." Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. K Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit *'G."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

237. SF. OC. S. 48.

New York, June 15th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wn.

Have consulted with those who have thus far fi-

nanced our enterprise. They insist that no more

money shall be paid until Mr. Mead has personal in-

terview with you and goes over condition at Seattle.
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I trust .you will await Mr. Meads arrival he left to-

day for Seattle direct.

W. H. ROWE.

7:25 P. M.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit '

' G. " Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist, of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "H.''

Copy.

The Western Union Tel, Co.

New York, June 15, 1904.

Washington National Bank, Seattle, Wn.

Respecting payments made to Waterhouse on boat

we are requested by parties of responsibility and re-

puted wealth recently associated with Occidental Se-

curities Co. to advise that pending payments will be

made on satisfactory report by representative now

en route. Notify Waterhouse Abase.

CHASE NATIONAL BANK.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "H." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "I."

(On Blank of Western Union Telegraph Company.)

9. CH. KD. A. 56 Paid.

NC, New York, June 14th, 1904.

Frank Waterhonse and Co., Bnrke Bldg., Seattle,

Washn.

Letter and telegrams submitted to financial inter-

ests which have thus far financed the securities Co.,

they have auditor now going over books and accounts

will you kindly let conditions of your telegram of

the thirteenth stand till the arrival of Mr. Mead

our representative who leaves for Seattle Wednes-

day. Will stop at Rainier Grand Hotel.

2:57PM.

W. H. ROWE.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit "I." Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit ''J."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

163 Vi\ Af.R.8

New York, N. Y., June 13th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wn.

Thanks for concession does thirteen thonsand

cover insurance.

J. B. LEAKE.

5P

[Endorsed] : Exhibit "J." Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Uist. of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit '*K."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

129. Sf . Rb. G. 47

New York, June 11, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Burke Building, Seattle, Wash.

Extending to me of steamship payments requested

by Leake in today's telegram will be personally ap-

preciated by me and will aid us greatly in avoiding

censure here for embarrassing position caused by de-

mands for excessive supplies this concession by you

is sure to work to your credit later.

W. H. ROWE.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''K." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit *'L."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

138. Sf . Wf. G. 84.

New York, June 11, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wash., Burke Building.

Letter June third received today expenses "Ga-

ronne '

' hard rap following low receipts and expected

discount disallowed management prejudiced by \\n-

derestimate cash required if we pay thirteen thou-

sand expenses immediately cannot notes and mort-

gage be made eighteen thousand six hundred eTuly

twelfth eighteen thousand six hundred August fif-

teenth then within estimate to personal relief of man-

agement your co-operation solicited instrvicted Hast-

ings confer with you all matters steamship operation

and expense fill no requisitions material or supplies

unless absolutel}^ necessary when will we receive

complete statement.

J. B. LEAKE.
1 :33 p. m.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "L." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ''M."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

^5 Vr. N. R. 10

New York, N. Y., June 10, 1904.

Frank Waterhoiise, Seattle, Wn.

Attend matter quick letters advise you Smith

comes daily expected.

J. B. LEAKE.
3 :20P

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "M." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "N."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, June 14, 1904.

W. H. Rowe, 42 Broadway, New York City.

Will not let conditions remain as at present. In-

sist debts against "Garonne" now due be paid im-

mediately and mortgage be executed immediately.

Will expect prompt reply stating definitely what you

intend to do.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.



376 Frank Waterhonse dc Co., Inc., vs.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "N." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "0."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial

Cables.)

179 SF GC. W. 10

New York, May 18.

Frank Waterhonse, Seattle.

Arrangement payment to-morrow. Smitli dis-

abled mothers sickness and death today.

J. B. LEAKE.

550j)m.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "O." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit 'T."

(On Letterhead of The CHASE National Bank.)

New York, June 9th, 1904.

Frank Waterhonse, Esq., 205 Burke Building, Seat-

tle, Wash.

Dear Sir: Your letter of the 3rd inst. has been

received enclosing a bill of sale of the Steamer '

' Ga-

ronne," together with a mortgage on that vessel.
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We have notified Mr. J. B. Leake that we have

received the papers, and he stated that he would call

upon us in connection with the transaction probabl}^

tomorrow or the next day. When the mortgage has

been executed by him we will advise you further.

Yours very truly,

M.L.Z. C. C. SLADE,

Assistant Cashier.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "P." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "Q."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, June 11, 1904.

John B. Leake, Care Occidental Securities Company,

42 Broadway, New York.

Underwriters demand immediate payment Ga-

ronne insurance, amounting to sixty-six hundred.

They decline to issue covering notes and threaten

cancel insurance unless premiums paid immediately.

Smith Ferguson assured me money this purpose

would be remitted from New York immediately after

ship sailed. Must be telegraphed without fail reach

me Monday. Answer.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "Q." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit *'R."

June 14, 1904.

J. B. Leake, Sec'y & Treas. North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, Rooms 1416-20, 42 Broadway,

New York Cit}^

Dear Sir : Replying to your letter of the 8th inst.,

I beg to say that the discount on the purchase price

of the "Garonne," $3,500.00, was offered to you on

condition that $81,500.00 cash was paid to me on or

before May 15th last. You failed to pay this cash,

and therefore my offer of discount will lapse. I

cannot at all coincide in your opinion that the pay-

ments as now agreed to are practically cash pay-

ments. I have been very much embarrassed on ac-

count of the sale of this steamer, and inasmuch as I

was able to sell the steamer to other parties on the

same day I sold it to you, for the same amount of

money, from whom I firmly believe I would have

received the payment in full, before this time, I

think under the circumstances I have treatt.d you

very leniently. I quite understand the difficulties

you have had to face, and I am anxious to accommo-

date myself to your needs in every way I can do so.
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In view of the telegrams that passed between us

yesterday, I expect you will promptly remit enough

money to pay for the insurance, the balance of the

bills that are due, and that you will pay me on ac-

count of the note due June 22nd, $8600.00, and the

balance of payments as indicated in my telegram

of yesterday, $10,000, with interest on the first note

on July 12th, and the second note in full, on August

15th.

I am unable to send you a statement covering

earnings and disbursements of the "Garonne" to

date, until we can secure from Mr. Hastings a state-

ment covering receipts and disbursements of your

own office. We have been promised this statement

for the last week, and yesterday I was again prom-

ised it by Mr. Hastings not later than tomorrow."

If we get it tomorrow, we can make up our complete

statement, and forward it to you on Thursday.

Regarding future business, I have to say that if

you can make your next round voyage without suf-

fering any loss, you will do very well. Both cargo

and passengers are always scarce for the second voy-

age in each season, and those who operate their boats

on this voyage without loss are, in my opinion, very

fortunate. I think we can accomplish this by cut-

ting down the expenses of the steamer very consider-

ably. If I have the authority from you to do so, I

shall insist that both the deck crew and at least 50%
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of the steward's crew are cut out as soon as tlie

steamer returns to port, and that not a single man

in any department remains by the steamer while she

is in port, except those who are actually required

to prepare her for her next voyage. You will of

course realize that these matters of expense require

most careful consideration and the closest attention,

which, if they do not receive, much unnecessary ex-

pense and loss of profit will result. I have nevermade

a losing trip with '

' Garonne '

' to Northern Alaska, hut

she has been operated very conservatively and with

great regard to her earnings and expenses. I think

the most sensible way would have been for you to

have placed, or even to now place, the operation of

the steamer in my hands, for the present at least.

When Capt. Ferguson left here, it stood that all

questions of operation would be in charge of Mr.

Hastings, and that we should only have charge of

traffic matters. I have had so much more experi-

ence, however, with this particular steamer than any-

one else has had, that I ought to be able to handle

her to better advantage than almost anyone else can.

At any rate, I am very willing to operate her for

you to the very best of my ability, without making

and extra charge therefor, if you desire me so to do.

On the third voyage, the steamer ought to make some

money, and on the fourth voyage, she ought to do

very well indeed. You will of course bear in mind
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that the expense of subsequent voyages will not be

nearly as heavy as the expense of the first voyage.

Do not expect, however, to get any profit from the

second voyage.

All of the Alaska steamers, including the "Ga-

ronne," carry mail, for which they are paid at the

rate of 1, i^ cents per pound. None of the steam-

ers have a regular mail contract, nor is it proposed

by the P. O. Department, to change the present

method by making any such contract.

Please bear in mind that a pay-roll of between

$5,000 and $6,000 will be due on this steamer, on the

day she reaches Seattle from Cape Nome. Capt.

Ferguson and Mr. Smith both assured me that this

amount of money would be sent down on the steamer,

In charge of the purser, to pay these wages. If they

keep their word in this respect, all will be well;

but I think that it is wise to anticipte the possibil-

it}' of their not doing this.

My services are at your command, and you may

rest assured that I will protect your interests in every

way I can, to the extent of the authority I have.

Yours truly,

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "R." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit **S."

Seattle, June 13, 1904. B.

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

John B. Leake, Occidental Securities Co., 42 Broad-

way, New York City.

Thirteen thousand does not include insurance.

Hastings promises furnish his statement, which is

necessary complete mine, by Wednesday; will then

forward mine promptly.

Garonne FRANK WATERHOUSE,

[Endorsed] : Exhibit " S. " Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "T."

(On Blank Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, June 13, 1904.

J. B. Leake, Care Occidental Securities Co., 42

Broadwa}^, New York City.

If you remit thirteen thousand to-morrow for ex-

penses, execute mortgage at Chase National imme-

diately and pay me eight thousand, six hundred June

twenty-second, I will extend balance of payments as

follows; Ten thousand with interest on first note

until July twelfth ; entire amount of second note un-

til August fifteenth. Answer.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
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[Endorsed] : Exhibit "T." Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun, 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit '*U."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, June 10, 1904.

J. B. Leake, 42 Broadway, New York City.

Have you executed mortgage and remitted money

pay expense bills here'? These matters pressing;

require immediate attention.

Answer.

Special Rush.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit " U. " Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun, 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "V."

June 3, 1904.

Chase National Bank, New York City.

Gentlemen: I enclose herewith, bill of sale of the

steamer ''Garonne" from Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., to the North Alaska Steamship Co. ; also, mort-

gage on same steamer, from the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company to Frank Waterhouse & Co.

You will note that this mortgage has already been

signed by Chas. B. Smith, President of the North
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Alaska Steamship Co., but it still requires the sig-

nature of the Secretary of that Company, Mr. J.

B. Leake, #42 Broadway. I have written Mr.

Leake to-day, informing him that the deed and mort-

gage have been sent to you, and have asked him to

step over to your Bank and execute the mortgage

and receive the deed from you in return for so do-

ing. Will 3^ou kindly, therefore, deliver the deed to

Mr. Leake, after he has executed the mortgage as

Secretary of the North Alaska Steamship Company

;

also kindly see that his signature is properly wit-

nessed and acknowledged before a Notary Public.

After the mortgage is completed, please return it

to me here. Also please return to me the bill of

sale of this same vessel, which was left with you by

Mr. R, McGinnis some weeks ago, and greatly ob-

lige,

Yours truly,

Enc.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit *'V." Filed in the U. S." Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "W.'^

June 3, 1904.

Mr. J. B. Leake, c/o Occidental Securities Co., 42

Broadway, New York City.

My dear Mr. Leake

:

Eor your information, I enclose herewith, copy
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of a letter I have written to the Cliase National Bank,

to-day. The deed and mortgage mentioned therein,

should arri^T at the Chase National Bank, by the

time you receive this letter. Will you please there-

fore, go over to that bank promptly, and execute the

mortgage, as Secretary of the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, accepting the deed from the Chase

National Bank, in return therefor^ Mr. Smith as-

sured me that I could depend upon your prompt ac-

tion in this respect.

You are, of course, aware that the deed to the

steamer must be recorded in the Custom House here.

I suggest that you either promptly return the deed

to a bank in Seattle, to be recorded for you, or send

it back to me for that purpose. If you choose to

do the latter, I will have it recorded in the Custom

House at Port Townsend, immediately after its re-

ceipt by me, and after it is recorded, will return it

quickly to you. I imagine it will not be necessary

to keep the deed here, for the purpose of recording

it, for more than three or four days.

Enc.

Very truly yours,

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "W." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres. Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "X."

June 3, 1904.

Occidental Securities Company, 42 Broadway, New

York City.

Dear Sirs: Mr. Smith lias doubtless advised you,

as he promised me yesterday he would do, that on

account of the condition of the expenditures and

receipts for and from "Garonne," I was compelled

at the last moment to agree to an arrangement which

was exceedingly unsatisfactory to me. Instead of

receiving the balance of the purchase price of this

steamer, in cash or proper securities, for the amount

still due, according to the terms of her sale, I was

practically forced to accept the company's notes at

20 and 40 days, secured by first mortgage on the

steamer, and $18,600 of the receipts of freight and

passengers, in settlement. I should not have ob-

jected to this settlement if it had not been for the

fact that the bills contracted by your people on the

credit of the "Garonne," were largely in excess of

what I imagined they would be, and had been given

to understand by your people, they would be. These

bills exceeded the largest amount that Capt. Fer-

guson had named to me, by about $13,000. Until

yesterday afternoon, when most of the bills were re-

ceived, I was under the impression that we had re-

ceived sufficient money from j^ou on account of ex-
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penses, to pay all the bills, not including the $5,000

I received from you on account of purchase, on June

1st. This $5,000 I was compelled to relinquish and

credit to exjDense account, and after doing so, there

still remained a balance of about $13,000 of expenses

which I regret to have to ask you to meet very

promptly. As near as I can judge the matter, the

increased expenses were incurred in largely over-

stocking the steamer with provisions and supplies.

These provisions and supplies were purchased by

us on the order of Capt. Ferguson, and we were with-

out authority to limit him in the premises. He ex-

pected to carry out 600 passengers, and provisions

were purcliased for that number, with an extra full

supply for 600 passengers and 100 crew for 30 days,

in case of accident. Of course, these supplies are

on board the steamer and covered by insurance, and

will be on hand for another voyage; but it unfortu-

nately means that they will have to be paid for now,

instead of when they will be actually required.

However, it is no use to criticise anyone now. The

bills have been incurred, and they have got to be

met promply. The steamer herself is in A-1 con-

dition and is a valuable piece of property, with a

l)ig earning power, good for many years to come.

In this opinion, Mr. Pusey, who left for New York

to-day, via Denver, shares. He considers that in

the "Garonne" you have a very valuable asset.
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A supply bill came in this afternoon, amounting

to $1300, of which I had no knowledge before the

steamer sailed j^esterday, which raised the amount of

the indebtedness for which we are short of funds, to

a little over $13,000. You will understand, of

course, that these bills must be promptly met. I,

therefore, ask you to remit me the money by tele-

graph, upon receipt of this letter, which I calcu-

late will l3e on the 9th or 10th inst.

During Capt. Ferguson's absence at least, and for

your own future protection, I think it would be well

for you to direct me to fill no requisitions for ma-

terial or supplies for the "Garonne," unless I am

satisfied that the same are absolutely necessary, and

for you to instruct Mr, Hastings of Capt. Fergu-

son's office, that he must confer with me regarding

all matters connected with the operation of this

steamer and the expenses incident thereto. I am

afraid that unless you do this, you will be apt to have

further disappointments in the matter of expendi-

tures. You may rest assured that I want to protect

you in every way I can, but in order to do so, I

should be placed in a position of absolute authority

here, as far as you are concerned.

Please regard the latter portion of this letter as

confidential, as I should be very unwilling to have

your representatives here think that I was trying

to "knock" them.
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I sincerely liope that you will not embarrass me

by failing to promptly remit, on receipt of this let-

ter, enough money to pay all the bills.

Yours faithfully.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "X." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "Y."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, Wash., May 31, 1904.

Occidental Securities Company, 42 Broadway, New

York.

W. will accept five thousand cash from New York

at once and twent3^-two thousand five hundred out

of receipts, balance to be paid in thirty days, secured

by mortgage, and note. Remit five thousand imme-

diately. Very imperative and must close at once.

CHARLES B. SMITH
Special Rush.

[Endorsed] : Exliibit '^ Y." Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "Z."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 27, 1904.

Occidental Securities Company, 42 Broadway, New

York.

Received five thousand yesterday account ex-

penses. Will you remit ten thousand additional to-

day, supplies. Requisitions must be filled imme-

diately insure vessel sailing second.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit '

' Z. " Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun. 16,

1906. A. Reeves Ayrcs, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "A-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 26, 1904.

Occidental Securities Company, 42 Broadway, New

York.

Your telegram yesterday unsatisfactory. Neither

cargo, coal nor supplies will go aboard steamer until

I receive money pay therefor. Have instructed at-

torneys delay further action until receipt your reply

this message, which shall expect promptly.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "A-1." Filed in the U.S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "B-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 20, 1904.

Charles B. Smith and Occidental Securities Corn-

pan}^, 42 Broadway, New York City.

Unless I receive at least five thousand here before

noon to-morrow to partially protect me against bills

due and expenses being incured on Garonne my ac-

count, shall turn matter over to my attorneys to take

necessary steps to cancel sale. Am so situated that

I have no alternative in matter. Earnestly hoi3e you

will protect yourselves by forwarding money in time.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "B-1." Filed in the U.S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "C-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 23, 1904.

C. B. Smith or Occidental Securities Co., 42 Broad-

way, New York.

Received twenty-five hundred from you Saturday.

Same day advanced two thousand for you. Steamer
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must coal next Wednesday, expense five thousand.

Insurance must be placed this week, expense six

thousand year's premium. Food supplies must be

put aboard this week, expense six thousand. You

now owe me money advanced five thousand. If bal-

ance purchase price paid immediately cash or satis-

factory securities, you will be at liberty to contract

all bills you desire Garonne's credit, and pay same

out of freight and passenger receipts available June

second. If purchase not completed immediately

must have cash before can jiermit coal supplies and

insurance to purchased steamer's credit. Please ad-

vise quickly what course you will pursue.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "C-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western District of Washington.

Jun. 16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N.

Moore, Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit **D-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

May 23, 1904.

Chase National Bank, New York City.

Please telegraph financial standing General Gren-

ville M. Dodge, New York City; would you consider

notes for sixty thousand dollars endorsed by him safe

collateral.

Garonne FRANK WATERHOUSE.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "D-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "E-1."

(On Letterhead North-Alaska Steamship Company.)

New York, May 17, 1904.

Mr. Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wash.

Dear Sir: On May 13th, 1904, we sent yon the fol-

lowing telegram, which we now confirm: "To insure

3^our protection executed contract today General

Grenville M. Dodge. Nature contract itself protects

you. Consult Dunn and Bradstreet for Dodge rating

Mailing particulars . Have paid five thousand more

than terms of sale. Hoped to assist you and save

discount. Still expect to do so if necessary satisfac-

tory securities for deferred payments. Some money

tomorrow."

The contract with Gen. Dodge is of such a nature

that to protect himself he will in our opinion neces-

sarily protect you. Other arrangements are made

by which we will be able to pay you all or nearly

all due.

If these are carried out we think you have no cause

for anxiety as to our ability to meet or exceed your

requirements as to deferred payments, and satisfac-

tory securities.
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In short, the interests of Gen. Dodge and the

Steamship Company are mutual by this agreement,

and whatever operates to hinder or delay the success

of this Company will imperil the substantial interest

that Gen. Dodge has acquired in our enterprise.

This letter is sent you by our Mr. Leake during

the enforced absence of our President, who has been

kept from transacting business by the illness of his

mother.
Yours very truly,

N. A. S. S. CO.

J. B. LEAKE, Secy.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "E-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit '*F-1."

(On Letterhead Chase National Bank.

New York, May 24, 1904.

Mr. Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wash.

Dear Sir: We have received your telegraphic in-

quiry of the 23d instant, and in response to your re-

quest for a reply by wire we have sent you the fol-

lowing message which is hereby confirmed:

Your telegram even date received. Party

inquired about in excellent standing here.

Reported man considerable means.
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General Dodge is a gentleman well advanced in

years, and was formerly a banker and railroad official

at Council Bluffs, Iowa, where we understood he still

retains his home, but spends most of his time in New

York. He was a member of Congress in 1869; was

appointed by the President as a commissioner to in-

quire into the management of the war with Spain,

and stands very high in military and government

official circles. At the present time he is Chairman

of the Board of Directors of the Colorado Southern

Railway, and is a Director in the Fort Woi-tli & Den-

ver Railwa}^, the Colorado Midland, and the Wichita

Valley Railroad.

His local interests are the Bowling Green Trust

Co. and the India Wharf Brewing Co. As intimated

in our telegram, he is supposed to be possessed of

considerable wealth and he is a gentleman of the

highest character and business integrity.

Yours very truly,

E. J. STALKER,

Cashier,

[Endorsed]: Exhibit '^F-l." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "G-l."

NORTH ALASKA STEAMSHIP COMPANY.
S. S. "Garonne."

Frank Waterhouse, Esq.

Dear Sir: Failing to see yon at the dock I take this

means to let 3^ou know that I have placed in the

Purser's hands $800 which I took from the Traffic

Mgrs. office. This was to enable the ship to meet

labor charges before the collection of freight at

Nome, and I proi^ose to send you $200 at the same

time as the $5000 is sent on the Dodge matter to

cover the amounts used out of receipts heretofore.

Yours truly,

CHAS. B. SMITH.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "G-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist, of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "H-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

121 SF. BR. W. 12

New York, N. Y. May 26

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle.

All arrangements completed today wire five thou-

sand ten tomorrow or Saturday sure.

J. B. LEAKE.
114p/m.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "H-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Wasliington, Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ''I-l."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 26, 1904.

Occidental Securities Co., 42 Broadway, New York.

Your telegram yesterday unsatisfactory. Neither

cargo, coal nor supplies will go aboard steamei' until

I receive money pay therefor. Have instructed at-

torneys delay further action until receipt of your re-

ply to this message, which shall expect promptly.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "I-l." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit '*J-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

191.VR.WA.S. 8.

New York, May 25th, 1904.

W. G. Bogle, Seattle, Wn.

Wired Waterhouse in full regarding telegrams of

today.

CHARLES B. SMITH.

5:51 P. M.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "J-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Wasliington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerlv. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "K-1."

(On Blanlv of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

186. VR. WA. S. 37.

New York, May 25th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wn.

Distressing delay unavoidable in absence member

syndicate payment sure. Our interests mutual. Do

not jeopardize expect money pay coal tomorrow sup-

plies this week insurance will be paid. Smith leaves

tomorrow morning Seattle to complete contract see

Boyle.

J. B. LEAKE.

5:40 P.M.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''K-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "L-1."

(On Blank of Western Union Telegraph Company.)

123C11.KD.U. 17 Collect

New York, May 24, 1904.

Frank Waterliouse, Seattle, Wn.

Your telegram of even date received Party in-

quired about in excellent standing here Reported

man considerable means.

CHASE NATL. BANK.
1151 a. m.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''L-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit **M-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

112 Vr Af Ne

New York, N. Y. May 23rd, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle Wn.

Appreciate urgency making all effort Close ar-

rangement pay you.

C. B. SMITH.
330pm.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "M-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun,
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "N-1."

Interest.

Purchase price S. S. Garonne 85000

Remittance Feby. 3, 1000; Feby. 15,

14000 15000

70000

Interest Feby 15 to Mch. 15 on 70000

at 7% 408.33

Remittance March 15 7000

63000

Interest Mch. 15 to Mch. 18 on 63000

at 7% 36.75

Remittance March 18 3000

60000

Interest Mch. 18 to Apl. 24 on 60000

at 7% 420.

Paid F. Waterhonse in New York

apl. 24 5000

55000

Interest April 24 to June 2 on 55000

at7% 406.38

1271.46

E. & O. E.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "N-1." Filed in the U.S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jim.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

DejD.

Defendants' Exhibit **0-l."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

May 25, 1904. B.

Charles B. Smith, Occidental Securities Co., 42

Broadway, New York City.

Please accept notice Garonne will not be coaled,

or supplies allowed aboard, or cargo now on wharf

loaded, until receive money pay for same, or until

you execute satisfactory securities covering all de-

ferred payments and deposit same for me in Chase

National Bank, or pay balance purchase price cash.

Steamer should be loading now, due to coal tom.or-

row. Understand her cargo space all engaged, con-

siderable number passengers booked. This is my
final determination. Unless hear satisfactorily

from you today, will turn matter oyer to my at-

torney for cancellation contract tonight.

(Garonne)
FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "0-1. Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "P-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

142 Vr. N. R. 12,

New York, N. Y., May 19tli, 1904.

Mr. Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wn.

Cannot force collection promised today urging to

reciprocate your favors pay sure.

J. B. LEAKE.
5:05P

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "P-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "Q-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Calile Company.)

May 17, 1904B?

C. B. Smith, Occidental Securities Co., New York

City.

Received no money. Additional bills for work

supplies ordered by Ferguson on Garonne's cred-

it and account coming in. My patience being rap-

idly exhausted. You must remit ample funds imme-

diately, or shall take necessary steps protect myself.

Please consider this an ultimatum.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
(Garonne)
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "Q-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun,

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "R-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

129 Vr. N. R. 13

New York, N. Y., May 16th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wn.

Expect Ferguson jjay today can't tell explain

Dodge by wire Trust best efforts.

C. B. SMITPI.

4:15

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "R-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "S-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Cables.)

"93 Vr N Ne 20 3 ex

New York, May 14, 04.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle.

Your wire disturbed assurance of money today re-
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quiring effort to restore please favor us by coutinu-

ing work.
O. C. S. CO.,

J. B. LEAKE.
132pm.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit 'SS-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "T-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

''221 SF. K. W. 56

New York, N. Y., May 13th.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle.

To insure your protection executed contract today

general greenville M. Dodge nature contract itself

protects you consult Dunn and Bradstreet for Dodge

rating mailing particulars have paid five thousand

more than terms of sale hoped to assist you and

save discount still expect to do so if necessary satis-

factory securities for deferred pajnnents some

money tomorrow.

C. B. SMITH.

610pm

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "T-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "U-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegrapli-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 1-1, 1904.

Charles B. Smith, Occidental Securities Company, 12

Broadway, New York.

Your last telegram unsatisfactory. Do not under-

stand nature contract Dodge, which protects me. I

require five thousand cash Monday, for payment bills

already incurred and satisfactory security for de-

ferred purchase price payments. If you remit this

Monday and five thousand additional on account pur-

chase, to reach me not later than next Wednesday,

also five thousand to reach me May twenty-fifth, I

will extend date for delivery of securities or for

making payment in full cash, until June fifth. Am
willing accommodate you every way possible but

there are limitations to my ability,

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Rush.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "U-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit **V-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 13, 1904.

Charles B. Smith, Occidental Securities Company,

42 Broadway, New York.

No reply to my telegram of yesterday. Please

take notice unless I receive three thousand today and

two thousand additional next Monday, all work on

G^aronne will be discontinued tomorrow night;

also unless I receive fifteen thousand next Monday,

account of purchase price or the satisfactory securi-

ties covering deferred payments, sale will be declaimed

cancelled and money already paid, forfeited.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Special Rush.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "V-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "W-l.'^

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Charles B. Smith, Occidental Securities Company, 42

Broadway, New York.

Have received formal notice from Waterhouse to-

day that unless he receives three thousand on account

of expenses incurred today and two thousand addi-
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tional on Monday for expenses incurred whieli will

have to be paid that day, all work will be discon-

tinued on steamer tomorrow evening. He also in-

sists that he shall receive at least fifteen thousand

by the fifteenth, on account of purchase price, or

sale will be canceled and money already paid for-

feited. Waterhouse evidently anxious accommodate

us all he can, but unable to continue advancing money

or extend payment of purchase unless above amount

immediately forthcoming? Am satisfied he will

adopt measured stated and the situation very serious

one, requiring inmiediate attention. Strongly ad-

vise you attend to this immediately and communi-

cate promptly with Waterhouse.

W. H. FERGUSON.

Special Rush.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit "W-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ''X-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 12, 1904.

Occidental Surities Company, 42 Broadway, New

York.
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Yesterday's telegram unsatisfactory. Am anxious

accommodate you, but large amount of work in prog-

ress on Garonne wliicli I cannot and will not per-

mit to continue on my account, unless I immediately

receive funds to pay for same. Sincerely hope you

will not compel me to have work stopped.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Rush.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit "X-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves A3^res, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "Y-1,"

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

94 Vr. N.M.IO.

New York, May 11, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle.

Fully expect meet your wishes but can't demand

conclusion today.

J. B. LEAKE.
5 :44 p. m.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit ''Y-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, (^lerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "Z-1."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

May 11, 1904. B

Charles B. Smith, Occidental Securities Company,

42 Broadway, New York City.

Special Rush.

Cannot permit work Garonne proceed unless

receive immediately necessary funds. Bills amount-

ing approximately five thousand including drydock

expenses, are here for payment and must be prompt-

ly met. Steamer is here, in sj^lendid condition ; will

be entirely completed, ready for sea by June first,

if necessary expense funds promptly received from

you. Can I also absolutely depend on your taking

up balance purchase price by May fifteenth, as prom-

ised; if not, what amount money can I depend on

receiving account purchase price by that date?

Please state exactly what I may expect, without any

chance failure. To meet certain obligations of my
own, need fifteen thousand dollars on thirteenth ; can

you arrange let me have this amount positively on

that date? Please wire definite, positive reply to

these questions, today.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Special Rush

Garonne.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "Z-1." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit '*A-2."

Seattle, May 6, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Auditorium Annex, Chicago, Il-

linois.

Smith wires ; Am arranging to carry out all prom-

ises to you including passed pajinents. Beg your

co-operation by allowing Garonne dry docked to-

day. Will positively meet the expense. (End quote"

Please answer quickly so that we can advise Esqui-

malt and inspectors. Crew now on board Ga-

ronne.
FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "A-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "B-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, May 6, 1904.

Charles B. Smith, North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, 42 Broadway, New York City.
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Your wire to Waterliouse Auditorium Seattle re-

peated to liim Auditorium Chicago.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit "B-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit *'C-2.^'

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

"41 SF. WF. W. 26.

New York, N. Y., May 6

Frank Waterhouse, Auditorium, Seattle.

Am arranging to carry out all promises to you in-

cluding passed payment beg your co-operation l^y al-

lowing Garonne dry docked today will positively meet

the expense.

10am.

C. B. SMITH.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''C-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "D-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

236. SF. MI. S. 13 Collect.

Chicago, May 4th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse and Co., Seattle, Wn.

Keep promptly posted regarding movements of

Garonne report remittances received New York.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
7:44 P. M.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "D-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "E-2.''

(On Blank of Western Union Telegraph Company.)

Seattle, May 4, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Auditorium Annex, Chicago.

Illinois.

Ferguson wiring New York be sure have thirty-

five hundred here tomorrow. Will not move Gar-

onne until received.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''E-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit *T-2."

(On Blank of Western Union Telegraph Company.)

"NX" Chicago May '04.

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Seattle, Wn.

Will Tremont have complete cargo Dont permit

Garonne proceed Esquimalt until you receive Mini-

mum thirty-five hundred additional expenses.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Garonne.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "F-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "G-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

New York Apl. 28 '04.

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Seattle, Wn.

Is draft paid wire Boody House Toledo where will

Rosene Dock.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "G-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ''H-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

New York Apl. 27 '04.

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Seattle, Wn.

Leave Thursday eATning for Toledo address

Boody House draft be paid tomorrow.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "H-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "1-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, April 26, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Hotel Spaulding, New York

City.

New York bank advises smith draft protested to-

day but that Smith promises payment tomorrow.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "1-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.



Grenville M. Dodge and Frank Watcrliouse. 415

Defendants' Exhibit "J-2."

(On Letterhead of The Chase National Bank.)

April 28th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Esq., President Frank Water-

house & Co., Incorporated, Seattle, Wash.

Dear Sir: We beg to advise that INIr. McGinnis of

Speyer & Co. has today handed to ns a bill of sale

of registered vessel, Frank Waterhouse, Incorpo-

rated, to North Alaska Steamship Co., Steamship

called the Garonne, which bill we hold subject to

your instructions.

Yours very truly,

S. H. MILLER,

Assistant Cashier.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''J-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "K-2."

April 8, 1904.
•

Mr. Charles B. Smith, c/o Rowe Alaska Mining Com-

pany, Room 409, #20 Broad St., New York

City.

Dear Sir: In accordance with your telegraphic au-

thority of April 7th, we have this day made ten davs
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sight draft on you for $5,000.00 account "Garonne"

repairs, which we trust to your kind protection.

Yours truly,

Treas.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "K-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit **L-2."

THE NATIONAL CITY BANK.

New York, April 6, 1901.

E. Foster Kelley, Esq., Cashier, Seattle National

Bank, Seattle, Wash.

Dear Sir: We have sent you night message in re-

sponse to your telegram of this morning, as follows:

"Company in question in state formation. Present

financial responsibility very small. Letter follows,"

which we now beg to confirm, and to state that the

information we receive is to the effect that while the

Company in question is incorporated for $3,000,000,

the shares of par value $10., we find from an inter-

view with Mr. L. that they have only sold a very

small portion of their stock; that a payment has been

made on a boat of $25,000, partially made up by sale

of stock, and the rest by contributions of several of

the organizers. It is not through that any of these
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people are very strong financially, and it would be

as well to have transactions for the present well se-

cured.

Trusting the above will be of service to you,

we, Yours very truly,

(Sgnd) A. G. LOOMIS,

Vice-President.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "L-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ••M-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

New York, N. Y. April 7th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Wn.

I pay your draft five thousand dollars ten days

sight.

C. B. SMITH.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "M-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Deri.
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Defendants' Exhibit **N-2.'^

(On Blauk of the Postal Telegraph-Oable Company.)

Seattle, April 6, 190-i.

Charles B. Smith, Room 409; 20 Broad Street, New

York City.

Received telegram yesterday from Oeddental Se-

curities Company authorizing draft on them for five

thousand dollars. Presume this your account. Not

knowing Securities Company, Avill not draw unless

am guaranteed draft will be paid. Please arrange

with New York Bank to telegraph correspondent

here to honor my draft on Securities Company or on

you for five thousand at ten days sight. Cannot con-

tinue work on steamer unless placed in funds imme-

diatel,y. Continuance work imperative enable com-

pletion work before season opens. Wire prompt

rely.

Rush.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "N-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "0-2."

(On Blank of Western Union Telegraph Company.)

Z. New York, April 5, 1904.

Frank Waterhonse, Bnrke Bldg., Seattle, Wn.

Will pay you draft five thousand ten days sight.

OCCIDENTAL SECURITIES CO.,

J. B. LEAKE,

Treas.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "0-2." Filed in the U.S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit 'T-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, April 5, 1904.

Charles B. Smith, North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, Room 409, #20 Broad Street, New York

City.

Wire Waterhouse direct to draw five thousand ten

days sight to cover expenditures Garonne. Rush

answer,
W. H. FERGUSON.

Rush—Charge Garonne.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "P-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "Q-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cable.)

Frank Waterhoiise, Burke Bldg., Seattle.

Expenses on boat will be met imdetermined

whether to go to Seattle or wait for you here will

wire definitely Monday.

CHAS. B. SMITH.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''Q-2." Filed in the V. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Keeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit '*R-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, Wash., March 31, 1904.

Charles B. Smith, Care Rowe Alaska Mining Co.,

20 Broad St., New York City.

Please telegraph repl.y to my message March

twenty ninth. Shall be compelled to discontinue

work now proceeding on steamer imless you arrange

immediately to 'paj for same.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "R-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit *'S-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, March 29, 1904.

Charles B. Smith, Care Rowe Alaska Mining Co.,

20 Broad Street, New York City.

Had arranged start east next Saturday. Expected

be New York April seventh. Cannot matter be

fully closed on my arrival there. If not please wire

positive date you will be here. Please remit by tele-

graph thirty-five hundred dollars to pay for work

already done on steamer by Fergusons orders and for

insurance premium advanced by me.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "S-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit '•T-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

New York N. Y. March 29th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Burke Building, Seattle, Wn.

Delay caused having nothing here showing equity
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in ship will be in Seattle next week arrange fully

with you.

CHARLES B. SMITH.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "T-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "U-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, March 28th, 1904.

Charles B. Smith, Care Rowe Alaska Mining; Co.,

20 Broad Street, New York City.

I have advanced thirty-five hundred dollars to pay

insurance premiums for work on Garonne on your

account since you purchased her, on Ferguson's

promise that you would remit enough money to reim-

burse me and take care of future necessary expenses.

Please wire definitely when I shall receive the money

already advanced and be j^laced in funds to continue

the work; also wire if you will be prepared to com-

jilete purchase of steamer May fifteenth as agreed.

Special rush message.

FRA^K WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "U-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit '•V-2."

Seattle, Wash. March 15, 1904.B

Received from the Washington National Bank of

Seattle, Cashier's Check Puget Sound National Bank

of Seattle, payable to John J. Habecker, and en-

dorsed ''Pay to order of Frank Waterhouse No.

107996, for Three Hundred dollars."

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "V-2." Filed in the V. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "W-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

February 16, 1904.B

W. H. Ferguson, Fifth Avenue Hotel, New York

City.

I received and receipted to Hastings for fourteen

thousand dollars account purchase Garonne yester-

day.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "W-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "X-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

New York, Feb. 16, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Bierk Blclg., Seattle.

Will leave for Seattle Wednesday Hastings has in-

structions regards sale or charter will arrange details

on my arrival.

U. H. FERGUSON.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "X-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "Y-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph Commercial Cables.)

New York, Feb. 15th, 1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Burke Bldg., Seattle, Wn.
Foui-teen thousand dollars deposited Chase Na-

tional. Wire to Washington National Seattle to pay

you on account of purchase Garonne please wire ac-

ceptance.

W. H. FERGUSON.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "Y-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit '*Z-2."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Seattle, Feb. 12, 1904. B.

W. H. Ferguson, Fifth Avenue Hotel, New York

City.

Has Washington National Bank Seattle been in-

structed honor my draft fourteen thousand dollars

next Monday*?

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Pink.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "Z-2." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ''A-3."

February 10, 1904.

W. H. Ferguson, Fifth Avenue' Hotel, New York,

N. Y.

Received your letter fifth. A vital condition of

sale Garonne to you was that purchase should be

entirely completed by February fifteenth by exchange

of steamer for fifteen thousand cash, notes, mort-

gage bond and other satisfactory collateral. Am
willing accept fourteen thousand next Monday, j)ro-

vided you agree execute notes, mortgage bond and
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deliver securities by March first, or forfeit the fif-

teen thousand if you fail; but I want you to advise

by wire what character of collateral to deferred pay-

ments you will furnish in addition to mortgage and

bond, so I may pass upon same by Monday. I guar-

antee Garonne good insurable risk, and will pass

United States inspection for commission, by expen-

diture on your part of about seventy-five hundred dol-

lars. Am now doing considerable work on her my

own expense, preparatory to inspection. Other par-

ties anxious to purchase her next Monday at same

price for practically cash.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Rush,

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "A-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "B-3."

Received, Seattle, February 15, 1904, of C. B.

Smith, Fourteen Thousand Dollars, being payment

due this pay on contract for purchase of Steamship

"Garonne." Another payment of $10,00.00 and

the execution of notes, mortgage, bond and collat-

erals for deferred payments are to be made and

completed on or before March 15, 1904, as per terms

of contract; and if default is made by said Smith
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in making said further payment or in execution of

said securities on or before March 15th next, then

his right to purchase said vessel shall ceases, and

all moneys paid by him toward such purchase shall

be forfeited to and be and remain the moneys of this

Company.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc.,

By FRANK WATERHOUSE,
President.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "B-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "C-3."

(On Blank of Western Union Telegraph Company.)

2, New York, Feb. 15, '04.

F. Waterhouse, Burke Bldg., Seattle, Wn.

Fourteen thousand wired by Chase National to

Washington National Seattle to Pay you account

Garonne please wire acceptance will pay you insur-

ance and expenses on arrival Seattle next Monday.

W. H. FERGUSON.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "C-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "D-3."

(On Blank of Western Union Telegraph Company.)

Q. New York, Feb. 15, 1904.

Frank Waterhoiise, Burke Bldg., Seattle, Wn.

C. B. Smith, has deposited fourteen thousand dol-

lars same transferred by wire through Washington

National Bank, Seattle.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "D-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "E-3."

(On Blank of Western-Union Telegraph Company.)

New York, February 11 :04.

Frank Waterhouse, Burke Bldg., Seattle, Washn.

Understand Garonne transfer on payment twenty-

five thousand my principal understands same and

has gone south cannot reach Seattle until March

tenth or twelfth. We propose pay fourteen thou-

sand Feby. fifteenth, ten thousand March fifteenth

made then Notes for balance mortgage insurance

policy good security bonds or cash I may not reach

Seattle until March fifth Will pay shipkeeper until

transfer.

W. H. FERGUSON,
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "E^3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit 'T-3."

New York, Feb. 5th, 1904.

Mr. Frank Waterhouse, Burke Building, Seattle,

Wash.

Dear Sir: Your various communications, includ-

ing confirmation of the sale of the Steamer Ga-

ronne duly received and we have confirmed a compli-

ance with the terms by telegraph.

We have written our Mr. Hastings to make a thor-

ough inspection of the Steamer and wire us the I'e-

sults of the said inspection.

I expect to be in Seattle myself in time to go over

the ship and follow the lines of inspection, but it is

just possible that I may not arrive there in time,

and may be detained here a week or 10 days longer

than I anticipate.

In regard to the second payment on the Garonne,

we will follow this mode which we trust will be sat-

isfactory. On or before Feb. 15th, we wiU deposit

in the Chase National Bank of New York, $14,000,

and the bank will wire the Washington National

Bank of Seattle to pay your draft for this 14,000

on account of the purchase price, of the steamer

"Garonne." We will also notify you at the same
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time that we have paid money in your credit and a

receipt given by you to our Mr, Hastings will cover

the ground.

As soon as I arrive in Seattle we will finish up

the matter as the details as per arrangement so as

to make the transfer of the vessel on the next pay-

ment of 10,000. We would like to have the option

until June 1st of paying the full amount of $75,000

in cash for the said steamer. This I feel sure you

will allow us as it is practically a cash transaction

by that time.

Yours very truly,

W. H. FERGUSON.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "F-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A., Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "G-3."

(On Blank of Western-Union Telegraph Company.)

''MS." New York, Feb. 4 '04.

Frank Waterhouse, Burke Bldg., Seattle, Wn.

Confirmation sale GARONNE received conditions

will be complied with.

U. H. FERGUSON.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "G-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ''H-3."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

New York, Feb. 3, 1904.

Frank Waterhoiise, Burke Building, Seattle.

Proposition Garrone accepted Chase National

bank has wired Washington National l)ank, Seattle,

to pay you one thousand dollars close deal will reach

Seattle, Feby. 12th.

U. H. FERGUSON.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''H-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "1-3."

(On Blank of Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.)

Philadelphia, Pa., Feb. 2nd, '1904.

Frank Waterhouse, Burke Building, Seattle, Wn.

Terms Garrona received commission satisfactory

New York to-night Fifth Ave. Hotel require

twenty-four hours.

W. H. FERGUSON.



432 Frank Waterliouse & Co., Inc., vs.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "1-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. ReevQs Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "J-3."

AT A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE

BOAED OF DIEECTORS

OF

THE NOETH ALASKA STEAMSHIP COM-
PANY.

Held at 42 Broadway, New York, July 9, 1904, the

following Eesolution was adopted,

Moved hy Mr. Forff, Secinded by Mr. Segee,

Whereas, this company is indebted to Frank

Waterhonse & Company of Seattle, Washington, in

the sum of approximately Seventy Thousand Dol-

lars, and

Whereas, the said Frank Waterhonse & Company

has received large sums of money, from this Com-

pan}^, and

Whereas, it seems wise to this Board of Directors,

and beneficial to the company's interests that the

mutual claim between this company and Frank

Waterhonse & Company be compromised and set-

tled by the exchange of releases.
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Be it Ivesohed, that the attorneys of the company be

and they hereby are authorized to prepare, and have

executed by the offices of this company, proper docu-

ments to carry out the same, and to receive from

the said Frank Waterhouse & Company, documents

properly executed to carry out said plan, and the

Secretary of this Company is authorized to affix the

company's seal to documents executed in accordance

herewith. '

'

[Endorsed]: Exhibit 'M-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit *'K-3."

Copy.

At a special meeting of the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company held July 8, 1901, the following reso-

lution was adopted.

"Resolved that the Counsel of this Company no-

tify Mr. Waterhouse that the Company cannot meet

the terms of the contract for the purchase of the

Steamship Graronne, and that Counsel confer with

Mr. Waterhouse with full authority from this Board

to take any steps necessary to protect the Company's

interest.

NORTH ALASKA STEAMSHIP CO.,

JOHN B. LEAKE,
Secy.
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[Endorsed]: Exhibit "K-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "L-3."

New York, July 8th, 1904.

North Alaska Steamship Company.

Gentlemen: By terms of our conditional contract

of sale of the Steamship "Garonne" to you it was

provided that deferred pa^anents should be evi-

denced by notes of your company and secured by a

first mortgage on the steamer and by such additional

collateral security as should be satisfactory to us.

It was also further provided that your company

should give us a Guaranty Company's bond, protect-

ing us and the steamer from any lien or claims for

supplies or repairs that might be incurred by you

at any time before the payment of our debt in full.

It was also provided in said agreement that these

securities and bonds were to be furnished to us on

or before the tenth day of March, 1904. None of

these conditions have been complied with by you.

There is now a balance due us of $37,641, with in-

terest, since June 2d, 1904, and there are claims and

demands outstanding against the steamer, incurred

by you in the purchase of supplies and material for

repairs, amounting to something over $30,000 which
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are unpaid and for which the holders chiim a lien

against the steamer.

We now notify you that unless you are prepared

to and will at once complete the performance of your

contract by accepting the title to the steamer, execu-

ting a mortgage and notes for the deferred pajTnents,

furnish the bond from the Guaranty Compan3^ in-

demnifying us against any claims against the

steamer, and furnish the additional collateral se-

curity for preferred payments due us, that security

to be to our satisfaction, we will exercise the right

reserved to us under the contract of canceling your

option of purchasing the said steamer and declare

a forfeiture of any rights you would otherwise have

in said contract, and also will retain the payments

heretofore made to us thereon.

We are now and have been since the tenth day of

March last, ready and prepared to execute a bill of

sale to you of the steamer upon your compliance with

the terms of said contract, but we are not willing to

allow the matter to stand open in its present shape,

and we require that you either perform the contract

or submit to a forfeiture of your rights under it at

once.

Yours truly,

(Signed) FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "L-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.
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16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit "M-3."

(On Letterhead North-Alaska Steamship Company.)

New York, June 9, 1904.

Mr. Frank Waterhouse, Holland House, New York.

Dear Sirs : You are hereby notified that the North

Alaska Steamship Company refuses to comply with

the terms of the contract for the purchase of the

Steamship Garonne existing between yourself, Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., and the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company.

You are further notified that the North Alaska

Steamship Company claims a lien upon the Steam-

sliip Garonne to the amount of all payments made

by the North Alaska Steamship Company or for its

benefit, whether upon the purchase price or other-

wise.

Very truly yours,

NORTH ALASIvA STEAMSHIP CO.,

J. B. LEAKE, Secy.

[Endorsed] : Exhibit "M-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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Defendants' Exhibit "N-3."

Seattle, Aug. 2, 1904.

Copy.

F. S. Pusev, Esq., 101 Broadway, New York.

Dear Sir : I duly received your telegram of the ISth

ult., reading as follows

:

"Have you advised of collection of trustee freight

money? Just returned yesterday. Please wire

present status of our joint claims.

(Sgd.) FRANK S. PUSEY."

This was not replied to, for the sole reason that

I was not in possession of your address, and had no

means of knowing where a telegram would reach you,

and it was only through your letter of July 27th,

which reached me yesterday, that I learned of your

address.

I must confess to a feeling of surprise and annoy-

ance at the tone of your above-mentioned letter, for

the reason that it was specifically understood and

put in writing, that I was to be in no way person-

ally responsible to you, for the collection of your

debt against the North Alaska Steamship Co. I

agreed to act in the capacity of trustee, solely as a

matter of accommodation to you, and in that capac-

ity to receive and remit to you, the money which the

officers of the North Alaska S. S. Co. promised to
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remit to you from Cape Nome, and to pay to you,

out of the revenues of tlieir company thereafter.

This was the only duty that I undertook, in my ca-

pacity as trustee. The money has not been remitted

to me from Cape Nome, therefore I have had no op-

l^ortunity to receive it or forward it to you. The

North Alaska Steamship Company became defunct,

and has retired from business. In the settlemxent of

my own affairs with the company, I was obliged to

take back the s s " Garonne, '

' and assume an indebt-

edness which the North Alaska S. S. Co. had loaded

her with, amounting to almost $35,000. I took the

steamer back and assumed the indebtedness, and

subsequently sold her to another corporation. I have

no opportunity for protecting your claim. When I

was in New York, I was informed that both yourself

and General Dodge were out of the city. An effort

to get into communication with you was made sev-

«?ral times while I was there. I have no idea what

disposition was made of the funds that were to be

<iollected by Mr. Smith at Cape Nome, as I have re-

ceived no advice from either him or from Capt. Fer-

guson, regarding the same. The settlement I was

obliged to make with the North Alaska S. S. Co. was

very unsatisfactory to me.

I enclose herewith notes and other papers, which I

have been holding in this connection, for you. I re-
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gret very niucli that I have been unable to collect this

money for 3'ou, but the circumstances have been as

above.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of enclosures.

Very truly yours,

(sgd) FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Enc.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "N-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit **0-3."

Seattle, Feb. 1, 1904.

Copy.

W. Ferguson, Philadelphia.

Price Garonne $85,000; will pay you commis-

sion 2y2%. other parties in close negotiations on

same terms ; steamer will be sold to first comer.

FRANK WATERPIOUSE.

Seattle, Feb. 3, 1904.

W. H. Ferguson, New York.

Your $1,000 received and accepted, and I now con-

firm sale Garonne, provided you pay me $14,000

Feb. 15, deferred payments to be made as follows:

$10,000 March 10; $10,000 June 15; $5,000 Sept. 15,
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$5,000 Nov. 15 ; all this year
; $5,000 Feb. 15 ; $5,000

Apr. 15 ; $5,000 June 15 ; $5,000 Aug. 15 ; $5,000 Oct.

15 ; $10,000 Dec. 15 ; all 1905 ; $5,000 Mar. 15, 1906.

Deferred payments to be secured by first mortgage

on steamer, assignment marine insurance, corpora-

tion bond guaranteeing vessel against indebtedness,

and other security which shall be satisfactory to me.

Sale conditioned on tenns and representations my

letter to you Jan. 26th. Confirm this understanding.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, Feb. 10, 1904.

W. H. Ferguson, New York City.

Received your letter 5th; a vital condition sale

Garonne to you was that sale should be entirely

completed by Feb. 15th, by exchange of steam.er for

$15,000 cash, notes, mortgage bond and other satis-

factory collateral. Am willing accept $14,000 next

Monday, provided you agree execute notes, mortgage

bond, and deliver securities by March 1st, or forfeit

the $15,000 if you fail; but I want you to advise

by wire what character of collateral to deferred pay-

ments you will furnish, in addition to mortgage and

bond, so I may pass upon same by Monday. I guar-

antee Garonne good insurable risk and will pass

U. S. inspection for commission, by expenditure on

your part of about $25,000. Am now doing consider-

able work on her my own expense, preparatory to
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inspection. Other parties anxious purchase her next

Monday at same price, for practically cash.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Seattle, Feb. 12, 1904.

W. H. Ferguson, New York City.

Has Washington National Bank, Seattle, been in-

structed honor my draft $14,000 next Monday.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
Seattle, Feb. 16, 1904.

W. H. Ferguson, New York City.

I received and receipted to Hastings for $14,000,

account purchase Garonne yesterday.

Seattle, Mar. 28, 1904.

C. B. Smith, New York City.

I have advanced $3,500 to pay insurance premiums

and for work on Garonne on your account since

you purchased her on Ferguson 's promise you would

remit enough money to reimburse me and take care

future necessary expenses. Please wire definitely

when I shall receive the money already advanced

and be placed in funds to continue the work. Also

wire if you are prepared complete purchase of

steamer.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, Mar. 28, 1904.

C. B. Smith, New York City.

Had arranged start east next Saturday; expected

be New York April 7th. Cannot matter be fully



442 Frank Waterhouse d- Co., Inc., vs.

closed on my arrival there. If not please wire posi-

tive date you will be here, please remit by telegraph

$3,500 to pay for work already done on steamer by

Fergusons order and for insurance premium ad-

vanced by me.
FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, Mar. 31, 1904.

C. B. Smith, New York City.

Please telegraph reply message 29th. Shall be

compelled discontinue work now proceeding on

steamer unless you arrange immediately to pay for

same.
FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, Apr. 5, 1904.

C. B. Smith, New York City.

Wire Waterhouse direct to draw five thousand ten

days sight to cover expenditures G-aronne. Rush

answer.

W. H. FERGUSON.

Seattle, Apr. 6, 1904.

C. B. Smith, New York.

Received telegram yesterday from Occidental Se-

curities Co. authorizing draft on them for $5,000.

Presume this your account. Not knowing Securities

company will not draw unless am guaranteed draft

will be paid. Please arrange with New York Bank

to telegraph correspondent here to honor my draft on

Securities company or on you for five thousand at
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ten days sight. Cannot continue work on steamer

unless placed in funds.

Seattle, May 11, 1904.

C. B. Smith, New York City.

Cannot permit work Garonne proceed unless

received immediately necessary funds. Bills amount-

ing approximately $5,000 including drydock expenses

are here for payment and must be promptly met.

Steamer is here, in splendid condition, will be entire-

ly completed, ready for sea by June first, if neces-

sary expense funds promptly received from you.

Can I also absolutely depend on your taking up

balance purchase price by May 15th as promised. If

not, what amount money can I depend on receiving

account purchase price by that date. Please state

exactly what I may expect, without any chance fail-

ure. To meet certain obligations of my own, need

$15,000 on 13th can you arrange let me have this

amount positively on that date? Please wire posi-

tive reply to these questions today.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, May 12, 1904.

Occidental Securities Company, New York.

Yesterday 's telegram unsatisfactory. Am anxious

accommodate you but large amount work in progress

on Garonne which cannot and will not permit to

continue on my account, unless I umnediately receive
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funds to pay for same. Sincerely hope you will not

compel me to have work suspended.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, May 13, 1903.

C. B. Smith, New York City.

Have received formal notice from Waterhouse to-

day that unless he received 3000 on account of ex-

penses already incurred, today, and 2000 additional

on Monday, for expenses incurred which will have

to be paid that day, all work will be discontinued on

steamer tomorrow evening. He also insists that he

shall receive $15,000 at least, by the 15th on account

of 2)urchase price, or sale will be cancelled and money

already paid forfeited. Waterhouse evidently an-

xious accommodate us all he can, l)ut unable to con-

tinue advancing money or extend payment of pur-

chase, unless above amount inunediately forthcom-

ing. Am satisfied will adopt measures stated and

the situation very serious one, require immediate

attention. Strongly advise you attend to this imme-

diately and coimnunicate promptly with Waterhouse.

W. H. FERGUSON.

Seattle, May 13, 1904.

Charles B. Smith, New York.

No reply my telegram of yesterday. Please take

notice unless I receive $3000 today and $2000 addi-

tional Next Monday all work on Garonne will be
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discontinued tomorrow night also unless I receive

$15,000 next Monday, on account of purchase price,

or the satisfactory securities covering deferred pay-

ments sale will be declared cancelled and money al-

ready paid forfeited.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, May 17, 1904.

C. B. Smith, New York.

Received no money. Additional bills for work,

supplies ordered by Ferguson on Garonne's credit

and account, coming in. My patience being rapidly

exhausted. You must remit ample funds immedi-

ately or shall take necessary steps protect myself.

Please consider this an ultimatum.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, May 20, 1905.

C. Smith, New York.

Unless I receive at least 5000 here by tomorrow

noon, to partially x^rotect me against bills due and

expenses incurred on account of Garonne my ac-

count, shall turn matter over to my attorneys, to take

necessary steps to cancel sale. Am so situated that

I have no alternative in matter. Earnestly hope you

will protect yourself, by forwarding money in time.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
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Seattle, May 23, 1904.

C. B. Smith, New York.

Received 2500 from you Saturday. Same day ad-

vanced 2000 for 3^011, steamer must coal next Wednes-

day, expense $5000. Insurance must be placed this

week, expense $6000, year premium. Food supplies

must be put aboard this week, expense 6000. You

now owe me money advanced $5000. If balance pur-

chase price paid immediately cash, or satisfactory

securities, you will be at liberty contract all bills you

desire Garonne's credit, and pay same out of freight

and passenger receipts available June 2. If pur-

chase not completed immediately, must have cash be-

fore can permit coal supplies and insurance be pur-

chased steamer's credit. Please advise quickly what'

course you will pursue.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

'Seattle, May 26, 1904.

Occidental Securities Co., New York City.

Your telegram yesterday unsatisfactory. Neither

cargo, coal nor supplies will go aboard steamer until

I receive money pay therefor. Have instructed at-

torneys delay further action until receipt your reply

this message, which shall expect promptly.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.
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Seattle, May 27, 1905.

Occidental Securities Co., New York.

Received $5000 yesterday account expenses. Will

you remit $10,000 additional today, supplies : Requi-

sitions must be filled immediately insure vessel sail-

ing second.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, May 21, 1905.

Occidental S. Co., New York.

We will accept $5,000 cash from N. Y. at once, and

$22,500 out of receipts, balance to l)e paid in 30 days,

secured by mortgage and note. Remit $5,000 im-

mediately "? Very imperative and must close at once.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, June 10, 1904.

J. B. Leake, N. Y.

Have you executed mortgage and remitted money

pay expense, bills here. These matters pressing,

require immediate attention. Answer.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, June 11, 1904.

J. B. Leake, N. Y.

Underwriters demand immediate payment Ga-

ronne insurance amounting to 6600. They decline to

issue covering notes and threaten cancel insurance,

unless premiums paid immediately. Smith Fergu-

son assured me money for this purpose would be
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remitted from N. Y. immediately after ship sailed.

Must be telegraphed reach me by Monday without

fail. Answer.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, June 13, 1904.

J. B. Leake, N. Y.

If you remit 13,000 to-morrow for expenses, exe-

cute mortgage at Chase National immediately and

pay me eight thousand, six hundred, June 22, I will

extend balance of payments as follows : $10,000 with

interest on first note until July 12th ; entire amount

of second note until Aug. 15. Answer.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, May 14, 1904.

C. B. Smith, N. Y.

Your last telegram unsatisfactory. Do not un-

derstand nature contract Dodge, which protects me.

I require 5000 cash Monday for payment bills al-

ready incurred, and satisfactory security for de-

ferred purchase payments. If you remit this Mon-

day and 5000 additional account purchase, to reach

me not later than next Wednesday, also 5000 to reach

me May 25th, I will extend date for delivery of se-

curities, or for making pa3anent in full in cash, un-

til June 5th. Am willing accommodate you every

possible way, but there are limitations to my ability.
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Seattle, June 14, 1904.

W. H. Rowe, N. Y.

Will not let conditions rcit'.-iiii .-ts at present. In-

sist debts against Garonne now due, be paid imme-

diately, and mortgage be executed immediately.

Will expect prompt reply stating definitely what you

intend to do.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, July 7, 1905.

Frank Waterhouse, N. Y.

900 only received from Nome. Cliapin not re-

ceived Pusey money. This week's pay-roll 560, next

week 330, including Captain Lawe, steward, purser

half pay

—

Seattle, July 16, 1901.

C. S. Meade, N. Y.

Your wire date. Money received. Forward

quickly original ))ills 3^ou took east against steamer.

Bill sale will be forwarded Monday. Does suggested

name steamship company stand.

Seattle, June 13, 1904.

J. B. Leake, New York City.

If 3^ou remit thirteen thousand to-morrow for ex-

penses, execute mortgage at Chase National imme-

diately and pay me eight thousand six hundred, June

22d, I will extend balance of payments as follows:

Ten thousand with interest on first note until July
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12th ; entire amount of second note until August 15tli.

Answer.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, June 13, 1904.

J. B. Leake, New York City.

Thirteen thousand does not include insurance.

Hastings promises furnish his statement, which is

necessary complete mine, by Wednesdaj^; will then

forward mine promptly.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, June 14, 1904.

W. H. Rowe, New York City.

Will not let conditions remain as at present. In-

sist debts against Garonne, now due, be paid imme-

diately, and mortgage be executed immediately. Will

expect prompt reply, stating definitely what you in-

tend to do.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

Seattle, June 15, 1904.

W. H. Rowe, New York City.

When your telegram arrived yesterday was out

of town. Message repeated over telephone and mis-

understood. Certainly agree let conditions my tele-

gram 13th stand until arrival. Mean early next

week. Strongly advise you remit money promptly

pay debts now due protect your own credit, save me

embarrassment. If you will remit six thousand ex-
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penses by to-morrow will stand off balance bills un-

til next week.

FRANK WATERHOUSE.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''0-3." Filed in the IT. S.

Circuit Court. Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit ''P-3."

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

BILL OF SALE OF REGISTERED VESSEL.

To All to Whom These Presents Shall Come, Greet-

ing:

Know ye, that the Frank Waterhouse & Co., inc.,

a corporation, organized under the laws of the State

of Washington, by Frank Waterhouse, its president,

sole owner of the Str. or vessel, called the Garonne

of Seattle, Wash., of the burden of twenty-three hun-

dred and nineteen tons or thereabouts, for and in

consideration of the sum of one dollar and other

good and valuable consideration, lawful money of

the United States of America, to it in hand paid,

before the sealing and delivery of these presents, by

the North Alaska Steamship Company, a corpora-

tion, organized under the laws of the State of New

York, the receipt whereof it does hereby acknowl-
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edge and is therewith satisfied, contented, and paid,

have bargained and sold, and by these presents do

bargain and sell, nnto the said North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, its successors and assigns, all of the

said Str. or vessel, together with the masts, bow-

sprit, sails, boats, anchors, cable, tackle, furniture,

and all other necessaries thereunto appertaining and

belonging; the certificate of the registry of which

said steamer or vessel is as follows, viz.

:

Register No. 108. Official Number.

Numerals. Letters.

86504 K. P. T. V. V.

CERTIFICATE OP REGISTRY.

In pursuance of Chapter I, Title XLVIII, 'Regu-

lation of Commerce and Navigation,' Revised Stat-

utes of the United States, W. P. Prichard, Secy, of

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., having taken and

subscribed the oath required by law, and having

sworn that he, Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., is the

only owner of the vessel called the Garomie of Seat-

tle, Wash., whereof R. McFarland is at present mas-

ter, and is a citizen of the United States, and that

the said vessel was built in the year 1871, at Gooan,

Scotland, as appears by R. R. 48B issued at Seattle,

Wash., May 12, 1900, surrendered O. C. and said

register having certified that the said vessel has four

decks, and three masts; and that her length is 371
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feet and — tenths ; her breadth 41 feet and 4 tenths

;

her depth 20 feet and 4 tenths; her height 15 feet

and 8 tenths; that she measures twenty-three hun-

dred and nineteen tons, viz.

:

Tons. lOOths.

Capacity under tonnage deck 1938 19

Capacity between decks above tonnage

deck 1962 93

Capacity of inclosures on upper deck,

viz 44 54

Gross Tonnage .... 3945

Deductions under Section

4153, Revised Statutes, as

amended by Act of March

2, 1905; Crew space

233.79; Master's cabin ..233.79

Steering gear, ; Anchor

gear, 46.62 117.74

Boatswain's stores — ; Chart-

House ; Storage of

sails 12.03 12.03

Donkey engine and boiler,

; Propelling power

1262.61 1626 . 17 1626 17

Net Tonnage 2319

The following described spaces, and no others, have

been, omitted, viz: and that she is a str., has
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a figure-head and a elliptic stern; and the said

having agreed to the description and admeasure-

ment above specified, according to law, said vessel

has been duly registered at the Port of Port Towns-

end.

Given under my hand and seal at the Port of Port

Townsend, this 4th day of May, in the year one thou-

sand nine hundred and one (1901).

F. D. HEUSTIS, [Seal]

Collector of Customs.

No. (Seal)

Naval Officer.

EUGENE TYLER CHAMBERLAIN,

Commissioner of Navigation."

[Seal of United States Treasury.]

To have and to hold the said said Str. Garonne

and appurtenances thereunto belonging unto the said

North Alaska Steamship Company, its successors

and assigns, to the sole and only proper use, benefit

and behoof of the said North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, its successors and assigns forever; and the

said Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., has promised,

covenanted, and agreed, and by these presents does

promise, covenant, and agree, for itself, its suc-

cessors and assigns, to and with the said North

Alaska Steamship Company, its successors and as-

signs to warrant and defend the said title to said
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Str. or vessel, and all the other before-mentioned

appurtenances, against all and every person and per-

sons whomsoever.

In testimony whereof, the said Frank Waterhouse

& Co., Inc., has caused these presents to be signed

by Frank Waterhouse, its president, and its corpo-

rate seal hereunto set this 8th day of April, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred and

four.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc. [Seal]

By FRANK WATERHOUSE, President.

Attest

:

W. H. BOGLE,

Secretary.

State of Washington,

County of King,—ss.

I, Frank P. Dow, a notary public in and for the

State of Washington, residing at Seattle, Wash., in

the above-named county and State, duly commis-

sioned, sworn and qualified, do hereby certify that on

this day of , A. D., 190—, before me

personally appeared Frank Waterhouse and W. H.

Bogle, to me known to be the individuals who as

President and Secretary, respectively, of Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., the corporation that exe-

cuted the within instrument, and acknowledged the

said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and
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deed of the said corporation for the uses and pur-

poses therein mentioned, and on oath stated that they

were authorized to execute said instrument, and that

the seal affixed is the corporate seal of said corpora-

tion.

Given under my hand and official seal this 8th day

of April, 1904.

[Notarial Seal] FRANK P. DOW.

[Endorsed on back] : "Bill of Sale of Registered

vessel. Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., to North

Alaska Steamship Co., Steamship called the Ga-

ronne. Frank P. Dow, Custom House Broker, Seat-

tle, Wash."

Slip attached to documents: "This is now complete

for delivery when you add the name of the Ijuyer

and the consideration. (Signed) Frank P. Dow."

[Endorsed]: Exhibit "P-3." Filed in the U. S,

Circuit Court. Western Dist. of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.

Defendants' Exhibit *'Q-3."

To All to Whom These Presents Shall Come or may

Concern, Greeting

:

Know Ye, That Frank Waterhouse and Company,

a corporation, having its principal office at Seattle,

State of Washington, for and in consideration of
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tlie sum of one dollar ($1.00) lawful money of the

United States of America, to it in hand paid by The

North Alaska Steamship Company, a corporation,

having its principal office at the city of New York,

State of New York, the receipt whereof is hereby ac-

knowledged, have remised, released and forever dis-

charged and by these presents do for itself, its succes-

sors and assigns remise, release and forever discharge

the said North Alaska Steamship Company, its suc-

cessors and assigns of all and from all, and all man-

ner of action and actions, cause and causes of ac-

tions, suits, debts, dues, simis of money, accounts,

reckonings, bonds, bills, specialties, covenants, con-

troveries, agreements, j^romises, variances, tres-

passes, damages, judgments, extents, executions,

claims or demands whatsoever in law or in equity,

which against The North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, its successors and assigns ever had, now has

or which its successors and assigns hereafter can,,

shall or may have for, upon or by reason of any mat-

ter, cause or thing whatsoever from the beginning

of the world to the day of the date of these presents.

In witness whereof the said Frank Waterhouse &

Company has by the hands of its President and Sec-

retary executed tliis instrument and affixed a seal on

the ninth dav of Jiil\', 1904.
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State of New York,

County of New York,—ss.

On this 9tli clay of July, 1904, before me personally

came William H. Bogle, to me known, who, being

duly sworn did depose and say that he resided in

Seattle, State of Washington; that he is the secre-

tary of Frank Waterhouse and Company, the cor-

poration described in and which executed the above

instrument, that he signed his name thereto with the

intent to l)ind the said corporation to the terms here-

of.

THOMAS H. McKEE,

Notary Public,

New York County.

[Endorsed]: Exhibit ''Q-3." Filed in the U. S.

Circuit Court. Western Dist, of Washington. Jun.

16, 1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Dep.
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No. 1290.

In the Cireuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc. (a Corpora-

tion), and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Notice of Taking Depositions,

To the Aforesaid Defendants, and to W. H. Bogle,

Esq., their Counsel:

You and each of you are hereby notified that, in

accordance with an order of this Court made in this

cause on August 7th, 1905, appointing Willis Van

Valdenburg, Esq., a special examiner to take testi-

mony herein, the testimony of Grenville M. Dodge

and Frank S, Pusey, witnesses on behalf of the com-

plainant herein, will be taken before said Willis Van

Valkenburg, Esq., at the law offices of Taft & Sher-

man, No, 15, William Street, in the city of New York,

State of New York, at 10 o'clock A. M., on the 21st

day of September, 1905, and if not concluded on said

date will be continued from time to time, as may be

determined by Special Examiner and counsel then
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present representing the parties hereto, until finally

concluded.

Dated, Seattle, Washington, August 28th, 1905.

G. W. KING,

Solicitor for Complainant.

Ill the Circuit Court of the United States for West-

ern District of Washington, Northern Division.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc. (a Corpora-

tion), and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Order Appointing Special Examiner.

Comes now the complainant herein, by Geo. H.

King, Esq., his Counsel, and moves the Court for an

order that Willis Van Valkenburg, Esq., a notary

public, of New York City, New York, or some other

officer authorized by law to take depositions, be ap-

pointed Special Examiner to take the depositions of

certain witnesses in said New York City, to be used

on the trial of this cniiso, and it appearing necessary

to prevent a failure (if justice, that the testimony of

said witnesses should he taken.
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It is ordered that Willis Van Valkenbiirg, Esq., a

Notary Public of New York City, New York, be, and

he hereby is appointed a Special Examiner of this

court, and that he be, and he is hereby authorized

and empowered to take and transmit to this court

the testimony of Grenville M. Dodge and Franls: S.

Pusey and each of them, witnesses in behalf of said

complainant, in answer to oral questions to be put to

said witnesses by the respective parties at the time

of taking such testimon^y, 15 days notice of time and

place of depositions to be given.

Done in open court this 7th day of August, 1905.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of

Washington. Aug. 7, 1905. A. Reeves Ayres,

Clerk. A. N. Moore, Deputy.

United States of America,

Western District of Washington, -ss

I, A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk of the Circuit Court of

the United States for the District of Washington, do

hereby certify that I have compared the foregoing

copy with the original order appointing Special Ex-

aminer, in the foregoing entitled cause, now on file

and of record in my office at Seattle, and that the

same is a true and perfect transcript of said original

and of the whole thereof.
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Witness my hand and the seal of said court, this

7th day of August, 1905.

[Seal] A. REEVES AYRES,

Clerk.

By H. M. Walthew,

Deputy.

[Endorsed] : Certified Copy of Order Appointing

Examiner.

Ill flic Circuit Court of the United States, for the

Western District of Washington, NortJierii

Division.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Incorporated (a

Corporation), and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants.

Depositions.

Testimony on behalf of the complainant, taken on

the 21st day of September, 1905, under the sixty-

seventh rule in Equity, as amended, before Willis

Van Valkenburgh, Esq., Special Examiner, ap-

pointed by order of the Hon. C. H. Hanford, Judge,
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dated August 7th, 1905, and pursuant to notice duly

given under said order.

Appearances

:

GEORGE H. KING, for the Complainant,

TAFT & SHERMAN (Theodore M. Taft), of

Counsel;

W. H. BOGLE, for the Defendants,

GRIGGS, BALDWIN & BALDWIN (David M.

Dean), of Counsel.

It is hereby stipulated that the depositions of Gen.

Grenville M. Dodge and Frank S. Pusey be taken

down in shorthand by the Special Examiner and shall

be put into typewriting.

Counsel for complainant handed to the Special Ex-

aminer the order appointing him and the notice of

taking the depositions.

It is hereby stipulated between the counsel that the

taking of the depositions be adjourned to the 28th

day of September, 1905, at eleven o'clock in the fore-

noon, at the office of Taft & Sherman, 15 William

Street, New York City, with the same force and ef-

fect as if taken on this day.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., et al.
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New York, September 28tli, 1905.

Met pursuant to adjournment.

Appearances

:

THEODORE M. TAFT, for Complainant:

DAVID M. DEAN, for Defendants.

It is stipulated by and between counsel that all ob-

jections to the competency, relevancy and ma-

teriality of the testimony and any objections except

objections as to the form of the questions, may be

taken upon the reading of the depositions on the

trial of the case, and such objections need not be

made at this hearing.

Gen. GRENVILLE M. DODGE, the complainant,

called as a witness in his own behalf, being duly

sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination of Mr. TAFT.

Q. What is your full name. Gen. Dodged

A. Grenville M. Dodge.

Q. And have you been li\ing here in New York

for some time?

A. Yes, for a good many years.

Q. And are you in business in New York?

A. Yes.

Q. Where have you been doing business?

A. Well, for the last fifteen or eighteen years

—

for the last eighteen years anyhow, at No. 1 Broad-

way.
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(Deposition of Gen. Grenville M. Dodge.)

Q. Wliat is your business'?

A. Railroading; I am at tlie liead of several roads

and I am also engaged in constructing railroads.

Q. You are designated as a civil engineer *?

A. That is my profession,

Q. You are the complainant in this suit against

Frank Waterhouse & Company and Frank Water-

house? A. I am.

Q. Where do you live in New Yorlv, or where have

you been living for the last three or four years'?

A. At the Union League Club.

Q. You are a member of that club ?

A. I am.

Q. Are you one of the few honorary members'?

A. I am.

Q. Have you examined the Trow City Director}^

for the last four or five years to see whether you ap-

pear in that directory?

A. Yes; I think I have seen that directory every

year for four or five years; my name appears in it.

Q. That directory shows your business address at

No. 1 Broadway and your house address at the Union

League Club'? A. Yes.

Q. The Trow City Directory is a standard di-

rectory for this city, is it not '? A. It' is.

Q. You are connected with a good many different

organizations, are you nof? A. Yes-.
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Q. Will yoii state some of tliem'?

A. Well, I am connected with the Fort Worth and

Denver City Railway, the Colorado Southern Rail-

way, the Wichita Valley Railway, and other roads;

and I am a director in the Bowling Green Trust Com-

pany. I am a member of three clubs.

Q. Are you a member of the Loyal Legion?

A. Yes; I have been the Commander of it, and I

am a member of it.

Q. You are prett}^ well known in the City of New

York among financial and general business men, are

you not?

A. Well, yes; I do a good deal of business with

a good many people.

Q You are acquainted with William F. King?

A. I am.

Q. What firm is he connected with?

A. Calhoun, Robbins & Company.

Q. And are you personally known to him?

A. I am; I have known him a great many years,

Q. And you knew his wife?

A. Yes, I knew his wife.

Q. Before she married him and afterwards?

A. Yes.

Q. This William F. King is the same Mr. King

who was connected with the North Alaska Steamship

Company? A. Yes.
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Q. And subsequently connected with the Mer-

chants' and Miners' Steamship C<)nipany"?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you and are you known to Frost & Mc-

Kee, the attorneys for the North Alaska Steamship

Company? A. Yes.

Q. And were you and are you known to W. H.

Ferguson, who arranged the sale of the ''Garonne"

from Waterhouse & Co. to the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company? A, Yes.

Q. And you were and are known to the officers of

the North Alaska Steamship Company?

A. Yes.

Q. In the spring of 1904 did you lend any money

to the North Alaska Steamship Company?

A. I did.

Q. Do 3^ou recall how much you had loaned to

them up to the 43th of May, 4904?

A. I think it was about $45,000, but I cannot state

exactly—yes, I loaned them $13,500.

Q, (Papers shown Avitness.) I show^ you a paper,

and ask you what that is?

A. That is an agreement between Mr. Frank S.

Pusey, acting for me, and Charles B. Smith, for the

North Alaska Steamship Company, and Charles B.

Smith personally.
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(Said paper was marked "For Identification Com-

plainant's Exhibit 1.")

Q. It was on May 13tb, 1904, that the agreement

was made which set forth the indebtedness to you of

$13,500 and agreeing to give you a mortgage on the

steamship "Garonne." Did you receive a mortgage

on the steamship '

' Garonne '

' in compliance ^dth that

agreement? A. I did not.

Q. Did you, after the 13th of May, 1904, become

anxious in regard to the payment of this indebted-

ness to you by the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany? A. I did.

Q. What did you do in pursuance of that anxiety?

A. I instructed Mr. Frank S. Pusey to go imme-

diately to Seattle and take proper measures to secure

my loan or secure the mortgage on the loan, and, if

tha/t was not done, I instructed him to seize the ship

or attach the vessel.

Q. Where was the ship at that time?

A. At Seattle, Washington.

Q. Can you tell me the date on which you gave

Mr. Pusey those instructions, about?

A. It was a very short time after the signing of

this agreement.

Q. Well, was it between that time and the 1st of

June?

A. Yes, between that time and the 1st of June.
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Q. Did you do anything in regard to letters of

iutrodiietion to Mr. Pusey to people out in Seattle?

A. Yes; I gave Mr. Pusey a letter to Grenville M.

Phillips, who was a merchant there, authorizing him

to do everything he could to aid Mr. Pusey in the

matter; and then I went to the Bowling Green Trust

Company and obtained a letter from the Bowling

Green Trust Company to their correspondent in

Seattle, instructing them to aid Mr. Pusey finan-

cially or in any way he might require.

Q. What was the object of his getting financial

assistance out there?

A. If we tied up that boat, we expected to have to

give bonds, and it was necessary for me to provide

for the giving of those bonds, to arrange with some

people out there for giving the bonds.

Q. Are you known in Seattle"?

A. Yes, I am known there.

Q. Have you lived there?

A. I have not lived there, but I have constructed

roads there and have had charge of roads or been

connected with roads that ran in there.

Q. Name some of the roads and give the times at

which you were connected with them?

A. As chief engineer of the Union Pacific I made

the first survey into that country, to Portland, and

extended it on to Tacoma; and then for a few years
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we ran what was known as the Oregon Navigation

Company, which was afterwards leased, and it was

used and run by the Union Pacific. I went out there

afterwards with Mr. Villard and bought tliat prop-

erty there. I was afterwards connected with build-

ing a road from Portland to Seattle.

Q. During what years were you so engaged?

A. That ran all the way from 1867 up to 1895,

perhaps. We ran the first steamship from there to

Alaska.

Q. On June 2d, 190-1, do you know the amount

that was due to 3'ou from the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company? A. Yes, $10,000.

Q. Have you received from any source any part

of that $10,000? A. I have not.

Q. And there is still due to you from the North

Alaska Steamship Company $10,000 with interest

thereon from that date? A. Yes.

Q. In your bill of complaint you state that on June

2d, 1901, a note was given by the North Alaska

Steamship Company to Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany, as trustee for yon, for $10,000; also an agree-

ment was made on that date signed by Frank Water-

house & Co. agreeing to take a mortgage on the

steamship "Garonne," to secure themselves for $37,-

671.46 and to secure you for $10,000. This is ad-

mitted by the answer. Now, will vou tell me how
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Frank Waterhouse & Co. or Frank Waterhouse car-

ried out this agreement with you"?

Mr. DEAN.—That question is objected to as to

form and upon the further ground that it is instruc-

tive to tlie witness.

A. They never carried it out in any manner.

Q. What conununication did you have witli them

or either of them after June 2d, 1904'?

A. I never liad any.

Q. Have they or eitlier of tliem ever written to

you personally? A. They have not.

Q. So far as you know have they or either of them

ever attempted to communicate with you'?

A. They have not.

Q. When did you first learn that the North

Alaska Steamship Company had given back the

steamship "Garonne" to Frank Waterhouse & Co.

or Frank Waterhouse '?

A, I think I first learned of it in July.

Q. In July, who called your attention to tliaf?

A. Mr. Pusey.

Q. You received no word whatever from Frank

Waterhouse or from Frank Waterhouse & Co.?

A. None whatever.

Q. What was the first communication from Frank

Waterhouse or Frank Waterhouse & Co. to anybody
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concerning the resale of tlie steamship "Garonne"

to the Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company'?

A. It was a communication from them to Mr.

Pusey, some time in August, 1904.

Q. All these transactions that you are testifying

about in connection with the "Garonne" were in the

year 1904? A. Yes.

Q. Where were you during the month of July

and the month of August, 1904?

A. I was in the city here, say, two or three days

each week and a few miles out of the city on other

days.

Q. Were you in telephonic communication with

your office daily?

A. I was, and my mail was sent to me.

Q. Now, Gen. Dodge, would there have been any

difficulty in Franlv Waterhouse or Frank Waterhouse

& Co. communicating with you in New York City

during the months of July and August, 1904, if they

or either of them had really wanted to find you?

Mr. DEAN.—I object to that question on the

ground that it calls for a conclusion.

A. There would have been no difficulty in com-

municating with me.

Q. Was there any difficulty at any time m July or

August for any one in tlie city of New York who
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really wanted to get into personal eommunication

with you, doing so?

(Objected to on the same ground.)

A. None whatever,

Q. Did you frequently during the year 1904 re-

v',eive mail addressed to Gen. G. M. Dodge and Gen.

Grenville M. Dodge, New York City ?

A. I did; I don't know that I received it fre-

quently, but it often came that w^ay.

Q. If any one had looked into the Trow City Di-

rectory of the city of New York for Grenville M.

Dodge, he would have found your address there?

A. He would.

Q. At No. 1 Broadway ?

A. At No. 1 Broadway.

Q. Have you any knowledge of the matters con-

cerned with the sale of the steamship "Garonne" to

the Merchants' & Miners' Steamship Company, the

details of it? A. No.

Q. Do you know what price the Merchants' &

Miners' Steamship Company paid for the steamship

'* Garonne"? A. I do not.

Q. You do not know, of course, then, whether it

was a fair valuation or not ?

A. I have heard what the price was.

Q. Yes, but I mean so far as your own knowl-

edge is concerned.
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A. No, I do not, only what I have heard.

Q. And you had no knowledge of it at the time

of the sale ? A. No.

Q. Did you receive any notice from the North

Alaska Steamship Company after June 2d, 1904, in

regard to their giving up the steamship "Garonne"

to Frank Waterhouse & Co. ?

A. Mr. Smith informed me that the ship had been

sold to this new company ; he told me what the price

was too.

Q. When did Mr. Smith tell you that?

A. It was after he came back from Alaska; it

must have been in the fall.

Q. It was later than the 19th of August anww^ay ?

A. Oh, yes, it was October or November ; I could

not state the exact date.

Cross-examination by Mr, DEAN.

Q. Have you the twelve thousand dollar note

which you signed as part of the consideration for

this money due to you, in your possession or under

your control?

A. It is under my control, but I haven 't got it in

my possession.

Q. Is it under your control at the Bowling Green

Trust Company? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remembci- to whom that note was made

payable ? A. No, I do not.
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Q. Did you sign it or endorse it?

A. I either endorsed it or made it a joint signa-

ture, I don't know which,

Q. You became responsible on it?

A. I paid the note myself.

Q. Do you remember whether you signed it joint-

ly with Mr. Smith as an individual or with the North

Alaska Steamship Company?

A. I do not. My impression is I endorsed it, but

I won't be certain about it, because it is too long ago

and it has passed out of my mind.

Q. And you are unable to state here from recol-

lection whether your endorsement or your signing, in

case you signed it as a maker with some one, was with

Charles B. Smith individually, or with Charles B.

Smith as President of the North Alaska Steamship

Company ?

A. I could not say that absolutely ; I know that I

paid the note and it was charged up to my account.

Q. The note was paid by the payment of the Dit-

mar note of $5,000 ?

A. Yes ; there was $5,000 endorsed on it.

Q. The Ditmar note was collateral?

A. Yes.

Q. Was thai tiiriu'd over to you or to the bank?

A. Totheliju.k.
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Q. And then, after that was credited upon the

note, you paid the balance ? A. Yes.

Q. By having it charged up to your account ?

A. Yes, to my personal account.

Q. And that note is now under your control, so

that you could produce it if they were to notify you

to?

A. Yes ; I suppose by sending ni}^ book over there

I could get it.

Q. Do you remember when that was charged up

to your account ? A. When the note became due.

Q. It was some little time after the note became

due, was it not, because the collateral was credited

on it by the bank?

A. The collateral became due before the note did,

and that was credited on it and when the note became

due, it was charged up to me.

Q. And has your account been written up since

then, so that it is entered in your settled account?

A. No, I do not think it has been ; but my recol-

lection is that the note is with the Bowling Green

Trust Company, unless it has been taken out and sent

to Seattle ; I do not know whether that is so or not.

Q. So that it is simiol}^ entered and charged up

to your open account with the bank ? A. Yes.

Q. As to the condition of that account, you have

no present recollection one way or the other, I sup-
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pose? A. What do you mean?

Q. Whether, if you please, it has been balanced,

and there is a balance in your favor since the charg-

ing up of that note ? A. Yes, I think it has.

Q. You have positive recollection about that one

way or the other? A. No.

(By Mr. TAFT.)

Q. But you do loiow that the note has been

charged up against your account? A. Yes.

Q. And you also loiow that the money which was

obtained on tliat note of $12,000 went into the pur-

chase of the steamship "Garonne"? A. I do.

(By Mr. DEAN.)

Q. Could you just give us in what way you know

that?

A, Mr. Smith, who was the head of the Alaska

Steamship Company at that time, came to me—I had

made a payment once before on the vessel of $1,500

—

he came to me and showed me the telegram from

Waterhouse & Co. urging the payment, and told me

that unless they could raise this money to make that

pajrment that day, they would default; and I went

over to the bank with him; I objected very much

to doing it, but, as a personal favor, I went over to

the bank on his promise to me that the money should

be returned to me or full security given me as quick
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as tliey got tliis payment made ; and I went over to

the l)ank with him to raise the money for him and

got the Bowling Green Trust Company to turn the

money over to him, and, as he informed me then

and there he 'sent it by telegraph ; that was his state-

ment to me.

Q. So that really your own knowledge if it is what

Mr. Smith told you? A. Yes.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this second day

of October, 1905.

WILLIS VAN VALKENBURG,
Notary Public, Kings Co.

Special Examiner. Cert, filed in N. Y. Co.

Adjourned by consent of counsel to Friday, Sep-

tember 29th, 1905, at 10 o'clock A. M.

DODGE

V.

WATERHOUSE.
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New York, September 29tli, 1905.

Met pursuant to adjourmnent. Same appearance

as before.

FRANK S. PUSEY, a witness called in behalf of

the complainant, being duly sworn, testified as fol-

lows:

Direct Examination by Mr. TAFT.

Q. Mr. Pusey, what is your full name*?

A. Frank S. Pusey.

Q. What is your address?

A. No. 1 Broadway.

Q. What relation are you to the complainant. Gen,

GrenviUe M. Dodge

?

A. Son-in-law.

Q. Did you know of Gen. Dodge advancing any

money to the North Alaska Steamship Company in

the early part of 1904? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what that money was used for ?

A. It was used in part payment of the purchase

money of the steamship ^'Garonne."

Q. Will you state what the sale of the steamship

'

' Garonne '

' was in which this money was used '?

A. The agreement was entered into between Mr.

Frank Waterhouse and Waterhouse & Co. with the

North Alaska Steamship Company whereby the for-

mer entered into a contract to transfer and sell to the
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N'ortli Alaska Steamship Company the steamship

'

' Garonne. '

'

Q. On May 13th, 1904, how much was owing to

Gen. Dodge for m.oneys advanced or loaned to the

North Alaska Steamship Company for the purpose

of purchasing the steamship "Garonne"?

A. $13,500.

Q. Was there a written agreement made between

you as trustee for Gen. Dodge and the North Alaska

Steamship Company on that date?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. (Paper shown witness.) T show you a paper

marked yesterday for Identification "Complainant's

Exhibt 1 '

' and ask you what it is ?

A. This is the agreement between Charles B.

Smith, the North Alaska Steamship Company, by

Charles B. Smith, President, and myself as Trustee

for Gen. Grenville M. Dodge.

Q. Where was that paper prepared ?

A. That was prepared by the attorneys for the

North Alaska Steamship Company.

Q. Who were they ?

A. McKee & Frost, at the office of McKee & Frost.

Q. Was that paper prepared after the negotia-

tions between you, representing Gen. Dodge, and the

North Alaska Steamship Company?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. AVlien was that paper executed?

A. On the IStli clay of May, 190-L

Q. And is that the agreement as it was deliv-

ered to you ? A. Yes. sir.

Mr. TAFT.—I offer this agreement in evidence.

(Received in evidence and marked Complainant's

Exhibit 1, by striking out the words "For Tdentif,"

Sept. 29, 1905.)

Q. When did you go to Seattle in regard to col-

lecting this indebtedness or securing the indebtedness

from the North Alaska Steamship Company to Gen,

Dodge ?

A. Between the 20th and 23d of May; I think it

was the 21st of May, 1904.

Q. How did you happen to go?

A. I was instructed to go by Gen. Dodge, with

positive instructions to secure beyond question of

doubt this indebtedness of the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company to him prior to the sailing of the

steamship "Garonne," billed to sail June 2d, 1904.

Q. Was there any particular reason why you went

out to Seattle at this particular time?

A. Yes, sir. The steamship was advertised to sail

on the 2d of June, and I had information that she was

well booked in the way of passengers and freight and



482 Frank Waterhonsc d' Co., Inc., vs.

(Deposition of Frank S. Pnsey.)

I considered it a prudent time to protect Gen. Dodge's

interest in the ship.

Q. In what way to protect Gen. Dodge's interest?

A, Either by full payment of liis claim, or by at-

tacliing the sliip and garnisheeing tlie freiglit moneys.

Q. Up to the time you "vvent to Seattle had any-

thing been paid on the indebtedness due from the

North Alaska Steamship Company to Gen. Dodge ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Bet^veen the time that you arrived at Seattle

and the 2d of Jinie, when the agreement set forth

in the bill of complaint w^as signed by Frank Water-

house & Co., had the indebtedness been reduced ?

A. Yes, sir ; there was a payment of $5,000 in New

York City on the 1st day of June.

Q. How much was due on June 2d'?

A. $10,000 was due on Jime 2d.

Q. Had there been any increase in the amount

from the North Alaska Steamship Company to Gen.

Dodge from the 13th of May, which then was $13,500,

to the 2nd of June, when it was agreed that it was

$10,000?

A. Yes, sir; there was an agreement between the

President of the Steamship Company, who was on

the ground, and myself, that $1500 additional would

be allowed for my expenses and any costs that might
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have been inenrred in A'iew of the fact that they had

jiot met the pajanent due Gen. Dodge.

Q. Under the agreement of May 13th?

A. Yes, under that agreement.

Q, When did you arrive at Seattle ?

A. On Friday, the 29th of May, 1904.

Q. What did you do there after you arrived?

A. I went at once to the Seattle National Bank,

to whom I had a letter of introduction from the

Bowling Green Trust Company, in which the Seat-

tle National Bank were protected through this letter

from the Bowling Green Trust Company in giving

me and financial assistance I should need in case

I had to file bonds under legal steps, such as gar-

nisheeing freight moneys or attaching the vessel.

Q. Is Gen. Dodge a director of the Bowling Green

Trust Company ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And is Frank Waterhouse, one of the defend-

ants herein, a director of the Seattle National Bank?

A. Yes, sir; he was at that time.

Q. That is the bank to which you took letters of

introduction ? A. Yes.

Q. After you had presented your letters of intro-

duction to the Seattle National Bank and had made

3^our arrangements there, then what did you do ?

A. First, before leaving them, I inquired and

found out that I could get this financial protection,
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and the}" told me the name of a bonding company

that I could go to ; and also they gave me the name

of their city attorne.y, in case I should require his

services; and from there I went to the office of Mr,

Prank Waterhouse.

Q. Now tell what occurred at the office of Frank

Waterhouse & Co. ?

A. I sent in my card to Mr. Waterhouse

—

Q. What did your card contain ?

A. "Frank S. Pusey"—a personal card. He

came out of his private office and I told him that I

represented Gen. Grenville M. Dodge of No. 1 Broad-

way, New York, and that I was here to protect his

interests in the steamship "Garonne," in compliance

with the agreement signed by the Steamship Com-

pany and bj^ me as Trustee for him, referred to here-

in, dated May 13th, 1904.

Q. Did you show this agreement of May 13th,

1904, marked "Complainants' Exhibit 1, Sept. 29,

1905," to Mr. Waterhouse? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he take it?

A. No; I kept it; he read it and looked it ovei

and returned it to me ; I did not leave it with him.

Q. Whom did you tell hun you represented ?

A. Gen. Grenville M. Dodge, of No. 1 Broadway,

New York.
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Q. Did Mr. Waterliouse say anything to you

showing his knowledge of Gen. Dodge, and if so,

what?

A. Yes, sir; when I mentioned Gen. Dodge's

name, he said,
'

' I have known of him very well on ac-

count of his prominence"; and I explained that he

had 'been the Chief Engineer of the Union Pacific

Railroad and had had charge of its construction and

was one of the largest railroad builders in the coun-

try; and he showed from his conversation with me

that he knew Gen. Dodge very well by reputation.

Q. Were Waterliouse & Co. or Frank Waterliouse

advertising the sale of the steamship "Garonne" at

that time?

A. They were advertising it as agents, giving the

date in the local papers that the steamship "Ga-

ronne" would sail on the 2d of June, and soliciting

freight and passenger business, and signing the ad-

vertised article "North Alaska Steamship Company,

per Frank Waterliouse & Company, Agents."

Q. Do you recall whether there was anything

after "North Alaska Steamship Company" in the

advertisement ?

A. Yes ; I recall this, that it was signed by Frank

Waterliouse & Company, under "North Alaska

Steamship Company. '

'

Q. Anything else ?
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A. The heading was the ''Steamship Garonne,"

but it was signed "North Alaslva Steamship Com-

pany, per Franlv Waterhoiise & Company, Agents"

in one of tlie local papers.

Q. What else, if anything, did you say to Frank

Waterhouse in regard to your business out there in

Seattle?

A. I told him that my object in getting there

before the 2d of June was to have a settlement of

Gen. Dodge's claim, and that if I did not get a set-

tlement satisfactorily, I would attach the ship and

garnishee the freight moneys.

Q. After you had this couversation with Frank

Waterhouse, did you see the steamship "Garonne"?

A. Yes, sir; Mr. Waterhouse in our conversation

had said that the steamship had been thoroughly

overhauled and had been in drydock and painted up

and fitted for the voyage, and that it was at the dock

and that he would be glad to take me down and look

it over.

Q. Did you go wilh Iiiiii?

A. I did; and we went over the ship very thor-

oughly. She was coaling up at the time; her decks

were covered with canvas to protect her from the

dust, and she seemed to ])c in prime condition in

every way inside and out; and I noticed that the
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staterooms were being fitted up with new bedding,

such as matresses, and so forth.

Q. Did Mr. Waterhouse make any remarks at all

in regard to the condition of the boat at that time ?

A. Yes, sir; he said that she was in perfect con-

dition for the trip ; that they had spent a good deal

of money on her, and that he considered her the

best ship afloat between Seattle and Nome.

Q. When did Charles B. Smith, President of the

North Alaska Steamship Company, arrive out in

Seattle?

A. He arrived in Seattle on Sunday, the 31st of

May, 1904, Sunday morning.

Q. You saw him after he arrived"?

A. Yes, sir ; I called on him at his hotel.

Q. Did you and Mr. Smith and Frank Water-

house meet and have a talk in regard to the situa-

tion ?

A. Yes', sir, on the following da}^, Monday.

Q. Where did that occur?

A. Mr. Smith and I went to Mr. Waterhouse 's

office, and we went- over the situation, the three of

us, together, chiefly looking into the question of the

freight moneys and passenger list that was being

booked for the "Garonne," and more particularly

to see if we could arrive at an agreement wherein

all three interests would be satisfied.
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Q. You si:)eak of three interests; you mean the

amount due Waterhouse & Co, on the purchase price

of the boat

—

A. (Interrupting.) Yes, and the interest of the

Nortli Alaska Steamship Company and the interest

of Gen. Grenville M, Dodge.

Q. That was on what date?

A. That was on Monday, the 1st of June, 1904.

Q. Was anything said at that meeting in regard

to coming to any agreement?

A. Yes, sir; that afternoon we met Mr. Frank

Vfaterhouse 's attorney, and formulated terms of

agreement; and Mr. Waterhouse 's attorney took

notes to have his stenographer prepare the papers

to be signed the following day.

Q. Were the terms of the papers to be signed the

following day discussed at that meeting?

A. Yes, fully.

Q. Yfhen did you see Mr. Waterhouse again?

A. On Tuesday morning I called at his office, and

the papers were not ready, and we arranged to meet

Tuesday afternoon at two or three o'clock; I do not

recall the exact time.

Q. Did 3^ou meet .-if (wo or three o'clock on Tues-

day?
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A. Yes ; on Tuesday, June 2d, in the afternoon we

met and the papers were ready ; and at that meeting

were Frank Waterhouse and Mr. Charles B. Smith,

Mr. Frank Waterhouse 's attorney and myself, and

at that time these papers were signed.

Q. (Papers shown witness.) I show you a pa-

per and ask you what it is"?

A. This is a promissory note for $10,000, "North

Alaska Steamship Company by Charles B. Smith,

President," in favor of Franlv Waterhouse & Com-

pany as trustee for Gen. Grenville M. Dodge.

Q. And that paper was signed and delivered at

that meeting?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. TAFT.—I offer this note in evidence.

(Marked "Complainant's 'Exliibit 2, Sept. 29,

1905.")

Q. (Paper shown witness.) I show you another

paper and ask you what that is?

A. This is the agreement between myself as agent

for Grenville M. Dodge and Frank Waterhouse &

Company (Incorporated), by Frank Waterhouse,

President, executed on the same date.

Q. At the same time?

A. Yes, sir, at the same meeting.

Q. And delivered at the same time?
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A. Delivered at the same time.

Mr. TAFT.—I offer this paper in evidence.

(Marked ''Complainant's Exhibit 3, Sept. 29,

1905.")

Q. (Paper shown witness.) I show you another

paper and ask you what it is?

A. This is a copy of the contract entered into be-

tween Charles B, Smith, President of the North

Alaska Steamship Company, and Frank Water-

house & Co., whereby the indebtedness of Frank

Waterhouse is set worth as $37,671.46, and also the

indebtedness of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany to Frank Waterhouse & Co., as Trustee for G.

M. Dodge, to the amount of $10,000.

Q. You speak of that as a copy of a contract.

More accurately it is a copy of a mortgage, is it not ?

A. It is a copy of the mortgage, the original of

which I saw executed in the presence of Frank

Waterhouse and his attorney.

Q. You saw the original executed ? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you get that copy from?

A. This was handed to me by Mr. Waterhouse.

Q. When?

A. At the meeting, after the signatures were at-

tached; it was turned over to me after the original

was duly executed.
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Q. As a correct copy of what had been executed ?

A, Yes, as a correct copy of what had been exe-

cuted.

Mr. TAFT.—I offer this paper in evidence.

(Marked ''Complainant's Exhibit 4-M, Sept. 29,

1905.")

Q. Did Charles B. Smith, President of the North

Alaska Steamship Company, also transfer to Frank

Waterhouse & Co., as Trustee, any of the freight

moneys to be collected from the first voyage of the

steamship "Garonne'"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were any of these freight moneys ever paid

to Gen. Dodge or to you as agent for Gen. Dodge,

from Frank Waterhouse & Co. ? A. No, sir.

Q. Nothing was ever received by either of you

from that source? A. No, sir.

Q. After these papers had been executed, which

you have testified to, did you then leave Seattle*?

A. After they were executed I said to Waterhouse

that afternoon that now that I had seen the steam-

ship and this agreement had been entered into where-

by our interests were protected by first and second

mortgage, that if there shoidd bo any difficulty about

the payment of that mortgage, 1 stood ready for

Gen. Dodge to co-operate with Frank Waterhouse &

Co. in purchasing and protecting our individual

claims under our mortgage rights.
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Q. Yon speak of a first and second mortgage.

There was only one mortgage executed; isn't thai

so?

A. There was one mortgage in which the prior-

ity was given to Frank Waterhouse & Co., but that

the second mortgage was embodied in the first mort-

gage as a part of the same.

Q. That more fully appears by the terms of the

mortgage itself? A. Yes.

Q. When you say "in accordance with your rights

under the mortgage," what do you refer to there by

your mortgage rights?

A. That we were then at the time I was speaking

of secured by a mortgage for Gen. G. M. Dodge's in-

dividual claims.

Q. Do you mean in case of foreclosure and sale

under the mortgage?

A. In case of foreclosure, naturally, if they fail-

ed to comply with the terms of the agreement.

Q. Then it was the understanding that Frank

Waterhouse & Co. would join in the purchase of the

vessel to protect your joint interests?

A. Yes. I would say in that connection that I

felt at the time personally willing to assume the full

amount, if necessary, in order to protect Gen.

Dodge's claim.
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Q. Did you explain to Mr. Waterhouse anything

about the financial ability of Gen. Dodge to do tliis ?

A, Yes, sir; I told him that he was fully able

to handle a proposition of this kind ; that it was cer-

tainly far less an undertaking than he had been in

the habit of handling.

Q. Now, Mr. Pusey, was there any other conver-

sation with Frank Waterhouse in which Mr. Water-

house said anything to show that he knew where

Gen. Dodge 's office was in New York, and, if so, what

was that?

A, After closing up this affair satisfactorily to

mj'-self, at least, he stated that he was interested in

a proposition that had been submitted to him for

the purchase of a couple of steamers that were at

that tune at Toledo, Ohio, which he wished to have

brought about and put into service on Puget Sound,

and that he considered it a very flattering proposi-

tion, and would like to interest me in the same, pro-

vided I could interest capital in New York City to

join with us in the purchase of these two vessels. I

told him then that, through my connection with Gen.

Dodge and acquaintance in New York, it would be

very likely that I could ))e of some assistance to him

to that end; and he then and there said that he

would be on to New York very soon, and would call

on me at the office of Gen. Dodge at No. 1 Broadway,
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which office, in the course of our conversation he

demonstrated to me beyond all question of doubt

that he knew its locality and would have no difficulty

in finding either Gen. Dodge or myself at that ad-

dress.

Q, Did he speak of knoAving the building, No. 1

BroadAvay %

A. Yes, either he or I spoke of the location, of it

being at Bowling Green and the Battery, overlook-

ing NeAv York Harbor.

Q. When did you leave Seattle?

A. I left Seattle the following morning, June 3d,

Q. After you left Seattle on June 3d, did you

have any communication Avith Frank Waterhouse or

Frank Waterhouse & Co., and, if so, when did you

haA'e it?

A. On my return to New York on the 14th of

July, AA'hen I arrived, and on the following day, the

15th of July, I telegraphed Mr. Waterhouse to ascer-

tain the present status of our joint claim, and to

further ascertain Avhether he had in fact collected

any freight mone_ys from the first voyage.

Q. (Paper shown witness.) I show you a paper

and ask you whether that is a copy of a telegram

that you sent to Frank Waterhouse?

A, Yes, sir.
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Mr. TAFT.—I offer this telegram in evidence.

(Marlved "Complainant's Exhibit 5, Sept. 29,

1905.")

Q. Did you get any reply to that telegram?

A. No, sir.

Q. What was your first communication to Mr.

Waterhouse 1

A. I would like to explain my answer to your

first question. I did not get a reply to it, and for

that reason I sent an inquiry to Seattle to see

whether it had been delivered; and I got a state-

ment from the agent of the Western Union at Seat-

tle that it had been received and signed by Water-

house.

Q. You do not know whether that was Water-

house's signature, or the signature of a clerk?

A. No, I do not ; I only give it as it says here.

Q. When was your next communication to Frank

Waterhouse ?

A. On the 27th of July, 1904, I wrote him a let-

ter.

Q. (Paper shown witness.) Is that a copy of

the letter that you wrote him ? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. TAFT.—I offer this letter in evidence.

(Marked "Complainant's Exhibit 6, Sept. 29,

1905.")
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Q. In this letter of Jnly 27tli, you say : "I learn

through Mr. King that you have disposed of the

steamship Garonne to a new company," What

Mr. King is that ?

A. Mr. W. F, King, of Calhoun, Robbins & Com-

pany.

Q. The same Mr. King who was referred to in

Gen, Dodge's testimony of yesterday?

A. Yes, sir.

Q, When did you recei^-e this word from Mr,

King that Frank Waterhouse had disposed of the

steamship "Garonne" to a new company?

A, Probably that day, or the day prior to the

writing of the letter,

Q. Had you or Gen, Dodge any knowledge what-

soever of any sale of the steamship "Garonne" to

a company other than the North Alaska Steamship

Company up to on or about July 26th, 1904, say?

A, I had no direct knowledge of that fact at that

date. The first rumor I heard of it was through

Mr. Leak of the North Alaska Steamship Company,

who stated that Mr, King had, with his associates,

purchased the steamship and all the rights of the

North Alaska Steamship Company therein. So that

the matter of a day or two possibly may have inter-

vened prior to my sending this letter, as I wished
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to ascertain all the facts in the matter before writ-

ing Mr. Waterhonse,

Q. General Dodge, in his testimony yesterday,

said that he learned of this new transfer of the

steamship "Garonne" to Mr. King's company from

3^ou in July. Can you specify the date on which you

told Gen, Dodge of what you had learned?

A. I should say al)out anywhere from the 25th to

the 27th of July.

Q. It was not prior to the 25th'?

A. I should say not.

Q. Did you see Mr. King in regard to his having

purchased the steamship "Garonne"?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did you see him?

A. When I learned from Mr. Leak that Mr. King

had made this purchase, I called on Mr. King, as I

knew him personally and had for a number of years

;

and I got the information direct from him that he

had formed a new company and purchased the steam-

er and had absolute control of the various sub-com-

panies, including the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany.

Q. When did you first hear from Frank Water-

bouse & Co. after June 2d, 1904 ?
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A. The first communication came to me about the

19th of August, 1904 ; I think his letter was of that

date; it arrived here six days later.

Q. So you Avould not have heard from him until

somewhere around the 25th of August, the letter

itself being dated the 19th? A. No.

Q. And that was the first communication that

you had from Frank Waterhouse?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. After leaving him on June 2d, 1904?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The letter of August 19th from Waterhouse

& Co. was the first notice you received from

them as to the subsequent sale of the "Garonne"

to the Merchants ' and Miners ' Steamship Company ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know when the Merchants' and Min-

ers' Steamship Company was incor^Dorated ?

A. I saw a paper with a notice of the incorpora-

tion on the 12th of July, I think it was.

Mr. TAFT.—I offer in evidence a letter from the

Secretary of State the State of New York stating

that the Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Com-

pany had filed their articles of incorporation in his

office on the 12th day of July, 1904.
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(Marked "Complainant's Exliibit 7, Sept. 29,

1905.")

Q. I see among the incorporators mentioned here

is A. J. Baldwin. Do you kno\v who A. J. Baldwin

is?

A. Arthur J. Baldwin, yes, sir; I am personally

acquainted with him.

Q. What is he, a lawyer?

A. Yes, sir, an attorney.

Q. Do you know his firm ?

A. Griggs, Baldwin & Baldwin, I believe now.

Q. And they are the attorneys who represent

Frank Waterhouse and Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany, Incorporated, on the taking of these deposi-

tions? A. I so understand.

Q. How long have you known Mr. A. J. Baldwin ?

A. I met Mr. Baldwin in 1902; we sailed on the

same steamer, January 4th, for Havana, Cuba, and

occupied the same stateroom,

Q. Have you examined the Trow City Directory

for 1904? A. Yes, sir.

Q. To see whether you appear in that directory ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you find?

A. I found my name appearing there as "Frank

S, Pusey, Broker, Room 218, No. 1 Broadway."
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Q. Do yon remember a conversation with Mi

Waterliouse abont his attempting to call on Gei

Dodge with W. H. Fergnson?

A. Yes, sir ; as I recall it, he said that he had bee

in New York at the same time with Mr. Ferguson-

Q. Give abont the date.

A. During the spring of 1904, after negotiation

liad been entered into for the purchase of the steame

'

' Garonne. '

'

Q. By what?

A, By the North Alaska Steamship Company

and that he had intended to go down with Mr. Fei

guson and meet Gen. Dodge, whom he knew as on

of the backers of the North Alaska Steamship Com

panj', and that he was too busily engaged wit

other matters to accompany Mr. Ferguson on tha

visit.

Q. When did Mr. AVaterhouse tell you that?

A. While I was in Seattle in June, 1904.

Q. What was the date that Mr. Waterhouse re

ferred to as being in New York and wishing to call

A. He did not specify any date.

Q. Well, was that in the spring of the year, o

when ?

A. In the spring of the year 1904—the latter par

of the winter, or early spring—some time after Feb

ruary.
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Q. And prior to May ISth?

A. And prior to May 13th.

Cross-examination by Mr. DEAN.

Q. Did lie, Mr. Waterhouse, give any reasn why

he was unable to see or find Mr. Dodge?

A. He said he was too busily engaged to accom-

pany Mr, Ferguson.

Q. He spol^e of the sum of $1,500 being added or

allowed by the president of the steamship company

for expenses. Is that sum of $1,500 any part of the

ten thousand dollar note—does it go to make up the

ten thousand dollar note ?

A. It goes to make up the ten thousand dollar

note.

Q. When was that allowance of $1,500 fixed or

agreed upon?

A. At my interview with Mr. Charles B. Smith

in Seattle, as president of the steamship company,

allowing it to me for costs and traveling expenses

incurred incident to my going to Seattle to protect

Gen. Dodge's claim. I should say that was about

June 1st, 1904.

Q. How was the money paid by Gen. Dodge

when he loaned them this monew that you speak of,

do you know?
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A. By an inclividnal endorsement with Mr. Smith

for the loan of $12,000 from the Bowling Green

Trust Company.

Q. When was that?

,

A. The exact date I cannot give yon, but it was

in the spring of IQO-t, between February and May

13th.

Q. You mean that he endorsed a note with Mr.

Smith at that time"?

A. He signed, as I recall it, a note with him, and

gave an individual check for $1,500 some days later,

bringing the sum up to $13,500.

Q. So that $13,500 is the sum total of all the mon-

eys that he loaned the steamship company?

A. No, sir; he advanced—the exact amount I

cannot state; he advanced money on gold dust or

nuggets that were brought down from Alaska by one

of the chief officers or managers of the North Alaska

Steamship Company, Mr. Rowe.

Q. Was that a loan of money to the Steamship

Company, or an individual transaction?

A. No; that was for the benefit of the Steamship

Company, as they required the funds.

Q. Do 3"ou know how that money was paid, how

it was advanced, whether by check or draft or how ?

A. I do not know; i3robably by check; that was

the custom.
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Q. Do 3^011 know how Gen. Dodge paid the note

which he signed or indorsed*?

A. No, I do not know,

Q. Do you know from what funds that twelve

thousand dollar note which Gen. Dodge signed was

paid?

A. I believe from his personal balance at that

bank.

Q. That would hardly answer the question, per-

haps ?

A. I do not know positively from what fund it

was paid.

Q. You spoke of some money being repaid to Gen.

Dodge; what moneys do you know were repaid to

Gen. Dodge?

A. I know that a five thousand dollar note of a

Mrs. Ditmar, which was held as collateral, attached

to the twelve thousand dollar note was paid to the

Bowling Green Trust Company, and that sum of five

thousand dollars was applied on the note of twelve

thousand dollars.

Q. Do you know what the amount of the Ditmar

note was when it was applied on this $12,000 note?

A. Five thousand dollars even.

Q. And possibly some interest?

A. I think not.
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Q. Do you know of any other collateral that was

applied upon the twelve thousand dollar note ?

A. There was none.

Q. The sum of $1500 allowed for expenses was

just an arbitrary sum which you and Mr. Smith

agreed upon, was it not?

A. I do not understand the word "arbitrary" in

that connection.

Q. You did not figure it up absolutely one way or

the other, but simply said "We will call it so much'?"

A. It was a final adjustment of moneys to cover

the estimated costs, legal or traveling expenses,

definitely fixed at $1500.

Q, What had been your actual expenses, as nearly

as you can tell, up to the time that sum was fixed

upon?

A. My personal expenses'?

Q. Well, your expenses in attempting to secure

or collect the money?

A. I could not answer that definitely.

Q. I did not expect you could, but give it as

nearly as you can?

A. I recall that I started out on that trip with

$500, and I had to draw on New York before I got

back. I presume that the actual personal expenses

that I was put to would be somewhere under $500,
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Q. You were about how long going there, five or

six days?

A. I was six days, I believe.

Q. Continuously on the train?

A. Yes, except a short stop over at night at Port-

land.

Q. In fixing the suni of $500, do you include any-

thing for attorneys' fees? A. No, sir.

Q. Would you think on reflection that $500

—

that it actually cost you $500 to travel from New

York to Seattle and remain there the time that you

did?

A. Until my return to New York?

Q. How long were you in Seattle?

A. I presmne five days—six on the outside; but

I did not return on the trip until the 15th of July.

Q. Well, do you know what the fair actual ex-

pense of going to Seattle and remaining there five

days and returning would be?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Living in Seattle—hotel ex23enses are about

how much?

A. About four dollars a day.

Q. Well, $4 or $5 a day at least?

A. $4 or $5 a day, hotel expenses.

Q. And the railroad fare and ordinary expenses

in traveling from New York to Seattle are about how-

much?
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A. I really do not know; I should judge the rail-

road fare and Pullman and meals would be about

$100 each way.

Q, So that if you limited it to the ordinary nec-

essary expenses to go there and remain the time

you did, it would be nearer, say, $250, would it nof?

A, Probably, if I returned at once.

Q. What went to make up the balance of the

$1500?

A. The probability at that time of legal, at-

torney's fees and costs that would naturally result

from legal steps to protect the interests of Gen.

Dodge until the payment of his claim.

Q. The $1500 was agreed upon before you had

any talk with Mr. Waterliouse, was it not?

A. When we arrived at this understanding we

had had our talk with Mr. Waterhouse and his at-

torne}^ about how things were going to be shaped up

that day.

Q. Then, at the time, or rather after you had a

talk with Mr. Waterhouse and Mr. Smith and in a

general way fixed upon how this money should be

-secured through Mr. Waterhouse, you then, after

that, agreed with Mr. Smith upon this sum of $1500?

A. We at that time agreed that $1500 should be

added to make up Gen. Dodge's claim to the amount

of $10,000.
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Q. Was Mr. Waterlioiise present wlien that talk

was had?

A. When the sum total was agreed upon.

Q. Not the sum total, but was Mr. Waterhouse

present when this talk of $1500 was had?

A. I think not ; I think it was prior to my personal

interview with Mr, Smith.

Q. But I understand your evidence here is that

the $1500 was fixed upon after you had had an ar-

rangement, or a tentative arrangement, if you please,

with Mr. Waterhouse. Do you wish to correct that?

A. I wish to correct it to this extent, if I made

that statement, that the $1500 was agreed upon be-

tween Mr. Smith, as President of the Noi-th Alaska

Steamship Company, and myself, prior to the sign-

ing and execution of the contract as between Frank

Waterhouse & Co. and the North Alaska Steamship

Company and also prior to the signing of the con-

tracts between Frank Waterhouse and myself as

trustee for Grenville M. Dodge.

Q. The written agreements referred to in your

last answer were but the completion of a prior oral

arrangement which you had with Mr. Waterhouse

and Mr. Smith, were they not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And was the $1500 expenses which you speak

of fixed and agreed upon after that oral arrangement'

and prior to the execution of the written agreements?
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A, Prior to the oral arrangement between myself

and Mr. Smith to cover any possible legal expenses.

Q. I understood by your last answer that you

fixed the time of fixing the $1500 as prior to the writ-

ten agreements. Now you place it prior to any oral

talk whatever in regard to it with Mr, Waterhouse,

do you? A. To any oral

—

Q. (Interrupting)—arrangement with Mr. Wa-

terhouse ?

A. I think the same day, after calling on Mr.

Waterhouse, that on that day, Monday, I saw Mr.

Smith and agreed that the legal costs would probably

amount to that.

Q. What I desire, Mr. Pusey, is to place upon the

record, as you desire it, just what the fact is?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, we have it upon the record that the

$1500 was agreed u^^on prior to the execution of the

written agreements. A. Yes.

Q. Now, we also have upon the record that there

were oral arrangements made between you and Mr.

Waterhouse for the written agreements, before the

written agreements were actually made. Now,

please place upon the record as you understand it

from your best knowledge whether the agreement

upon $1500 for expenses was made before the oral

arrangements you had with Mr. Waterhouse?
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A. I believe that same day, Monday, I bad talked

witb Mr. Waterboiise and Mr. Smith both on that

day. I did not discuss the subject, the item of

$1500 with Mr. Waterhouse; that was entirely ar-

ranged with Mr. Smith to cover any possible fees

which, I wish to say, were in addition to expenses,

which you ]3ut in your question—I saw the possibil-

ity of legal expenses.

(By Mr. TAFT.)

Q. Was there any question of any interest in the

old indebtedness included in the $1500'?

A. It covered everj^thing.

Q. The only point I am making is this: Mr. Dean

is now trying to find out what that $1500 was to in-

clude. Was there any interest item on the prior in-

debtedness of $12,000 and $1500 included in the item

of $1500 agreed upon between you and Mr. Smith

at Seattle?

A. Not specifically, but generally covering all

costs that had accrued in the transaction or to accrue

in the transaction, were covered by this $1500;

Q. And one of the items of that was interest,

was if?

A. I do not think it was specified, as I remember

it, although I was aware of the fact that there was a

long lapse of time there.
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(By Mr. DEAN.)

Q. Now, yon say yon had the talk with Mr. Smith

abont the $1500 not in the presence of Mr. Water-

honse; Mr. Waterhonse knew nothing about that?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Now you say it occurred on the same day?

A. Or the previous day—Sunday or Monday—

I

am not positive of the date.

Q. When yon had the oral talk with Mr, Water-

house, you talked it all over, so that when the writ-

ings were executed, they were simply to carry out

the oral talk, were they not?

A. Yes, sir, the oral talk that I had with him.

Q. Somewhere you spoke of some one taking

notes from which they could draw the written agree-

ment?

A. Yes, sir, the attorney for Mr. Waterhouso.

Q, (Exhibits handed witness.) Will you please

select out which contract or agreement it was that

was prepared from the notes which the attorney

took?

A. This is the one (referring to Complainant's

Exhibit 4) and this is also one (referring to Com-

plainant's Exhibit 3) and this is one also, prepared

by the same attorney (referring to Complainant's

Exhibit 2).

Q. Then, Complainant's Exhibits 2, 3, and 4,

which I now show you, were prepared by the at-
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tomeys from notes which they took at the time re-

ferred to in your direct examination when you say

the attorneys took notes from which they prepared

the contracts ; is that right ?

A. The attorney being present, I presume he took

notes; I would not swear that he took them. The

conditions and terms were talked over and discussed

with him, and I presume he took the notes down.

Q. Well, the attorney learned when present at

that conference with you and Mr. Waterhouse that

the amount was $10,000 did he not?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. After that conference, you did not see the

attorney until the agreements were prepared, did

you? A. No, sir.

Q. So that whatever information you gave him

in regard to the amount was given at that confer-

ence?

A. Yes, sir, as to $10,000 being the amount of the

claims due Gen. Dodge.

Q. Did you have more than one conference with

Mr. Waterhouse when the attorney w^as present?

A. The attorney was present at the next meeting

when the papers were executed.

Q. What attorney was it that was present who

you assumed took notes?
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A. His name I cannot give you; he was intro-

duced to me as the attorney for Mr. Frank Water-

house by Mr. Frank Waterhouse.

Q. Where was that '?

A. In Mr. Frank Waterhouse 's private office.

Q. And was it in Mr. Frank Waterliouse's private

office that you had the oral tal]>;s prior to the written

agreement? A, Yes, sir.

Q. On all occasions the talk was in Mr. Frank

Waterliouse's office? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell whether the $1500 was fixed upon

before ,you had any talk with Mr. Waterhouse what-

ever about securing your claim or helping you to

secure it, or afterwards?

A. I cannot say definitel}^ my impression is it was

the same day, Monday.

Q. That is as near as you can jDut it?

A. Yes, that is as near as I can put it.

Q. Whether it was before you had any talk with

Mr. Waterhouse or whether it was fixed upon after-

wards, you cannot state i^ositively?

A. I could not say positively—now that it is

called to my attention I remember I called upon Mr.

Waterhouse before Mr. Smith arrived.

Q. You saw Mr. Waterhouse on Saturday when

you arrived in Seattle did you not ?

A. On Fridav when I arrived in Seattle.



GrenviJlc M. Dodge and Frank WaterJioitsc. 513

(Deposition of Frank S. Pnsey.)

Q. Before Mr. Smith ever came there, did you

talk with him and have an oral arrangement with

him that he would execute these written agreements'?

A. I called on him and had an interview with him

and talked over the situation.

Q. When did he agree with you orally that he

w^ould make these agreements which were afterwards

written out^

A. On Monday afternoon the terms were talked

over and w^ere to be presented the following day and.

executed if fou.nd satisfactory.

Q. On Monday afternoon, June 1st, you talked

over and agreed upon what the written agreement

should be, did you not"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, at that time, had you seen Mr. Smith"?

A. Oh, yes, the day before, Sunday, at his hotel.

Q. And on Saturday before that Monday had Mr.

Waterhouse assented to j^our proposition to secure

or help secure your debt? A. No, sir.

Q. The $5000 which Mr. Smith assigned to Mr

Waterhouse as trustee w^as assigned hy an instru-

ment in wanting, was it nof?

A. Yes, of the freight moneys to be collected by

Mr. Smith for Frank Waterhouse, trustee.

Q. That was done by some writing, w^as it not?

A. Yes.
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Q. (Paper shown witness.) And is this the writ-

ing, this paper wiiich I show you?

A. Yes, sir, that is it.

(The written assignment referred to by the wit-

ness is marked ''For Identification, Defendants' Ex-

hibit A.")

Q. How did you eome in possession of this writ-

ten assignment of the $5000 freight money?

A. Mr. Franlv Waterhouse enclosed this paper

with the other papers, including the $10,000 note

in his letter dated August 19th.

Q. When you went to Seattle, did you have the

notes from the bank and the vouchers which showed

what this debt was—did you take them with you

to Seattle? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you have a statement of the amount of

the claim due ?

A. I had a verbal statement made by an officer of

the bank.

Q. What M^as the amount that you learned when

you went there you were to secure as actually due

the bank?

A. $12,000 with accumulated interest.

Q. How did it ever come down to $10,000—

I

mean at the time you went to Seattle?
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A. On June 1st, 1904, I received a telegram from

the Bowling Green Trust Company that the $5000

had ))een i)aid and applied on the indebtedness.

Q. And before von started to Seattle you were

informed that there was just $12,000 due'?

A. At the bank, yes.

Q. So that on receipt of that telegram you under-

stood there was just $7,000 left due to the bank?

A. Due to the bank, and interest,

Q. Do .you know how much the interest was?

A. No, sir.

Q. When was the note for $12,000 signed by Gen.

Dodge?

A. On the 15th of February, 1904.

Q. Now, let me ask you this: When you started

for Seattle you knew that there were $12,000 prin-

cipal with interest from the date of the twelve thou-

sand dollar note in February, 1904, due to Gen.

Dodge?

A. Yes, sir; the date I did not know at that time.

Q. Well, from February—you knew it was in

February, did you not ? A. Yes.

Q. And, as soon as you got there, on June 1st,

at least, you learned by telegraph that $5,000 had

been paid on that note? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you compute the interest to see wdiat the
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true amount of principal and interest was on the

$12,000 note after crediting tlie $5,000?

A. No, sir.

Q. The balance due on the twelve thousand dol-

lar note, after crediting the $5,000, was all the nione.y

that was owing Gen. Dodge at that time, was if?

A. No, sir.

Q. What other moneys did you know of?

A. The check for $1,500 I knew of that he had

personally given.

Q. When was that given?

A. Between February 15th and May 13th.

Q. There was in addition to the twelve thousand

dollar note and interest, a check for $1,500?

A. Yes, sir, making it $13,500.

Q. Which you knew of?

A. Yes, sir, bringing up the amount to $13,500.

Q, Do you know where that check for $1,500 was

paid?

A. I do not know positively on what bank.

Q. I mean by whom was it drawn?

A. All I can give is what I have been told; this

$1,500 was applied to making up the payment to

Waterhouse on the ship.

Q. Was the $1,500 check given to Waterhouse?

A. No; it was given to the North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, through the president, Charles B.

Smith.
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Q. Did you ever see that check or draw it, or have

any connection with it ?

A. No, sir, not tliat I recall; I recall only that

Gen. Dodge told me he had given it.

Q. Was that part of the debt that he requested

you to secure ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you added to that the lump sum of $1,500

by agreement with Mr. Smith ?

A. Yes, sir, to cover any contingent fees that

might occur and had occurred.

Redirect Examination by Mr. TAFT.

Q. When you arrived in Seattle on May 29th,

there was due to Gen. Dodge in cash $12,000 on his

note to the Bowling Green Trust Company, and

$1,500, being a check given to the North Alaska

Steamship Company as part payment for the steam-

ship "Garonne," making in all $13,500?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And on June 1st there was credited on the

note of $12,000 a payment of $5,000?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Leaving a balance then due to Gen. Dodge of

$8,500 plus interest and incidental expenses'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you agreed with Mr. Smith that the in-

terest and these incidental expenses would amount

to $1,500? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Making a total of $10,000 for whicli the note

was given? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, this note for $12,000 I notice is dated

February 15th, 1904. Do you recall the necessity

of the North Alaska Steamship Company having that

amount of money on that date ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was it?

A. Under the terms of the telegram sent by Mr.

Waterhouse to the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany $1,000 had been paid and $14,000 was to be paid.

Q. On what date?

A. The exact date I cannot give.

Q. Well, was it February 15th?

A. Yes, and for this purpose the money was raised

from Gen. Dodge, this $12,000.

Q. In order to make the payment of $14,000 on

account of the purchase of the Steamship "Garonne"

on February 15th? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, in your testimony in regard to the items

that go in to make up the $1500, you have not in-

cluded your own personal services in the matter ?

A. No, sir ; I said to Smith at the time, covering

all legal fees and personal expenses and services on

my part.

Q. How much time did you devote to going out

to Seattle and returning in connection with this

business,—in round numbers, how many days?
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A. I presume five or ten days prior to the sign-

ing of tliis original agreement; on May IStli I took

hold of the matter and gave it my constant attention,

and, through my personal efforts, secured the ac-

knowledgement of the debts on the part of the North

Alaska Steamship Company to Gen. Dodge, prior to

my going to Seattle.

Q. Tliat is secured by this agreement by which

they agree to give you a second mortgage?

A. Yes, sir, and they acknowledged it as a com-

pany debt.

Recross-examination by Mr. DEAN.

Q. In regard to the check for $1500, you never

saw the check and your knowledge of it is simply

what Gen. Dodge told you, as I understand you?

A. I may have seen the check.

Q. But you have no recollection of it ?

A. I do not recall—for instance, I could not

swear that I saw it.

Q. So that your knowledge in regard to it is sim-

ply what Gen. Dodge told you %

A. I am inclined to think that he showed me the

check, but I could not say but what it was on his per-

sonal statement.

Q. Do you know to whom the check was made

payable ?
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A. I believe to Charles B. Smith.

Q. But YOU would not undertake to l)e positive

about that?

A. I would not be positive about it.

Q. Wliat knowledge have you that the money that

Gen, Dodge advanced was actually applied towards

the purchase price of the ship ?

A. On the actual statement made to me by Charles

B. Smith that all these moneys were applied on the

purchase of the ship.

Q. And that is the only knowledge you have of

that, is it not?

A. That is the only knowledge I recall at the

moment.

Q. You say now you spent several days in getting

them to acknowledge this debt to be a debt of the com-

pany ; where was that done, here in New York ?

A. In New York, I brought about this agreement

in which is embodied the acknowledgment on their

part that it is a company debt.

Q. Well, what question was there ever about its

not being a company debt ?

A. There was no question about it, but no written

evidence.

Q. Whom did you get to acknowledge it was a

company debt?
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A. The officers of the North Alaska Steamship

Company,

Q. Who were theyf

A. Mr. Charles B. Smith, President and Mr.

Leak.

Q. What office did Mr. Leak hold?

A. Secretary and Treasurer, I believe, and some

other officers that were present in the room that I

did not know personally. These two men I knew

personally.

Q. You know of no meeting of the directors or

resolution or anything of that sort, do you, to that

effect?

A. Not to my knowledge, except on the part of

the attorneys for the company and their statements

that this was all done in correct form—McKee &

Frost.

Q. McKee & Frost—were they in New York?

A. Yes.

Q. Before you started to Seattle?

A. Yes, that was the 13th of May, 1904.

Q. Now, before you got the acknowledgment that

it was the debt of the company, you had nothing to

show that it was anything but an individual debt of

Mr. Charles B. Smith, did you?

A. I had the personal statements of the officers

that it was acknowledged as a debt of the compan}^
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Q. Yes, but I say before you got that acknowl-

edgment from them ?

A. I had verbal acknowledgments of the debt

from the officers prior to that.

Q. But the note itself which Gen. Dodge endorsed

was an individual note of Charles B. Smith, was it

not ? A. Yes.

Q. And the collateral that was put up, the Ditmar

note, was that an individual note of Ditmar, payable

to Charles B. Smith individually?

A. Payable to him, I believe, as President of the

Steamship Company for stock that Mrs. Ditmar had

subscribed for.

Q. Well, do you remember that as a fact ?

A. Yes, I remember that—Mr. Smith told me.

Q. Do you know it in any way except that Mr.

Smith told you that it was payable to him as Presi-

dent of the company?

A. My recollection is that I saw the note; I did

get the note ; the note was turned over to me, and my
recollection is that it was made to Mr. Smith as Presi-

dent of the steamship company ; that is my recollec-

tion.

Q. Who turned the note over to you?

A. Mr. Charles B. Smith.

Q. Where?
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A. At the office of Gen. Dodge.

Q. When?

A. Prior to my going to Seattle.

Q. And did you take it to Seattle with you ?

A. — between the 13th of May and my departure

for Seattle.

Q. And did you take it to Seattle with joi\ ?

A. No, sir ; I took it to the Bowling Green Trust

Company for collection, subject to protest.

Q. And you put it there as collateral security?

A. Yes.

Q. 'So that that note was given by Mr. Smith after

Gen. Dodge had signed the $12,000 note ?

A. Yes, sir, after I had taken hold of the matter

;

that was part of my services in this matter ; I secured

this additional collateral.

Q. What became of that note ? Was it returned

to Mrs. Ditmar?

A. I do not know ; it was paid I know by the North

Alaska Steamship Company.

Q. Can you tell who the maker of that note was ?

A. Mrs. Ditmar; her initials I do not recall.

A. She lived in New York.

A. She lived in New York "

Q. I think you have spread upon the record the

fact that your best recollection is that it was to him
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as President of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany ? A. Yes.

Q. But you cannot be positive on that subject?

A. As nearly as I can be without seeing the note.

Q. Then Mr. Charles B. Smith finally agreed to

allow you $1500 expenses, a part of which was to pay

you for time spent in getting him and his associate

officers to admit that it was a corporation debt of the

Alaska Steamship Company and not his individual

debt ; is that a fact ?

A. No, sir ; that was not the understanding under

which he granted the $1500 at all.

Q. Did you take the time that you spent in getting

him to make that admission into account in estimating

the amount of your expenses?

A. I included simply my time.

Eeredirect Examination by Mr. TAFT.

Q. Did the North Alaska Steamship Company

ever notify you or Gen. Dodge after June 2d that they

had returned the steamship "Garonne" to Water-

house & Co ? A. No, sir.

Q. And the information that you got with regard

to the subsequent sale to the Merchants' & Miners'

Steamship Company was obtained by casually meet-

ing Mr. Leak on the street, or how ?
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A. And by going to his office; I went to inqnire

about the condition of the matters and whether he

had heard from Mr, Smith; and he incidentally said

at that time that Mr. King had taken the matter in

hand and had now purchased the "Garonne."

Q. Do you know whether the original contract of

sale by Waterhouse & Co. of the steamship "Gar-

onne," on or about February 3d, 1904, was with

Charles B. Smith or with the Alaska Steamship Com-

Company direct""?

A. With the Alaska Steamship Company direct

—

he as one of the officers—the contract was not with

Smith personally but between the steamship company

and Waterhouse.

Q. Was that the form of the original contract ?

A. I do not know ; I did not see the original con-

tract.

Q. Who made the sale in the city of New York?

A. Frank Waterhouse & Co. made the sale.

Q. But who was the broker, the man in between?

A. I do not know.

Q. Was it Mr. Ferguson?

A. I do not know ; that was prior to my knowl-

edge.

(By Mr. DEAN.) Q. Do you wish to correct

your answer to the question "Do you know whether
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the original sale by Waterhouse & Co. was to Charles

B. Smith personally or with the Alaska Steamship

Company direct ? '

'

A. I do not know the direct principals in the sale

by Waterhouse or to whom, at that time.

Q. Then you do not wish to go upon the record as

saying that you know that the original sale by Water-

house & Company was to the Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, do you?

A. I do not know; I am not familiar with the

original contracts drawn up in connection with the

sale, as to who the parties were.

Q. I asked 3^ou if you wish to correct your an-

swer to Mr. Taft's question, wdiich I repeated in my

question.

A. Yes, sir, by correcting it in this way, by say-

ing that I do not know.

(By Mr. TAFT.) Q. This agreement of May

13th 1904, marked "Complainant's Exhibit 1, Sept.

29, 1905" sets forth the transactions with Gen.

Dodge, by which it shows that he endorsed a note for

$12,000, and that the $12^000 went in part payment

of the steamship "Garonne," and also a check for

$1500, which $1500 was applied as part pa}Ti;ient of

the balance due on said steamship "Garonne," Are
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those statements in that agreement correct state-

ments? A. Yes, they are.

(By Mr. DEAN.) Q. Do yon mean to say that

you know as a matter of fact that the money was

actually paid for the purchase price of the steam-

ship "Garonne"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it not money which Mr. Charles B. Smith

used to pay for his stock in the Alaska Steamship

Company ?

A. No, sir; he told me that all the money raised

from Gen. Dodge was applied on the purchase pay-

ments to Frank Waterhouse & Co.

Q. That is, the only knowledge you have is what

Mr. Smith told you, is it not?

A. And the agreement.

Q. Well, they agreed to that?

A. That admits it.

Q. But you do not know whether that is the ac-

tual fact or not, do you ?

A. I did not see the transactions.

Q. In fact, it took you something like ten daj^s to

get them to admit it, did it not ? A. No, sir.

Q. Did they admit it right from the very start ?

A. They admitted it from the start, the officers

did.
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Q. But you only know that to be a fact from the

admissions in the writing and from wliat Charles B.

Smith told you?

A. And from their statements to me and from

certain officers of the steamship company.

Q. What officers?

A. Mr. Smith and Mr. Leak.

(By Mr. TAFT.) Q. And Mr. Rowe?

A. I cannot swear that he made the statements;

those two men made the statements. I had inter-

views with other officers of the company there, but I

did not know them personally; I just met them in-

cidentally that day. They knew of this indebted-

ness.

(By Mr. DEAN.) Q. What you desire to put

upon the record, then, is that your knowledge that

the mone;/ furnished by Gen. Dodge went to pay for

the steamship "Garonne" is what is stated in this

writing (Complainant's Exhibit 1) and what Charles

B, Smith and Mr. Leak admitted to you or told you?

A. Yes, sir.

(By Mr. TAFT.) Q. You saw the officers of

the North Alaska Steamship Company at the office

of the company in the early part of May, 1904 ?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Was any objection raised by any officer or any

person connected with the steamship company that

this money, $13,500, about which you have been tes-

tifying, was not used in the purcliase of the steam.-

ship "Garonne"? A. No, sir.

Q. And you were present when negotiations about

this agreement of May 13th, Complainant's Exhibit

1, was being prepared. Was tliere in those negotia-

tions any questions raised at any time that these

moneys were not due Gen. DodgQ from the North

Alaska Steamship Company and had not gone into

the purchase price of the steamship "Garonne"?

Mr. DEAN.—I object to the form of the question

uj)on the ground that it calls for a conclusion, and

that the witness should state what was said upon the

subject.

A. No, sir; on the contrary it was admitted as a

company debt.

FRANK S. PUSEY.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3d day of

September, 1905.

WILLIS VAN VALKENBURG,
Notary Public, Kings Co., Cert, filed in N. Y. Co.

Special Examiner.

Adjourned by consent of counsel to Saturday,

September 30th, 1905, at 11 o'clock A. M. for read-

ing and signing the testimony.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States, for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

No. 1290.

GEENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc. (a Corpora-

tion), and FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendants,

Certificate of Special Examiner.

I, Willis Van Valkenbnrg, special examiner,

named in the annexed order, do hereby certify that

on the 21st day of September, 1905, at the city of

New York, state of New York, I was attended by

counsel for the complainant and for the defendants,

and that npon the subsequent dates shown by the

record herewith returned, I was attended by Gen-

eral Grenville M. Dodge and Frank S. Pusey, as wit-

nesses, who were by me duly sworn to testify to the

truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth in

the within entitled cause, and gave their testimony,

which by consent of counsel and l^y the respective

parties was taken down stenographically in the pres-

ence of the witnesses and from their statements, and
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that said stenographic notes were afterward reduced

to writing by a typewriter, and the testimony as ex-

tended was thereafter read over, corrected and signed

by said witnesses, respectivel}^ That I herewith re-

turn such testimony duly certified to by me, together

with seven exhibits offered by the complainant and

one exhibit for identification offered by the defend-

ant.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and seal this second day of October, 1905.

[Seal] WILLIS VAN VALKENBURG,
Notary Public, Kings Co., Cert, filed in N. Y. Co.

Special Examiner.

[Endorsed] : Depositions. Filed in the IT. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. June 21,

1906. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Dep.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 1.

(Sept 29/05. Willis Van Valkenburg, Special Ex-

aminer.)

This agreement, made this 13th day of May, 1904,

between Charles B. Smith, of the City, County and

State of New York, first party, the North-Alaska

Steamship Company, incorporated under the laws

of the State of New York, hereinafter called "the

company," second party, and Frank S. Pusey, as

trustee for Grenville M. Dodge, of the City, County

and State of New York, third party, Witnesseth:
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That whereas, the said Grenville M. Dodge, at the

request of the said first party, and for his benefit,

has heretofore endorsed a certain promissory note,

dated February 15, 1904, made by said first party

to the order of the Bowling Green Trust Company,

for twelve thousand ($12,000) dollars, payable ninety

(90) days from said date, which note is due May 16,

1904, and

Whereas, the proceeds of the above-named note

were applied by the said first party in part payment

for the steamship "Garonne," now at Seattle, Wash-

ington, on a certain contract between Frank Water-

house, of Seattle, Washington, individually and as

president of Frank Waterhouse & Company, Lim-

ited, as the sole owner of record of said steamship,

and the said first party, and

Whereas, the said contract was thereafter, on Feb-

ruary 26, 1904, duly assigned to the North Alaska

Steamship Company, the second party hereto, sub-

ject to the liability of the said first party to execute

to the said Dodge a second mortgage on the above-

named steamship, for twelve thousand ($12,000) dol-

lars, as security for the pa}mient of the above-named

note at maturit}^ with interest, costs and expenses,

and

Whereas, the said Dodge loaned fifteen hundred

($1,500) dollars to the said first party for

days on March 17, 1904, which was paid by check

of said Dodge dated that da.v, and
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Whereas, that particuhir sum, so received from the

said Dodge, was applied as part payment of the bal-

ance due on said steamship, and the benefit thereof

received and accepted by said Company, and

Whereas, the said Company as assignee of said

first part.y, is not able to deliver the second mort-

gage to said Dodge prior to the maturity of said

above described note for Twelve thousand ($12,000)

dollars, for the reason that said Company has not

obtained the title papers from said record owner,

and

Whereas, the said Company is ready and willing

to secure payment of the aforesaid amounts, with

interest, costs and expenses, by an assignment ot

all the freight and passenger moneys now or here-

after due to the said Company as proceeds of the

first and second round trips of the said steamship

from Seattle, Washington, to Nome, Alaska, and

return, in the coming season of 1904, except moneys

jjledged or assigned as follows

:

Date. Name. Amount.
,

,Due.

March 21, John Schick, $3,600.00, June 20, 1904.

April 27, Maria W. Dittmar, 6,000.00 June 1, 1904.

April 28. Louis L. Browne, 0,000.00 On Demand.

May 7, Louis L. Browne, 1,500.00 On Demand.

May 11, S. C. Mead, 3,600.00 July 1, 1904.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual

promises herein contained and of other good and
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valuable considerations, the parties hereto hereby

agree as follows:

The said second party hereby agrees to execute to

the said third party, as Trustee for the above-named

Grenville M. Dodge, a second mortgage on said

steamship "Garonne," for Twelve thousand ($12,-

000) dollars, as soon as the title deed to the said

steamship can be obtained from Frank Waterhouse

& Company, Limited, the present record owner, pur-

suant to the contract of said Waterhouse, individu-

ally, and as President of Frank Waterhouse & Com-

pany, Limited, with Charles B. Smith, assigned to

the above-named Company, present owners, as afore-

said.

The said second party further agrees to execute

to the said third party its promissory note for

Twelve thousand ($12,000) dollars, payable

days after May 16, 1904, as further security for the

payment of the aforesaid note endorsed by said

Dodge which is due May 16th, 1904, and as further

security for the payment to said Dodge of the Fifteen

Hundred ($1,500) dollars loaned by him as aforesaid

to the said first party, who applied such sum to the

benefit of the said second party.

The said second party agreed to assign, transfer

and set over to the said third party, as Trustee, and

hereby does assign, transfer and set over all freight

and passenger monej^s, now or hereafter due the said
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Company, or in the said Company's hands and col-

lected by it as proceeds of the first and second round

trips of the said steamship ''Garonne" from Seattle,

Washington, to Nome, Alaska, and return, in the

coming season of 1904, except moneys pledged or

assigned as above set forth, and to give the said

third party an order on the said Company's agent at

Seattle, Washington, for the payment of said moneys,

as collected.

It is understood and agreed that the said Com-

pan.y shall pay any interest due on the said Fifteen

($1,500) hundred dollars to date, or that may here-

after accrue, together with any interest due or that

may hereafter accrue on said note for Twelve thou-

sand ($12,000) dollars, with costs and expenses.

It is further understood and agreed that if the

said third party waives his right hereby created to

collect any portion of said moneys out of the pro-

ceeds of the said first or second trips, then this agree-

ment shall extend to and bind all the parties hereto

as to subsequent trips of said steamship until said

notes, with interest, costs and disbursements are

fully paid.

In witness whereof the parties hereto have here-

unto affixed their hands and seals this 13th day of

May, 1904, and the said Company has signed its

name hereto by its President, attested by its Secre-
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taiy, and has affixed its corporate seal hereto on the

same day.

CHARLES B. SMITH, [Seal]

NORTH-ALASKA STEAMSHIP 00.

[Seal]

By CHARLES B. SMITH, Pres.

Attest: JOHN B. LEAKE, Treas.

Complainant's Exhibit 2.

"(Sept. 29/05. Willis Van Valkenberg, Special Ex-

aminer.)

$10,000.00 Seattle, Wash., June 2d, 1904.

On or before two months after date we promise to

pay to the order of Frank Waterlionse & Co. Inc. as

Trustee the sum of Ten Thousand & 00/100 Dollars,

with interest at the rate of seven per cent, per annum

from date. Negotiable and payable at the Seattle

National Bank, Seattle, Wash. If suit is brought

on the note or it becomes advisable to place the same

in the hands of an attorney for collection, we agree

to pay an additional sum equal to five per cent upon

the amount of this note as an attornej^s fee.

NORTH-ALASKA STEAMSHIP CO.

By CHARLES B. SMITH,

President.
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Complainant's Exhibit 3.

(Sept. 29/05. Willis Van Valkenberg, Special Ex-

aminer.)

Memorandum between Frank S. Pusey, agent for

G. M. Dodge, of New York, and Frank Waterhonse

& Co. Inc., of Seattle, Washington.

The North Alaska Steamship Company is indebted

to said Waterhonse & Co. Inc. in the sum of about

$37,671.46 being balance due on purchase price of the

Steamship "Garonne," and are also indebted to said

G. M. Dodge in the sum of about Ten Thousand Dol-

lars for borrowed money.

It is agreed that said Waterhonse & Co. Inc. shall

take a mortgage from said North Alaska Steamship

Co. upon the Steamship "Garonne" to secure both

claims above mentioned. The claim of said Water-

house & Co. Inc. shall be prior and paramount un-

der such mortgage, and the claim of said Dodge shall

be secondary. Said Waterhonse & Co. Ins. shall take

a note from said North Alaska Steamship Co., pay-

able to them as Trustee, for the amount so owing to

said Dodge, said note to be payable in two months

from date.

It is agreed that said Waterhonse & Co. Inc., in

acting as such Trustee for said Dodge in the securing

of said indebtedness, assumes no liability whatever
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with reference thereto, except that it agrees to act in

good faith.

FRANK S. PUSEY,

Agent For G. M. DODGE.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc.,

By FRANK WATERHOUSE,
President.

Complainant's Exhibit 4.

(Sept. 29/05. Willis Van Valkenberg, Special Ex-

aminer.)

To all to Whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

Know ye, that we. North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, a corporation, of the State of New York, are

held and firmly bound unto Frank Waterhouse &

Co. Inc., of Seattle, Washington, in the just and full

sum of $37,671.46 Dollars; for the payment of which

sum, well and truly to be made, we hereby bind our-

selves, our successors and assigns, by these presents.

Dated at Seattle, Wash., this 2d day of June, A.

D, 1904. Whereas, said North Alaska Steamship

Co. is justly indebted to said Frank Waterhouse &

Co. Inc., for balance of purchase price of the Steam-

ship hereinafter described in the sum of $37,671.46

Dollars, evidenced by the two promissory notes of

said North Alaska Steamship Co., payable in equal

installments to said Frank Waterhouse & Co. Inc.,
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for said last named sum, with interest at tlie rate of

7 per cent per annum from date until paid, said notes

bearing even date herewith, and being payable

June 22 and July 12, respectively, after date at

Seattle National Bank, Seattle, Wash., and, where-

as, said North Alaska Steamship Co., is further in-

debted to Frank Waterhouse & Co. Inc., as trustee

in the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars, evidenced by

its promissory note of even date herewith, payable

two months after date to said Frank Waterhouse &

Co. Inc., as trustee, at Seattle, Wash., with interest

at the rate of 7 per cent per annum from date until

paid; said smns being charged on the body, tackle,

and appurtenances of the good ship "Garonne," of

the burden of 2,319 tons, the said North Alaska

Steamship Co. being the sole owner of said ship.

Now the condition of this obligation is, that if the

said North Alaska Steamship Co. shall pay, or cause

to be paid, to the said Frank Waterhouse & Co. Inc.,

the said sum of $37,671.46 Dollars, evidenced by the

notes above specified, and also to said Frank Water-

house & Co. Inc., as trustee the said further sum of

Ten Thousand Dollars, as evidenced as above stated,

with interest on said sums according to the tenor of

said notes, then this obligation to be void; otherwise;

to be and remain in full force and effect.

And in consideration of, and as security for, said

moneys so owing as aforesaid, the said ship "Ga-
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ronne," lier tackle, machinery, furniture, apparel

and, equipment is; by these presents, assigned

pledged, mortgaged, set over and conveyed to the

said Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., its successors

and assigns, the certificate of the registry of which

ship is as follows, viz:

Register No. 108 Permanent Official Number

Numerals. Letters.

86504 K. P. T. W.

Certificate of Registry.

In pursuance of Chapter I, Title XLVIII, "Reg-

ulation of Commerce and Navigation, "Revised

Statutes of the United States, W. P. Prichard,

Secy, of Frank Waterhouse Co. Inc., R. McFarland,

Master, having taken and subscribed the oath re-

quired by law, and having sworn that he. The Frank

Waterhouse & Company, Inc., is the only owner

of the vessel called the "Garonne" of Seattle,

Washington, whereof R. McFarland is at present

master, and is a citizen of the United States, and

that the said vessel was built in the year 1871, at

Govan, Scotland, as appears by P. R. No. 48 B is-

sued at Seattle, Washington, May 12th, 1900, sur-

rendered 0. C. and said register having certified

that the said vessel has four decks, and three masts;

and that her length is 371 feet and tenths;

her breadth 41 feet and 4 tenths; her depth 20 feet
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and 4 tenths; her height 15 feet and 8 tenths; that

she measures Twenty Tliree Hundred Nineteen.

Tons lOOths.

Capacity under tonnage deck 1938 19

Capacity between decks above ton-

nage deck 1962 93

Capacity of inclosures on the upper

deck, viz: 44 54

Gross Tonnage .... 3954

Deductions under Section 4153, Revised Statutes,

as amended by Act of March 2, 1895:

Crew space 233.79; Master's

cabin 233:79

Steering gear; Anchor gear

46.62 117:74

Boatswain's stores 71.12; Chart-

house

Storage of sails, 12.03;

Donkey-engine and boiler; Pro-

pelling Power 1262.61 1274:64

Total Deductions 1626 17 1626 17

Net Tonnage 2319

The following described spaces, and no others,

have been omitted, viz

:

and that she is a

Str. Sc (iron), has a figure-head and a elliptic stern;

and the said having agreed to the descrip-
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tion and admeasurement above specified, according

to law, said vessel has been duly registered at the

Port of Port Townsend, Wash.

Given under ni}^ hand and seal at the Port of Port

Townsend, this 4th day of May, in the year one thou-

sand nine hundred and one (1901).

No (Seal) F. D. HEUSTIS, (Seal)

Collector of Customs.

EUGENE TYLER CHAMBERLAIN,

Commissioner of Navigation.

Formerly Br. SS. "Garonne," Re-measured at

Seattle, Wash. 1900.

It being mutually understood and agreed that, in

case said indebtedness, or any part thereof, accord-

ing to the terms of said notes, shall remain due and

unpaid after the maturity of either of said notes,

then all of said notes shall be considered due and

payable at the option of said Frank Waterhouse &

Co., Inc., and said Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc.,

may foreclose this mortgage according to law, or

at their election may take possession of said ship,

tackle, apparel, machinery, furniture and equip-

ment, and sell the same at public auction, in order

to satisfy what may then remain due, without any

proceedings in court or otherwise for the pui*pose of

authorizing such sale, and thereupon ma.y execute

and deliver a sufficient bill of sale to transfer com-

pletely to any purchaser or purchasers all title and



Grenville M. Dodge and Frank Waterhoasc. 5-1:3

property in and to said ship, her tackle, apparel,

furniture, machinery and equipment; and out of the

proceeds of such foreclosure or of such sale, said

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., shall pay, first, all

expenses connected with or incurred in such fore-

closure or sale, including an attorney's fee of five

per cent upon the amount then remaining unpaid

on said notes for advice and services of their attor-

ney in connection with such foreclosure or sale,

second, the full amount then remaining unpaid on

said notes of $37,671.46, payable to said Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., if such proceeds shall bo

sufficient to pay said note in full, and if not suffi-

cient to x^ay said note in full, then appl,y thereon

all of such proceeds in their hands; and, third, after

paying such expenses and the full amount due on

said notes to Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., the

residue, if any, or a sufficiency thereof, shall be ap-

plied in payment of such amount as may remain

unpaid on said note for $10,000.00 payable to Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., as trustee; and, fourth, any

balance of such proceeds after making the payments

above provided for shall be turned over to said

North Alaska Steamship Company, its successors

or assigns.

And before making such sale as aforesaid, said

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., shall give fifteen days'

notice of the time, place and terms of said sale, such

notice to be given by publication in some newspaper
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published in Seattle, Wash., at least twice a week

for two weeks. And it is expressly agreed and

covenanted that said Frank Waterliouse & Co. Inc.,

may become bidders at such sale and may become

purchasers thereat if they have the highest bid.

And it is further agreed that in case of such sale,

said North Alaska Steamship Co., mortgagor, its

successors and assigns, shall whenever thereto re-

quested, make, execute and deliver to such purchaser

or purchasers another bill of sale of said ship, her

tackle, apparel, furniture, machinery and equipment,

in which the registry of said ship shall be recited,

for transferring completely to such purchaser or pur-

chasers all the rights, interests, and claims of said

mortgagor, its successors and assigns, as owners of

said ship. And in default of the prompt execution

and delivery of such other bill of sale to such pur-

chaser or purchasers by the said mortgagor, its suc-

cessors and assigns, when thereto requested, W. P.

Prichard, of Seattle, Wash., is hereby constituted

and appointed the legal attorney of the said North

Alaska Steamship Co., mortgagor, for the purpose

of making, executing and delivering such bill of sale

;

and the said North Alaska Steamship Co. hereby rati-

fies and confirms the act of the said W. P. Prichard,

as their attorney for said purpose.

And it is hereby further agreed, that insurance

shall be made at some agency in -Seattle, Wash., on

the said ship, her tackle, etc., for the security of the
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said mortgagee, to an amount not less than the aggre-

gate of said jiromissoiy notes as aforesaid, and said

mortgagee is liereby antliorized to procure sufli in-

surance at the expense of said mortgagor, if nf)t

seasonably obtained by said mortgagor, the amount so

advanced by said mortgagee to be secured by this

mortgage.

It is further agreed and understood that the said

indebtedness evidenced by the said notes to Frank

Waterhouse & Co. Inc., for $37,671.46 shall be and is

a first, prior and paramount claim secured by this

mortgage, and the said indebtedness evidenced by

said nt^te to Frank Waterhouse & Co. Inc., as trustee

for $10,000.00, is a second claim and subordinate to

said first described note under this mortgage.

In testimony Whereof, The said North Alaska Steam-

ship Company has hereunto set its hand and corpo-

rate seal, in execution hereof, by its president and

secretary on this the Second day of June, A. D.

1904.

NORTH ALASKA STEAMSHIP COMPANY,

By ,

President.

By ,

Secretary.

Signed, sealed and delivered in presence of as to

said

as to said
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State of Washington,

County of King,—ss.

I, , a Notary Public in and for tlie State

of Washington, residing at Seattle, in the above-

named county and state, duly commissioned, sworn

and qualified, do hereby certify that on this 2d day

of June, A, D. 1904, before me personally appeared

Smith, to me known to be the indiyidual who'

as president of the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, the corporation that executed the within in-

strument, and acknowledged the said instrument to

be the free and voluntary act and deed of the said

corporation for the uses and purposes therein men-

tioned, and on oath stated he is authorized to execute

said instrument, and that the seal affixed is the corpo-

rate seal of said corporation.

Given under my hand and official seal this 2d day

of June, A. D. 1904.

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Eesiding at Seattle, King County, said state.
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Complainant's Exhibit No. 5.

(Sept. 29/05. Willis Van Valkenberg, Special Ex-

aminer.)

(On Blank of Western Union Telegraph Co.)

Jnly 15, 1904.

Prank Waterliouse, Seattle, AVashington.

Have you advices of collection of trustee freight

money. Just returned yesterday. Please write

present status of our joint claim.

FRANK S. PITSEY.

Copy.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 6.

(Sept. 29/05. Willis Van Valkenberg, Special Ex-

aminer.)

No. 1 Broadway, New York. July 27, 1904.

Mr. Frank Waterhouse, Seattle, Washington.

Dear Sir: Some two weeks ago I wired you to

learn if freight money had been collected, and to

write me present status of affairs, to which I have no

reply. Not hearing from you, I learned through

Mr. King that have disposed of the S. S. Garonne

to an new company. If you have taken care of my

claim of $10,000, under your agreement to act in good
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faith in acting as Trustee, it will relieve my mind

very much to hear from 3^ou to that effect.

Very truly,

F. S. PUSEY,

Trustee.

Complainant's Exhibit No. 7.

(Sept. 29/05. Willis Van Valkenberg, Special Ex-

aminer.)

STATE OF NEW YORK.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

Albany, Apr. 15, 1905.

Taft & Sherman, 15 William St., N. Y. City.

Dear Sir : Your letter of the 13 inst. is received.

In reply thereto I respectfully state that a certificate

of incorporation was filed in this office on the 12 day

of July, 1904, of a company under the corporate name

of Merchants and Miners Steamship Co. of New

York.

A certified copy of said certificate can be furnished

upon receipt of $ .

Yours respectfully.

Incorporators A. J. Baldwin, F. M. Van Wagoner,

E. W. Ulman, F. A. Clary.

JOHN F. O'BRIEN,

Secretary of State.
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For Identification, Defendant's Exhibit "A."

(Willis Van Valkeiiberg, Special Examiner.)

Seattle, Washington,

June 2d, 1904.

I so hereby agree to hold out and deposit Five

Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) of the freight money

collected from first voyage of S. S. Garonne upon its

arrival at Nome, Alaska, with the Bank of Nome to

the credit of Seattle Nat'l. Bank for use of Frank

Waterhouse & Co. Inc., Trustee.

CHARLES B. SMITH.

United States Circuit Court, Western District of

Washington, Northern Division.

No. 1290.

CRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & COMPANY Inc., (a

Corporation), and FRANK WATER-
HOUSE,

Respondents.
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Memorandum Decision on the Merits.

(Filed May 14, 1907.)

I am unable to find in the pleadings and evidence

in this case any legal or equitable grounds for hold-

ing the defendant Frank Waterhouse as an indi-

vidual liable to the complainant, and I therefore di-

rect that as to him the case be dismissed with costs.

The other defendant, Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Incorporated, will hereafter be referred to as the

defendant, as if it were the sole defendant in the

case. It was formerly the owner of the steamship

Garonne, and in the year 1904 it contracted to sell

said steamship to the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, another corporation, which appears to have

been organized without any capital other than the

hopes of its promoters. In the month of June, 1904,

the purchaser owed the defendant $37,671.46 on ac-

count of the purchase price of the steamer, and owed

the complainant $10,000.00 for borrowed money, and

also other creditors a considerable amount for re-

pairs and betterments made to the steamer, and sup-

plies for an intended voyage from Seattle to Nome.

On June 2, 1904, in order to arrange for the pay-

ment of the steamship company's debts to the de-

fendant and to the complainant, and to clear the ship

so she could proceed immediately on her intended

voyage, the three parties, represented respectively by



Grcnville M. Dodge and Frank W<derhouse. 551

Frank S. Piisey, agent for the complainant, Frank

Waterhouse, President of the defendant, and Charles

B. Smith, President of the Steamship Companj^, held

a conference at Seattle, which cnlminated in the exe-

cntion and delivery of a micmorandum agreement, a

promissory note and an assignment of freight money,

which several documents are of the following tenor

:

"Memorandum between Frank S. Pusey, agent for

G. M. Dodge, of New York, and Frank Waterhouse

& Co. Inc., of Seattle, Washington.

The North Alaska Steamship Company is indebt-

ed to said Waterhouse & Co., Inc., in the sum of

about $37,671.46 being balance due on purchase

price of the Steamship "Garonne," and are also in-

debted to said G. M. Dodge in the sum of about ten

thousand dollars for borrowed money.

It is agreed that said Waterhouse & Co., Inc.,

shall take a m.ortgage from said North Alaska Steam-

ship Co. upon the steamship "Garonne" to secure

both claims above mentioned. The claim of said

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., shall be prior and para-

mount under such mortgage, and the claim of said

Dodge shall be secondary. Said Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., shall take a note from said North Alaska Steam-

ship Co., payable to them as Trustee, for the amount

so owing to said Dodge, said note to be payable in

two months from date

:
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It is agreed that said Waterhoiise & Co., Inc., in

acting as such Trustee for said Dodge in the secur-

ing of said indebtedness, assumes no liability what-

ever with reference thereto, except that it agrees to

act in good faith.

FRANK S. PUSEY, Agent,

For G. M. DODGE.
FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc.,

By FRANK WATERHOUSE,
President.

$10,000.00

Seattle, Wash., June 2d, 1904.

On or before two months after date we promise to

pay to the order of Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc.,

as Trustee the sum of Ten Thousand & 00/100 Dol-

lars, with interest at the rate of seven per cent, per

annum from date, negotiable and payable at the Se-

attle National Bank, Seattle, Wash. If suit is

brought on this note or it becomes advisable to place

the same in the hands of an attorney for collection,

v/e agree to pay an additional sum equal to five per

cent., upon the amount of this note as attorney's fees.

NORTH ALASKA STEAMSHIP CO.,

By CHARLES B. SMITH,

President.

Seattle, Washington,

June 2d, 1904.
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I do hereby agree to hold out and deposit Five

Thousand Dollars ($5000.00) of the freight money

collected from first voyage of S. S. Garonne upon

its arrival at Nome, Alaska, with the Bank of Nome

to the credit of Seattle Nat'l Bank for use of Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., Trustee.

CHARLES B. SMITH.

A mortgage of the steamship Garonne was also

prepared and signed by Smith, as President of the

Steamship Company, containing stipulations in con-

formity with the above memorandum, and upon these

several documents this suit is founded.

The following quotations from the defendant's an-

swer are proximately a true statement of the trans-

action and the controlling circumstances which in-

fluenced the parties:

"That on June 2d, 1904, there was a balance due

respondent company on said purchase price from

said North Alaska Steamship Company of $37,-

671.46 ; that said steamer was loaded with cargo and

passengers ready to start on her voyage to Nome,

Alaska ; that the representative of said North Alaska

Steamship Company reported to respondent company

that there were claims unpaid against said steamer

for repairs and supplies amounting to approximately

thirteen thousand dollars ($13,000.00). That said

North Alaska Steamshixo Company had failed to fur-

nish a guarantee bond guaranteeing said vessel would

be kept free of liens and they had failed to furnish



554 Frank Waterhonse d- Co., Inc., vs.

the collateral security for said deferred payments

according to the terms of their contract, and stated

to respondent that tlie}^ were unable to furnish such

security ; and respondent company had notified them

that said vessel would not be permitted to sail under

their charge until said contract was complied with in

full. That on or about June 1st, 1904, one Charles

B. Smith, President of said North Alaska Steam-

ship Compan,y, arrived in Seattle from New York ex-

pecting to go to Nome, Alaska, on said steamer, and

one Frank S. Pusey representing himself as the

agent of said complainant, also arrived in Seattle

about the same date. That said Smith represented

to respondents that his company was prepared to pay

oft' all of the claims against said vessel incurred by

repairs and supplies as soon as he could notify the

New York office of the amount due therefor; and

that they were prepared to pay the balance due re-

spondent company in the purchase price within the

next twenty days ; and in view of said representations

and relying thereon, this respondent company con-

sented to permit said steamer to make said voyage in

charge of said North Alaska Steamship Company;

that said Smith and said Pusey agree that said North

Alaska Steamship Company was indebted to said

complainant, in the sum of ten thousand dollars

($10,000.00), and said Smith, on behalf of his said

company, offered to take a bill of sale to said steamer

and to execute a mortgage thereon for the balance
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due respondent company, payable in twenty (20)

and forty (40) days from that date, and to give a

second mortgage to said complainant to secure the

ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) due him, payable

in sixty (60) days from that date; said bill of sale

and mortgages to be executed by said company as

soon as the money was received by respondent com-

pany with which to pay the claims for labor and sujd-

plies against said steamer; that said Smith also

agreed with said Pusey to assign to him, and on be-

half of said North Alaska Steamship Company did

assign to said Pusey certain freight due on cargo then

being shipped by said steamer to Nome, which was

payable on delivery of the cargo at Nome, and said

Pusey apjiointed said Smith as agent to collect said

freights and remit them to the Seattle National Bank

for the credit of said complainant. That as a matter

of convenience it was agreed between the said Pusey

and the sai^i respondent company that one mortgage

would be taken on said vessel securing both claims

due said respondent company and due said com-

plainant, said mortgage providing for priority in

favor if the debt due respondent company ; that said

Pusey stated to respondents that he did not wish to

remain in Seattle for the length of time necessary

to get said mortgage executed by said North Alaska

Steamship Company, and requested respondent com-

pany to act for him in receiving such money as might
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be remitted by said Smith to said Seattle National

Bank for the credit of complainant, and in the ac-

ceptance and recording of said mortgage ; and the re-

spondent company as a matter of accommodation

to said Pusey consented to do so ; and the memoran-

dum set forth in the sixth paragraph of said bill of

complaint was executed to evidence said arrange-

ment.

Respondent further shows that it was agreed that

the note to said complainant should be executed by

said North Alaska Steamship Companj^ payable to

this respondent as trustee for said complainant in

order that the same might be deposited in the Se-

attle National Bank and any remittances received

by said bank from said Smith could be credited there-

on. * * *

Respondent states that in the transactions and

conversations with said Pusey leading up to said

final arrangement, the said Pusey was distinctly in-

formed of the rights of this respondent and the con-

ditions as they existed at that time between it and

said North Alaska Steamship Company. * * * Re-

spondents state that said North Alaska Steamship

Company was a New York corporation, and had its

main office and corporate seal in the State of New

York, and that all of its officers except the said

Charles B. Smith, who was president, were then in

New York. That respondent company caused to be
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prepared a bill of sale of said steamer from respond-

ent compan}^ to said North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany, and also caused to be prepared a mortgage

from said North Alaska Steamship Company to re-

spondent company upon said steamer, with appro-

priate conditions and provisions to secure the debt

due this respondent company, and also that due com-

plainant in accordance with the terms agreed on.

That said mortgage was submitted to said Pusey and

declared by him to be satisfactory in fonn

;

that thereupon respondent company procured said

Charles B. Smith, president of said North Alaska

Steamship Company, to sign said mortgage for and

on behalf of said company, and also to execute the

notes upon behalf of said company. * * * That ac-

cordingly this respondent company, on June 3d,

1904, enclosed said bill of sale and said mortgage to

the Chase National Bank of New York, with direc-

tions to said bank to deliver said bill of sale to said

North Alaska Steamship Company u^on the proper

execution of said mortgage by that company, and on

the same day respondent company notified J. B.

Leake, the secretary of said company, and also the

Occidental Security Company, the financial agent of

said company in New York, of the forwarding of said

papers, and requested prompt execution thereof. That

said North Alaska Steamship Company failed and re-

fused to execute said mortgage and refused to pay
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the claims incurred by it against said steamship com-

pany for repairs and supplies. * * * Respondents

state in answer to the allegations contained in the

ninth paragraph of said bill of complaint that said

steamship "Garonne," on June 2d, 1904, was in first-

class condition, and respondent believes that she was

thoroughly seaworthy, and they state that the over-

hauling and repairs made thereon by said North

Alaska Steamship Company were charged and done

on the credit of this steamer. '

'

The North Alaska Steamship Company having

failed to meet its obligations for repairs, etc., the

defendant corj)oration disregarding the arrangement

made at Seattle with the complainant's representa-

tive served a written notice upon the officers of the

North Alaska Steamship Company in New York,

which reads as follows:

"New York, July 8th, 1904.

North Alaska Steamship Company,

Gentlemen: By the terms of our conditional con-

tract of sale of the steamship 'Garonne' to you it

was provided that deferred payments should be evi-

denced by notes of your company and secured by

a first mortgage on the steamer and by such addi-

tional collateral security as should be satisfactory

to us. It was also further provided that your com-

pany should give us a guaranty company's bond,

protecting us and the steamer from any lien or
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claims for supplies or repairs that might be incurred

by you at any time before the payment of our debt

in full. It was also provided in said agreement that

these securities and bonds were to be furnished to

us on or before the tenth day of March, 1904. None

of these conditions have been complied with by you.

There is now a balance due us of $37,641.00, with

interest since June 2d, 1904, and there are claims and

demands outstanding against the steamer, incurred

by you in the purchase of supplies and material and

for repairs, amounting to something over $30,000,

which are unpaid and for which the holders claim a

lien against the steamer.

We now notify you that unless you are prepared to

and will at once complete the performance of your

contract by accepting title to the steamer, executing

a mortgage and notes for the deferred payments,

furnish the bond from the Guaranty Company, in-

demnifying us against any claims against the steam-

er, and furnish the additional collateral security for

preferred payments due us, that security to be to our

satisfaction, we will exercise the right reserved to

us under the contract of cancelling your option of

purchasing the said steamer and declare a forfeiture

of any rights you would otherwise have in said con-

tract, and also will retain the payments heretofore

made to us thereon.
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We are now, and have been since tlie tenth day of

March, last, ready and prepared to execute a bill of

sale to you of the steamer upon your compliance

with the terms of said contract, but we are not will-

ing to allow the matter to stand open in its present

shape, and we require that you either perform the

contract or submit to a forfeiture of your rights un-

der it at once.

Yours truly,

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO."

The response was a notice that said steamship

company was unable to comply with the terms of

said demand, and that it abandoned the contract to

purchase the steamship, and thereupon the presi-

dent of the defendant corporation entered into the

following written contract with Wm. F. King, who

had been a financial backer of the steamship com-

pany:

"Memorandum of Agreement made this 9th day

of July, 1904, between Wm. F. King, of New York

City, party of the first part, and Frank Waterhouse,

of Seattle, Washington, party of the second part.

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants

and agreements hereinafter expressed, the said par-

ties mutually agree as follows

:

First, The said Wm. F. King, acting for both par-

ties, will at once organize a corporation under the
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laws of the State of New York, to ])e known as the

Merchants' and Miners' Steamship Company of

New York, with a capital stock of one hundred thou-

sand dollars ($100,000.00), such corporation to have

all the powers usual and common to transportation

companies. The Board of Directors shall he com-

posed of five members, and the board for the first

year shall consist of the following persons : William

F. King, Wm. R. Corwine and S. Cristy Mead, of

the City of New York, and Frank Waterhouse and

W. H. Bogle, of the city of Seattle. For the first

year the president shall be Frank Waterhouse, the

vice-president W. H. Bogie, and the secretary S. C.

Mead. The said Wm. F. King is to receive fifty

thousand dollars par value of the capital stock, and

the said Frank Waterhouse is to receive the other

fifty thousand dollars par value of the capital stock.

Second. Upon the formation of said corporation,

saixi Waterhouse will have Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., execute a bill of sale conveying to said new

company the steamship "Garonne," with her equip-

ment, supplies and material on board, and also turn

into the treasury of said company the cash in the

hands of Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., received

from the last voyage of the "Garonne."

Third. The said Wm. F. King will advance to

said new company the sum of thirty thousand dol-
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lars ($30,000.00) in cash, to be applied in the pay-

ment and discharge of the claims now existing

against the steamship for snpplies, material, repairs,

etc., said money to be deposited by said King in the

Chase National Bank, New York, to the credit of

Frank Waterhouse, fifteen thousand dollars ($15,-

000.00) thereof, on or before July 16th, 1904, and

the remaining fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00)

on or Ijefore July 23d, 1904.

Fourth. Said new company shall execute a mort-

gage securing to said Wm, F. King the said sum of

thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00), and to said

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., the sum of thirty

-

seven thousand dollars, with interest on said amounts

from July 15th, 1904. Said mortgage to contain the

usual covenants and agreements contained in such

instruments, l)ut to j^rovide specifically against any

personal liability or stock liability of either of the

parties hereto for any part of the indebtedness ex-

pressed in said mortgage. Said indebtedness to be

represented by notes given by said mortgagor com-

pany to said respective parties as above, and each of

the notes to be of equal rank under the mortgage,

and to be payable at such time or times as said par-

ties hereto may hereafter agree, and to bear interest

at the rate of 6% per annum.

Fifth. Said Waterhouse shall advance to said

new company such amount as may be needed for the
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operation of the steamer during the present season.

Exeented in duplicate the date above named.

WM. P. KING.

FRANK WATERHOUSE."
The scheme outlined in this agreement was subse-

quently carried through to completion, and on the

same day that said agreement was entered into, the

defendant executed a release to the North Alaska

Steamship Company, forever discharging it "of all

and from all, and all manner of action and actions,

cause and causes of actions, suits, debts, dues, sums

of money, accounts, reckonings, bonds, bills, special-

ties, covenants, contracts, controversies, agreements,

promises, variances, trespasses, damages, judgments,

expense, executions, claims, or demands whatsoever

in law or in equity, which against the North Alaska

Steamship Company, its successors and assigns, ever

had, now has, or which its successors and assigns

hereafter can, shall or may have for, upon or by

reason of any matter, cause or thing whatsoever

from the beginning of the world to the day of the

date of these presents.
'

' A similar release was given

to the defendant b)^ the steamship company, and the

defendant also agreed to relinquish the freight

money assigned by Smith, the president of the steam-

ship compan}^ to the defendant as trustee for the

complainant. The exchange of releases and relin-

quishment are proved by the testimony of Mr. Bo-
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gle given in behalf of the defendant and by a copy

of the release executed by the defendant, which was

introduced in connection with his testimony as "De-

fendant 's Exhibit Q-3. '

'

These transactions were carried through to com-

pletion at the city of New York without any notice

being given to the complainant. In its answer and in

the evidence introduced in behalf of the defendant

there is an attempt to excuse its failure of duty in

this regard on the ground that its officers did not

know the address or whereabouts of the complain-

ant. From the testimony of Waterhouse and Bogle

it appears that the only efforts made to communi-

cate with the complainant were confined to inquiries

directed to persons connected with the steamship

company, whose interests would not have been ad-

vanced by affording him a fair opportunity to see

to the enforcement of his rights in connection with

the adjustment made between the two corporations.

This shows inexcusable negligence on the part of a

trustee. The evidence proves that the complainant

is and has been for many years a man of national

reputation and at the time of the transactions he had

an office in New York City, which he visited fre-

quently and when absent therefrom, he was but a

short distance from New York City, and was in con

stant communication with his office. I have no

doubt that any ten year old boy of ordinary Intel-
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ligence, if dispatched with a message, could have

readily delivered it to the complainant in person, and

tliat Mr. Frank Waterhouse, if he had made a bona

fide effort to do so, could have communicated with

the complainant by mail, telegraph or telephone, or

personally.

It is the contention of the complainant that the

steamship "Garonne" in the year 1904 was of suffi-

cient value to constitute ample security for the en-

tire indebtedness of the North Alaska Steamship

Company, including the unpaid purchase money,

the debts contracted for repairs, improvements and

sup]3lies, and the debt due to him, and that the dis-

position made of the ship without collecting said

del^t constitutes a breach of trust rendering the de-

fendant corporation liable to him for the entire

amount of said debt. The defense appears to rest

upon a theory, that the North Alaska Steamship

Company acquired no interest in the ship other than

an option to jDurchase, and that the defendant cor-

poration incurred no liability to the complainant, ex-

cept to hand over any amount of money which

might be voluntarily paid by the steamship com-

pany under the contract of June 2d, 1904. In this

it is assumed that the steamship company was not

a party to that contract, and was not obligated to

mortgage the steamship to secure the money due to

the complainant. I hold, however, that the mort-
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gage which was signed by the president of the steam-

ship company, the promissory note for ten thou-

sand dollars, given to the defendant as trustee for

the complainant, the assignment of freight money,

and the contract signed by the defendant and Puse}^

as agent for the complainant, constitute one con-

tract, binding upon all three of the parties. The

documentary evidence in the case proves that notice

of the transaction was promptly sent to the Secre-

tary of the steamship company in New York, and

that Smith's authority as president of the company

was not disputed. The evidence also proves that

there was more than a mere executory contract to

sell the steamshi}) to the North Alaska Steamship

Company, because the sale was consummated by

complete manual delivery of the ship to the pur-

chaser, and she was permitted to leave the port of

Seattle under the control of the purchaser in con-

sideration of said contract, and that she earned

money for the purchaser; therefore, the defendant,

held the legal title, subject to the trust created by

said contract, and except as against other creditors

and bona fide purchasers the ship was effectually and

legally hypothecated for the complainant's debt.

The evidence proves that the "Garonne" was sur-

rendered to the defendant in good condition, and

that she was then worth more than the amount of

the complainant's debt over and above all other
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claims against her. The defendant was then in the

same situation, practically, that it would have been

if the mortgage had been executed and foreclosed

and the ship sold to the defendant for the amount

of the debts secured by the mortgage, and the man-

ner in which she was disposed of by the defendant

without notice to the complainant was incompatible

with the good faith, to which the defendant as trus-

tee for the complainant became pledged by its agree-

ment with Pusey. The evidence also proves that

the release given by the defendant while it was the

holder of the ten thousand dollar note, included the

debt evidenced by that note and discharged the North

Alaska Steamship Company, from its indebtedness

to the complainant, to the extent of the power of a

trustee, under the circumstances, and by discharging

the steamship company in that manner and dispos-

ing of the security without the complainant's con-

sent, the defendant, by the principles of equity, must

be held to have assumed an obligation to pay the note.

In the argument in behalf of the defendant it was

contended that the North Alaska Steamship Com-

pany should have been joined as a necessary party

to the suit, and that because of a defect of parties

the Court cannot render a decree, other than a de-

cree of dismissal. If it were true that the steamship

company is a necessary party, the Court would be

obliged to dismiss the suit, notwithstanding the fail-
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lire of the defendant to set forth this ground of

objection to the bill of complaint, by demurrer, plea

or answer. The defendant, however, by the intro-

duction of the release in evidence has proved af-

firmatively that the steamship compan}^ is not a neces-

sary, nor a proper party, it has no interest to be

affected by the litigation, because the release is an

estoppel against any reclamation by the defendant

against it.

I direct that a decree be entered in favor of the

complaiiian.t for the amount of the principal and in-

terest of the promissory note, and the amount speci-

fied in the note for attorney's fee.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Mem, Decision on the Merits. Filed

May 14, 1907. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. By A. N.

Moore, Deputy.
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In the Circuit Court of the United States, for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., and

FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Respondents.

Final Decree.

This cause coming on to be further heard at this

term, and after argument by counsel, and the Court

being fully advised in the premises ; wherefore, upon

consideration thereof it is hereby ordered, adjudged

and decreed as follows, viz.

:

1st. That this action is, and the same hereby is

dismissed as to the respondent, Frank Waterhonse,

and that said Frank Waterhonse do have and re-

cover of and from the complainant his costs in this

action hereby allowed by this Court as follows: A
docket fee of twenty dollars ($20.00) and twenty-

five (25) per cent of the aggregate amount of the

costs of complainant and respondent, Frank Water-
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house & Co., Inc. (less said $20 docket fee), as taxed

and allowed by the clerk of this Court.

2d. That said complainant, Grenville M. Dodge,

do have and recover of and from the respondent,

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Incorporated, the sum of

ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), together with in-

terest thereon at the rate of seven per cent per an-

num from June 2, 1904, to date of this decree

amounting in the aggregate to the sum of twelve

thousand and seventy-six and 67/100 dollars ($12,-

076.67), also five (5) per cent of the amount of said

princii^al and interest, as an attorney's fee, amount-

ing to the further sum of six hundred and three and

80/100 dollars ($603.80) ; and said complainant's

costs and disbursements herein incurred, as taxed

and allowed by the clerk of this court, amounting to

the further sum of ($285.73) dollars.

3d. That upon application of said complainant,

or his solicitor, execution issue out of this Court, and

under the seal thereof, against said respondent,

Frank Waterhouse & Co., Incorporated, for the

amount of this decree, including attorney's fee and

costs, as aforesaid.

Done in open court, this 20th day of May, 1907.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Final Decree. Filed in the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist of Washington. May 20,
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1907. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. R. M. Hopkins,

Dep.

In the Cireuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., and FRANK
WATERHOUSE,

Respondents.

Supersedeas and Appeal Bond.

Know all men by these presents, that we, Frank

Waterhouse & Company, Incorporated, as princi-

pals, and National Surety Company, a corporation

organized under the laws of the State of New York,

as surety, are held and firmly bound unto the above-

named Grenville M. Dodge, for the payment of

which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves

and each of us, and our and each of our successors,

pointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

Sealed with our seals and dated the 1st day of

June, 1907.
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Wlaereas, the above-named Frank Waterhoiise &

Company, Incorporated, has prosecuted an appeal

to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit to reverse the final decree ren-

dered in the above-entitled suit by the Judge of the

Circuit Court of the United States for the Western

District of Washington;

Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is

such that if the above-named Frank Waterhouse &

Company, Incorporated, shall prosecute said appeal

to effect, and answer all damages and costs if they

fail to make their plea good, then this obligation

shall be void, otherwise the same shall be and re-

main in full force and effect.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & COMPANY,
Inc.

By W. P. PRICHARD, [Seal]

Secretary.

NATIONAL SURETY COMPANY.
By JOHN W. ROBERTS,

Resident Vice-president

Attest: GEO. W. ALLEN,
Resident Assistant Secretary.

Approved June 6th, 1907.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Supersedeas and Appeal Bond.

Filed in the U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of
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Washington. June 6, 1907. A. Reeves Ayres,

Olerk. A. N. Moore, Deputy.

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

PRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., and fTlANK

WATERHOUSE,
Respondents.

Petition for Appeal.

The above-named respondent, Frank Waterhouse

& Co., Inc., conceiving itself aggrieved by the final

decree entered on the 21st day of May, 1907, in

the above-entitled cause, does hereby appeal from

said decree to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and prays that this

appeal may be allowed, that the amount of the super-

sedeas bond to be executed by said respondent on

such appeal may be fixed by the Court, and that a

transcript of the records, proceedings and papers

in said cause, duly authenticated, may be sent to the
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United States Circuit 00111^; of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

BOGLE, HARDIN & SPOONER,

Solicitor for Respondent, Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc.

[Endorsed] : Appeal. Filed in the U. S. Circuit

Court, Western Dist. of Washington. June 6,

1907. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore,

Deputy.

In the Circuit Court of tlie United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., and FRANK
WATERHOUSE,

Respondents.

Order Allowing Appeal.

It is ordered that the appeal of Frank Water-

house & Co., Inc., from the final decree entered in

this cause on the 21st day of May, 1907, be allowed

as prayed for, and that the amount of the super-

sedeas bond to be executed by such appellant to
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supersede said decree pending said af»peal be, and

the same is hereby, fixed at the sum of fifteen thou-

sand ($15,000) dollars.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

[Endorsed]: Order. Filed in the U. S. Circuit

Court, Western Dist. of Washington. June 6, 1907.

A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N. Moore, Deputy.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth

Cirmiit.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc.,

Appellant,

vs.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant and Appellee.

FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendant.

Assignment of Errors.

Comes now Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., by

Bogle, Hardin & Spooner, its solicitors, and says

that in the record and proceedings in the above-en-

titled cause there is manifest error in this, to wit:

I.

The suit is brought to charge this appellant, as

trustee, with an indebtedness alleged to be owing
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by the North Alaska Steamship Company to the

complainant and appellee, Grenville M. Dodge. In

such proceedings the debtor, North Alaska Steam-

ship Company, was an indispensable party, and the

Court below erred in entertaining jurisdiction of

such cause in the absence of the North Alaska

Steamship Company from the record.

II.

The Court below erred in rendering a decree in

favor of the appellee, Grenville M. Dodge, and

against this appellant for the sum of twelve thou-

sand and seventy-six and sixty-seven hundredths

($12,076.76) dollars, and for the further sum of six

hundred and three and eighty hundredths ($603.80)

dollars as attorney's fee, together with interest and

costs.

III.

The Court erred in rendering any decree in favor

of complainant below and against this appellant,

and in refusing to enter a decree in favor of this ap-

pellant dismissing said action.

IV.

And for other errors manifest upon the record.

Wherefore, the said Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., prays that the decree of the said Circuit Court

of the United States for the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, be reversed, and
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that proper decree be rendered herein dismissing

said action as to this appellant.

W. H. BOGLE,

THOMAS B. HARDIN,

CHAS. P. SPOONER,
Solicitors for Appellant, 377 Colman Building?,

Seattle, Wash.

[Endorsed] : Assignment of Errors. Filed in the

U. S. Circuit Ooiirt, Western District of Washing-

ton. June 6, 1907. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A.

N. Moore, Deputy.

Citation (Copy).

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

To Grenville M. Dodge, Complainant, and Frank

Waterhouse, Defendant, Greeting:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear before the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to be holden at San

Francisco within thirty days from this date, pur-

suant to an appeal filed in the clerk's office of the

Circuit Court of the United States for the Western

District of Washington, Northern Division, wherein

Grenville M. Dodge is complainant and appellee,

and Frank Waterhouse is defendant and appellee,

and Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., is appellant, to

show cause, if any there be, why the final decree in
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said cause should not be corrected and speedy jus-

tice should not be done to the parties on that behalf.

Witness the Honorable WILLIAM B. GILBERT,

Circuit Judge of the United States, this 6th day of

June, in the year of our Lord one thousand nine hun-

dred and seven,

[Seal] C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

Due and personal service of the within citation,

by certified copy admitted this 6th day of June,

1907.

GEO. H. KING,

Solicitor -for Complainant.

[Endorsed] : Citation. Filed in the U. S. Circuit

Court, Western Dist. of Washington. June 6, 1907.

A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk, A. N. Moore, Deimty.

In the Circuit Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

IN EQUITY—No. 1290.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant,

vs.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc., and FRANK
WATERHOUSE,

Respondents.
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Praecipe for Transcript.

To the "Clerk of the AboYe-entitled Court:

You will please prepare and properly certify a

transcript of the record in this cause and insert

therein the following, for use on appeal:

Bill of complaint, filed April 26, 1905.

Answer, filed May 3, 1905.

Exceptions to answer, filed May 26, 1905.

Order overruling exceptions to answer, filed May

29, 1905.

Memo, decision, filed July 6, 1905.

Order overruling exceiotions to answer, filed July

12, 1905.

Replication, filed August 2, 1905.

Deposition of Frank S. Pusey, published June 21,

1906.

Testimony, filed June 16, 1906.

Complainants' Exhibits 8 to 17, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23,

24, 25 and 26, and Respondents' 95 exhibits, filed

June 16, 1906.

Deposition of Grenville M. Dodge and Frank S.

Pusey, published June 16, 1906.

Memo, decision on merits, filed May 14, 1907.

Final decree, filed May 20, 1907.

Supersedeas and appeal bond, filed June 6, 1907.

Petition for appeal, filed June 6, 1907.

Order allowing appeal, filed June 6, 1907.
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Assignment of errors, filed June 6, 1907.

' Citation, filed June 6, 1907.

Dated June 17, 1907.

BOGLE, HARDIN & SPOONEE,

Attorneys for Respondents.

[Endorsed] : Praecipe. Filed in the IT. S. Cir-

cuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington. June 17,

1907. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. W. D. Covington,

Dep.

Iti tlie Circuit Court of the Umted States for the

Western District of Mi^aslungton, Northern Divi-

sion.

No. 1290.

FRANK WATERHOUSE & CO., Inc.,

Appellant,

vs.

GRENVILLE M. DODGE,

Complainant and Appellee.

FRANK WATERHOUSE,
Defendant.

Clerk's Certificate to Transcript.

United States of America,

Western District of Washington,—ss.

I, A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk of the Circuit Court of

the United States for the Western District of Wash-
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ington, do hereby certify the foregoing four hun-

dred and forty (440) typewritten pages, numbered

from one to 440 inclusive, to be full, true and cor-

rect copy of the record and proceedings in the above

and foregoing entitled cause as the same remain of

record and on file in the office of the clerk of said

court, as, by the praecipe of the solicitor for the ap-

pellant I am required to certify and transmit as the

record on appeal to the Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit, from the order and decree of

the Circuit Court of the United States for the West-

ern District of Washington, in said appeal men-

tioned.

I further certify that the cost of preparing the

foregoing record on appeal is the sum of $340,60,

and that said sum has been paid to me by Bogle,

Hardin & Spooner, solicitors for appellant.

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said Circuit Court, this

26th day of July, 1907,

[Seal] A, REEVES AYRES,

Clerk.

By R. M. Hopkins,

Deputy Clerk,
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Citation (Original).

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

To Grenville M. Dodge, Complainant, and Frank

Waterhouse, Defendant, Greeting :

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear before the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to be holden at San

Francisco within thirty days from this date, pur-

suant to an appeal filed in the clerk's office of the

Circuit Court of the United States for the Western

District of Washington, Northern Division, wherein

Grenville M. Dodge is complainant and appellee,

and Frank Waterhouse is defendant and appellee,

and Frank Waterhouse & Co., Inc., is appellant, to

show cause, if any there be, why the final decree in

said cause should not be corrected and speedy jus-

tice should not be done to the parties on that behalf.

Witness the Honorable WILLIAM B. GILBERT,

Circuit Judge of the United States, this 6th day of

June, in the year of our Lord one thousand nine

hundred and seven.

[Seal], C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

Due and personal service of the within citation,

by certified copy, admitted this 6th day of June,

1907.

GEO. H. KING,

Solicitor for Complainant.
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[Endorsed]: No. 1290. Cireiiit Court of the

United States for Western District of Washington,

Northern Division. In Equity, Grenville M.

Doge, Complainant, vs. Frank Waterhouse & Co.,

Inc., et al.. Respondents. Citation. Filed in the

U. S. Circuit Court, Western Dist. of Washington.

Jun. 6, 1907. A. Reeves Ayres, Clerk. A. N.

Moore, Dep. Bogle, Hardin & Spooner, Attorneys

for Respondents.

[Endorsed]: No. 1490. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Frank

Waterhouse & Co., Inc., Appellants, vs. Grenville

M. Dodge and Frank Waterhouse, Appellees,

Transcript of Record. Upon Appeal from the

United States Circuit Court for the Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division,

Filed August 12, 1907.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk.




